651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENCY Roseville, CA 95678

phone (916) 781-3636
fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Minutes - Draft

To: NCPA Commission
From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Subject:  April 20, 2017, NCPA Commission Meeting

Item #1 — Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Bob Lingl called the meeting to order at 9:30 am at NCPA’s Roseville Office, 651 Commerce
Drive, Roseville, California. A quorum was present. Introductions were made. Those in attendance
are shown on the attached attendance list.

»Item #2 — Approve Minutes of the March 23, 2017, Regular Commission Meeting, and the April
5, 2017, Special Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Teresa O'Neill to approve the Minutes

of the March 23, 2017, Commission meeting and the April 5, 2017, Special Commission meeting.
The motion carried unanimously on a roll call vote of those members present.

PUBLIC FORUM

Chair Lingl asked if any members of the public were present who would like to address the
Commission on the agenda items. No members of the public were present.

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

Item #3 — General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

General Manager Randy Howard reported:
— Gave an update on NCPA’s Support and Shared Services agreements and provided a copy of
the monthly status report.

— Provided an update on member visits. Met with Alameda, Santa Clara and Lompoc this past
week.

—  Brief update on CMUA’s Annual Conference held last week. Held a joint leadership meeting with
CMUA and SCPPA. Continuing to focus on advocacy efforts and training.

— Provided an Overhead Design & Construction class flyer, an upcoming NCPA training class
scheduled to be held at NCPA on May 31-June 2.

~ NCPA hosted the Transmission Access Policy Study (TAPS) Group earlier this month.
— CEC/CPUC workshop scheduled on May 19 in Sacramento to discuss transmission concerns.



— Update on settlement discussions with PG&E regarding the TO18 transmission case. Meetings
with PG&E are going well.

- NCPA'’s Federal Policy Conference is scheduled for week in Washington, D.C.

- Met with Pablo Arroyave with the Bureau of Reclamation regarding concerns with operations and
maintenance.

— This week spoke and gave a presentation to the Engineering Department at Cal Poly. Great
turnout of students.

Item #4 — Executive Committee
Committee Chair Bob Lingl reported that the Committee did not meet.
Item #5 — Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Dave Dockham reported the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed items 12-21, 23, and 24 on today’s
Agenda. The Committee recommended Commission approval of all items. The Committee also
heard a report and received an overview on plant operations.

Item #6 — Finance Commiittee

Committee Chair Madeline Deaton reported that the Committee met under a special meeting notice and
discussed the FY2018 budget and the long-term funding plan for NCPA pension plan, and the external
auditors and financial advisors RFPs. The next Committee meeting is on May 10.

Item #7 — Legal Committee

Acting General Counsel Ruthann Ziegler reported that the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee discussed closed session item 25 on today’s Agenda. There
was no reportable action taken at the meeting.

Item #8 — Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Committee Vice Chair Teresa O’Neill reported that the Committee met yesterday, and received a
detailed briefing on state and federal legislative and regulatory affairs issues. The Committee heard
a discussion on NCPA’s federal policy priorities in advance of congressional and agency visits, and
an overview of the Federai Policy Conference program and logistics. The NCPA/NWPPA Federal
Policy Conference is scheduled on April 23-27. The next Committee meeting is on August 23.

Item #9 — Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting
Monica Padilla, Palo Alto, reported that Palo Alto is seeking approval of the NCPA Support Services
Agreement and the Supplement No. 1 to the Amended and Restated NCPA Joint Powers Agreement
adding the City of Shasta Lake at their May 8 Council meeting.

Mel Grandi, Ukiah, reported that Ukiah is hosting the May NCPA Commission meeting on May 25, and
gave a brief overview of the tour activities scheduled on May 24. A flyer of the activities was provided.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes
April 20, 2017



CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to determine
if any member wished to pull an item or abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar. No
items were pulled from Consent.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Mel Grandi to approve the Consent
Calendar consisting of Items 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, and 22. The motion carried
by a majority of those members present on a roll call vote with the abstentions noted below for each item.
BART, Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner were absent.

item #10 — NCPA'’s Financials for the Months Ended March 31, 2017 — approval by all members.
Item #11 — Treasurer’s Report for the Months Ended March 31, 2017 — accept by all members.

Item #12 — Resolution No. 17-25, Power Engineers, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement for General Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects:
All NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Member Facilities — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement with Power Engineers, Inc. for general engineering services, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA") and SCPPA Member facilities.

Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #13 ~ Resolution No. 17-26, Airgas USA, LLC -~ First Amendment to Five Year Multi-
Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Material and Supplies; Applicable to the
following projects: All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to
enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task Agreement for Purchase of Equipment, Material and Supplies
with Airgas USA, LLC, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 over five years for use at any facilities owned and/or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact. Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $750,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #14 — Resolution No. 17-27, Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories, Inc. — First Amendment
to Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects:
All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members —
adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Schweitzer Engineering Laboratories,
Inc., with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by
Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
April 20, 2017



Item #15 — Resolution No. 17-28, HDR Engineering, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Professional
Services Agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. for engineering services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the
Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #16 — Resolution No. 17-29, Precision Pump and Machine — KSB, Inc. — First Amendment
to Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following projects: All
NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First
Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Precision Pump and Machine - KSB, Inc.,
with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $260,000 over five years for use at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact:. Total cost of the agreement is not-to-exceed $260,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures

Item #17 — Resolution No. 17-30, Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial Construction — Five Year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement for General Services; Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Brian Davis dba Northern Industrial
Construction with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #18 — Resolution No. 17-31, Alliance Cooling Products and Construction, Inc. — Five-Year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement for General Services, Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Generation services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five
Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Alliance Cooling Products and Construction, Inc. for
maintenance services with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“‘SCPPA”), or SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 4
April 20, 2017



Item #19 — Resolution No. 17-32, Epidendio Construction, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Maintenance Services; Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA
Generation Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution
by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five Year Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Epidendio Construction, Inc. for maintenance services, including
grading, excavation, paving, demolition, gravel and/or water hauling, seal coating, and related labor and
materials, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General
Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to be used out of
NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Item #20 — Resolution No. 17-33, Kestrel Power Engineering LLC — Five Year Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects:
All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five Year Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement with Kestrel Power Engineering LLC for engineering consulting
services related to project support and plant operations, with any non-substantial changes recommended
and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years for use
at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power
Authority (“SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five
years to be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures

Item #21 -~ Resolution No. 17-36, Approval of Amendment to Facilities Schedule 5 of the
Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement — adopt resolution by all members approving an
amendment to Facilities Schedule 5 of the Amended and Restated Facilities Agreement to update the
CT1 Project Statistics contained in Section 1.3, to ensure the operating parameters remain consistent
with the CAISO Master File.

Fiscal Impact: Costs associated with staff time and resources required to develop the amended
Facilities Schedule 5 are accounted for in existing NCPA budget categories.

Palo Alfo abstained.

Item #22 — Resolution No. 17-37, Approving Legal Services Agreement with Law Offices of Susie
Berlin - adopt resolution by all members appointing the Law Offices of Susie Berlin as NCPA outside
Special Counsel/Regulatory Affairs, and authorize the General Manager to execute a five year contract
for these services to be paid at an hourly rate of $335 through June 30, 2017, increasing to an hourly
rate of $390 effective July 1, 2017, with a not to exceed amount $350,000 annually.

Fiscal Impact: The Law Offices of Susie Berlin currently represents NCPA in this area. The firm’s
hourly rate for the past four years has been $335. Under the attached contract, the hourly rate for the
firm’s services will remain at this level through June 30, 2017. Effective July 1, 2017, the hourly rate will
increase to $390. Payments under this contract are not to exceed $350,000 annually. The hourly rate
does not include expenses. However, the annual cap includes all expenses.

The FY 2017 NCPA Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Committee Budget includes funding to cover
expected costs for these special counsel services through the balance of this fiscal year. The FY 2018
NCPA Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Program budget that the Legislative and Regulatory Affairs
Committee has recommended for Commission approval includes $300,000 for these services. Because

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
April 20, 2017



the Law Offices of Susie Berlin represents other public power clients with shared interests in the
regulatory arena, the firm spilits the cost of its representation on issues among its clients with common
interests, which resuits in a reduction of overall costs for NCPA on most proceedings. The contract
includes provisions that would enable individual NCPA members to retain the Law Offices of Susie Berlin
at the same hourly rate and in accordance with this contract as needed, subject to approval by the NCPA
General Manager.

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

Item # 23 — Resolution No. 17-34, Ford Construction, Inc. Public Works Agreement - Adit 4 Spoils
Facility Repair Project; Applicable to the following project: Hydroelectric Generation Services
Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager to execute a public works
agreement with Ford Construction, Inc. and to issue purchase orders and change orders for not to
exceed $2,897,507 for construction of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repairs at the NCPA Hydroelectric
Project.

Fiscal Impact. The total cost of the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repair Project is now estimated to be $3.46M
which includes $285,477 spent to date for design and interim repairs. Previous budget estimates to
complete the repair were $4.15M. Based upon the construction bid, expenditures in 2017 (FY 2018) are
now anticipated to be $3.1M which includes construction, outside construction engineering services, and
an 18% contingency. $500,000 was included in the current fiscal year budget. The proposed FY2018
Hydroelectric budget proposes collecting another $1,185,000 in FY2018 and using previously collected
funds available in the Hydroelectric Capital Development Reserve to fund the Adit 4 Spoils Facility
Repair Project until the Capital Development Reserve can be refunded by Insurance Claim payments or
collections in the FY2019 Hydroelectric Budget. On February 9, 2017, the Hydroelectric Project
insurance underwriters determined that the Adit 4 Spoils Facility was a covered named asset and that
the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repair Project would be covered by insurance, minus the $500,000 deductible
and items considered as a betterment. The betterments portion of the Project are yet to be determined.

The Commission, on August 17, 2016, authorized the General Manager or his designee to issue
purchase orders for not to exceed amount of $500,000 against previously approved Multi-Task Services
Agreements for engineering and permitting support associated with the Adit 4 landslide. The current
request is for authorization for the General Manager or his designee to issue purchase orders for not to
exceed $2,897,507 for actual construction. i
Assistant General Manager Ken Speer provided the Commission with a detailed presentation on the Adit
4 Spoils Facility Report Project.

Motion: A motion was made by Mel Grandi and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution
authorizing the General Manager to execute a public works agreement with Ford Construction, Inc. and
to issue purchase orders and change orders for not to exceed $2,897,507 for construction of the Adit 4
Spoils Facility Repairs at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call
vote of those members present. BART, Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner were absent.

Item # 24 — Resolution No. 17-35, Approval of Fiscal Year 2018 Annual Budget — adopt resolution by
all members approving the FY 2018 Annual Agency Budget.

Fiscal Impact: Total proposed annual budget cost for FY 2018 is approximately $361.7 million, which
represents an increase of 10.1% or a 33.2 million dollar increase over the FY 2017. The Executive
Summary section of the budget document contains an analysis of the overall budget. Allocation of the
FY 2018 budget between members and LEC project participants are based on participation levels in
NCPA programs and projects and the approved cost allocations.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
April 20, 2017 ’



Assistant General Manager/CFO Monty Hanks gave a presentation on the changes to the proposed
annual budget for FY18. The Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee, the Facilities Committee and
the Lodi Energy Center Project Participants Committee have recommended approve of their proposed
budgets.

Motion: A motion was made by Roger Frith and seconded by Madeline Deaton to adopt resolution
approving the FY 2018 Annual Agency Budget. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of
those members present. BART, Port of Oakland, Redding and Truckee Donner were absent

Non essential staff and attendees left the meeting during closed session item 25.

CLOSED SESSION

Item #25 — Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.9(d)(1): Name of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of Redding, City of Roseville, and
City of Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal Claims no. 14-817C.

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: Assistant General Counsel Ruthann Ziegler stated there was no reportable
action taken on closed session Item 25.

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

Item #26 — Hydrology Report — update and presentation

Assistant General Manager Ken Speer gave an update and presentation on the hydroelectric project.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

ADJOURNMENT

The April 20, 2017, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:15 am.

Respectfully submitted,

1

CARY A. PADGETT

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 7
April 20, 2017



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of April 20, 2017
COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
ALAMEDA %AM»&WQ
fo 2L
GRIDLEY Gy Foeilecs ]?zm, Bdkesny
HEALDSBURG |
LODI W M\//\
o Az
PALO ALTO 3 A
PORT OF OAKLAND

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

/) i
/ A /7 : 4;/’: 7
Dnily 12200

REDDING

ROSEVILLE

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID
TRANSIT DISTRICT

SANTA CLARA

i

TRUCKEE DONNER

i/
/
7

/]

UKIAH

7/
/
/




’

Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting of April 20, 2017
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
»/Whﬂ (e QC\(\uemtmo\M/ NCPA
e Prld]— frio D
M %WJW SUP ~Serota Clave
ﬂ @owv\ M Aamcd
Osd \"&’}e HQa(ASlM—a
Wnrw Ctower g HEALDﬁ&uLQ
&e =z T LH& . grovﬂ <
"Yeu \C%{H,f,( 4U/’ DA
e Meod ]! {oseuille.
Mot Hoie, MLPA
Uane Chivinpone/ NopPA——
Tam Aillev | SHASTH LAKE
1)), ke Bvozz V5P B
L/Z [pklEl Lop]
sthann Vo NP L g el counse)
Qa\&\ \r&(ewa(}\)- Nep pvl

e / Lo a0

(5L
MM\\ \QM\NM( uHEY




Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE
Topic: \\\’KW\ &d(

<
O
—
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda
BART _L_
Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara

D

Truckee Donner

AaRadiRinansadid

Ukiah

Passed and adopted this 20* day of April 2017, by the above vote on roll call.

Zue O NN

BOB LINGL CARY A. PADGETT '~
Chair Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE
Topic: \\XX‘Q\N\ &?)
VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda ‘ é -
BART l__
Biggs __,_Y
Gridley

S
Healdsburg Y
Lodi h '
Lompoc ¥
Palo Alto __\L_
Plumas-Sierra 1%

Port of Oakland

e

Redding

Roseville

¥
Santa Clara Ié

Truckee Donner

—~

Ukiah

Passed and adopted this 20" day of April 2017, by the above vote on roll call.

Bbe 7 e LRI

BOB LINGL /) CARY A~PADGETT"
Chair Assistant Secretary



A PUBLIC AGENCY

CONSENT CALENDAR

RTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

*

Commission Meeting Date: L\ \@D\ ij!

Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: #_l@ to#

Consent Items Removed from the A,gzda and Approved Separately:
#

a
ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS: LOD\ / UOQC\]\/\

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent
Alameda )

BART

Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto 2\
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

e bk

Car; A. Pa‘\d)gej’—ct*\—‘j
Assistant Secretary to the Commission

_gf#%, .

i
r<<
—

s

ivgva

AA

L] e

e




651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

A PUBLIC AGENCY

NOGRTHERN CAL!FORNIA POWER AGENCY phone  (916) 781-3636
o fax  (916)783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Commission Staff Report AGENDA ITEMNO.._ S _

Date: May 25, 2017
To: NCPA Commission
Subject: May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

The attached Draft Minutes are being provided for information and to augment the oral
Committee report.



651 Commerce Drive
A PUBLIC AGENTY Roseville, CA 95678

NC P A phone  (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693
web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

To:

NCPA Facilities Committee

From: Michelle Schellentrager

Subject: May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes

1.

Call Meeting to Order & Roll Call - The meeting was called to order by Committee Vice Chair
Mike Brozo at 9:03am. A sign-in sheet was passed around. Attending via teleconference
and/or on-line presentation were Alan Hanger, Barry Leska, Debbie Whiteman, and Sarah Liuba
(Alameda), Paul Eckert (Gridley), Tikan Singh (Lompoc), Jim Stack and Monica Padilla (Palo
Alto), Basil Wong (Port of Oakland), and Steve Hance (Santa Clara). Those attending in person
are listed on the attached Attendee Sign-in Sheet. Committee Representatives from BART,
Biggs, Healdsburg, TID, and Ukiah were absent. A quorum of the Committee was established.

PUBLIC FORUM

No public comment.

Approve Minutes from the Aprll &% Facilities Commlttee Meetings — A motion was made by
Monica Padilla and seconded by Shannon McCann recommending approval of the April 5t
Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley,
Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto Plumas Slerra Port of Oakland Roseville, and Santa Clara. The
motion passed. : .

Andritz Hydro Amended Terms and Condltlons for Limited Scope of Equipment Supply
Agreement — Staff recommended approval of a five year amended terms and conditions for
Limited Scope of Eqmpment Supply Agreement with Andritz. This agreement will have a not-to-
exceed amount of $2,500,000. Andritz was the original designer, manufacturer, and supplier of
many of the major components of the Collierville powerhouse. NCPA's existing agreement with
Andritz expires on August 9", 2017. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Monica Padilla and seconded by Shannon McCann
recommending Commission approval of an Amended Terms and Conditions Agreement with
Andritz Hydro for electromechanical parts and equipment for the Collierville powerhouse, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $2,500,000 over five years for use at the hydroelectric facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Qakland.
The motion passed.

Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities Project — Staff recommended approval for
repair, restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir and related
facilities at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project. In February of 2017, the Commission declared a
State of Emergency at NCPA's Hydro facilities. The large storms over the course of the winter
caused excessive amounts of sediment and debris to be deposited in Beaver Creek. The low-
level outlet, fish screen area, and diversion tunnels are all blocked. Staff shared photos of the



debris in Beaver Creek. If the sediment and debris are not removed this year, power generation
in subsequent years could be severely impacted (staff estimates revenue loss could be as much

as $1.7M).

NCPA has applied for Emergency Permitting to expedite the issuing of permits and allow repair
work to begin as soon as possible. The scope of work is not fully known as this time. Staff
shared with the Facilities Committee some of the restrictions and conditions that NCPA will have
to adhere to with this Emergency Permit.

Staff discussed budgeting for the required work. There is the potential that NCPA can apply for
reimbursement for some of the repair costs with FEMA/NCPA’s insurance provider. Staff
estimates the project will cost $0.7M. Members asked whether some of the emergency funds
NCPA intends to use to pay for repairs have already be committed to the landslide emergency
work (Adit 4). Staff explained those emergency funds will not be’ needed for Adit 4 repairs, as
the bids for that project came in under budget and NCPA antrcrpates pre—payments from
insurance to complete the Adit 4 repair work. ; .

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Jlayo Chrang
recommending the Commission to authorize the General Manager to enter mto one or more
agreements, with a total not-to-exceed for all agreements of $1,000,000 for reparr restoration
and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir-and related facrlltles at the NCPA
Hydroelectric Project. A vote was taken by roll call; YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi:Lompoc,
Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa CIara\.ﬁf‘ABSTAIN Port of Oakland. The motion
passed.

5. Sage Engineers, Inc. First Amendment Staff recommended -approval of a First Amendment
to the Multi Task Professional Services Agreement with Sage: Engrneers Inc. This Amendment
increases the contract value from $225k to-$1,000; 000, and also .expands the Scope of Work.
The original MTSA was. srgk“w in September 2016 ‘Since then Sage Engineers, Inc. have
absorbed California Electrlca Services, another engineering’ consultrng company with which
NCPA had an exrstlng agreement‘”wrth a not-to-exceed amount of $750k. This First Amendment
simply accounts-for the mergrng_’ these two | companles Sage has not requested any changes

to the Terms and Condltlons

Motion: A-motion was made by rke Brozo and seconded by Shannon McCann recommending
Commission-approval for the' ‘General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment
to the‘Multr-Task Professronal ‘Services Agreement with Sage Engineers Inc., for engineering
consultlng services relafed to prOJect support and plant operations, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel. First amendment seeks
to increase the contract value from $225,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of

$1,000,000-over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members; by the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or by SCPPA
Members. A'vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto,
Plumas-Sierra, Rosevrlle ‘and Santa Clara. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland. The motion passed.

6. Knights’ Electrrc MTGSA Staff recommended approval of a five-year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement with Knights’ Electric, Inc. This would be for use at all NCPA Facilities,
Members and SCPPA/Members. Staff explained this agreement would be for as-needed
maintenance services, including termination/demolition of existing equipment, lighting in power
plants, Steam field and facility buildings, and troubleshooting electric equipment and circuits,
among other things. A draft Commission Staff Report was available for review.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Monica Padilla recommending
Commission approval of a Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Knights’
Electric, inc. with any nonsubstantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 2



operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, by the Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), or by SCPPA Members. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland. The motion passed.

7. Melissa Price brought up the possibility of enacting a consent calendar in the Facilities Meetings
for approving enabling agreements (similar to voting structure utilized by LEC/PPC and the
Commission). There were no objections to exploring this option by any of the Facilities Members
present. Jane Luckhardt (NCPA Legal Counsel) did not see any issues. Dave Dockham said he
would put it on the agenda of the next Commission Meeting for further discussion.

8. Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA) Appendlx B — Staff recommended
approval of changes to the settlements charge codes in the Schedulmg Coordination Program
Agreement (SCPA) Appendix B. Staff shared an overview of the proposed changes. These
changes are needed as a result of the recent implementation of the:CAISO’s new Flexible
Ramping Product, the Resource Adequacy Availability Incéntive Mechanlsm (RAAIM), and the
Capacity Procurement Mechanism. These changes will-allow NCPA to be. more precise in
specifying where funds are being allocated. NCPA does not anticipate these changes to the
charge codes will result in any significant monetary mcrease for Members..

Members expressed concern about the new changes to the RAAIM, and whether these
changes could potentially result in Members being fined by, the CAISO more often:: Staff
explained that NCPA is drafting an internal Resource Adequacy cheat sheet to assist the
Members in avoiding penalties when. selling excess flex capaCIty NCPA also explained that
certain sales will be exempt from the fl’ ,pPA will share thls cheat sheet with Members
once it is complete. : o N

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chlang and sec N’n‘ded by Mlke Brozo recommending

proposed changes to the settlements charge codes in the
Scheduling Coordination: ‘,;m\Agreement Appendrx B related to the post-implementation of
the CAISO's Flexible amping Product, Resource Adequacy Availability Incentive Mechanism
(RAAIM), and Ca' city Procurement Mechanism. A vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda,
Gridley, Lodi, Lomp, Palo AIto Plumas Slerra Port of Oakland, Roseville, and Santa Clara.
The motion passed e e

Commission approval o

| tuons Forecast Report Staff recommended approval of the 2017 Steam
Fleld Operatrons rt, as'well.as approval of the two-zone operation in the geothermal field
for FY18. Staff share }iF_’owerPomt which highlighted some of the repair/maintenance projects
that were completed/are currently underway at the NCPA steam fields. Staff shared charts
showrng the average rnjectlon rate over the past sixteen years; injection for 2016 was 40%
higher than the historic averages. Staff also shared a proposed plan of injection at the
geothermal f elds in whrch NCPA would operate two distinct injection zones.

Members asked whether these latest generation forecasts were included in the 10-year forecast
NCPA had presented with the budget. This latest steam field forecast will be included in next
year's 10-year forecast model. Members also expressed concern about the trending up of non-
condensable gas. Staff acknowledged that this is concerning, as it can affect efficiency, but
assured Members that it is simply an indication that water needs to be spread more efficiently
throughout the geothermal fields.

9. Steam Flelanp

Motion: A motion was made by Shannon McCann and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission approval of the 2017 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report, dated April 2017 as
the Geothermal Operating Protocol effective July 1, 2017, as well as approval of the two zone
operation in the geothermal field for FY18. This Operating Protocol is

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 3



to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission. A vote was taken by roll call: YES =
Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. ABSTAIN = Palo Alto and Port
of Oakland. The motion passed.

10. Flynn RCI BANix Agreement — Staff recommended approval of a Professional Services
Agreement between NCPA and the BAMx Participants and a Consulting Services Agreement
between NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc. This will be a continuation of an existing
agreement which expires soon. Staff outlined the scope of services included; there are no
notable changes between the previous contract and the new one.

NCPA has decided to extend the term of the new agreement for 3 years, which requires an
increase in the not-to-exceed amount. As a result, NCPA has added:additional language limiting
the annual amounts that can be spent under this new agreement.. There was discussion about
the administrative fee associated with this agreement, and whether the current fee structure is
still appropriate now that this agreement will be a multl-year agreement NCPA staff as agreed
to examine the fee structure. A draft of the agreement was avallable for reV|ew

Motion: A motion was made by Monica Padilla and seconded by Mehssa Prlce recommending
Commission approval of: (i) the Professional Servnces Agreement between NCPA and the
BAMXx Participants, and (ji) the Consuiting Services Agreement between NCPA -and Flynn
Resource Consultants Inc., and delegation of authonty to the ‘General Manager of NCPA to
enter into the agreements, on behalf of NCPA, mcludlng any non-substantive modifications to
the agreements approved by NCPA’s General Counsel. Members request that NCPA staff
examine administrative fee in light of the multi-year nature: of the agreement, and examine
administration of additional services. A. vote was taken by roll call: YES = Alameda, Lodi,
Lompoc, Palo Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Rosevrlle “and Santa Clara:. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland.
The motion passed.

11. Flynn RCI Transmlss:‘o "“u‘pport Consultmg Serwces greement Staff initially planned to
enter into this agreement so’ that NCPA could-active engagé Flynn RCI in participating in
transmission planning/study costs ‘Staff explamed those costs have been increasing lately,
particularly with.the TO18 Proceed"'gs and the FERC compliant against PG&E attempting to
drive PG&E to establish a formal transmission plannlng process. After careful consideration,

NCPA Staff have de _ded to ,pullﬂw is. a nda item. Staff explained that a second Flynn RCI

i ey-plai \_/utlllze the current agreement.

Members asked Whether NCPA planned to pay all the costs for TO18 and, if not, where the
f\unds”would come from. Staff explained that they would utilize funds already set aside in the
Judicial Action Budget.:| dditional funds are needed, they will seek recommendations from the

Members/Commlssmn a
There was no motron to ap rove this item as the item had been pulled by NCPA Staff.

12. Authorlzatlon to Provrde Serwces to Sierra Valley Energy Authority — Staff recommended
approval for NCPA to develop a Services Agreement for NCPA'’s provision of scheduling and
power management services to the Sierra Valley Energy Authority. The Sierra Valley Energy
Authority is the result of Placer County forming a JPA. The purpose of the agreement presented
was to define the scheduling and portfolio services NCPA could provide. Staff shared the draft
services agreement, and noted that NCPA has similar agreements with Merced and PCWA.

Staff discussed the underlying model used in drafting the proposed compensation. Members
asked how much of the revenue will be allocated to A&G. It was agreed that a follow-up meeting
would be needed to discuss the cost model used, as well as the revenue allocation for this new
agreement. Staff proposed that Committee agree to the amount but that the cost allocation
model could be approved in a Special Facilities Committee meeting later this month.

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 4



13.

14.

. 2017 Western REC Letter of Agreement Staff recommended approval of a Letter of

Members also voiced concern about NCPA resources, and the strain this new agreement may
have on current staff and workload levels. Staff responded that the most time-intensive portion
would be the set-up of the agreement. NCPA does not anticipate the need to add any additional
resources or personnel as a result of this agreement.

Motion: A motion was made by Mike Brozo and seconded by Shannon McCann recommending
Commission approval of the offer amount based on the cost allocation methodology for
negotiation purposes. A Special Facilities Meeting will be scheduled to further assess the
accuracy of the revenue allocation tied to the presentation Cost Allocation. A vote was taken by
roll call: YES = Alameda, Gridley, Lodi, Lompoc, Palc Alto, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland,
Roseville, and Santa Clara. The motion passed.

Alameda CT1, Lodi CT1 & CT2 Decommissioning Reports — Staff shared a presentation
focused on future decommissioning of the Alameda CT1 and the LOdl CT1 and CT2. Staff
outlined what decommissioning each unit would entail, and shared estimated timing for
decommissioning (Staff estimates the earliest the units could be decommssnoned would be
around 2026). E

Staff assured Members these projects are still valuable assets and share a'chart showing the
value of the projects based on the number of Starts/and Hours Run from January through April
2017 to highlight this fact. Staff also shared potentlal upgrades and future |mprovements that
could be made as an alternative to decommlssmnlng the unlts s

Geothermal Facilities Decommrssuonmg Reports - .Staff shared a presentation focused on
future decommissioning of the Geothe" ~Eacility. In 2“00 l}lCPA hired an external contractor
‘ e geothermal facilities, using the
year 2034 as the Abandonment Date |n that onglnal report the cost to decommission woulid

Veatch estlmated
more than the 200
they account for pre
contlngency h

eel that Black & Veatch estimates are more accurate, as
itional infrastructure, and also factor in a 15%

NCPA staff plans_to further. analyze the results from the latest decommissioning study, and will
return to the Facrlltles _Commlttee in fall 2017 to present a plan with recommended annual

Agreement allowmg NCPA to participate in WAPA’s 2017 REC Program on behalf of select
Members. The Members participating are Alameda, Biggs, Gridley, Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc,
Plumas-Sierra REC Port of Oakland and Ukiah. NCPA is required to enter into the Letter of
Agreement in order to receive RECs on behalf of the participating Members. The term for this
LOA would be one year, at an estimated cost of $10k for the term of the agreement. Costs are
allocated to the participating Members based on participation percentage.

Motion: A motion was made by Jiayo Chiang and seconded by Mike Brozo recommending
Commission adopt and approve Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051, and authorize the General
Manager of NCPA to execute Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051, on behalf of NCPA, including
any non-substantive modifications to Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 approved by NCPA’s
General Counsel. A quorum of the Committee was not established during the presentation of
this item. An informal tally of the Members present was conducted: YES = Alameda, Lodi,
Lompoc, Plumas-Sierra, and Roseville. ABSTAIN = Port of Oakland and Santa Clara.

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes



16. Amendment to the BART SMSA - Staff recommended approval of an amendment to the

17.

18.

BART Single Member Services Agreement (SMSA). This amendment would enable NCPA to
contract with EnergyGPS, a third-party consultant, on behalf of BART. NCPA staff shared the
specific services that EnergyGPS would be providing to BART. The term of the amendment
would be through 12/31/2018, with a not-to-exceed amount of $200,000.

Staff provided some background on EnergyGPS. Members questioned why it was necessary for
BART to go through NCPA for this agreement, as opposed to going through their own approval
process. Members also expressed concerns about whether BART followed any formal bidding
process or attempted to solicit bids from alternative consulting firms. The Port of Oakland
wanted it reflected in the minutes that they were displeased with the- use of EnergyGPS, due to
the history of criminal activities of some of the consultants employed by EnergyGPS. NCPA
Staff noted the concerns expressed by the Members present, and agreed to bring those
concerns to BART.

There was no motion made to approve this item. e

Update for IIE Dispute — NCPA staff provided an update to the Facrlltles Commrttee on the
DEC’ing issues with CAISO. NCPA has met with CAISO several times. At the: conclusion of the
last meeting, CAISO agreed to further consider changrng the vanables in their codlng, as long
as NCPA agrees not to pursue any lost revenues. y

A redline with the proposed changes-has been sent to. CAISO staff. NCPA will also need to
submit a BPM Change Request to CAISO ;-Staff anticipates this could be a multi-month process.
Staff will update the Committee as addr _.‘nal rnformatron becomes available.

Planning and Operations Update — . . & o

- PG&E Gas Storage & Transport Rate Case -’-NCPA has a meetrng scheduled next
Thursday to: discuss- the .economic. and regulatory pressure on natural gas storage.
There will ‘also be an addltlonal confldentlal discussion on settlement frameworks. Ken
Speer: and Gillian Biedler will attend. Gillian is also working with CAISO to get them
involved in: future rate’ proceedlngs NCPA would like CAISO to weigh in on market
aspects of varrous cases. .

- -PG&E 890: NCPA contrnues to. meet wrth PG&E on developing a transmission

iannrn "fprocess The discussions are progressing well. Next step is to establish a

process ~both sides.can agree on.

Merced Irrrgatron Drstrrct and Placer County CCA: NCPA continues to be actively

involved with* assrstrng MEII Dennis Sismaet and his Dispatchers are working on

stablish operatmg procedures as well as working with NERC compliance divisions.

- NCPA will begin similar discussions with Placer County CCA soon.

- ‘Shasta Lake NCPA Membership: Palo Also approved Shasta Lake to become full
NCPA: ‘Member. Tony Zimmer, James Takehara, Ken Goeke and Dave Dockham will
be meetlng wrth Shasta Lake this Friday to begin initial discussions on provisioning of
Power Management services. All costs will be allocated in accordance with Power
Management Contract Allocations.

- Ken Speer gave brief updates on NCPA Facilities:

o There were no curtailments at the Geyser’s as a result of last month’s
activities.

o Due to the recent heat wave, CT1 has been running at full capacity. Ken
estimates that most of the plants will be running at full steam into July as the
temperatures continue to climb.

o Hydro runoff started last week, with ~ 8% spilling; New Spicer Meadows has
come up roughly 1500/acre feet. Staff estimate that NSM will be at capacity by
the end of this month.

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 6



o NCPA has seen an increase in Exceptional Dispatches from CAISO due to
congestion issues.

19. Schedule next meeting date — The next regular Facilities Committee Meeting is scheduled for
June 7, 2017. A Special Facilities Meeting will be held on May 17, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 1:53pm.

May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 7



Northern California Power Agency
May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME

ALAMEDA

BART

BIGGS

GRIDLEY

HEALDSBURG

~

[
Loor VYo (e

LOMPOC ! J

PALO ALTO

Py

PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

W@%

AN

PORT OF OAKLAND o

ROSEVILLE MA% Z\/\/

SANTA CLARA

TID

UKIAH




Northern California Power Agency
May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee Meeting
Attendance List

NCPA Facilities Committee members, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by
members of the public is voluntary.

NAME AFFILIATION
Michotte Sodlguitragen NC PR
Dawe D™ aumA ACPA
Clunie Yoo VLCPA
KomcL A STf N as
s N e PA
Yo Ve bz s NCEA
[Miches] DuBodd NePA
7 bhpe/! Prozo PsLEC
«3( 2 Sﬂ%ﬁ( YOl x
S\f\oww\o«\ /V\C'(,a\vw\ Q\BSQ/\/{\\Q/
Brlo Ca\[‘ oA St NC)D/4
Sanss Tobolosrm Aeph
Veriicsa Plate Lo "
Wowtu_Tamks NCPA-
/E)nb, Dimmmen, |2 ien




Commission Staff Report

May 18, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: April 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O
0
O
0
g

City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

O
O
O
O
0
O

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth <X METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify:

O O o0 o O

SR: 150:17



April 2017 Financial Report (Unaudited)
May 18, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency for the month reported herein, will
be approved at the May 25, 2017 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The following page is a
summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman'’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited April 2017 financial reports are also
included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

e

General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 150:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule Qf Disbursements
(Unaudited)

For the Month of April 2017

Operations:
Geothermal $ 1,442,250
Hydroelectric 3,281,840
CT#1 Combustion Turbines 154,249
CT#2 STIG 556,013
Lodi Energy Center 2,745,579
NCPA Operating 18,347,032

Total $ 26,526,963




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2017 83%
This Actual Year FY 2017
Month To-Date Budget % Used

GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,355,003 % 11,109,780 $ 13,601,891 82%

Debt Service (Net) 3,187,715 31,877,146 38,252,575 83%
Annual Budget Cost 4,542,718 42,986,926 51,854,466 83%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,039,042 20,446,319 28,035,560 73%

Debt Service (Net) 375,667 4,007,394 5,109,745 78%
Annual Budget Cost 2,414,709 24,453,713 33,145,305 74%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 241,810 2,842,507 2,648,330 107%  (a)
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 94,226 688,110 936,070 74%

Other Plant Cost 141,513 1,441,939 2,025,600 71%

Debt Service (Net) 468,797 4,687,973 5,625,568 83%
Annual Budget Cost . 704,536 6,818,022 8,687,238 79%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 1,862 7,945,105 44,100,578 18%

Other Plant Cost 1,620,557 15,337,010 22,453,402 68%

Debt Service (Net) 2,202,269 22,012,649 26,437,261 83%
Annual Budget Cost 3,724,688 45,294,764 92,991,241 49%
Member Resources - Energy 3,955,841 37,966,232 45,637,694 83%
Member Resources - Natural Gas 213,012 4,284,340 4,877,728 88% (b)
Western Resources 3,636,534 21,603,911 30,288,301 71%
Market Power Purchases 1,868,258 27,074,259 38,302,363 69%

Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 13,246,580 148,209,600 240,128,621 62%
Net GHG Obligations - 602,510 2,539,910 24%
34,548,686 362,136,784 552,001,197 66%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 173,120 3,006,951 3,799,908 79%
Wheeling Access Charge 7,770,181 67,006,429 74,972,258 89% (c)
Ancillary Services 413,750 2,338,039 1,421,202 165%  (d)
Other Charges 1,258,943 10,599,689 807,975 1312% (e)

9,615,994 82,951,108 81,001,343 102%




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2017

PERCENT OF

MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation
Regulatory Representation
Western Representation
Member Services
Judicial Action

Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs
Green Power Project
Gas Purchase Program
Market Purchase Project

Energy Risk Management
Settlements

Integrated Systems Support
Participant Pass Through Costs
Support Services

TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST

LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales
Load Aggregation Energy Sales
Ancillary Services Sales
Other ISO Revenue
Transmission Sales
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income

NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $

YEAR ELAPSED
83%
This Actual Year FY 2017
Month To-Date Budget % Used
151,670 1,328,593 1,896,810 70%
60,974 643,654 794,328 81%
50,090 458,482 816,695 56%
25,589 298,777 432,215 69%

300 546,111 625,000 87% ®
396,628 4,079,543 5,621,941 73%
160,658 1,724,109 2,554,949 67%

24,664 244,094 414,128 59%
64,615 681,380 1,136,523 60%

159 1,603 17,782 9%

4,792 49,681 86,550 57%
6,621 65,639 127,856 51%
11,471 138,204 211,925 65%
39,857 403,007 861,558 47%
18,472 101,763 310,532 33%
84,723 1,119,146 1,417,039 79%
111,063 213,594 - N/A
1,21 2,346. 12,097,380 17,325,831 70%
45,377,026 457,185,272 650,328,371 70%

5,920,216 57,537,970 118,942,685 48% (@)
8,519,513 101,039,569 184,116,660 55% (h)

18,951 2,839,214 3,790,032 75%
1,749,272 13,938,653 - N/A
9,198 91,980 110,376 83%
2,129,442 19,365,519 14,810,642 131%
18,346,592 194,812,905 321,770,395 61%
27,030,434 $ 262,372,367 $ 328,557,976 80%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT1 is at 326% of budgeted MWhs at 4/30/17. Fuel costs, CAISO

charges, and other variable costs have all increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Member Resources Natural Gas budget variance due to unbudgeted gas hedging contract not included in the FY 2017 budget column.
Hedging contract with the Department of General Services was executed subsequent to approval of the FY 2017 budget.

(¢} Variance due to unbudgeted wheeling access charges related BRT1.

(d) Ancillary Services variance due to higher than budgeted price per MWh.

(e) The large budget to actual variance is caused by unbudgeted CAISO costs including imbalance costs, neutrality allocations, congestion
offsets, and other cost allocations. These costs are not budgeted due to their unpredictable nature.

(f) Variance due to ongoing actual costs related to the CVPIA case which are not includéd in the FY 2017 Budget column.

(9) Variance due to lower than anticipated ISO energy sales for the Lodi Energy Center (LEC). Power values in the CAISO markets remain

low. As a result, LEC is at 18% of budgeted generation at 4/30/17.

(h) Market prices down due to increased hydro and solar generation availability in the CAISO markets.




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

April 30,

2017 2016

(in thousands)

45,539 § 39,311
30,039 29,731

- 873

252 147

208 148
9,688 8,907
1,652 130
87,378 79,247
37,825 54,709
190,288 163,287
570 380
228,683 218,376
1,501,569 1,501,077
(937,593) (906,891)
563,976 594,186
660 106
564,636 594,292
238,789 251,002
54 -
1,119,540 1,142,917
49,673 55,643
9,093 5,310
58,766 60,953

1,178,306 $ 1,203,870




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
April 30,
2017 2016
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 22,484 $ 23,048
Member advances 993 993
Operating reserves 20,140 18,637
Current portion of long-term debt 39,090 36,730
Accrued interest payable ’ 13,380 14,280
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 96,087 93,688
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 57,774 57,260
Operating reserves and other deposits 141,347 134,194
Interest rate swap liability 16,870 22,373
Long-term debt, net 747,746 787,432
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 963,737 1,001,259
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,059,824 1,094,947
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 71,775 74,327
Pension deferrals 6,599 4,947
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 78,374 79,274
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (66,271) (65,057)
Restricted 75,754 69,662
Unrestricted 30,625 25,044
TOTAL NET POSITION 40,108 29,649

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,178,306 § 1,203,870




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

OTHER (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS

REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Ten Months Ended April 30,

2017 2016

(in thousands)

280,373 $ 277,182
104,859 109,430
385,232 386,612
158,665 158,518
42,251 58,979
84,120 68,336
25,629 25,560
12,423 18,195
15,807 16,209
338,895 345,797
46,337 40,815
(29,511) (42,030)
1,044 1,879
12,181 5,150
(16,286) (35,001)
(10,730) 1,342
(7,176) (7,497)
12,145 (341)
27,963 29,990
40,108 $ 29,649




90£8LI( §  68LYSI 620°9 SLLSY - §  0£50Ek § steT 8EL°OV § 886 0Lp $ 9Tl'68
09L°8S €60°6 - B - - - 980T SES'SH 50T
£60°6 €606 - - - - - - - -
£L9'6Y - - - - - - 980°C 1944 T80T
opS6L1'T 969°sh [ 6209 SLLEY - 0ES0ER 8TET 759°8¢€ £5b°59€ pLOLS
b ol - - - - - - - bt
68L'8€T $9£°98 - - - LETIT - 6EL°TI 8€L'3Y1 olL
9£9°%9¢ L£9T 01€ - - 0bT 65€ 086'[ 8E0°61 LYT'Er] ¥81°8€
099 St - - = L01 - - - 80¢
9L6'€9S T65°C 0lg - - £€1°65¢ 086°L 8€0°61 [1Z4341 9L9°LE
(€65°L€6) (5697) (€59 - L’) (L05™b9) (GIAD) (88L°st) (196°052) (c8z'1¢es)
6951081 L8T'S £99 - 9gL'L or9°eTy 5240 928%9 PITH6E 856895
£89°82C TEE18 - vEl'TT - 981'6¢ - 7867 16V7S 855°9T
oLS 68T - - - LE - 1 €l 86
882°061 £70°18 - - - LOL'6E - 1L6'y LOL'RE 09%92
sT8'Le - - PEL'ZT - 44 - - 6b9°S1 -
8LEL8 75€S 6ILS by’ 1T - 198701 8¢ 68T L1681 8LSTIT
- (€zs'oL) 199°S SbE'IT - 61v'8 80°1) T 659°L1 €L5°91
(AL N 8LS €l B - 192 9 6 6€T 243
889'6 - - - - #80°C Sop'l 9 6L0'1 8LY'Y
80T o€l - Ly - 1€ - - - -

[4%4 € - 6vT - - - - - -
6£0°0€ 6£0'0€ - - - - - - - -
6£5'sy $ suy'sy 6€ - - $ $ 1 I $ - $ 1

pautquiod >0Q< SIDIAIRS uorssiusuely, QD 'ON JIUR) >m._v=m 3uQ "oN sayifioe,[ u_hou_ooh?ﬁv— [ewiayjoan
Y10 J2QUIRIAY 7 JamMo uoisstusuel ], 1poT 10 _E_n_mU
Paleossy paseqaing o_n__::z
SIOUNOSTA NOISSTASNVUL 7§ ONILVYENTD
LI0Z ‘o€ 11ady

UOIBUIGUIOD) UL PRTCUIUYT 4
SAYNOSTY 40 SMOTLLNO NNIIIIA ANV SLISSV TVILOL

SAOUNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO ATNYAIAA TY.LOL
S[B112JOP UOISUDJ
199p JO SuIpunyal uo 3509 SSIOXF
SAIUNOST 40 SMOTLLNO ATITIIA

SLASSV TV.LOL

SUPIID JOPUIA Pasnufy
siasse KioteinSoy
SLIASSVY YTHIO

LNV ORLD9Td TV.LOL
ssa1501d-ul-}10m UOIIMIISUCD

uonersadap pajenWnooe $537]
2o1A19s Ut Jueld ouioag
INVTd ONMLOFTH

SIISSY AILONLSHY TV.IOL
9]qeAI30al 15219W]
SIUBUNSIAU]
sjuafeaInba yses pue yse)
SLASSY d4LONLSTY

SLASSY LNTIIND TV.LOL
(swexford sayio pue Lousfy woly ang
sasuadxa predasg
satddns pue K101uaauf
3]qEA19031 152131U]

1BY10

swedpiued
3[QUAIRIDI SIUNOIDY
SIUBWUISAAU]
sjuajeamba yseo pue yse)

SLASSY INTHIND

SLASSY

(pantwo s,000)
SNOILVIOJY0D YAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
AONADV HAMOJ VINIOAITVD NUAHLYON

NOILISOd LUN JO INHWILVLS ONINIIINOD

NOILVIANYOANI TVIONVNIA ¥HHLO



90E'8LIL § 68LbSI 6209 § SLLEY §  0£S°0EY § 87T §  SELOV § 88601 EAN]
301°0F 890°1 9LS'E 9L9°¢ pEL'S (Leg) 9LS ST8'El 06611
$T9°0¢ vSI'T 9LS'E 9L9°€ V6L [(33) PSET 38T 000°01
PSL'SL (980°1) - - 099°61 - 8IS’y 8ELYY bT6'L
(122°99) - - - (ov8'12) - (962'9) (10z'z€) (be6's)
bLESL 09€'6 [ - BIETY 301 166 818°C 69°61
6659 6659 - - - - - - -
SLLIL 197 ol - 81ETH 801°C 166 818°¢ 69761
v8'650°1 19€'vpl e 01°0p 8LY'T8E LSS 1L1'6E SPE'E6E L99'LS
LEL'E96 6101 1760 081°2C 680°ESE - SEPVE 0bL'59E 09179
9pLLYL - - - pLE'ISE - SEV'YE LOT°EEE 0LL'8T
0L8°91 - - - - - - 0L8'9! -

LYE 1] 81t'28 b6 081z SIL - - £0L°s1 06¢°LL
YLLLS YLL'LS - - - - - - -
180'96 691y 20T TT6'LI 6867 LSS 9¢LYy $09'LT L0511
ose'el - - - 1€8°9 - £9v 81L'S 89¢
0606 - - - 0566 - 09L'e [3:3:0¢4 S66°€
ovi‘oz - - - 809'tt 98¢ €ls [4 €129
€66 - 70T - - - - - 6L
v8p'eT $ 69ty - § eeLl $ - $ 1 - [ 3 4Y4 $ Orl

pauquo)) Aouady $3IIAIDS uolssy 1L 1L 13U £B1oug UQ "ON saur oL1199]90pAH Jeuyioan
LYo Joquidpy ¥ Jomog 1po 10 fende)
PpaIeId0ssy paseyoing adniny
STOUNOSHY NOISSIASNVUL % ONILVINID
L107 ‘0¢ Hady

NOILLISOd LN NV SEONNOSTYE 40
SMOTINI AN HLI] ‘SELLITEVIT TV.LOL
NOILISOd L3N TV.LOL
poaLIsaIun
poIoLNSaY
sjasse jendes ur JuaunsaAul 19N
NOILISOd LIN

SAUNOSTY A0 SMOTINI ANNATIAA TY.LOL
S|eLI3J9p UOISUS ]
supain Kiojem8ay
SAYNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATIYFIAA

SHILITHEVITIVLIOL

SALLITIEVIT INTMEND-NON TV.LOL

10U ‘3g9p unal-suo
Auqe dems srer 1sasalu]
sysodoep sai10 pue saatasar GuneradQ
Aupiqer uorsuad 19N
SHILITIGVIT LNTTINI-NON

SALLIIAVYIT INTND TV.LOL

a1qeAed 1s2101U1 PanIodY

199p uual-Suof Jo uorpod uaLn)
santasal Supesadg

SIDUBAPR JAQUIDIN

sasuadxa paruooe pue ajqefed slunodoy

SAILITIEVIT INTIND

SALLITIFVYIT

(pannwo s,000)
SNOLLVEOJIO0D YIMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNADYV IO VINUOAITYD NUAHLION

NOILISOd LAN JO INHIWHLV.LS DNINIIINOD

NOILVIARIOANI TVIONVNIA YTHLO



301°0F $ 8901 3 $ 9.9 s - S pEL'S ) 9LS $ Sz8%cl § 06611
€96°LT LL6 929 861 - L96'C (23N 90T 9£2'6 6018
4444 16 (050'1) 769°1 - L9L'T (ss1) 0Lg 685y 198'¢
(oL1°0) (1z9) (@sD (ogs) - ((713) 33 L6 (csLD) (159)
(ocL'on) - - - S 6L0C - (8e€'1) (bLz'on (zoz'1)
(ogz'91) s 1L 01zt - (816'7) - (509) (€38°€1) 36T

18121 [§74 [t 6561 - $91°8 - 000°1 [X3 9L

501 |£43 0g 15T - 61 - (s9) 47 §24

(1is'67) - - - - (LLzet) - s (zse'el) 1L
LEEOY oL 15571 zl © £88°C (331) LT 105°1€ 96£S
C69°8EC 353 sizel SiT'Ive S 702°9¢ JAZK3 £00'% 62161 9€8°CC
- - (65) - - i3 €6 Sk oLl (zop)
L08'ST (ig) L9€°s - - 6vb'c 149 Stb €L5'T 9Ly's
£2r'T - $6 - - 88T'¢ 7911 414 96¥°C 006°€
629'ST LvT w - S [/ANA 6b1 vr8'l L86°L €81°c
AN - ¥ €28'08 - LEE v6 9% 081'T 9¢9

1Szt L 99L°9 vy - 981°pl 120°1 Iv1°1 €TL'T £01°C1
§99'851 - - 801951 - LSS'T - - - -

TETS8E 413 999°¢1 LTTIVT S80°Th 658°C 077’9 0£9°0S T€C8T
658701 - 6 €8T bY - $98°Cl €65 6¥1 6LS VT 18€'7C
£L£°08T $ €lg $ LS9l $  br6'96l s - § 0TT'6T $ 997'T 1£0°9 § 150°9T $  158'S

pauiquo)) Auady FERTSEN UOISSIuSURLY, uoissiusuer], 193U Areuy auQ "oON SaHIOR,] 0L199{20IpAH [BLUIDYI09D)
Y0 Jaquisiy 79 Jamod 1poy 10 ende)
pateroossy paseyoing adnny

SFOYNOSTA NOISSINSNYUL % ONILVIIANTD

L107 ‘0€ 114y papugy SYIUOAl ud ), 93 10

UOIEUIGUIOD uf PaYULLE

papua pouad ‘NOILISOd LAN
1834 Jo SumwiBag ‘NOLLISOd LAN

NOLLISOd L3N NI (HSYHY03) dSVITIONI
SINVAIDILYVI Ol SANNATY

SINNOWY HTEVIIAQITY TINLNL

SASNALXE YAHLO TVIOL
nYPo
SWOdUL ISAINU]
asuadxa 35a191U]
SANNAATY (STSNALKH) YTHLO

SINNIATE ONILVEILO 1IN

SASNIIXT DNILYIHEJIO TY.LOL
LIu *saseyoand (sajes) Auedwoossug
[e13U3F puE JANENSIURUPY
Nueuajuiey
uonewaidaq
uoISSIUSURL,
suoneladQ
Jamod paseyoing
SHSNAJXE DNILYIIIO

SANNIATI ONILVIHIO TVLOL
Aued-puyJ 2410
sedoued

SANNIATE DNLLVIIIO

(ponwo 5,000)
SNOLLVIOJY0D HAMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNIAOV YAMOd VINHOIITVD NYTHLION

NOLLISOd LAN NI SIONYHD ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAANIATY 40 INFIWILVYLS ONINIFINOD

NOILVINYOANI TVIONVNIA ¥AHLO



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY & ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS
AGED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
April 30, 2017

Status Participant / Customer Description Amount

CURRENT $ 251,727
PAST DUE:

1-30

31-60

61-90

91-120

Over 120 Days

PARTICIPANT and OTHER RECEIVABLES (net) $ 251,727

NOTE: All amounts invoiced or credited to members and others are project/program specific.
NCPA does not apply any credits issued to outstanding invoices unless directed.

AR FY 2017 xisxApr Rpt 2017



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements
(Unaudited)

For the Month of April 2017

Operations:
Geothermal $ 1,442,250
Hydroelectric 3,281,840
CT#1 Combustion Turbines 154,249
CT#2 STIG 556,013
Lodi Energy Center 2,745,579
NCPA Operating 18,347,032
Total $ 26,526,963




NURTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 12, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report for Month Ended April 30, 2017

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

May 25, 2017

\\

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

Ul
O
ad
(]
(I

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

O
J
L
O
O
O

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth =R _{._METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller - N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members City of Lodi City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify:

o O o o O

SR: 151:17




Treasurer's Report for the Month Ending April 30, 2017
May 12, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Agency policy and State of California Government Code Sections 53601 and
53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for your information and acceptance.

Cash - At month end cash totaled $37,390,578 of which approximately $253,949 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $69,568 to Debt Service and $37,067,061 to Operations

and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments - The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $266,094,024 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $264,694,286.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 0.972% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 0.985%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $145,881,000. Aprii maturities totaled $4 million and monthly receipts totaled
$28 million. During the month $10 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates - During the month, rates on 90 day T-Bills increased 3 basis points (from 0.78%
to 0.81%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 3 basis points (from 1.03% to 1.06%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of April 30, 2017 are in
compliance with the Agency’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month's cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

K
R mOWARD

General Manager

Attachment

SR: 151:17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

APRIL 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS 5

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

April 30, 2017
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
NCPA FUNDS

Operating 35,996,773 $ 60,745,811 96,742,584 31.88%
Special Deposits 1,007,492 1 1,007,493 0.33%
Construction 62,796 4,847,989 4,910,785 1.62%
Debt Service 69,568 45,078,723 45,148,291 14.88%
Special & Reserve 253,949 155,421,500 155,675,449 51.30%
37,390,578 $ 266,094,024 303,484,602 100.00%

Portfolio Investments at Market Value $ 264,694,286

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

: Cash Activity Summary
April 30, 2017
%f
1
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE /
OPS/CONSTR  (NOTE B) (NOTEA) OPS/CONSTR  (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 26216118 $ 80,949 $ 334,608 $ (13,522,163) $  (106,770) $ (11,601,352) $ 1,401,390
Special Deposits 1,710,933 5 - (6,975,547) - 5,267,857 3,248
Construction - - - - - - -
Debt Service . 45 770 . (5,958,585) 6,024,924 67,154
Special & Reserve - 98,750 3,307,069 - (4,392,897) 308,571 (678,507)

$ 27,927,051 $ 179,749 $ 3,642,447 $ (20,497,710) $ (10,458,252) $ - $ 793,285

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

April 30,2017
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS )

Operating $ 106,770 $ (334,608) $ (3,102) $ - $ - $ (230,940)

Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - - (704) - - (704)
Debt Service 5,958,585 (770) 19,642 - - 5,977,457
Special & Reserve 4,392,897 (3,307,069) (3,272) - - 1,082,556
$ 10,458,252 $ (3,642,447) $ 12,564 §$ - $ - 6,828,369

Less Non- Cash Activity
(12,564)

Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale

Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 6,815,805

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book earrying value.



Northern California Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

BOND
EQUIVALENT
YIELD

0.985%

0.949%

1.238%
1.170%
1.070%
0.829%

INTEREST RATES

April 30, 2017
WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
INTEREST
RATE
OVERALL COMBINED 0.972%
OPERATING FUNDS: 0.984%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 1.229%
Capital Facilities 1.173%
Hydroelectric 1.087%
Lodi Energy Center 0.862%
KEY INTEREST RATES

Fed Fds (Ovrnight)
T-Bills (90da.)
Agency Disc (90da.)
T-Bills (1yr.)
Agency Disc (1yr.)
T-Notes (3yr.)

PRIOR

CURRENT YEAR
0.91% 0.37%
0.81% 0.23%
0.81% 0.32%
1.06% 0.58%
1.04% 0.54%
1.46% 0.98%

—e—— TBILL (90DA)
~t— TBILL {(1YR)

—a—~ FED FUNDS
O TNOTE (3YR)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
April 30,2017
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 1-5 6-10
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent

US Government Agencies $ - $ 49,054 $7,611 $ - $ 4510 $ 145881 $ - $ 207,056 68.57%
US Bank Trust Money Market 3,468 3,468 1.15%
Commercial Paper 5,000 5,000 1.66%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 50,430 50,430 16.70%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 35,998 35,998 11.92%
U.S.Treasury Bill 0.00%
Certificates of Deposit 10 10 0.00%
Total Dollars $ 94,896 $49,064 $7,611 $0 $4,510 $145,881 $0 $ 301,962 100.00%
Total Percents 31.43% 16.25% 2.52% 0.00% 1.49% 48.31%  0.00% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully
collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we 8y:80 £102/Z0/50

651'182'y 95€92 LdWOIEELE 9ER'9GL'Y €9v’L 65€'l Lzoz/6LL0  SLL'08e'y 9lL02/02/20  Obb'L 000's8Z'y o08n 1paJ) wied (esepa
695'120's 9v29T TAZOOSELE 0T6'L10'G oev'L 66 6102/9z/LL  v9E'LO'S GL02/8Z/80  0SL°) 000'286'y o08n By jeuoneN |esepad
168'G86'S 88192 VIAODSELE 959'200'9 osy'L SIS, 8L0Z//2/LL  10L'600'9 vioziezizL STl 000'026'S 208N Biw [euoeN jelepad
85" L0b'e LEp9T LAHSBEELE  99p'L0p'E 0520 44 L10T/ETISO  8¥T'LOV'E 2102820 OvL'0 000'60%'€ 008n Bg UBOT SWOH |esepa
0 15002 LS00/SAS 0O 0000 ! 0 £10Z/L0/.0 0000 0 asn sueg sn
0 61002 BL00LSAS 0 2000 L 0 £102/L0/L0 2000 0 o08n ofile Jo sueg uojupn
Lve'sL0'8e 2000L 0000.SAS  Lbe'6.0'82 9/2'0 s 1pe's20'8¢2 ELOZILOIL0  9LLO Lpe'5L0'82 El\al unsaAu| AousBy |eoo
aAIasay BuiesadQ |eiauag

ssL's8l'lz  § Les'zyo’iz  § Lz 689 186°zle'le § 6521 1se'viL’iz § abelany pue jejol pund
000°'260'G 25€92 BELEDYELE 091'996'Y 0s€'L ¥8L'L 0202/82//0  000'/60'S 9L0z/82/L0  0SE'L 000°260'S oodan BI [euoneN |esepad
000'860'S 0££92 S6roosele  028'080's 0se’l oLe 6102/82/0L  000'960'S oL0zIgZIVO 05Tl 000'860°S o08n BI [euoneN |esepad
80%'226'E /8192 rLAODSELE 2/9'E86'E 69€E'L Sl5 8L0g//g/L " 0£9'000 vLoe/gueL  Sz9'L 000'296'E 208N By jeuone (elepag
000'0LS'y £2292 ZTISSYOELE 885'W0S'Y 000'L Loe 8L0Z//2IY0  000'0LS'Y SL0ZILZIv0  000°L 000'015'y oo8n g UB0T SWOH [esepay
0 8500. 8500.SAS 0 0000 L 0 £10Z/L0/20 0000 0 : asn Aueg sn
0 €2002 €200/SAS 0 S00°0 L 0 €102/10//0  S00°0 0 208N ojjeQ Jo jueg uolun
16€°205'2 2200L ZZOOLSAS 1§E'205'C 910 b 15€'/05'2 €L0Z/LO/L0 9110 16€'208'2 Elval wysaau) Aoueby |eoa
junoooy buisueeg ydos

yzo'se $ yeo'se $ 9.0 I yzo'se $ 9.L°0 yz0'6e $ abeiaAy pue [ejo pung
¥20'6E S¥00. SPO0ISAS #20'se 9.0 L ¥20'6€ €102/L0/L0 94270 ¥20'6¢ wysanu] Aousby |B00
102y uoiony 9HO ddiNl

leLery'ss  § £6v'8se'sL  $ 625°0 oave 9gz'ser'sL $ 9190 08z'9ge’s. ¢ abeloAy pue |ejo | puny
000'202 €0Y9T ZEAVOPELE  L90'202 00z el 2202/9Z/\0 000202 LLOZIOE/LO 002 000'202 208n WA Ueo awoH [esspad
000'005'€ 68€927 PHAVOVELE S0Z'ZEpb'S 005°4 Sl5' 1Z0Z/€2/80  000'00S'S 9loT/ET/LL  005'L 000'005'€ 008n VN UeoT sWoH [esepay
682'18.'2 GS€9Z 08d8VOELE 2p2'059'L LipL 65e‘L 1Zoz/6LL0  80L'18L L 9L0zZ/ELIL0 00Vl 000's82'2 o08n eg UBOT 8WOH |e1apa4
919'626'6 1£292 LOAV3LELE 069'0p6'6 asv'L 85. 6L0Z/0E/S0  006'€86'6 SLOZ/BO/90  OSL'L 000'0/8'6 208N WA U0} 8WoH esapay
opy'szo'e 08292 Ord-43€ELE 696'€29'e 00€'} 195 810z/6LILL  8¥6'VTY'E sloz/keizL 082 000'9z9'e oo8an Wpal) e |esepay
000'0L €0€0€ €0E0ESAS  000'0L 0500 19 2102/L0/120 0000 2102/40/v0 0500 000'0L asn sueg sn
211'986'GE 0500. 0S00/SAS 2..'966'E 1000 L T.1'966'SE €L0Z/0E/90 1000 212'966'SE asn jued sn
985"t 71002 7LOOLSAS 985t 2000 L 985l €L02/L0/20 2000 985'L oso8an ojifeD 4o yueg uolun
T26'v6E'6 0000. 0000/SAS T26'v6E'6 9.0 L 226'v6E's €L0Z/L0IL0  9LL0 Te6'v6e's Elal unseau| Aousby jeoo
000'000'S 10102 LOLOLSAS 000'000'S 0010 L 000°000'S vLOZI9Z/LL 0010 000°000'S asn 'v'N ueg sn
anjep builizen # JusWiSaAU) dISND  anep Jaxep PIBIA Aunjep ajeq adlid ayeq ey an{ep Ummm_w ueipoysng f asysnu Janssj

Ainb3 0} sAeq Kumep paseyoind aseyaind Isalaju|
puog
Buesado
L102Z/0€/¥0

1 abeg

Hoday s Jainseal}

KouaBy Jamod elulojijen UIsyuoN

ADNATY Y2306 VIR0V zE:E:N




LISV $

we gy:80 4102/20/50

Alza11enb uays ‘8T/92/T 2198120 DWTHA E0V9ITH UBWISAAU|
Alzensenb uayy ‘81/9z/T 3lqelieD DNTHA Z0Y9g#H JBWIsaAu;

Ajianienb ajgeje3 JINTHA SBEITH UBWISIAY

Alzavienb ajgejed  WIANG 89£9z# uawIsaAY]

Apauenb ajqe|jed  VINNA £SE9z# JuBLIISAAU]

awiAue djgeje)  @dd4 9SEITH IUBWISAAU|

swnAue ajge||ed  @1Hd SSEITH IUBWISAAU]

awnAue aqe|ed  §1H4 PSEITH IUBWISAAU]

swnAue uayl ‘,1/z/93lqe|eD  @D44 SEE9TH BWISAAY]
Auanlenb ajqe|ed  VINNA ZEE9ZH JuBWISAAU]

Alayienb ajgejied  YINNA 0EE9ZH uBWIISAAU]

LLOZ/OE/Y0  JO SE [RUINO }92.18 J[BM 8Y) tos) Saoud piq JO SIUBLLSIRIS UBIPOISNY [@8)sni ] Wolj saoud Uo paseq s| anjep Jay ey Juaung

‘PoUjaw JoBXS UR 9Sh S840 [|e ‘poyjew ejewixoidde Uk asn AJUnjewW O} SYJUOLE g UBY] S5} Y}IM SILBUISBAU]
‘sadfj |je usamjaq uosLiedwioo oy siseq e apiaold o} Jeak Aep G9¢ B UO paseq umols s| AJLINJRIY 0} plalA JuajeAinbg puog,

'692'952'9L1 § 6v6°0 ¥85 0sz'Le8'2LL $ ¥86°0 966'865'2LL $ - ‘STIVLOL ANVYD
£18'2v0'18  § Loz'sly'os  § 92zl 8LL 60006018 $ [eisrat Iye'ee6'o8  $ abeloAy pue [ejo[ pung
000°29% 20092 TEAVOPELE PGL'L0p 00¢'e 1el'l 2202/9Z/L0  000'L9% L0208V 0022 000'9% o08an N UeoT awoH [elepad
000'629'04 Gee9z GHOO3EELE 86E'6E5'0L 0694 €6v'L 1202/20/S0  000'629'0L 9L02/c0/90  069°L 000'629'0} ’ 00dn 1pa1) wied |esepeS
000'00€'L 89€92 EMEEDOELE €28'69Z'L 00S°t 88yl 120Z/82/S0  000'00€'L 9102/0€/80 005°L 000'00€‘L 008N BiN leuonen (eJepay
000'28}'s 2e€92 SINEDIELE 0E0'€S0'S 529} s8b'L L202/52/S0  000'T9L's 9102/52/50 ST9'L 000'29L's 208n By [euoneN jesepay
S60'€LL'9L ¥SE9C 08d8YOElLE  L/S'0EP'9L Liv'L 65€'L 1202/6L/L0  O¥9'LLLOL 9L0Z/6LIL0  00F')L G00'0Z2'9L . 004N Bg UB0T SWOH |esepal
anjep Bulfuen # JusLw)saAu| dISND  anjeA el PIBIA Aumep ajeq a3lld ajeQq ey an|ep pajels uelpojsny f as)snu], lanss|
AInb3 0} sheqg Aunyep paseyaing aseyound jsalau|
~puog
anlasay Bujjesad( jelauan
L102/0€/¥0

Hoday sJainseal]

Kouaby Jamod BIUIOY[ED UJOULION

DHIYY YZAD2 VINEDINYA HYIHIEON £




we g4:80 L102/20/50

anlasay Bujuolssiwwoosaq 095

000°00s‘'L  $ see'sey’l  $ 0sL’L 1 2%] 000005t $ oSk 000'00st  $ abeJaAy pue |ejo) pung
000°00S' L 20€9¢ OMIBOYELE SE6'GEY'L oSkl [2%] gL0Z/9z/LL  000'00S'k 91L02/92/20 0§11 000'005'} 204n N U0 8UWoH |esepe4
0 £9002 €900/SAS 0O 0000 L 0 €102/10/20 0000 0 asn Aueg sn
0 S100L GLO0LSAS 0 2000 L 0 €L02/V0/10 2000 0 208N oJi[BD jo sjueg uojun
0 2€004 ZE00.SAS O 95€°0 L 0 €L02/V0/40  95€°0 0 Ela] unsanu| Aouaby |eoo
9AI9SY [B1o0dg |BWIBY}09D)

162881 $ 992'88l $ 669°0 8g yz9'8gl $ 8890 000681 $ abelany pue [ejo | puny
056'29 G6E9Z OMHZ6EELE  126'C9 €150 15 L102/L2I90  198'29 10214210 $0S0 000'e9 14asn VN UeoT] awoH [esepay
¥8'sel pAR4eT4 8PHSSEELE  SpB'STl 26L0 9s 2102/92/90  lSL'sTh \0z/6zie0 082°0 000'gzh 1dasn Bg UBO] SWOH |eJopa ]
90IAI8S 199 VI10¢ 08D

zov'ver  $ pse'vey $ 0890 85 $90'v6Y $ 0/90 000°56V $ abelany pue |ejo] pundg
8e8'zeL STYoT BNHSEEELE 828221 2080 09 L102/08/90  Se8'eet L102/9210 0670 000'egl lasn Bg UBOT SWOH |eJopad
‘s88'zel 60v9C BNHSBEELE 8E8'CTI 8950 09 Ll0Z/0E/90  89L'TTl L10Z/L0/€0 0950 000°€Ch lasn eg Ue0 SWOH |eiapay
688'vZ ¥6€92 €THSBEELE  Lb8'YTL 8550 85 2L0Z/82/I90  OLL'vTh L102/L2I0 0SS0 ooo'szt 18asn eg Ue0T aWoH [esapay
058'eCt 9ly9z 8HSBEELE L¥B'ETL 26L°0 95 2102/92/90 L92'€Cl Ll0Z/6T/E0  08L°0 000'vel asn eg UeoT aWoH esapad
90IAI9G 109(Q VYZ10¢ 089

ci8'lye’s ¢ L804pe'c $ 2650 85 evo'ece’z  $ €850 ooo'vve'c  $ afelaAy pue Jejol pung
269'e€2 yeyoe 6NHGBEELE  LBY'CET 2080 09 LLOTIOEI90  999'EET 10219210 06L°0 000'v€Z lasn Bg UBOT SWOH [BJ8pa
z8L'eeT 80v9Z BNHSBEELE  |L69'EET 8950 09 L10Z/0E/90  095'€€T L102/10/€0 0950 000'v€Z lasn eg U0 SWOH |BJapay
€6L'€€C £6£9C €IHS8EELE €0L'eeT 8550 85 2102/182190  LSb'eeT L102/L2/l0 08570 000'v€Z lasn eg U0 SWOH |eJapay
628'20v°L 28€92 OMH/6EELE  BET'L0V'L £E50 15 2102142190 S18'SOb'L L102/I€TIL0 TS0 000'60%'1 lasn 1N UBOT WO} |esapa
112282 et 2eT4 8HSBEELE €LL'CET 26L°0 95 £102/92/90 Lgg'zee L102/62/0  08L°0 000'€€2 18sn eg UBOT BWOH [BJapad
QVIAIDS 38 |ewIay}oan

¥80'048 $ S£0'0L8 $ £2.°0 £z 50€°LL8 $ 680 000'048 $ abe(aAY pue [ejoL pund
ve0'0.8 ree9z PNNIVOELE  5E0'0/8 zeLo o4 2102/72150  SO0E'1/8 oL0Z/L2/S0  §.8°0 000'0.8 asn eg UeoT sWoH |eseped
anjep bulluey # Jusawiysaau| dISND  enjep e PIBIA Ajuniepy ajeq aold ajeq ey an|ep pajels uelpoisny f 88)snJ | lanss(

: Ainb3 o} sfeqg Ajunjew paseysing aseyaingd }saJayu)
. «puog
pun4 uoijonJisuod Z10¢ 039
L102/0€/v0

Hoday sJainseal]
Aoueby 1amod eluiojijen ulayuoN

ADNIDY HIANDL VINEOAITVD NUIHLM




Wwe gy:80 £102/20/50

Aliszsenb usyy ‘8T/92/T BiqelleD JWTHL bOYITH JUBWISEAU|
Apsuienb sjqejied  WINNA 69€9z# usWIsaAY]
Ajsuenb sjqejied  YIAINA EEE9Z# IUBWISAAY]
Ajiapienb ajqe|je) JINTHA ZOEIZ#H JuaUSaAL]

L10Z/0E/Y0 0 Sk Jeuinor jaalig |[BM 9Y) woky sasuid piq 1o sjustualels UeIPOISnY /aajsnil Wouy saoud uo paseq s| anjep jaxJe(y Jusung

‘poyjelu 30X Ue 3sh s1ayjo |[e ‘poyjaw ajewixoldde ue asn AjLINJEW O} SLIUOW g UBY) $$9] UM SIUSLUISAAU]
‘sadA} [|e usamiaq Uospeduwion Joj siseq e apiaoad o} Jeak Aep go¢ e uo paseq umoys si AjLUnjep o} pl9IA IUs[BAINDT puoyg,

6v6°LVL'9C $ '98.'888'5¢ ¢ 8€Z'1L zs8 9zL'iEL'9T  § [r4Al 656'65L'9¢ § 'STV.LOL ANVHD
000'2L5'L  $ 9le'pab’l ¢ §29°L 1143 000°ZLS'L § 5Zo'L 000'2Ls'L  $ abelay pue |ejoL pung
000°215°L €E€9C SINEDOELE 9/6'v8Y'L 5294 S8yl 1202/52/S0  000°ZLS'L 9L02/52/50 29’ 000'Z1S"L 14asn B |eUoHEN fesepay
JUN0J3IY ¥SA VZ 102 099
vegziv'e  § alv'siv'e  § £8y°L 158 szL'vov's  § veE'L 000'zzy'e  $ abelaAy pue [ejo puny
109'861° 16192 8NAV3LELE 69E'L0§'2 0ES'L 788 6L02/20/0L  6€8'E8Y'C §102/.2/20 oSz 000'6156°C 18sn IN UeoT sWoH |etapady
€LV i6 82292 LOavaLELE LbO'PL6 vSe'L 65. 6L0Z/0E/S0 988026 GL02/20/90  0SL'L 000'206 lasn W\ UeoT swoH jesapad
109y 9AI8SaY 93IAI8S 100 039D
656'228'sL  $ 152'895'51L  $ G0E°L s101 656'2Z8'5L  $ S0e'L 656'2z8'sL  $ abeJary pue Jejo pund
000'L6 ¥0b9z ZEAVOVELE  LIE'LPE 0022 LeL'Y 2202/92/L0  000'L¥6 LLOZIOEIO 002 000'1¥6 00€n VN UBOT BWOH |B18pay
000'00.'6 69€92 EMEEDYELE  /86'vPY'6 005°L 88l 1202/82/S0  000'00.'6 9L0Z/I0S/80  00S'L 000'00.'6 208N B jeuoneN |esepad
] 65002 B6S00/SAS 0 0000 l 0 €102/10/20 0000 0 asn Yueg SN
0 ¥€00L vE00LSAS © 2000 ! 0 £L02/L0/20 2000 0 o04n ‘Oji[ed jo yueg uolun
666'18L'S 12001 LZ00/SAS 656'L8l'S 9.0 L 656'18L'S £102/10/20 9.0 656°181'S Elal wiseAu} Aouaby (oo
anjep Buifuien # Juawiysaaul diISND  anjep jaxien PIBIA Aunjep aeqg aolld ajeq ayey an|eA pajeis ueipoisng j adysnd ] lenss|
Anbz 03 sheq Aunyepn paseyaing aseyaung 1sataju|
wpuog

L102/0€1v0

Joday sJainsead )

Kouaby Jamod eluiojijen ulayuon

anIasay Buuolssiwwosaq oo

%

ADHIVY B30 VINEDSITVD HYIHL




we gy:80 L102/20/50

Ajdausenb usy3 ‘£T/8¢/L 3|98|1BD  YIANNA 8SE9ZH# JUSWISaAU]

L10Z/0E/Y0 3O SB [eUINOf 32311 [[eA 9Y3 WOy saslid pig 10 SJUsSWS)e)g UBJPOISND /aa)snl] Wol saaud uo paseq st anjep Jodlep Jualng

‘pPoujalu JoeXa Ue ash sJayjo jje ‘poyjsw ajewirxosdde Ue asn AJINjEW O} SUFUOW g UBY) SSI| UJIM SJUSLUISBAU]
*sadfj ||e ussmieq uosuedwioa oy siseq e spirosd 0} Jeak Aep ggg B Uo paseq umoys si AjLNye 03 PI3IA JUsjeAlnbg puog,

662156’y $ 'BLO'VIE'Y  § 04t 185 ze9's6’y  § eLLL 000°ss6'v  $ 'STVLOL ANYHD

001'gls’L  § osg'ops't  $ 20£°2 oLzl oev'als’t $ GEET 000'vls'L  $ abelany pue |ejo) pung
ool'sp'L S¥852 z8avalele 098'Liv'L oveT 8Ll TZOZIELILO  OEV'LYb'L ZIOZ/ELZO  GlET 000'ery'L asn W UE0T BWOH [elapad
000'LL 85€92 16SEDYELE  06.'89 0es’t 6vS'L 1202/82/120  000'LL 9102/82120  0£S'L 000'+L asn BYN Jeuonen |erepagy
BAI9S9Y OAS jqag "oed ‘den

e6L'sev'e  $ sey'eer'e § 1190 6 zoz'lev'e  $ 0990 000°LyY'e  $ abesany pue |ejo) pung
€90'69% 8Lbaz VPMIB8SELE  996'89F 26L°0 26 L102/L0/80  /2.'89Y 2102/62/E0 08L°0 000'0Lp 18sn B [eUOnEN |Esapaly
192'69p Elo]4<74 ZMPLBEELE  996'89Y 0290 26 210Z/L0/80  b..'89Y £102Z/82/20 6090 000'0Lp 1asn W UEOT BWoH |esepaly
892'160'L S0v9T CTMIZ6EELE  G65°060°L 0£9°0 26 2102/10/80  219'680'L LL02/20/20 0290 000'€60'L 18sn W Ue0T BWoH [esepad
T.5'186 16€92 TMP/BEELE  PE6'9EE 5090 z6 LL02/L0/80  €L1'9g6 L102/L210 5650 000'6£6 1asn N Ueo alwoH |etepad
620'89% [erazer4 VIMIGEEELE 896'/9F £28°0 z6 2102/L0/180  916'/9¥ 110Z/9210 0180 000'69F 1asn g UEoT BWoH |esepay
anjep bujAuey # JuawilsaAuy| diSND  enjeA 1axien PIOIA Aunyepy ajeq 29ud ajeq ajey anjep pajeig ueipojsng f aajsnd] lanss|

Amnbg 0} sheqg Aunyep paseyaing askyaind jsaJsayu|
puog
92IAI98 Jg0( sallioed dey
2102/0€/Yv0
ADNIBY YIMOJ VINE0ITVI NE3 L)
poday sJainseal] <ﬂ— Uzw
fauaby Jomod BIUIOJI[ED UISYLON N4
| abed \\\




we 6:80 2102/20/50
0 €000/ 0000/SAS 0 2€0 L 0 EL0Z/LOIL0 12870 0 ElLal unsanu] Aouaby 200
i 9Al19S9Y |e19adg ouphH
122'v69 $ 016'269 $ 062k LosL 16€°169 $ G/8°1 000'689 $ abesany pue [ej0] pund
122'v69 zevaz EVEBOVELE 016269 06L°L oGt 1202/60/180  16E'169 L102/82/%0 .91 000689 asn W UeoT eWoH |eispay
JUNoJY 8Jeqay vz 10z 0JpAH
zio'ors's ¢ oey'Ler's  § 089'} 6Ll 18L'9ps's  $ oS 000'82s's  $ abelsAy pue Jejoi pung
zLo'0pS'S £re9e 62533¢€LE OEP'L6Y'S 0891 16L'L 0Z0Z/¥0/80  [8L'9pS'S Sloz/8e/Ie0  0SLL 000'825°S asn 1paI) Wied |esepad
V010Z Alsay a91a18g 1qa(Q oapAH
959'619'22 3§ Ski'ele'ze  § 1290 85 s6.'ves'ze  $ 1190 000°2¥9'2  $ abelaAy pue [ej0) puny
zEL'vEs'e £2v9¢ BNHSSEELE 2ZL'PE6'T 2080 09 L10T/0E/90  608'EE6'T L10Z/921v0 06270 000'8£6°C 1dasn eg UBOT SWOH |esepay
szo'sal'e 20v9T B6NHSSEELE 26L'€8l'E 895°0 09 LL0Z/0E/90  666°18L°E L10Z/LO/E0 0950 000'881L°S 188N eg UeOT SWOH (esepad
z85'619'0L 96£92 €THSBEELE  10S'SLO'0L 855°0 85 2102/82/90  LLE'P09'0L LV0TILTIL0 0SS0 000'629'0L lasn eg UBOT 8WOH |B1opa
88y L6'e 88€92 OMHZBEELE  0ZE'OV6'Z 1950 18 2102112190 SpE'LE6'T LL02/L2I0 8ESTO 000'v¥6'C 188N N UeoT BWoOH [Bispad
6ZV'6E6'T yivoz SPHSBEELE  08£'6E6' z6L0 95 LL02/92190  STE'/£6'C 2102/62/20 080 000'cr6'c 1asn g UE0" aloH [esepal
a21A18S }gq9( 0JPAH
S06°L26'€  § syz'ole'e  $ olz’L 609 sv1'686'c  $ S6EL 000'996's  $ abelaAy pue [ejo) puny
9E8'PPY'T 00£92 LDAJIEELE  188'TEV'T 080°'L 1£9 8L0C/ZTIL0 LOS'0SY'T 9L0z/c0/c0  0STL 000°2E¥'C asn WpaID Wied [esapay
690'€ES'L 68192 PLAOOSELE H9E'/ES') syl 5.6 8L0z/LeL  bhTeES't vLozieweL  seo'L 000'625't asn B feuonen [esepad
santIoed |eniu] olpAH
960'6¥9'6L  $ cle'oss’sy  $ £60°1 155 960°6Y9'GL  $ £60°L 9606¥9'5L  $ abeJany pue jejo puny
000'02€'S 0ve9Z SHAED9ELE 815'6/C'S 0s€’} €16 6L0Z/0€/ZL  000'02ZE'S 9102/0E/90  0SE'L 000'0Ze's 008N By jeuoneN [esepad
000'12e'e ¥0€9Z oMIgOVELE  LLZ'TIT'E oSt v.S 8L02/9Z/LL  000'IZ2'e 9102/62/20  0GL'L 000°'L2Z'e 008n N VB0 alWoH [eiapad
000'€66'S BEE9C 08VEOVELE 89Z'LL6'E 0560 vey 810Z/62/90  000'€66'E 910z/62/90  0$6°0 000'€66'€ 008N N uE0T BWOH |elepay
0 25002 TS00/SAS 0 0000 L 0 €L0Z/L0/L0 0000 0 asn jueg sn
0 L€00. LE00LSAS 0O 2000 L 0 €L02/10/20 20070 0 o08n OjifeQ jo yueg uolun
960'GLL'e 8200L 8Z00/SAS 960'GLL'E 8.0 l 960'GLL'e €102/10/20 9.1'0 960'GLL'E El\al wysaAu| foueby [eaoT
anjep Buifuen # Juawisaau| dISND  onjep 1axlepy PIaIA Aunyey ajeq aold ajeq ey an|ep pajeis ueIpoisny J aasnat lanss)
AInb3g 0} sAeqg Aunyepy paseyaing aseyaind jsalaju|
puog
0IpAH aA19S3Y "A2( |eliden
L102/0¢/¥0

| abed

Hoday sainsesl]

RouaBy Jamod eluioyijes uisyuon

ADHIGY Y3/A0E VINE0IVD HEIHIEON

VdDON,
==d).

\



we 6t:80 £102/20/50

Apayienb uayy ‘2T/8z/L 31q.|[8D  VINNA 6SEITH JUBWISBAU]
Alarienb sjqeje)  VIAING OYE9EH JuBWISSAU|
Aianienb ajqe||eD) JINTHY 6£E92# IUBWISAAU|

Auarienb ajqe|(e) JWTHA £0£9¢# Juawsaau|
L10Z/0E/p0 3O SE [euInof Jaa))S |1ep 8y) wody saslid pig 1o SjuaLlalels Uelpo)sny /aajsni| Wolj saolid uo paseq st an|ep 1a)Jey) juaiing

‘poyiawl JoeXa Ue asn si1ayjo || ‘poyjsw ajewixoidde ue asn AJUnjeW 03 SYJUOW 9 UL} SSI| YIM SJUSLLISIAL|
*sadAj ||e usamiaq uosueduwloo Joj siseq e apiaoid o} Jeak Aep ggg e uo paseq umoys s| AjLnjel o3 pIsIA Jusjeainby puog,

olz'coL'ys  $ '0£6'9¥0'YS 020°) 8lg SLL160'WS  $ 180°1 960'960'VS  $ 'SIVLOL ANVHD
oge'1zl'y  § 2806y § yree 0L} Les'ozl'y  $ LPE'Z 000Z2LY  § abelany pue jejof pundg
€ol'/ze'e 25852 Z8avV3ILELE 095'900' 08€C 8Ly TTOZIELILO  2ET'9T6'S TL0ZIe0/20  S.ET 000'8Z6'S asn N UE0T sWoY (esepay
000'%6 65£92 16SEO9ELE  G20'L6 0ES'} BvS'L L20e/8ei/0  000'v6 910Z/82/.0  0€S'L 000'v6 asn BIN (euoleN [erepad
PARA o] a4 62633€ELE L6 089’} 6Ll 020Z/¥0/80  62€£'00L GL0Z/8T/I80  0SGL'L 000‘00L asn WpauD uued |esepay
vHySd 2102 04pAH
000'00S'L § SE6'S6YL  § 05L°'4 175 000'005'L  $ osLk 000005 $ abeiany pue jejo pung
000'005'} £0£92 OMNBOVELE GEB'SEY'L osl'l v1S 8L02/9Z/LL 000005t 9L0z/92/e0  0SL'L 000'005'L 208n W Ue0T SWoH [esepad
0 #9002 V00LSAS 0 0000 L 0 €L02/L0/20 0000 0 asn sjueg SN
0 91004 9L00/SAS © 2000 3 0 €10Z/L0/L0 2000 ] 208N oflleD jo yueg uoun
0 ££00. ££00/SAS 0 9S£°0 L 0 €L02/10/0  95£°0 0 Elkal wyseAu| Aousby (2007
anjep Builuren # JUBLUISAAU} diSND  anjep 1d)ie PIBIA Aunyen ajeq asld ayeq ey anjep pajels uelpo}sny / ad)snay Janssj
AlInbg 0} sheg Aunjep paseyaing aseyaing Jsadayu|
puog
aAlesay [e1oadg 0JpAH
L102/0€/70

Hoday sainseal]

Aouaby 1amod eluloyljen uiayuon

LIM3YY ¥3240S VINEOIITVD HUIHINON,

VdON:

AlLE angeay

/



we 0g:80 1102/20/50

le2'2el'e L6E9Z OHOB8SELE  LbL'ZEL'E Sp5°0 Le L10Z/L0/90  906'8ZL'C 210212210 9850 000'vEL'Z 1asn By |euoneN |eseped
LLL'vEY 62Y92 EHOGBEELE  bOL'VEY 990 L€ L10Z/L0/90  TL9'VED 210219210 SSL°0 000'EY 1asn eg UE0T SWOH |elepas
oLL'eey [Rador4 EHOGBEELE SOL'EEY L2270 1€ LLOZILO/0  pLb'EEl L102/62/E0 090 000'vEY 18sn eg UeoT sWoH |eJepay
v08'PEY (4844 SODGBEELE 0EL'VEY 8v5°0 oe LLOZ/LEISO  90V'VEY L102/L0/€0  O¥S0 000'eY 18sn eg Ueo7 WOH (esepady
108'eey 00v92 SOOGEEELE  LEL'SED ers0 og LL0Z/LEIS0  00Z'EEd L10T/l2I0 6850 000'¥EY 18sn e UE0T BWOH [esepad
€92 L1062 LLOBLSAS €92 0040 L €92 €L02/10/L0 0010 €92 asn sniLueg sn
pund sg voloz ¢# enssi 931

Lpo'gze's  § ves'szo's  § §£9'0 e g9L'zze's  § 5290 [TV aBeJsAy pue (ejo] pund
¥99'92. 06£9¢ OHOBBSELE  906'922 S¥5°0 Le 2102100190  Sb9'ses L102/L2I0 9850 000'2¢L 1asn By [eUOEN fRIBPRS
625'c2L 82v92 EHOGBEELE 80G'€TL 99.°0 e 210Z/L0/90  €sv'ees 2402/920 §S2°0 000'v2ZL 18sn eg Ue0T sWoH |elspay
9zs'veL 0zv9e EHOGBEELE  L0S'vTL LLL0 le 2102110190  020'vel L102/62/1€0 0920 000's2L 18sn g UBO0 SWOH [esapad
€9'62L LLy9Z GOOSBEELE  055'5eL 8750 0e LL0T/LEISO  B00'STL LL0Z/L0/E0 0PSO 000'922 18sn eg UeoT aWoH |esepad
129'vZ. 66£9Z GODGREELE  LSS'PEL EvS0 og LL02/1€/50  $99'STL LL0T1TI0  bESTO 000's2. 18sn eg Ueo" sWoH [eiepad
Ti6 v006L VO0B.SAS TL6 00L'0 L 26 €L0Z/L0/20  00L0 26 asn IsnuL yueg SN
pund sa 90102 L# anss} 2371

sle'osl's  $ sge'esl's § 985°0 1e goe'esl'9  § 1150 gog'eol’s  § abelany pue |2jo] puny
ygv'ese's 68£92 OHOB8SELE 86978E'E 8250 Le 2102/10/90  €69'8./€'C 2102Z/€2L0 0250 000's8€'e 18sn By [euoneN |etapag
675269 12v9T €HOSBEELE B82G'€69 9920 3 L102/L0/90  9.b'€69 2102/92/70  SSL°0 000'769 Lasn eg Ueo" aWoH [elepad
SbS'¥69 8L¥9T EHOSBEELE  L2G'V69 1220 Ie 2102/10/90  190'v69 L10Z/62/0 0910 000'569 1asn Bg UB0" SWOH jesspsad
889'¢69 oLy9z SOOGBEELE  0/5'E69 850 og 110Z/LE/50  £50'€69 LL0ZILO/ED  O¥S0 000'v69 18sn eg Ue0T sWoH |esspad
069'v69 86£92 GOOGBEELE 69569 EPS0 o€ LLOTIVEISO 61269 LL02IL2IL0 GESTO 000's69 Lasn eg UBOT SWOH |esapad
£9¢ £006. €006LSAS €9¢ 0010 L €9¢ €L02/10/L0  00L'0 €9¢ asn isni1 sueg sn
pund sa voloz L#snss| 031

k $ 12 $ ¥52°0 13 A $ 520 A $ abesany pue [BJO] pund
3 0v00L 0P00LSAS L ¥sC'0 L 3 €102/10/L0 ¥52°0 I wisaAu| Aouaby 200
Buiajoaay uononiisuon D3

819'LL $ 819'1L ¢ 9.L°0 L 829'LL $ 9.0 8.9'LL $ abeloAy pue [ejo) pung
819'1L 9v00. 9V00LSAS 819°LL 910 L 8.9'LL €L02/L0/20  9.L°0 829'LL wisaauy Aousby (e007]
anjep buifuren # JUaWSaAUY dISND  anjeA 1ayielny PISIA Aunyep ajedq aosud ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny / a9ysna] Janss|

Ainbz 0} sheq Ajunzep paseyaind aseyaind }saJaju]
spuog
300y uoldny HHD 0371
2102/0¢/v0

| abed

Hoday soinseal]

Aouaby Jamod eluiojlen uJayuoN

LINTGY HHA0E VINEOIVD :E:umu.«w\




€L9'LLL L

$

Wwe 05:80 L102/20/50

viv'ieo'tt  § 000k ¥05 88y'zyLlL  § 6941 996'20'LL  $ abeiany pue [e}0) pung
000'000'e Lpe9e ZPNEDYELE OEL'EEB'Z 00€'} 9sl'L 020Z/08/90  000'000'E 9lL0Z/0€/90  00€'L 000000 o08n BIW [euoheN {esopa
£v1'996'C 8v29C PVZOOSELE 8VC'096'C ocz'L 659 6L02/6L/20  2hL'866'C 5L02/82/80  G./8'} 000'€€6'C 208N Bi [euopeN |esepay
¥06'660'E 8EE9T §OT18Y0ELE 0/0'660'C Sb9°0 18 1102//2/90  08£'660'S 9L0e/L2I90  S29°0 000'00L°e 208N g UeoT 8WoH |esepagy
0 1$00. LP00/SAS 0 Z00°0 L ' 0 €L0Z/8LIL0 2000 0 o08n oji[e jo yueg uoun
996'v0'C 1¥002 L¥00LSAS 996'v¥0'C 9110 L 996'v¥0'C €L0Z/L0I0 9110 996'P10'C wyseAu| Aoueby |eaoT
9AI9S8Y IN ® O 031

ZL1'880'L  § ZLL'880'L  § 0040 A zLi'ego’t  $ 0010 ziL'e80'L  § abeIaAY pue jejo) pung
z11'880°} €106/ €LOBLSAS TiL'880°L 00L'0 L zLL'eso’t £102/10/20 0040 zil'eggo’tL asn Isniy sueg SN
SEV8 ¥SA 90102 T# enss| 0371

ley'voz'’s  § Lev'voz'z  § 00170 L Lev'vez'e ¢ 0040 Ley'vez'z  $ abelany pue [ejol pung
\eb'voz'e 90062 9006.SAS  LE¥'Y9Z'T 00L0 s Ler'yez'e €10Z/L0/0 0010 LEP'YOZ'T asn isniL yueg sn
ASSY sqng sgvd 90402 L#Ss| 031

sal'eya’'s  $ 5686658  $ ole’l 908 625'sh9's  $ Lozl ssg'ero's  $ aBesoAy pue |ejo pung
000°09€'y 1€€92 17993eeLe  LLGL1EY 859k sep'l 1202/52/S0  000'09€'y 9L0Z/80/90 099} 000°09¢' asn UpalIgd Wied |elspad
961021y geloz €ZNODSELE 6PL'89L'Y 1160 6Ll £102/82/80  096'LLL'Y vLOZI0EIS0  §/8°0 000'0LL'Y asn Biy jeuoneN fesspady
695'ELL 50062 GO0B.SAS 695°CLL 00L°0 L 69G€LL €102/L0/L0  00L0 695'ELL asn IsniL xueg SN
pundg ¥sd 0L0Z L# anss| 2937

geeerL't  $ ogLzyl'L  § 5£9°0 e ozg'ovs't $ 5290 sze'eps'L  $ abeleAy pue [ejol pung
6€8'8vE T6E92 OHOBBSELE £9.'8YE S50 Le 2102/L0/90  0SE'8vE 2102Z/L2IL0 9850 000'6v€ 1asn Bi feuoneN |esepad
(271 0ev9z €HOGBEELE €9L'/PE 99/°0 \e 2L02/L0/90  LEL'IbE 2102/92/v0 SSL°0 000'8vE 18sn eg UeoT] aWoH |eJapad
TLL'BYE [4AsT4 E€HOGBEELE £92'8KE 1220 e LL0Z/V0/90  82S'8ve 2102/62/€0 0920 000'6vE 1asn Bg UBOT 8WIOH {eJopas
£p8'LYE [N -4 SOOGBEEIE YBL'LYE 8v5°0 o€ LLOTIVEISO  SZS'LbE L102/L0/E0  OVS0 000'8v¢ lasn eg U0 aWoH |eleped
vp8'8ye Lov9z GODSGEREELE PBL'SYE £45°0 0e LLOZILEISO  LSE'8VE 21021220 SES°0 000'6v€ Lasn g UBOT BlWOH |e4opad
€ze Z106. ZL06LSAS €2¢ 0010 L £2¢ £L0Z/L0/0 0010 £2¢ asn 1snL Mueg sn
pund sg g0L0¢ ¢# @nssj 037

yro'oLy'y  $ viz'eav'y  $ 685°0 L Lo8'vov'y  $ 0850 e9zZ'zLy'y aBeiaAy pue jejo pung
anjep bujAuen # JuUBW)SaAU] dISND  anjep 18xien PIRIA Aunjep ajeq aocld ajeq ajey anjep pajels uelpojsny f aaysnly Janss|

Anb3 0} sheq fumeypy paseyoingd aselaind jsasayu|
«puog
pund Sa voLoz Z# enss| 931
2102/0¢/v0

Z 9bed

Hoday sJainseal)

KouaBy samod eiuiojljen uloyuoN

LIHIYY Y229D4 VINEOSIIVD HUIHIBON

VdON

sanjse unns v

b
ks

s

4



66€'8LL°6€

$

‘v€8'250'6¢€

$

6280

vee

Ajuo /T/0€/9 uo ajqe(ied  VININA TyEgZ# uawWIsanu|

swnAue uayy ‘/1/5z/s alqelie] 844 LEESTH BWISIAU|
L10Z/0E/Y0 4O SE [eUINOf J23.3G [{e 8Y3) Woly $30ld piq 1o sjuswale)g UelpoIsnY /aa)snl| Woi saald Uo paseq si an(ep Jodley jJuaung

"POY3aLll JoBX3 U asn siay}o ||e ‘poylawl ajew)xoidde ue asn Ajunjew 0} SUIUOW g UBY} SS3| Y}IM SJUBLLISAALY]
‘sadA) ||e usamiaq uosiedwoo Joy siseq e apiaoid 0} Jeak Aep go¢ B U0 paseq umoys si Ajnjely o3 pjetA JuajeAinbg puog,

8po'vel'ee  § 2980 8/9°z5L'6e  $ 1STVLOL ANVHD




A PUBLIC AGENCY

ANEPA

# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 12, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

|

Treasurer-Controller
Division: Administrative Services

Department:. Accounting & Finance

FROM: Sondra Ainsworthe~=~>_\__0} .LMETHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X
O
O
(]
O
U

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

o o o o >

SR: 161:17



Sale or Disposal of Surplus Property

May 12, 2017

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Note and file report by all members for the disposal of scrap metal.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Policy for the Disposal or Destruction of Surplus Supplies, Materials, or Equipment
requires that such disposal or destruction be reported to the NCPA Commission within 60 days
of such action.

In accordance with that policy, the following disposal or destruction is hereby reported:

*Method of Net Cost From

Property Description Quantity Disposal Disposal
Scrap metal 1 S 3 163.00
Total $ 163.00

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
Respectfully submitted,

¢ (N

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments

" Note: Public Sale (PS); Private Sale (P), Disposal — Net Scrap Value (S)

SR: 161:17



YHTIOWINOD-FHINSYVIAL OL TVNIDIHO

(8) avaos (@ 400d

(FEIOVNVIN gmzmwv

TOVIIAY “(O) A00D ‘(@) INTTTADXH NOITIANOD =+ \ wu HIVA Q AEHDO0™L O
r\.\w / NOILYZIYOHIAY
TIAOSVIIN A0 LINQ. = W/Q» E@G¢§$ zﬁu Hmmﬂ
HAOD ™ X9 QIAOEIIV
FOATVA IVEDS JAN ON - IVSOdSId ~ X 590
FIVS TLVATIL FIVS OI1d0d ﬂm\uﬂu(i)p aﬁom@n PCIOIAL /A0 BSSTRIN 1 X9 ATV dAId
resodsi@ :NOIIISOJSIA UHANTATAODIL
e deng ¥IVSOdSIA/SSHOXA YOI NOLLYDLALSOL
6
‘8
‘L
‘9
S
P
€
T
DF1 IS e delog 1 T
NOILVDOT #0log TVIOL JINQ (SNIA 78 SNO'L 5.# IPPON
CARES 10 #3991 / # 32018 2 ANOD s[qeonddy v Swpnpouy) SN0 | XXO
[ #819do1g VIDN ANTVA AELVIALLSH NOILLIEDSHA

LYI/OL/Yy Q@

ADNEIV FHMOd VINJOAITVD NIHHIJYON

SSHEOXH 40 NOILVIVIODAA




A PUBLIC AGENEY

& i
/# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 12, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017

SUBJECT:

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Approval of Revised Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Monty Hanks W

Assistant General
Manager/CFO NiA..

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi

Alameda Municipal Power [J City of Lompoc
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs [ City of Redding

City of Gridley [0 City of Roseville

City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara

O
O
O
(N
0
(]

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other -

If other, please specify.

o o o o O

SR: 152:17



Approval of Revised Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy
May 12, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

The Finance Committee recommends adoption of Resolution 17-38, which approves the revised
Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy, dated May 2017.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA has a debt portfolio that includes almost $775 million in long-term debt, including $87
million of outstanding interest rate swap exposure. The Commission has approved a Debt and
Interest Rate Management Policy (Policy) to guide the Agency (staff, Commission, Finance
Committee, legal counsel, financial advisors, and banking team) in the development,
implementation and administration of the NCPA debt portfolio. The Policy includes guidance on
interest rate swaps, variable rate debt exposure for the Agency and its members, credit risk
mitigation with the banks and other debt related matters. The Finance Committee reviews and
discusses possible changes to the Policy every two years, and has now finished the latest
biennial review.

This report outlines the addition of a new section (inserted as Section 23) to The Policy in
accordance with SB 1029. That regulation requires inclusion of certain language in Agency
policy related to external reporting to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
(CDIAC). The CDIAC reporting includes notification prior to the sale of any new debt with a final
sale date on or after Jan. 21, 2017, subsequent reporting of the final sale within 21 days of that
debt issuance, certification to CDIAC that the Agency has adopted a local debt policy and has
issued debt in compliance with that policy, and annual reporting of debt issued during the
course of the fiscal year. Where SB 1029 regulatory requirements have been fulfilled in existing
policy verbiage, the respective policy sections have been referenced.

The recommended new section of the policy (Section 23) is as follows:

1. Compliance with Senate Bill No. 1029

SEC. 2. (i)

NCPA, no later than 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, submits a report of the
proposed issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC”
or the “commission”) by any method approved by the commission. Under Senate Bill 1029
(SB 1029 or the bill), NCPA will include a certification to CDIAC that NCPA has adopted a
local debt policy concerning the use of debt and that the contemplated debt issuance is
consistent with the local debt policy. NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management
Policy addresses all of the following requirements:

e The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used.
o NCPA'’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this
as can be seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt.”

o The types of debt that may be issued.
o NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this
as can be seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt” and “3.

Use of Variable Rate Debt.”

SR: 152:17



Approval of Revised Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy
May 12, 2017
Page 3

e The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer's capital improvement
program or budget, if applicable.
o NCPA’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this
as can be seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt,” “16.
Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements”
and “21. Accounting and Budget Treatment.”

e Policy goals related to the issuer’s planning goals and objectives.

o NCPA'’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this
as can be seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt,” “3. Use
of Variable Rate Debt” and “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate
Debt and Swap Agreements.”

e The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement, to
ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended

use.
o NCPA'’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this
as can be seen in language contained in “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt,
Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements,” “20. Monitoring and Reporting
Requirements” and “21. Accounting and Budget Treatment.”
SEC. 2. (j)

NCPA will not later than 21 days after the sale of the debt, submit a report of final sale to
the commission by any method approved by the commission.

SEC. 2. (k)

NCPA will submit an annual report for any issue of debt for which it has submitted a report
of final sale pursuant to subdivision (j) on or after January 21, 2017. The annual report shall
cover a reporting period from July 1 to June 30, inclusive, and shall be submitted no later
than seven months after the end of the reporting period by any method approved by the
commission. The annual report shall consist of the following information:

Debt authorized during the reporting period
o Debt authorization as of July 1
o New debt authorized and issued during the reporting period
o New debt authorized but not issued as of June 30 of the following year
o Debt authority that has lapsed during the reporting period

Debt outstanding during the reporting period
o Principal balance as of July 1
o Principal paid during the reporting period
o Principal balance as of June 30 of the following year

Use of proceeds for debt issued during the reporting period
o Debt proceeds available at July 1
o Debt proceeds spent, including the purpose, during the reporting period
o Debt proceeds remaining as of June 30 of the following year

A copy of the revised Policy is attached to the staff report.

SR: 152:17



Approval of Revised Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy
May 12, 2017
Page 4

FISCAL IMPACT:
Adoption of this revised Policy will ensure that NCPA is compliant with recent regulations
regarding the inclusion of language in the Agency’s Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy

and reporting of sale of debt to CDIAC and the Agency Commission. NCPA will incur additional
reporting costs when debt is issued which cannot currently be quantified.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on May 10, 2017 and was
unanimously recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

Yoty & |1

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Debt and Interest Rate Policy
Resolution No. 17-38

SR: 152:17



RESOLUTION 17-38

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
TO APPROVE A REVISED DEBT AND INTEREST RATE MANAGEMENT POLICY

(reference Staff Report #152:17)

WHEREAS, NCPA has a debt portfolio of almost $775 million in long-term debt, including over $87 million
of outstanding interest rate swap exposure; and

WHEREAS, NCPA and its members benefit from the use of interest rate management tools, such as
interest rate swaps as part of its overall debt management program; and

WHEREAS, prudent debt management practice supports the establishment of policies that establish
parameters for the proper use of interest rate swaps and proper administration of the NCPA debt portfolio; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Commission last reviewed and approved the “Debt and Interest Rate
Management Policy” (Policy) in May 2015; and

WHEREAS, the Policy requires biennial review of the Policy to update for changes in bond markets,
regulations and new financial products; and

WHEREAS, certain revisions, clarifications and other changes related to SB 1029 effective for any
issuance of debt for which it has submitted a report of final sale on or after Jan. 21, 2017 are needed to bring
the Policy up-to-date with current best practices in this area; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed the proposed revisions to the Policy and recommends
approval; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy dated May 2017 as presented.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of ,2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
"Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Debt and
Interest Rate Management Policy

May 2017




R S R e

N N N N N N e e o ed b e e e ped
N R I SRR RN TR N T TR =

 run
NORTHEAN CALIFDRNIA POWER AGENCY

Table of Contents

INEEOAUCHION ... .eeeieetiierieei et ettt et tte et e sr et e st et e e st e st e seae e be e s eene e et bbe s b senaasnnssrsenbsesasnea 1
Use of Fixed Rate DEbt.....cccoceiiiriririireiiiieteiciciiinie sttt st sasaen e an 1
Use of Variable RaAte DEDt........cceouieriieeiieiiieierceenceieie ettt caee s e s sre s conssaesassassaeas 1
Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement............cocovviiviiviiiiinininniciiinincnicniiieieaenans 2
Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement..............ccccccieviniincciiianeaninnrenencneineeenns 3
Consideration of Financial Proposals .........cceceecevenininieiiiininiiiciecneeciennc s 3
Use Of INterest RAE SWAPS -.ecveuierrieerieeieeiierier ettt et esee et et e e e etessat e sovessaaesee e essesnesassuesassns 3
Interest Rate Swaps — Term and Notional AMOUNLS.......c.cevveereerieriiieneeeeeniret e 4
Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Ratings .......cccceovirmreiiiecoinieneneccciennir et 4
Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty EXposure LImMIts .......cocueieerrereirerieceenreneeneceerenesnesennenns 5
Interest Rate Swaps — Maximum Termination EXpOSULe .........ccccovevviviicviiiniiniincniciiiiecenne 5
Interest Rate Swaps — Collateral Requirements.........coccevveeiceereeriniinentecnecnenienere e sievene 5
Interest Rate Swaps — Termination ProviSIons .......c.cccevvveiciiniiniiniiniiiiiiicieiiccsns s 6
Form of Interest Rate Swap AZreements ... ..ottt 6
Compliance with Regulatory Requirements for Interest Rate Swap Transactions.........c.ccceeeeeues 7
Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements .........cceeceevvrrvevreneeeenee 7
Identification and Evaluation of Financial and Other RisKS.......c.cocerevierieininnienenncnienenceenn 8
Anticipated Value Thresholds and Criteria..........coeeiierreiriiniciiinimececiccerene e ceresneeneesenseane 8
Procurement Process REqUITESMENLS. ......ccoeririeririieriniericciecieeetcmteeeeecseee e ceeveese e tenae s 9
Monitoring and Reporting REqUITEINENLS ........c.ceirereirierureriireiieeenreceteceecerenre s ecenessessesseeeneneens 9
Accounting and Budget Treatment .............ccvuiiiiiiiic s 10
Commission Authorization t0 CONIOL.......cccuiieuiieiie et ere et e e eeressere e sareseae e 10
Compliance with Senate Bill NO. 1029.....c.ccuiiiiioiiiiiiericciiiecierececncctcereeeereceene e 10
Biennial REVIEW O POLICY ...occeviiriiiiiiiiiieeetee ettt ettt e s et sae e eas 11

GLOSSATY ..ttt ettt ettt et e bt e et e ettt e ae s e e et se et et e e aeeanee b e neesnennes 11

.........



1. Introduction

The purpose of this document (“the Policy”) is to set forth the policies that govern the Northern California
Power Agency’s (“NCPA” or “the Agency”) implementation or use of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable
Rate Debt or interest rate Swaps and/or other interest rate Derivative-type transactions. NCPA’s debt
and investment portfolio involves, and will continue to involve, different interest rate payments and
interest rate risks. A variety of financial instruments are available to offset, hedge, or reduce those
interest rate risks or provide a lower net cost of borrowing with respect to the Agency’s debt. The Policy
governs the use of such hedging instruments and debt financing structures. It should be noted that the
Policy limits and guidelines included in this document are based on financial circumstances as of the
Policy’s most recent update and shall be subject to change as circumstances change, upon approval
of the NCPA Finance Committee and the NCPA Commission (“Commission”). It should also be noted
that the Policy is not intended to address commodity derivatives or other agreements, which the Agency
might utilize as part of resource hedging for power supply management.

2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt

NCPA has historically utilized Fixed Rate Debt issuances to finance the majority of the capital
requirements. As it relates to using Fixed Rate Debt structures, NCPA will follow guidelines consistent
with the Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices for Governmental Debt Management.
Additionally, NCPA will carefully consider the regulations, risks, and benefits of various kinds of Fixed
Rate Debt such as traditional tax-exempt municipal bonds, taxable bonds, Build America Bonds, or
other forms of Fixed Rate Debt. NCPA will also apply several guidelines specifically to the use of Fixed
Rate Debt for refinancing existing debt obligations. Those include:

o For a Fixed Rate Debt refinancing of existing Fixed Rate Debt, NCPA will generally apply a
minimum 5% Net Present Value Savings target for transactions which are expected to maintain the
same level of risk related to the debt.

* For a Fixed Rate Debt refinancing of existing Synthetic Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or
Synthetic Variable Rate Debt transactions which are believed and expected to reduce the risk
related to the debt, NCPA will generally attempt to complete transactions that do not result in a Net
Present Value Savings of less than 0%; however, the Policy does not preclude NCPA from
executing a transaction that results in a Net Present Value Savings of less than 0% if the risk
mitigation benefits are deemed to merit the cost.

As it relates to the risk and benefit tradeoffs of different Fixed Rate Debt structures, methods of sale,
timing, detailed deal structure considerations and other factors, NCPA will rely on the expertise of the
NCPA Finance Committee (“Finance Committee”), NCPA’s Financial Advisor and NCPA’s Bond
Counsel. Moreover, notwithstanding the guidelines above, the Agency will not be precluded from
issuing Fixed Rate Debt if so approved by the Commission.

3. Use of Variable Rate Debt

As it relates to using Variable Rate Debt structures, NCPA will follow guidelines consistent with the
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices for Governmental Debt Management.
Additionally, NCPA shall use an overall asset/liability approach to management of its debt portfolio. As
part of this management, NCPA shall attempt to manage its Unhedged Variable Rate Debt exposure
to no more than the greater of 20% or $100 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per
project. For purposes of this limitation, Unhedged Variable Rate Debt exposure shall include both the
principal amount of direct issue Variable Rate Debt and the notional amount of Synthetic Variable Rate
Debt less:

A PUBIC AGeHeY
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER ABENCY



e The amount of direct Variable Rate Debt for which variable interest rate exposure has been
eliminated or reduced by interest rate Swaps or interest rate Caps, Collars or other hedging
instruments.

e The amount of short-term assets held in reserves at NCPA, i.e., cash accounts, which provide a
natural hedge against the Variable Rate Debt.

NCPA shall also attempt to manage its total Variable Rate Debt (both Hedged and Unhedged) exposure
to no more than the greater of 50% or $250 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per

project.

NCPA may consider various structures for the issuance of Variable Rate Debt and, under appropriate
market conditions as determined by the Finance Committee, Synthetic Variable Rate Debt. Decisions
about which debt structure or Swap instrument to utilize at any point in time shall be based on a number
of factors including the relative costs, benefits, and risks to NCPA and its members.

When applicable and possible, NCPA will attempt to stagger the renewal or remarketing risks
associated with different kinds of Variable Rate Debt. NCPA will do so with the objective of limiting the
risk that multiple series or significant dollar amounts of Variable Rate Debt might become subject to
unanticipated redemption within a similar period of time.

4. Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement

The use of Variable Rate Debt by NCPA has typically required use of credit facilities such as a direct
pay Letters of Credit (“LOC”) primarily to ensure that the Variable Rate Debt has one of the two highest
short-term ratings. Such short-term ratings are important to obtaining the lowest cost to NCPA and are
necessary for the marketing of Variable Rate Demand Obligations (‘VRDOs”) to money market and
other short-term investors.

For the purposes of the Policy, Variable Rate Debt products, which require Credit Enhancement shall
include VRDOs, which require either a Letter of Credit or Line of Credit (Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement or “SBPA”) and not Direct Purchase Variable Rate Debt (Variable Rate Debt which does not
have bank rating exposure but which still has similar credit terms as VRDOs with Credit Enhancement).
Direct Purchase Variable Rate Debt will be tracked as Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement
the guidelines for which are given in Section 5.

NCPA recognizes that concentration with a Credit Enhancement provider on Variable Rate Debt
exposes NCPA to substantial risk. Given the risks associated with Credit Enhancement providers,
NCPA should adhere to the following policies with regard to Variable Rate Debt structures, which require
Credit Enhancement:

e The amount of bond insurance by any one bond insurer on NCPA’s VRDOs should not exceed the
greater of 30% or $150 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;
e The amount of credit capacity provided by any one banking institution should not exceed the greater
of 30% or $150 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;

e The ratings of any bond insurer for insured VRDOs must be no less than A1, A+ or equivalent by
any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and
-Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) at the time of procurement and implementation of the bond insurance; and

e The long-term credit ratings of any LOC or SBPA providers must be no less than A2, A or equivalent
by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and
Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) and the short-term credit ratings and must have no less than P1, A-1, or
equivalent short-term ratings by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody's
Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) at the time of procurement and
implementation of the LOC or SBPA. If credit ratings fall below the above levels at any time during
the term of the credit enhancement, the financial situation of the banking institution and the
downgrade impact on NCPA shall be monitored. In addition, consideration shall be given to the

A PusLE AgERcY
'NORTHERN CALIFORKIA POWER AGENGY



possible replacement of the banking institution or other possible options for replacement products if
the situation warrants such change.

NCPA will also attempt to limit the amount of Variable Rate Debt which requires Credit Enhancement to
no more than the greater of 30% or $150 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per project.

The Commission should approve any increases in exposure above the limits set above for Credit
Enhancement providers.

Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement

In recent years numerous structures have emerged to allow debt issuers to borrow funds without Credit
Enhancement using bonds or notes which function as Variable Rate Debt the interest cost of which
fluctuate from time to time. Such structures may be subject to remarketing and therefore not pegged to
a particular index or may be indexed for a period of time to a published index such as LIBOR or SIFMA.
Such structures are characterized by the lack of Credit Enhancement requirement but which have a
different risk profile. “Direct Purchase” structures are to be considered under these guidelines instead
of the guidelines applying to Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement.

For the purposes of the Policy, NCPA will limit the issuance of Variable Rate Debt structures without
Credit Enhancement to structures which have the following characteristics:

¢ The amount of Variable Rate Debt which is subject to a mandatory tender with the penalty of a failed
mandatory tender being an immediate Event of Default will be limited to the greater of 10% or $50
million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;

e The amount of Variable Rate Debt which is subject to a mandatory tender with the penalty of a failed
mandatory tender being an Event of Default subsequent to a penalty rate period of 180 days or less
will be limited to the greater of 20% or $100 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any
NCPA project;

¢ In all cases, NCPA will favor Variable Rate Debt structures for which acceleration of principal

“repayment occurs over a period of not less than 3 years; and

¢ NCPA will attempt whenever possible to match the trading levels or index of the Variable Rate Debt

with the appropriate receipt or payment leg of interest rate Swaps (if applicable).

NCPA will also attempt to limit the amount of Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement to no
more than the greater of 30% or $150 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per project.

Consideration of Financial Proposals

In order to facilitate NCPA’s receipt of financing proposals associated with existing or contemplated
debt, NCPA shall retain internal expertise and utilize an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor
(“IRMA”) as necessary, to provide advice to NCPA on proposals from broker-dealers or banks. NCPA’s
IRMA will be required to be registered as a Municipal Advisor with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB").

Use of Interest Rate Swaps

NCPA will determine if interest rate Swaps are appropriate in accordance with the provisions of Section
5922(a) of the Government Code and the Agency may execute interest rate Swaps only if the
transaction can be reasonably expected to achieve one or more of the following objectives:

e Result in a lower net cost of borrowing with respect to the Agency’s debt, or achieve a higher net
rate of return on the investment of Agency moneys;

¢ Reduce exposure to changes in interest rates either in connection with a particular debt financing
or investment transaction or in the management of interest rate risk with respect to the Agency’s
overall debt and investment portfolios;

A puanie acencr
'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA PDWER AGENCY



e Manage variable interest rate exposure consistent with prudent practices and guidelines approved
by the Commission; or

e Manage other financial risks or counterparty exposures in a manner consistent with prudent
practices and guidelines approved by the Commission.

NCPA may utilize the following interest rate Swaps, on a either current or forward basis, after identifying
the objectives to be realized and assessing the attendant risks:

e Interest rate Swaps, including fixed, floating and/or basis Swaps;

e Interest rate caps, floors and collars; or

e Options, including on Swaps, caps, floors and/or collars and/or cancellation or index-based
features.

NCPA shall not execute interest rate Swaps under the following circumstances:

¢ When a financial instrument is used for speculative purposes rather than for managing and
“controlling interest rate risk in connection with Agency debt or investments;

e When the financial instrument creates extraordinary leverage or financial risk; or

¢ When there is insufficient price “transparency” to permit the Agency and its advisors to reasonably
value the instrument, as a result, for example of the use of unusual structures or terms.

In addition, review of any proposed interest rate Swap shall consider the following:

» Identify the proposed benefit and potential risks as outlined in the Policy;

e Prepare an independent analysis of potential savings from a proposed transaction, on a Project
and per participant basis;

e Prepare an analysis of the Fixed Rate Debt versus Variable Rate Debt and Swap exposure on a
Project and per participant basis before and after the proposed transaction;

e Prepare a cash flow sensitivity analysis using parameters recommended by Standard & Poor’s of
7.0% of LIBOR and BMA/LIBOR ratio at 75% to determine worst case impacts of LIBOR based
Swaps; and

¢ Consider views of rating agencies based on published reports or criteria used by rating agencies.

Interest Rate Swaps — Term and Notional Amounts

NCPA shall determinate the appropriate term for an interest rate Swap agreement on a case-by-case
basis. Any Swap shall not extend beyond the greater of: the final maturity date of existing debt of
NCPA, or in the case of a refunding transaction, beyond the final maturity date of the refunding bonds
or the termination of the related Third Phase Agreement for the relevant NCPA project. No new interest
rate Swap transaction shall be approved that causes the notional amount of all interest rate Swaps to
exceed 50% or $250 million of the total amount of outstanding revenue bonds, or liquid assets on a
project basis—except to the extent that an interest rate Swap is intended as a modification to another
interest rate Swap (i.e., a basis Swap executed to modify the terms of an existing fixed payer Swap
may not be counted as an interest rate Swap on its own so long as the fixed payer Swap which it
modifies remains in place).

Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Ratings

NCPA shall be authorized to enter into interest rate Swap transactions only with Qualified Swap
Counterparties (or their guarantors) which must have no less than A1, A+, or equivalent long-term
ratings by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody’s Investors Services,
Standard and Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) at the time that the interest rate Swap is executed. In addition,
the counterparty must have a demonstrated record of successfully executing Swap transactions. Each
counterparty shall have a minimum capitalization of at least $250 million.

ﬁfé&"“‘“ﬁA

'NORTHERN GALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY



10.

11.

12.

Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Exposure Limits

In order to diversify the Agency’s counterparty credit risk and to limit the Agency’s credit exposure to
any one counterparty, the following limits are estabiished on termination exposure for any one
counterparty. These limits shall only apply at the time a Swap and/or related transaction is entered
into, and thus may be exceeded during the term of a Swap or Swaps with the same counterparty. Upon
approval by the Commission, exceptions may be made to these limits to the extent that the execution
of a Swap achieves one or more of the objectives outlined herein.

For the purposes of these limits, “Maximum Net Termination Exposure” shall mean an amount equal to
the aggregate maximum reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure for all of the
Agency’s existing and proposed Swap agreements with such counterparty as determined by the
Agency'’s financial advisor, bond counsel, in-house counsel and finance staff (“Finance Team”). At any
given time, maximum reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure shall be calculated
based on market conditions and at assumed market conditions representing a change in taxable rates
both up and down by 200 basis points. Prior to entering a new Swap with a counterparty, the maximum
reasonable anticipated net termination payment exposure should be less than the Maximum Net
Termination Exposures listed below or as changed from time to time by the Finance Committee due to
changing financial circumstances.

The established limits vary based upon the credit rating of the counterparty. If the counterparty has
more than one rating, the lowest rating will govern for purposes of calculating the permissible levels of
exposure. The limits are as follows:

Counterparty Credit Exposure Limits
Maximum Maximum Maximum Total
Credit Rating Collateralized Uncollateralized Termination
_ Exposure Exposure Exposure
AA Category | $50 million $25 million $50 million
A Category $25 million $10 million $25 million
Below A $10 million $0 $10 million

In addition, the sum total notional amount per Swap counterparty may not exceed 35% of NCPA'’s total
revenue bond indebtedness on a project basis.

Individual Swap contract limits will determine collateral and terminations provisions. When possible,
these documents shall be drafted to so as not to conflict with NCPA’s policies.

If any exposure limit is exceeded by a counterparty during the term of a Swap agreement, the General
Manager shall consult with the Agency’s Finance Team regarding appropriate strategies, if any, to
mitigate this exposure.

Interest Rate Swaps — Maximum Termination Exposure

As of the date of execution of any Swap agreement and/or related instrument, the aggregate maximum
reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure for all of the Agency’s existing and proposed
Swap agreements, as determined by the Agency’'s Finance Team, shall not exceed $75,000,000 or
amounts as determined from time to time by the Finance Committee based on currently available
financial data for the Agency.

Interest Rate Swaps — Collateral Requirements

As part of any Swap agreement, NCPA may require collateralization or other Credit Enhancement to
secure any or all Swap payment obligations of the counterparty. As appropriate, the General Manager
may require collateral or other Credit Enhancement to be posted by each Swap counterparty under the
following circumstances:

'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY



e Each counterparty may be required to post collateral if the credit rating of the counterparty or its
guarantor falls below the A2, A or equivalent by any two of the national recognized rating
agencies (i.e., Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Ratings). The amount of
collateral posted shall be equal to the positive termination value of the Swap agreement to the
Agency from time to time.

e Collateral shall consist of cash, U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Agency securities.

Collateral shall be deposited with a custodian, acting as agent for the Agency, or as mutually
agreed upon between the Agency and each counterparty.

e Alist of acceptable securities that may be posted as collateral and the valuation of such collateral
will be determined and mutually agreed upon during negotiation of the Swap agreement with each
Swap counterparty.

The market value of the collateral shall be determined on at least a monthly basis.

e The General Manager will determine reasonable threshold limits for the initial deposit and for
increments of collateral posted thereafter.

e The General Manager shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether other forms of Credit
Enhancement are more beneficial to the Agency.

In connection with any collateralization requirements that may be imposed upon the Agency in
connection with a Swap agreement, the Agency may post collateral or it may seek to obtain Swap
insurance in lieu of posting collateral. The General Manager shall recommend a preferred approach to
the Agency on a case-by-case basis.

13. Interest Rate Swaps — Termination Provisions

All interest rate Swap transactions shall contain provisions granting the Agency the right to optionally
terminate a Swap agreement at any time over the term of the agreement.

A termination payment to or from the Agency may be required in the event of termination of a Swap
agreement due to a default by or a decrease in the credit rating of either NCPA or the counterparty.
Prior to entering into the Swap agreement or making any such termination payment, as appropriate,
the General Manager shall evaluate whether it would be financially advantageous for the Agency to
enter into a replacement Swap as a means of offsetting any such termination payment. Any such Swap
would be subject to Commission and other approvals as set forth herein.

Any Swap termination payment due from the Agency shall be made from legally available Agency
monies and shall be billed to each participant in accordance with member contracts. Any such
termination payments shall be reported to the Commission at the next Commission meeting.

NCPA shall consider the extent of its exposure to termination payment liability in connection with each
Swap fransaction, and the availability of sufficient liquidity to make any such payments that may
become due.

14. Form of Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Each interest rate Swap executed by the Agency shall contain terms and conditions as set forth in the
International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA”) Master Agreement, including the
Schedule to the Master Agreement and a Credit Support Annex, as supplemented and amended in
accordance with the recommendations of the Agency’'s Finance Team. Each Swap agreement
between the Agency and each Qualified Swap Counterparty (as detailed below) shall include payment,
term security, collateral, default, remedy, termination, and other terms, conditions and provisions as the
Finance Team deem necessary or desirable.

Subject to the provisions contained herein, the terms of any NCPA interest rate Swap shall use the
following guidelines:

A pusust Acewey
'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY



15.

16.

e Downgrade provision triggering termination shall in no event be worse than those affecting the
counterparty;

o Preferred governing law for Swaps shall be in California; and

e Termination value should be set by a “market quotation” methodology, unless NCPA deems an
alternate method appropriate.

Compliance with Regulatory Requirements for Interest Rate Swap
Transactions

NCPA qualifies as a “Special Entity” as defined in Section 1a (50) of the Commodity Exchange Act and
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) Regulation 23.401(c). As such, NCPA will not be
a “Reporting Counterparty” which would be subject to certain obligations. NCPA, however, will comply
with Schedule 1V, Part 1 of the ISDA Protocol in order to be covered under the Safe Harbor in Dodd-
Frank. Schedule IV, Part 1 requires that NCPA meet several requirements:

e NCPA will not rely on Swap recommendations (if any) provided by Swap Dealers;

o NCPA will rely on advice from a Designated QIR as defined in Dodd-Frank;

o NCPA will comply with written policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that the
Designated QIR selected by NCPA satisfies the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation
23.405(b)(1) and that such policies and procedures provide for ongoing monitoring of the
performance of such representative consistent with the requirements of CFTC Regulation
23.450(b)(1); and

* NCPA will exercise independent judgment in consultation with a Designated QIR, in evaluating all
Swap recommendations (if any) of Swap dealers that are presented to NCPA with respect to
Swaps to be executed by NCPA on its own behalf.

NCPA will comply with all regulatory requirements, as applicable to NCPA, associated with the
execution of new interest rate swaps or the maintenance of existing interest rate swaps.

Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements

The Commission may adopt resolutions from time to time authorizing the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt,
Variable Rate Debt or execution of interest rate Swaps, which will be executed by NCPA’s General

Manager.

Prior to seeking Commission approval of a proposed Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt, or interest
rate Swap transaction, NCPA will invite to a Finance Committee meeting, all participants in the Project
subject to the proposed transaction to express their views as to whether to recommend the proposed
transaction to the Commission for its consideration. Any objection by a participant shall be considered.

The General Manager must obtain the approval of the Finance Committee and the Commission prior
to the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt or execution of any interest rate Swap
transaction. The General Manager, with the concurrence of outside Bond Counsel, shall determine
whether a proposed debt transaction or interest rate Swap agreement is legally valid and complies with
any applicable provisions of the Agency’s legal agreements.

NCPA recognizes that changes in the capital markets, Agency programs, financial circumstances and
other unforeseen circumstances may from time to time produce situations that are not covered by this
policy and will require modifications or exceptions to achieve policy goals. In these cases management
flexibility is appropriate, provided specific authorization from the Finance Committee and the
Commission is obtained prior to execution of a transaction.

'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY



17. ldentification and Evaluation of Financial and Other Risks

Prior to obtaining Commission approval of the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt or
execution of interest rate Swaps, the Finance Committee shall identify and evaluate the financial risks
associated with the proposed transaction, and summarize them clearly and concisely for the
Commission, along with any measures that will be taken to mitigate those risks. The following types of
risks shall be evaluated in connection with each proposed transaction:

Market or Interest Rate Risk: Does the proposed transaction hedge or create exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates? If so, what factors might affect such rates?

Tax Law Risk: Is the proposed transaction subject to rate adjustments, extraordinary payments,
termination or other adverse consequences in the event of a future change in Federal Income Tax
Policy? Is the proposed transaction subject to receipt of funds from the federal government?

‘Termination Risk: Under what circumstances might the proposed transaction be terminated? At

what cost? Does the Agency have sufficient liquidity to cover this exposure? Does the financing
structure have elements to deal with unanticipated termination?

Risk of Uncommitted Funding (Put Risk): Does the transaction require or anticipate a future
financing action? [s that action dependent upon third party participation? VWhat commitments can
be or have been secured for such participation? What policies or procedures does the Agency
have in place to deal with this risk?

Legal Authority: Is there any uncertainty regarding the legal authority of any party to participate
in the transaction?

Counterparty Credit Risk: What is the creditworthiness of the counterparty? What provisions
have been made to mitigate exposure to adverse changes in their credit standing?

Ratings Risk: What exposure does the Agency have to ratings of third parties? What effect
would a change in an Agency project debt rating have on the transaction? Will the execution of
the transaction have a negative impact on any one participant’s credit rating?

Basis Risk: Does the anticipated payments that the Agency would make or receive under the
interest rate Swap match the payments or receipts that it seeks to hedge?

Tax Status of Agency Debt: Does the transaction comply with all tax law requirements with
respect to the Agency’s outstanding bonds?

Accounting Risk: Does the proposed transaction create any accounting issues that could have
a detrimental effect on the Agency’s financial statements? Would the proposed transaction have
any effect on compliance with bond covenants? How are any such effects addressed or
mitigated?

Administrative Risk: Can the proposed transaction be readily administered and monitored by
the Agency’s finance staff or team consistent with the requirements outlined in this policy?
Subsequent Business Conditions: Does the proposed transaction or its benefits depend upon
the continuation or realization of specific industry or business conditions?

Credit Enhancement Provider Risk: Does the financial strength and credit ratings of the Credit
Enhancement provider (if any) affect the business terms of the Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate
Debt or interest rate Swap? Does a credit downgrade trigger events that affect the economics of
the Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate Swap?

Credit Risk: Is it expected that credit support, if needed, will be available and exist at a
reasonable cost over the term of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate Swap?
Amortization Risk: Is the Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt amortization appropriate for

‘the life of the project, assets and Third Phase Agreements to which it is related? Does the

amortization of the underlying debt or assets, match a proposed interest rate Swap agreement?

18. Anticipated Value Thresholds and Criteria

|

Any proposed Variable Rate Debt or Swap transactions under the Policy not having tax risk should be
! anticipated to generate at least 7% Net Present Value Savings or at least 2% incremental benefit above

1
2 rune
'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

......



19.

20.

a traditional Fixed Rate Debt refunding transaction when compared to the notional amount of the Swap.
Any proposed transactions under this policy having tax risk (i.e., a LIBOR Swap) should be anticipated
to generate at least 10% Net Present Value Savings or at least 5% incremental benefit above a
traditional Fixed Rate Debt refunding transaction when compared to the notional amount of the Swap,
as determined by the General Manager. All fransaction related fees should be included in the calculation
to determine the net present value benefit of the transaction. NCPA should also consider the potential
for fees to increase from assumed levels. Also, the renewal risk associated with credit facilities should
be incorporated in the analysis. This threshold shall be a guideline and is subject to override by the
Commission, should the transaction, in the Commission’s sole judgment, help to meet any of the other
objectives outlined herein.

Notwithstanding the net present value thresholds described, the Finance Team may consider and the
Commission may authorize Swap or Variable Rate Debt transactions which, in the determination of the
Finance Team are risk neutral to the Agency’s financial obligations or which result in risk reduction and
not net present value benefit.

Procurement Process Requirements

NCPA may either negotiate or competitively bid its Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate
Swap transactions.

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

The Finance Team will monitor any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps that
the Agency has outstanding on at least a monthly basis. The Finance Team will provide a written report
the Commission regarding the status of all Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps at least on a
semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission. Such reports shall include the
following information:

o Highlights of all material changes to Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps
entered into by the Agency since the last report;

e Highlight any changes to Fixed Rate Debt, including any subsidy considerations, material bond
proceeds fund investment issues, continuing obligation considerations, escrow considerations,
rating triggers, or other developments which might affect the expected continuity and performance

“of the Fixed Rate Debt;

* The performance of Variable Rate Debt compared to relevant indices since the last report;

o Tracking of future put dates, remarketings, Credit Enhancement renewals, and other pending
dates of importance for the continuation of Variable Rate Debt structures;

¢ Changes to any fees paid to any third parties lncludlng Credit Enhancement providers,
remarketing agents, etc.;

o Market value of each of the Agency’s interest rate Swaps;

» The net impact to the Agency of a 50 basis point movement (up and down) in the appropriate
taxable Swap market curves, and a tax/market adjusted movement in tax-exempt market Swap
curves;

e For each counterparty, the Agency shall provide the total notional amount position, the average
life of each interest rate Swap agreement, and the remaining term of each interest rate Swap
agreement;

e Separately for each Variable Rate Debt structure or interest rate Swap, the actual cumulative cost
or benefit versus the projected cost or benefit of the transaction;

¢ The credit ratings and outlooks (making particular note of any rating changes) for each interest

.rate Swap counterparty and credit enhancer associated with a Variable Rate Debt structure or
interest rate Swap;

» The credit ratings and outlooks (if applicable) for any Variable Rate Debt with Credit
Enhancement or any Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement;

A Pumic aginey
'NORTHEAN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY



21.

22,

23.

e Actual collateral posting by each interest rate Swap counterparty;
e A summary of each interest rate Swap, including, but not limited to, the type of interest rate Swap,
‘the rates and dollar amounts paid by the Agency and received by the Agency, and other terms;

e Information concerning any default by an interest rate Swap counterparty under an agreement
with the Agency, and the results of the default, including but not limited to the financial impact to
the Agency and its members, if any;

¢ A summary of any planned Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps and the
projected impact of such Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps on the Agency and its
members; and

e Asummary of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps that were
refinanced or terminated.

Accounting and Budget Treatment

NCPA shall comply with any applicable accounting standards for the treatment of Fixed Rate Debt,
Variable Rate Debt, interest rate Swaps and related financial instruments. On an annual basis the
budget treatment for debt and Swaps shall be reviewed and recommendations made as to the treatment
for each annual operating budget, as determined by the project participants.

Commission Authorization to Control

Nothing in this Policy shall affect the validity or enforceability of any agreement by the Agency pursuant
to authorization by the Commission.

Compliance with Senate Bill No. 1029

SEC. 2. (i)

NCPA, no later than 30 days prior to the sale of any debt issue, submits a report of the proposed
issuance to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC” or the “commission”)
by any method approved by the commission. Under Senate Bill 1029 (SB 1029 or the bill), NCPA will
include a certification to CDIAC that NCPA has adopted a local debt policy concerning the use of debt
and that the contemplated debt issuance is consistent with the local debt policy. NCPA'’s adopted Debt
and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses all of the following requirements:

The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used.
o NCPA’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt.”

e The types of debt that may be issued. .
o NCPA’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt” and “3. Use of Variable Rate
Debt.”

 The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer’s capital improvement program or

budget, if applicable.
o NCPA’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt,” “16. Authority for Fixed Rate
Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements” and “21. Accounting and Budget
Treatment.”

» Policy goals related to the issuer’s planning goals and objectives.
o NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt,” “3. Use of Variable Rate

'NDRTHEAN CALIFDRNIA FOWER AGENCY

10



24,

25.

Debt” and “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap
Agreements.”

+ The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement, to ensure that
the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use.
o NCPA’s adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt
and Swap Agreements,” “20. Monitoring and Reporting Requirements” and “21.
Accounting and Budget Treatment.”

SEC. 2. (j)

NCPA will not later than 21 days after the sale of the debt, submit a report of final sale to the commission
by any method approved by the commission.

SEC. 2. (k)

NCPA will submit an annual report for any issue of debt for which it has submitted a report of final sale
pursuant to subdivision (j) on or after January 21, 2017. The annual report shall cover a reporting period
from July 1 to June 30, inclusive, and shall be submitted no later than seven months after the end of
the reporting period by any method approved by the commission. The annual report shall consist of the
following information:

e Debt authorized during the reporting period
’ o Debt authorization as of July 1
o New debt authorized and issued during the reporting period
o New debt authorized but not issued as of June 30 of the following year
o Debt authority that has lapsed during the reporting period

¢ Debt outstanding during the reporting period
o Principal balance as of July 1
o Principal paid during the reporting period
o Principal balance as of June 30 of the following year
e Use of proceeds for debt issued during the reporting period
o Debt proceeds available at July 1
o Debt proceeds spent, including the purpose, during the reporting period
o Debt proceeds remaining as of June 30 of the following year

Biennial Review of Policy

The Finance Committee shall review the Agency’s Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy on a
biennial basis and recommend appropriate changes to the Commission.

Glossary

Asset/Liability Matching: Matching the term and amount of assets and liabilities in order to
mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates.

Call Option: The right to buy an underlying asset after a certain date and at a certain price. A call
option is frequently embedded in a municipal; bond, giving the issuer the right to buy, or redeem,
the bonds at a certain price.

Cap: A ceiling on the interest rate paid.

NGRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

11



Collar: The combination of owning a Cap and selling a Floor. General structured so the net cost of
a collar is close to zero, i.e., the expense for the Cap premium is offset by the credit received for the
floor premium.

Collateral: Assets pledged to secure an obligation. The assets are potentially subject to seizure in
the event of a default.

Credit Enhancement: Any one of the variety of third party offerings, including bond insurance,
Letters-of-Credit, Standby Bond Purchase Agreement and other comparable products, which
provide of rating enhancing security or additional liquidity.

Derivative: A financial product that is based upon another product. Generally derivatives are risk
mitigation tools.

Downgrade: A negative change in credit ratings.

Floor: A lower limit on the interest rate that may be paid.

Forward Starting Swap: Interest rate Swaps that start at some time in the future.

Hedge: A transaction that reduces the interest rate risk of an underlying security.

Interest rate Swap: The exchange of a fixed interest rate and a floating interest rate between
counterparties.

Hedged: Debt obligations which are associated with an interest rate Swap intended to reduce the
volatility of the cost and risk of other obligations.

ISDA: The International Swaps and Derivatives Association, a global trade association representing
participants in the derivatives industry.

Liquidity Support: An agreement by a bank to make payment on a variable rate security to assure
investors that the security can be sold.

Letter of Credit: An agreement by a bank to provide both long-term and irrevocable short-term
Credit Enhancement. _

LIBOR: The London Interbank Offer Rate. Used as an index to compute the variable rates for
certain interest rate Swaps.

Notional Amount: The agreed upon principal amount used to determine the interest payments in a
Swap transaction.

Net Present Value Savings: The savings derived from a refinancing by discounting the net
cashflow savings of the refunding transaction when compared to the refunded transaction inclusive
of estimates of all costs, fund earnings, etc., at the yield estimated for tax purposes, to the
estimated date of issuance of the refunding bonds, divided by the par amount of the refunded
bonds.

Option: There are two primary types of options, put and call. An option is considered a wasting
asset because it has a stipulated life and may expire worthless.

Put Option: A contract that grants the purchaser the right, but not the obligation to exercise.
SIFMA Index: The Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index,
the principal benchmark for floating rate payments of tax-exempt issuers. The SIFMA Index is a
national composite of approximately 200, high-grade seven day tax-exempt variable rate issues of
$10 million or more.

Swap: An immediate or forward starting contractual agreement between two parties to exchange
future net cash flows based on predetermined indices calculated on an agreed notional amount.
May include a "Swaption" or a Swap option, which is an agreement that provides one party with the
right to begin, terminate or extend a Swap, based on certain agreed upon parameters.

Swaption: An option on an interest rate Swap that gives the purchaser the right, but not the
obligation to enter into an interest rate Swap.

Synthetic Fixed Rate: Variable rate debt, which by virtue of an associated Swap hedge, which has
a variable rate receipt leg and a fixed payment leg, which approximates the variable rates on the
debt, has an expected fixed cost profile which (together with the associated Swap) approximates
that of Fixed Rate Debi.

4 roanc agoxcy
'NURTHEAN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

12



Synthetic Variable Rate: Fixed rate debt which by virtue of an associated Swap hedge which has
a fixed rate receipt leg and a variable payment leg which approximates the rates on the debt, has
an expected variable cost profile which (together with the associated Swap) approximates that of
Variable Rate Debt.

Termination Payment: A payment made by a counterparty that is required to terminate the Swap
agreement. The payment is commonly based on the market value of the Swap, which is computed
using the rate on the initial Swap and the rate of a replacement Swap.

Unhedged: Debt obligations, which are not associated with an interest rate Swap intended to
reduce the volatility of the cost of those obligations.

Yield Curve: The graphic or tabular representation of interest rates across different maturities (i.e.,
short-term to long-term).

::::::::::::

'NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY




A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Debt and
Interest Rate Management Policy

May 20175

& g sssver
"WEATHERN CACIORNIA PATR AGEHCY



Table of Contents

1 IntrOdUCHON ceee e eorr ettt 1
2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt 1
3. Use of Variable Rate Debt.o.oveenrecncecscnceiecniniiannceenes 1
4. Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement 2
5. Variable Rate Debt without Credit ENhanCement. . .......ocociorszeirerissereseesisessesssscssesssessssessenssesssssasaee 3
6. Consideration of Financial Proposals .....oeeeeereeesinecsssssnsnusnssonsasssssenenssinneienes 3
7. Use of Interest Rate Swaps 3
8. Interest Rate Swaps — Term and Notional Amounts..............c. 4
9. Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Ratings 4
10. __Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Exposure Limits 5
11. __ Interest Rate Swaps — Maximum Termination Exposure 5
12. __ Interest Rate Swaps — Collateral Requirements..... 5
13. _ Interest Rate Swaps — Termination Provisions........... 6
14. _ Form of Interest Rate Swap Agreements 6
15.  Compliance with Regulatory Requirements for Interest Rate Swap Transactions 7

i
'
'
‘
i
i
'
i
i

'
'
'
I
]
’

{
i

grammar

/[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and

{ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
:'[ grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and

.’[ grammar
/[ Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

I
i
1
it

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
/i grammar

iy

," Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

i
:

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

| Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
’.‘ grammar

J
i
'
i
3
‘
;

i
;

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar :

,1 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
/| grammar

16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt. Variable Rate Debt and Swap AZreements .......oeceeeseseersenseenecearees
17. Identification and Evaluation of Financial and Other Risks ' 8
18. _ Anticipated Value Thresholds and Criteria.......coovceeesonccicniocecs 8 i
19. Procurement Process Requirements 9
20.  Monitoring and Reporting ReQUIrEMEntS .....o.cosececcasesmsnssesens 9
21.  Accounting and Budget Treatment...... ereeesuseessasnsnsssnsnsensasen 10 i
22.  Commission Authorization t0 COMIIOL. . e it ceeseseesscessseessessnsssmssensssssessessscassssssssesssasassans 10 “ {
23. _ Compliance with Senate Bill No. 1029 ierrienererennerennes ... 10 :
24. Biennial ReVIEW OF POLICY ..ccuverieressisssesnsesenssssssssssssssssassansessssssssssnsonsssssssnsnsssssssssnnsas 11 " !
25.  Glossary...... et 11
1 Introduction 4 ":'5","" ,,’
ot —HHrOaRCHOR T R R IT T UK XL L E L LU E L LT T XL KELT: s T ‘.'.",',"
2 s of Eivad Rate Dabt 1 e
S Se 0 IXCa IS e R L3 ',',',"‘/,’
Debt 1 i
A AT ek pigeb iyt SRR ARG S NS A AR AP AR A NN A A A A A AL R L LG ay i K
+ 2 ," ,',"' ’/,,’
2 ‘l: r":" /
[ Sy RS Slivnddohdiatrhedvh o4 Emm e ———————— LR A ) ,/‘,’ /
. . 1 Y J' ,'
[ \c— AT ITC R TITRT I TE I B A A U R R
3 i

s tvenc anase

'NONTHCAN CALIFENITA FIWER AGINCY

A[grammar

.
/

| Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

.1 Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
* | grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

.

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and

wg_a;ﬁxﬁb\_a_;\_/pu_a_a_,g_,_a__;_a




Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Hoziook P PR X e SRR Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
H-—Tnterest Rate-Swaps—Maximum Termination Expesure
= r mnation-Expostre = N :

12 I Rate-S Coll IR : L Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
AT A L N S O I R AN AT AT e "

Proviciong
X T OV

1
[grammar

[

[

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

3 1al Review.of Policis
+ e VIEW-0r X OHCY

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

aturse sase

"NRTHNN CALVORAIA PEWEN A4CHEY

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
grammar

RN
ity grammar
ki
\\\‘.;:;‘.l:‘:‘. Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
| grammar
g
}‘\“{;E‘fﬁ‘.‘. Formatted: Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and
Nyl
Wt grammar

:
il

w4 Formatted
R
R Formatted
Ay

Adkpe,

Wil Formatted

;

':E“:l{“
\

4
Wit
‘H|' It

N

Formatted

I
]

vyl Formatted

Formatted

R
)
e
e

vl Formatted

3
oyl

'.'.:'I'-l" Formatted

Formatted

':’.",-,'l.\ Formatted
| Formatted
.

w Formatted

i| Formatted

::::
S | = ] =] ] i ]
1] it () laf ftoa) i [l o] [ flus) fina) =

| Formatted
[ Formatted

—
=
KN

mar

b—
g
(5
b




Introduction

The purpose of this document (“the Policy”) is to set forth the policies that govern the Northern California
Power Agency's (“NCPA” or “the Agency”) implementation or use of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable
Rate Debt or interest rate Swaps and/or other interest rate Derivative-type transactions. NCPA's debt
and investment portfolio involves, and will continue to involve, different interest rate payments and
interest rate risks. A variety of financial instruments are available to offset, hedge, or reduce those
interest rate risks or provide a lower net cost of borrowing with respect to the Agency's debt. The Policy
governs the use of such hedging instruments and debt financing structures. It should be noted that the
Policy limits and guidelines included in this document are based on financial circumstances as of the
Policy's most recent update and shall be subject to change as circumstances change, upon approval
of the NCPA Finance Committee and the NCPA Commission (“Commission”). It should also be noted
that the Policy is notintended to address commodity derivatives or other agreements, which the Agency
might utilize as part of resource hedging for power supply management.

Use of Fixed Rate Debt

NCPA has historically utilized Fixed Rate Debt issuances to finance the majority of the capital
requirements. As it relates to using Fixed Rate Debt structures, NCPA will follow guidelines consistent
with the Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices for Governmental Debt Management.
Additionally, NCPA will carefully consider the regulations, risks, and benefits of various kinds of Fixed
Rate Debt such as traditional tax-exempt municipal bonds, taxable bonds, Build America Bonds, or
other forms of Fixed Rate Debt. NCPA will also apply several guidelines specifically to the use of Fixed
Rate Debt for refinancing existing debt obligations. Those include:

e For a Fixed Rate Debt refinancing of existing Fixed Rate Debt, NCPA will generaily apply a
minimum 5% Net Present Value Savings target for transactions which are expected to maintain the
same level of risk related to the debt.

o For a Fixed Rate Debt refinancing of existing Synthetic Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or
Synthetic Variable Rate Debt transactions which are believed and expected to reduce the risk
related to the debt, NCPA will generally attempt to complete transactions that do not result in a Net

- Present Value Savings of less than 0%; however, the Policy does not preclude NCPA from:
executing a transaction that results in a Net Present Value Savings of less than 0% if the risk
mitigation benefits are deemed to merit the cost.

As it relates to the risk and benefit fradeoffs of different Fixed Rate Debt structures, methods of sale,
timing, detailed deal structure considerations and other factors, NCPA will rely on the expertise of the
NCPA Finance Committee (“Finance Committee”), NCPA's Financial Advisor and NCPA's Bond
Counsel. Moreover, notwithstanding the guidelines above, the Agency will not be precluded from
issuing Fixed Rate Debt if so approved by the Commission.

Use of Variable Rate Debt

As it relates to using Variable Rate Debt structures, NCPA will follow guidelines consistent with the
Government Finance Officers Association Best Practices for Governmental Debt Management.
Additionally, NCPA shall use an overall asset/liability approach to management of its debt portfolio. As
part of this management, NCPA shall attempt to manage its Unhedged Variable Rate Debt exposure
to no more than the greater of 20% or $100 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per
project. For purposes of this limitation, Unhedged Variable Rate Debt exposure shall include both the
principal amount of direct issue Variable Rate Debt and the notional amount of Synthetic Variable Rate
Debt less:

PACATHESIN CAATOINGA POWTA AGENEY



e The amount of direct Variable Rate Debt for which variable interest rate exposure has been
eliminated or reduced by interest rate Swaps or interest rate Caps, Collars or other hedging
instruments.

e The amount of short-term assets held in reserves at NCPA, i.e., cash accounts, which provide a
natural hedge against the Variable Rate Debt.

NCPA shall also attempt to manage its total Variable Rate Debt (both Hedged and Unhedged) exposure
to no more than the greater of 50% or $250 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per

project.

NCPA may consider various structures for the issuance of Variable Rate Debt and, under appropriate
market conditions as determined by the Finance Committee, Synthetic Variable Rate Debt. Decisions
about which debt structure or Swap instrument to utilize at any point in time shall be based on a number
of factors including the relative costs, benefits, and risks to NCPA and its members.

When applicable and possible, NCPA will attempt to stagger the renewal or remarketing risks
associated with different kinds of Variable Rate Debt. NCPA will do so with the objective of limiting the
risk that multiple series or significant dollar amounts of Variable Rate Debt might become subject to
unanticipated redemption within a similar period of time.

4, Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement

The use of Variable Rate Debt by NCPA has typically required use of credit facilities such as a direct :
pay Letters of Credit (“LOC") primarily to ensure that the Variable Rate Debt has one of the two highest
short-term ratings. Such short-term ratings are important to obtaining the lowest cost to NCPA and are
necessary for the marketing of Variable Rate Demand Obligations (“VRDOs") to money market and
other short-term investors.

For the purposes of the Policy, Variable Rate Debt products, which require Credit Enhancement shall
include VRDOs, which require either a Letter of Credit or Line of Credit (Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement or “SBPA”) and not Direct Purchase Variable Rate Debt (Variable Rate Debt which does not
have bank rating exposure but which still has similar credit terms as VRDOs with Credit Enhancement).
Direct Purchase Variable Rate Debt will be tracked as Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement,
the guidelines for which are given in Section 5. ’

NCPA recognizes that concentration with a Credit Enhancement provider on Variable Rate Debt
exposes NCPA to substantial risk. Given the risks associated with Credit Enhancement providers,
NCPA should adhere to the following policies with regard to Variable Rate Debt structures, which require
Credit Enhancement:

e The amount of bond insurance by any one bond insurer on NCPA’s VRDOs should not exceed the
greater of 30% or $150 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;

« The amount of credit capacity provided by any one banking institution should not exceed the greater
of 30% or $150 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;

e The ratings of any bond insurer for insured VRDOs must be no less than A1, A+ or equivalent by
any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody's Investors Service, Standard and
Poor's, or Fitch Ratings) at the time of procurement and implementation of the bond insurance; and

o The long-term credit ratings of any LOC or SBPA providers must be no less than A2, A or equivalent
by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and
Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) and the short-term credit ratings and must have no less than P1, A-1, or
equivalent short-term ratings by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody's
Investors Service, Standard and Poor's, or Fitch Ratings) at the time of procurement and
implementation of the LOC or SBPA. If credit ratings fall below the above levels at any time during
the term of the credit enhancement, the financial situation of the banking institution and the
downgrade impact on NCPA shall be monitored. In addition, consideration shall be given to the

Aamutast AUTORALS $OWER AGDKY



possible replacement of the banking institution or other possible options for replacement products if
the situation warrants such change.

NCPA will also attempt to limit the amount of Variable Rate Debt which requires Credit Enhancement to
no more than the greater of 30% or $150 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per project.

The Commission should approve any increases in exposure above the limits set above for Credit
Enhancement providers.

5. Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement

In recent years numerous structures have emerged to allow debtissuers to borrow funds without Credit
Enhancement using bonds or notes which function as Variable Rate Debt the interest cost of which
fluctuate from time to time. Such structures may be subject to remarketing and therefore not pegged to
a particular index or may be indexed for a period of time to a published index such as LIBOR or SIFMA.
Such structures are characterized by the lack of Credit Enhancement requirement but which have a
different risk profile. “Direct Purchase” structures are to be considered under these guidelines instead
of the guidelines applying to Variable Rate Debt with Credit Enhancement.

For the purposes of the Policy, NCPA wilt limit the issuance of Variable Rate Debt structures without
Credit Enhancement to structures which have the following characteristics:

e The amount of Variable Rate Debt which is subject to a mandatory tender with the penalty of a failed
mandatory tender being an immediate Event of Default will be fimited to the greater of 10% or $50
million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any NCPA project;

« The amount of Variable Rate Debt which is subject to a mandatory tender with the penalty of a failed
mandatory tender being an Event of Default subsequent to a penalty rate period of 180 days or less
will be limited to the greater of 20% or $100 million outstanding revenue bond obligations on any
NCPA project;

« In ail cases, NCPA will favor Variable Rate Debt structures for which acceleration of principal
repayment ocours over a period of not less than 3 years; and

« NCPA will attempt whenever possible to match the trading levels or index of the Variable Rate Debt
with the appropriate receipt or payment leg of interest rate Swaps (if applicable).

NCPA will also attempt to limit the amount of Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement {o no
more than the greater of 30% or $150 million of the outstanding revenue bond obligations per project.

6. Consideration of Financial Proposals

In order to facilitate NCPA's receipt of financing proposals associated with existing or contemplated
debt. NCPA shall retain internal expertise and utilize an Independent Registered Municipal Advisor
(“IRMA") as necessary, to provide advice to NCPA on proposals from broker-dealers or banks. NCPA's
IRMA will be required to be registered as a Municipal Advisor with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (*“MSRB").

7. Use of Interest Rate Swaps

NCPA will determine if interest rate Swaps are appropriate in accordance with the provisions of Section .
5922(a) of the Government Code and the Agency may execute interest rate Swaps only if the
transaction can be reasonably expected to achieve one or more of the following objectives:

e Resultin a lower net cost of borrowing with respect to the Agency’s debt, or achieve a higher net
rate of return on the investment of Agency moneys;

« Reduce exposure to changes in interest rates either in connection with a particular debt financing
or investment fransaction or in the management of interest rate risk with respect to the Agency's
overall debt and investment portfolios;



e Manage variable interest rate exposure consistent with prudent practices and guidelines approved
by the Commission; or

e Manage other financial risks or counterparty exposures in a manner consistent with prudent
practices and guidelines approved by the Commission.

NCPA may utilize the following interest rate Swaps, on a either current or forward basis, after identifying
the objectives to be realized and assessing the attendant risks:

« Interest rate Swaps, including fixed, floating and/or basis Swaps;

o Interest rate caps, floors and collars; or

e Options, including on Swaps, caps, floors and/or collars and/or cancellation or index-based
features.

NCPA shall not execute interest rate Swaps under the following circumstances:

+ When a financial instrument is used for speculative purposes rather than for managing and
controlling interest rate risk in connection with Agency debt or investments;

o When the financial instrument creates extraordinary leverage or financial risk; or

» When there is insufficient price “transparency” to permit the Agency and its advisors to reasonably
value the instrument, as a result, for example of the use of unusual structures or terms.

In addition, review of any proposed interest rate Swap shall consider the following:

e |dentify the proposed benefit and potential risks as outlined in the Policy;

e Prepare an independent analysis of potential savings from a proposed transaction, on a Project
and per participant basis;

« Prepare an analysis of the Fixed Rate Debt versus Variable Rate Debt and Swap exposure on a
Project and per participant basis before and after the proposed transaction;

s Prepare a cash flow sensitivity analysis using parameters recommended by Standard & Poor’s of
7.0% of LIBOR and BMA/LIBOR ratio at 75% to determine worst case impacts of LIBOR based
Swaps; and

+ Consider views of rating agencies based on published reports or criteria used by rating agencies.

8. Interest Rate Swaps — Term and Notional Amounts

NCPA shall determinate the appropriate term for an interest rate Swap agreement on a case-by-case
basis. Any Swap shall not extend beyond the greater of: the final maturity date of existing debt of
NCPA, or in the case of a refunding transaction, beyond the final maturity date of the refunding bonds
or the termination of the related Third Phase Agreement for the relevant NCPA project. No new interest
rate Swap transaction shall be approved that causes the notional amount of all interest rate Swaps to
exceed 50% or $250 million of the total amount of outstanding revenue bonds, or liquid assets on a
project basis—except to the extent that an interest rate Swap is intended as a modification to another
interest rate Swap (i.e., a basis Swap executed to modify the terms of an existing fixed payer Swap
may not be counted as an interest rate Swap on its own so long as the fixed payer Swap which it
modifies remains in place).

9. Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Ratings

NCPA shall be authorized to enter into interest rate Swap transactions only with Qualified Swap
Counterparties (or their guarantors) which must have no less than A1, A+, or equivalent long-term
ratings by any two of the national recognized rating agencies (i.e., Moody's Investors Services,
Standard and Poor’s, or Fitch Ratings) at the time that the interest rate Swap is executed. In addition,
the counterparty must have a demonstrated record of successfully executing Swap transactions. Each
counterparty shall have a minimum capitalization of at least $250 million.



10. Interest Rate Swaps — Counterparty Exposure Limits

In order to diversify the Agency's counterparty credit risk and to limit the Agency's credit exposure to
any one counterparty, the following limits are established on termination exposure for any one
counterparty. These limits shall only apply at the time a Swap and/or related transaction is entered
into, and thus may be exceeded during the term of a Swap or Swaps with the same counterparty. Upon
approval by the Commission, exceptions may be made to these limits to the extent that the execution
of a Swap achieves one or more of the objectives outlined herein.

For the purposes of these limits, “Maximum Net Termination Exposure” shall mean an amount equal to
the aggregate maximum reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure for all of the
Agency’s existing and proposed Swap agreements with such counterparty as determined by the
Agency’s financial advisor, bond counsel, in-house counsel and finance staff (“Finance Team”). Atany
given time, maximum reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure shall be calculated
based on market conditions and at assumed market conditions representing a change in taxable rates
both up and down by 200 basis points. Prior to entering a new Swap with a counterparty, the maximum
reasonable anticipated net termination payment exposure should be less than the Maximum Net
Termination Exposures listed below or as changed from time to time by the Finance Committee due to
changing financial circumstances.

The established limits vary based upon the credit rating of the counterparty. If the counterparty has
more than one rating, the lowest rating will govern for purposes of calculating the permissible levels of
exposure. The limits are as follows:

Counterparty Credit Exposure Limits
Maximum Maximum Maximum Total
Credit Rating Collateralized Uncollateralized Termination
Exposure Exposure Exposure
AA Category | $50 million $25 million $50 million
A Category $25 million $10 million $25 million
Below A $10 million $0 $10 million

In addition, the sum total notional amount per Swap counterparty may not exceed 35% of NCPA's total .
revenue bond indebtedness on a project basis.

Individual Swap contract limits will determine collateral and terminations provisions. When possible,
these documents shall be drafted to so as not to conflict with NCPA'’s policies.

If any exposure limit is exceeded by a counterparty during the term of a Swap agreement, the General
Manager shall consult with the Agency's Finance Team regarding appropriate strategies, if any, to
mitigate this exposure.

11. Interest Rate Swaps — Maximum Termination Exposure

As of the date of execution of any Swap agreement and/or related instrument, the aggregate maximum
reasonably anticipated net termination payment exposure for all of the Agency’s existing and proposed
Swap agreements, as determined by the Agency's Finance Team, shall not exceed $75,000,000 or
amounts as determined from time to time by the Finance Committee based on currently available

financial data for the Agency.

12. Interest Rate Swaps — Collateral Requirements

As part of any Swap agreement, NCPA may require collateralization or other Credit Enhancement to
secure any or all Swap payment obligations of the counterparty. As appropriate, the General Manager
may require collateral or other Credit Enhancement to be posted by each Swap counterparty under the
following circumstances:



« Each counterparty may be required to post collateral if the credit rating of the counterparty or its
guarantor falls below the A2, A or equivalent by any two of the national recognized rating
agencies (i.e., Moody's Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Ratings). The amount of
collateral posted shall be equal to the positive termination value of the Swap agreement to the
Agency from time to time.

¢ Collateral shall consist of cash, U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Agency securities.

¢ Collateral shall be deposited with a custodian, acting as agent for the Agency, or as mutually
agreed upon between the Agency and each counterparty.

» Alist of acceptable securities that may be posted as collateral and the valuation of such collateral
will be determined and mutually agreed upon during negotiation of the Swap agreement with each
Swap counterparty.

¢ The market value of the collateral shall be determined on at least a monthly basis.

o The General Manager will determine reasonable threshold limits for the initial deposit and for
increments of collateral posted thereafter.

e The General Manager shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether other forms of Credit
Enhancement are more beneficial to the Agency.

In connection with any collateralization requirements that may be imposed upon the Agency in
connection with a Swap agreement, the Agency may post collateral or it may seek to obtain Swap
insurance in lieu of posting collateral. The General Manager shall recommend a preferred approach to
the Agency on a case-by-case basis.

13. Interest Rate Swaps — Termination Provisions

All interest rate Swap transactions shall contain provisions granting the Agency the right to optionally
terminate a Swap agreement at any time over the term of the agreement.

A termination payment to or from the Agency may be required in the event of termination of a Swap
agreement due to a default by or a decrease in the credit rating of either NCPA or the counterparty.
Prior to entering into the Swap agreement or making any such termination payment, as appropriate,
the General Manager shall evaluate whether it would be financially advantageous for the Agency to
enter into a replacement Swap as a means of offsetting any such termination-payment. Any such Swap
would be subject to Commission and other approvals as set forth herein.

Any Swap termination payment due from the Agency shall be made from legally available Agency
monies and shall be billed to each participant in accordance with member contracts. Any such
termination payments shall be reported to the Commission at the next Commission meeting.

NCPA shall consider the extent of its exposure to termination payment liability in connection with each
Swap transaction, and the availability of sufficient liquidity to make any such payments that may
become due.

14. Form of Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Each interest rate Swap executed by the Agency shall contain terms and conditions as set forth in the
International Swap and Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA") Master Agreement, including the
Schedule to the Master Agreement and a Credit Support Annex, as supplemented and amended in
accordance with the recommendations of the Agency's Finance Team. Each Swap agreement
between the Agency and each Qualified Swap Counterparty (as detailed below) shall include payment,
term security, collateral, default, remedy, termination, and other terms, conditions and provisions as the
Finance Team deem necessary or desirable.

Subject to the provisions contained herein, the terms of any NCPA interest rate Swap shall use the
following guidelines:



« Downgrade provision triggering termination shall in no event be worse than those affecting the
counterparty;

o Preferred governing law for Swaps shall be in California; and

« Termination value should be set by a “market quotation” methodology, unless NCPA deems an
alternate method appropriate.

15. Compliance with Regulatory Requirements for Interest Rate Swap
Transactions

NCPA qualifies as a “Special Entity” as defined in Section 1a (50) of the Commodity Exchange Act and
Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC") Regulation 23.401(c). As such, NCPA will not be
a “Reporting Counterparty” which would be subject to certain obligations. NCPA, however, will comply
with Schedule 1V, Part 1 of the ISDA Protocol in order to be covered under the Safe Harbor in Dodd-
Frank. Schedule 1V, Part 1 requires that NCPA meet several requirements:

e NCPA will not rely on Swap recommendations (if any) provided by Swap Dealers;

o NCPA will rely on advice from a Designated QIR as defined in Dodd-Frank;

o NCPA will comply with written policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that the
Designated QIR selected by NCPA satisfies the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation
23.405(b)(1) and that such policies and procedures provide for ongoing monitoring of the
performance of such representative consistent with the requirements of CFTC Regulation
23.450(b)(1); and

« NCPA will exercise independent judgment in consultation with a Designated QIR, in evaluating alt
Swap recommendations (if any) of Swap dealers that are presented to NCPA with respect to
Swaps to be executed by NCPA on its own behalf.

NCPA will comply with all regulatory requirements, as applicable to NCPA, associated with the
execution of new interest rate swaps or the maintenance of existing interest rate swaps.

16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements

The Commission may adopt resolutions from time to time authorizing the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt, -
Variable Rate Debt or execution of interest rate Swaps, which will be executed by NCPA's General

Manager.

Prior to seeking Commission approval of a proposed Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt, or interest
rate Swap transaction, NCPA will invite to a Finance Committee meeting, all participants in the Project
subject to the proposed transaction to express their views as to whether to recommend the proposed
transaction o the Commission for its consideration. Any objection by a participant shall be considered.

The General Manager must obtain the approval of the Finance Committee and the Commission prior
to the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt or execution of any interest rate Swap
transaction. The General Manager, with the concurrence of outside Bond Counsel, shall determine
whether a proposed debt transaction or interest rate Swap agreement is legally valid and complies with
any applicable provisions of the Agency'’s legal agreements.

NCPA recognizes that changes in the capital markets, Agency programs, financial circumstances and
other unforeseen circumstances may from time to time produce situations that are not covered by this
policy and will require modifications or exceptions to achieve policy goals. In these cases management
flexibility is appropriate, provided specific authorization from the Finance Committee and- the
Commission is obtained prior to execution of a transaction.



17. ldentification and Evaluation of Financial and Other Risks

Prior to obtaining Commission approval of the issuance of Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt or
execution of interest rate Swaps, the Finance Committee shall identify and evaluate the financial risks
associated with the proposed transaction, and summarize them clearly and concisely for the
Commission, along with any measures that will be taken to mitigate those risks. The following types of
risks shall be evaluated in connection with each proposed transaction:

Market or interest Rate Risk: Does the proposed transaction hedge or create exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates? If so, what factors might affect such rates?

Tax Law Risk: s the proposed transaction subject to rate adjustments, extraordinary payments,
termination or other adverse consequences in the event of a future change in Federal Income Tax
Policy? Is the proposed transaction subject to receipt of funds from the federal government?
Termination Risk: Under what circumstances might the proposed transaction be terminated? At
what cost? Does the Agency have sufficient liquidity to cover this exposure? Does the financing
structure have elements to deal with unanticipated termination?

Risk of Uncommitted Funding (Put Risk): Does the transaction require or anticipate a future
financing action? |s that action dependent upon third party participation? What commitments can
be or have been secured for such participation? What policies or procedures does the Agency
have in place to deal with this risk?

Legal Authority: |s there any uncertainty regarding the legal authority of any party to participate
in the transaction?

Counterparty Credit Risk: What is the creditworthiness of the counterparty? What provisions
have been made to mitigate exposure to adverse changes in their credit standing?

Ratings Risk: What exposure does the Agency have to ratings of third parties? What effect
would a change in an Agency project debt rating have on the transaction? Will the execution of
the transaction have a negative impact on any one participant’s credit rating?

Basis Risk: Does the anticipated payments that the Agency would make or receive under the
interest rate Swap match the payments or receipts that it seeks to hedge?

Tax Status of Agency Debt: Does the transaction comply with all tax law requirements with
respect to the Agency's outstanding bonds? .
Accounting Risk: Does the proposed transaction create any accounting issues that could have
a detrimental effect on the Agency’s financial statements? Would the proposed transaction have
any effect on compliance with bond covenants? How are any such effects addressed or
mitigated?

Administrative Risk: Can the proposed transaction be readily administered and monitored by
the Agency's finance staff or team consistent with the requirements outlined in this policy?
Subsequent Business Conditions: Does the proposed transaction or its benefits depend upon
the continuation or realization of specific industry or business conditions?

Credit Enhancement Provider Risk: Does the financial strength and credit ratings of the Credit
Enhancement provider (if any) affect the business terms of the Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate
Debt or interest rate Swap? Does a credit downgrade trigger events that affect the economics of
the Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate Swap?

Credit Risk: Is it expected that credit support, if needed, will be available and exist at a
reasonable cost over the term of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate Swap?
Amortization Risk: Is the Fixed Rate Debt or Variable Rate Debt amortization appropriate for
the life of the project, assets and Third Phase Agreements to which it is related? Does the
amortization of the underlying debt or assets, match a proposed interest rate Swap agreement?

18. Anticipated Value Thresholds and Criteria

Any proposed Variable Rate Debt or Swap transactions under the Policy not having tax risk should be
anticipated to generate at least 7% Net Present Value Savings or at least 2% incremental benefit above

FACNTHLR CALITDANSA POWTR AGIIKY



19.

20.

a traditional Fixed Rate Debt refunding transaction when compared to the notional amount of the Swap.
Any proposed transactions under this policy having tax risk (i.e., a LIBOR Swap) should be anticipated
to generate at least 10% Net Present Value Savings or at least 5% incremental benefit above a
traditional Fixed Rate Debt refunding transaction when compared to the notional amount of the Swap,
as determined by the General Manager. All transaction related fees should be included in the calculation
to determine the net present value benefit of the transaction. NCPA should also consider the potential
for fees to increase from assumed levels. Also, the renewal risk associated with credit facilities should
be incorporated in the analysis. This threshold shall be a guideline and is subject to override by the
Commission, should the transaction, in the Commission’s sole judgment, help to meet any of the other
objectives outlined herein.

Notwithstanding the net present value thresholds described, the Finance Team may consider and the
Commission may authorize Swap or Variable Rate Debt transactions which, in the determination of the
Finance Team are risk neutral to the Agency's financial obligations or which result in risk reduction and
not net present value benefit.

Procurement Process Requirements

NCPA may either negotiate or competitively bid its Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt or interest rate
Swap transactions.

Monitoring and Reporting Requirements

The Finance Team will monitor any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps that
the Agency has outstanding on at least a monthly basis. The Finance Team will provide a written report
the Commission regarding the status of all Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps at least on a
semi-annual basis to the Finance Committee and to the Commission. Such reports shall include the
following information:

o Highlights of all material changes to Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps
entered into by the Agency since the last report;

e Highlight any changes to Fixed Rate Debt, including any subsidy considerations, material bond
‘proceeds fund investment issues, continuing obligation considerations, escrow considerations,
rating triggers, or other developments which might affect the expected continuity and performance
of the Fixed Rate Debt;

e The performance of Variable Rate Debt compared to relevant indices since the last report;

e Tracking of future put dates, remarketings, Credit Enhancement renewals, and other pending
dates of importance for the continuation of Variable Rate Debt structures;

s Changes to any fees paid to any third parties including Credit Enhancement providers,
remarketing agents, etc.;

* Market value of each of the Agency's interest rate Swaps;

e The netimpact to the Agency of a 50 basis point movement (up and down) in the appropriate
taxable Swap market curves, and a tax/market adjusted movement in tax-exempt market Swap
curves;

e For each counterparty, the Agency shall provide the total notional amount position, the average
life of each interest rate Swap agreement, and the remaining term of each interest rate Swap
agreement;

o Separately for each Variable Rate Debt structure or interest rate Swap, the actual cumulative cost
or benefit versus the projected cost or benefit of the transaction;

e The credit ratings and outlooks (making particular note of any rating changes) for each interest
rate Swap counterparty and credit enhancer associated with a Variable Rate Debt structure or
interest rate Swap;

» The credit ratings and outlooks (if applicable) for any Variable Rate Debt with Credit
Enhancement or any Variable Rate Debt without Credit Enhancement;

MEFA

INCRTHE ZAORNIA POWTA SEIRT



21.

22.

23.

o Actual collateral posting by each interest rate Swap counterparty;

« A summary of each interest rate Swap, including, but not limited to, the type of interest rate Swap,
the rates and dollar amounts paid by the Agency and received by the Agency, and other terms;

« Information concerning any default by an interest rate Swap counterparty under an agreement
with the Agency, and the results of the default, including but not limited to the financial impact to
the Agency and its members, if any;

e Asummary of any planned Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps and the
projected impact of such Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps on the Agency and its
.members; and

e A summary of any Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and interest rate Swaps that were
refinanced or terminated.

Accounting and Budget Treatment

NCPA shall comply with any applicable accounting standards for the treatment of Fixed Rate Debt,
Variable Rate Debt, interest rate Swaps and related financial instruments. On an annual basis the
budget treatment for debt and Swaps shall be reviewed and recommendations made as to the treatment
for each annual operating budget, as determined by the project participants.

Commission Authorization to Control

Nothing in this Policy shall affect the validity or enforceability of any agreement by the Agency pursuant

to authorization by the Commission.

Compliance with Senate Bill No. 1029

SEC. 2. (i)

NCPA, no later than 30 _days prior to the sale of any debt issue, submits a report of the proposed
issuance fo the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission (“CDIAC” or the “commission”)
by any method approved by the commission. Under Senate Bill 1029 (SB 1029 or the bill), NCPA will
include a certification o CDIAC that NCPA has adopted a local debt policy concerning the use of debt
and that the contemplated debt issuance is consistent with the local debt policy. NCPA's adopted Debt
and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses all of the following requirements:

» _The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used.
o _NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt.”

s The types of debt that may be issued.
o NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt” and “3. Use of Variable Rate

Debt.”

o The relationship_of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer's capital improvement program or

budget, if applicable.
o NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in Janguage contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt,” “16. Authority for Fixed Rate
Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap Agreements” and “21. Accounting and Budget
Treatment.” ’

» Policy goals related to the issuer's planning goals and objectives.
o__NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “2. Use of Fixed Rate Debt.” “3. Use of Variable Rate

10



Debt” and “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt and Swap
Agreements.”

s _The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement, to ensure that
the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use.
o NCPA's adopted Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy addresses this as can be
seen in language contained in “16. Authority for Fixed Rate Debt, Variable Rate Debt
and Swap Agreements,” “20. Monitoring_and_Reporting Reguirements” and “21.
Accounting and Budget Treatment.”

SEC. 2. {j
NCPA will notlater than 21 days after the sale of the debt, submit a report of final sale to the commission
by any method approved by the commission.

SEC. 2. (k)

NCPA will submit an annual report for any issue of debt for which it has submitted a report of final sale
pursuant to subdivision (j) on or after January 21, 2017. The annual report shall cover a reporting period
from July 1 to June 30, inclusive, and _shall be submitted no later than seven months after the end of
the reporting period by any method approved by the commission. The annual report shall consist of the

following information:
s Debt authorized during the reporting period

o __Debt authorization as of July 1
o__New debt authorized and issued during the reporting period
o New debt authorized but not issued as of June 30 of the following vear

o Debt authority that has lapsed during the reporting period

¢ Debt outstanding during the reporting period
o__Principal balance as of July 1
o__Principal paid during the reporting period
o __Principal balance as of June 30 of the following year

o__Use of proceeds for debt issued during the reporting period
o__Debt proceeds available at July 1
o _Debt proceeds spent, including the purpose, during the reporting period
o__Debt proceeds remaining as of June 30 of the following vear

“mimmn { Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.38", No bullets or numbering ]

2324, Biennial Review of Policy

The Finance Committee shall review the Agency’'s Debt and Interest Rate Management Policy on a
biennial basis and recommend appropriate changes to the Commission.

24.25. Glossary

o Asset/Liability Matching: Matching the term and amount of assets and liabilities in order to
mitigate the impact of changes in interest rates.

o Call Option: The right to buy an underlying asset after a certain date and at a certain price. A call
option is frequently embedded in a municipal; bond, giving the issuer the right to buy, or redeem,
the bonds at a certain price. :

e Cap: A ceiling on the interest rate paid.

J— 11



Collar: The combination of owning a Cap and selling a Floor. General structured so the net cost of
a collar is close to zero, i.e., the expense for the Cap premium is offset by the credit received for the
floor premium.

Collateral: Assets pledged to secure an obligation. The assets are potentially subject to seizure in
the event of a default.

Credit Enhancement: Any one of the variety of third party offerings, including bond insurance,
Letters-of-Credit, Standby Bond Purchase Agreement and other comparable products, which
provide of rating enhancing security or additional liquidity.

Derivative: A financial product that is based upon another product. Generally derivatives are risk
mitigation tools.

Downgrade: A negative change in credit ratings.

Floor: A lower limit on the interest rate that may be paid.

Forward Starting Swap: Interest rate Swaps that start at some time in the future.

Hedge: A transaction that reduces the interest rate risk of an underlying security.

Interest rate Swap: The exchange of a fixed interest rate and a floating interest rate between
counterparties.

Hedged: Debt obligations which are associated with an interest rate Swap intended to reduce the
volatility of the cost and risk of other obligations.

ISDA: The International Swaps and Derivatives Association, a global trade association representing
participants in the derivatives industry.

Liquidity Support: An agreement by a bank to make payment on a variable rate security to assure
investors that the security can be sold.

Letter of Credit: An agreement by a bank to provide both long-term and irrevocable short-term
Credit Enhancement.

LIBOR: The London Interbank Offer Rate. Used as an index to compute the variable rates for
certain interest rate Swaps.

Notional Amount: The agreed upon principal amount used to determine the interest paymentsin a
Swap transaction. :

Net Present Value Savings: The savings derived from a refinancing by discounting the net

cashflow savings of the refunding transaction when compared to the refunded transaction inclusive

of estimates of all costs, fund earnings, etc., at the yield estimated for tax purposes, to the
estimated date of issuance of the refunding bonds, divided by the par amount of the refunded
bonds.

Option: There are two primary types of options, put and call. An option is considered a wasting
asset because it has a stipulated life and may expire worthless.

Put Option: A contract that grants the purchaser the right, but not the obligation to exercise.
SIFMA Index: The Securities industry and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index,
the principal benchmark for floating rate payments of tax-exempt issuers. The SIFMA Index is a
national composite of approximately 200, high-grade seven day tax-exempt variable rate issues of
$10 million or more.

Swap: An immediate or forward starting contractual agreement between two parties to exchange
future net cash flows based on predetermined indices calculated on an agreed notional amount.
May include a "Swaption" or a Swap option, which is an agreement that provides one party with the
right to begin, terminate or extend a Swap, based on certain agreed upon parameters.

Swaption: An option on an interest rate Swap that gives the purchaser the right, but not the
obligation to enter into an interest rate Swap.

Synthetic Fixed Rate: Variable rate debt, which by virtue of an associated Swap hedge, which has
a variable rate receipt leg and a fixed payment leg, which approximates the variable rates on the
debt, has an expected fixed cost profile which (together with the associated Swap) approximates
that of Fixed Rate Debt.

12



« Synthetic Variable Rate: Fixed rate debt which by virtue of an associated Swap hedge which has
a fixed rate receipt leg and a variable payment leg which approximates the rates on the debt, has
an expected variable cost profile which (fogether with the associated Swap) approximates that of
Variable Rate Debt.

« Termination Payment: A payment made by a counterparty that is required to terminate the Swap
agreement. The paymentis commonly based on the market value of the Swap, which is computed
using the rate on the initial Swap and the rate of a replacement Swap.

¢ Unhedged: Debt obligations, which are not associated with an interest rate Swap intended to
reduce the volatility of the cost of those obligations.

« Yield Curve: The graphic or tabular representation of interest rates across different maturities (i.e.,
short-term to long-term).

13



5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |

I Page 2: [1] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [2] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM I
Detault Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

I Page 2: [3] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM l
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [4] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [5] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [6] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [7] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

l Page 2: [8] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM I
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [9] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM I
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

I Page 2: [10] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM I
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [11] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [12] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [13] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [14] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |
Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar

| Page 2: [15] Formatted Sondra Ainsworth 5/8/2017 2:33:00 PM |

Default Paragraph Font, Check spelling and grammar



7 A PUBLIC AGENCY

Comm

May 12, 2017

# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

ission Staff Report

CONMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017

SUBJECT:

Selection of Audit Service Provider and Award of Contract

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\4

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth WET-HOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs [ City of Redding

City of Gridley [ City of Roseyille

City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara

O
O
(]
(]
4
I:I

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

o o o o o

SR: 154:17




Selection of Audit Service Provider and Award of Contract
May 12, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 17-39 authorizing award of Audit Services for up to nine years and the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement with Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP for annual audit services, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by NCPA Assistant General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $300,000 over three years. At the Agency’s option, the term of the
Agreement may be extended for two additional three-year terms, which options may be
exercised by the Agency by providing written notice to the Consultant no less than four (4)
months in advance of expiration of the agreement.

BACKGROUND:

The independent audit agreement to perform the annual audit for the Agency has expired. The
certified public accounting firm Moss Adams has successfully performed the annual audit under
this agreement for the last nine (9) years. The Agency preference is for an audit team to serve
the Agency for no more than (9) years, and as such, a Request for Proposal for Audit Services
(RFP) was required for the FY 17 audit of NCPA's financial statements and the following two

years.

Staff issued an RFP on March 23, 2017 to solicit audit services and received responses from six
audit firms as follows:
e Moss Adams LLP
Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
KPMG LLP
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (MGO)
Maze & Associates
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP (VTD)

A selection panel comprised of NCPA and member staff recommended and agreed upon by the
Finance Committee evaluated the responses and interviewed the top three responding firms.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total three-year cost of this agreement is $300,000. The audit fee for last fiscal year (FY
16) was $75,000 including expenses. The proposed audit fee for FY 2016-2017 is $68,000
including out-of-pocket expenses. Costs for fiscal years 2018 and 2019 are $70,000 and
$72,100, respectively. The proposed agreement contains a contingency of $89,900 for
additional services such as the biennial Commercial Compliance Audit, OMB A-133 audit for
Federal Grants received in excess of $750,000, and other miscellaneous services as needed.
Upon extension of the agreement for the two subsequent three year periods, the audit fees
would be subject to annual escalation based on the consumer Price Index for All Urban
Consumers, U.S. City Average, with a cap of 5%.

This agreement was included in the current fiscal year budget, and funds are available in
General Allocations-Related to All Programs portion of the Annual Budget and Ten-Year
Forecast. Such General Costs are proportionally allocated to all programs (equalized for debt
service, property taxes, and other costs that would otherwise unfairly skew the results of the

allocation).

SR: 154:17



Selection of Audit Service Provider and Award of Contract
May 12, 2017
Page 3

SELECTION PROCESS:

This vendor was selected as a result of Formal Bidding done in accordance with NCPA’s
procurement policies and procedures. The Audit Services Request for Proposal was released
on March 23, 2017 and was distributed to 17 potential vendors on March 25, 2017, including all
members’ FY 16 audit firms. After due consideration of each firm's qualifications, responses to
the RFP, interview results and price quotes, staff recommends the appointment of Baker Tilly
Virchow Krause, LLP, as the Agency's auditors and approval of a contract for three years (with
two possible extensions of up to 9 years total). This vendor is recommended to provide this
service because it provided the best value and most responsive bid to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeabie indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.
COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on May 10, 2017 and was

unanimously recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

NP
Rm. HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments: Multi-Task Consuiting Services Agreement between NCPA and Baker Tilly
Resolution No. 17-39

SR: 154:17



RESOLUTION 17-39

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AWARDING MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

(reference Staff Report #154:17)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency requires an independent annual audit by a certified public
accounting firm of national renown; and

WHEREAS, the current audit contract has expired and the Request for Proposal (RFP) process has been
completed; and

WHEREAS, Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is a qualified certified public accounting firm and has been
selected by staff and recommended by the NCPA Finance Committee as the most responsive proposer during the
RFP process; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement Between The Northern California Power
Agency And Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP is for audit services for fiscal years ended June 30 of 2017, 2018, and
2019. The term of the Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end when Consultant completes the
services, or no later than three (3) years from the date the Agreement was signed by the Agency, whichever is shorter.
At the Agency’s option, the term of the Agreement may be extended for two additional three-year terms, which options
may be exercised by the Agency by providing written notice to the Consultant no less than four (4) months in advance
of expiration of the agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency adopts
the Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement to retain the certified public accounting firm Baker Tilly Virchow Krause,
LLP as independent auditors for the Northern California Power Agency; for the fiscal year 2017 audit and the following
two years and further hereby directs the General Manager or his designee to execute said Agreement.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of ,2017 by the following vote on
roll call: _

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Nusrasmg vgﬁéucv
MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP, a
limited liability partnership with its office located at 10 Terrace Court, Madison, Wi 53718
(“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2017
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the services, or no later than
three (3) years from the date this Agreement was signed by the Agency,
whichever is shorter. At the Agency’s option, the term of the Agreement may be
extended for two additional three-year terms, which options may be exercised by
the Agency by providing written notice to the Consultant no less than four (4)
months in advance of expiration of the agreement.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. [n the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant’s

Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The

- Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the -
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to

“respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day
period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 1 of 17



Section 2.

Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its
Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT

TO EXCEED three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) for the Services, which shall include all
fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guaraniee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultants, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and
At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’'s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive -
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008

Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 2 of 17



2.4

2.5

Section 3.

Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Services.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this

Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial

general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
- products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of

defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability

insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between

AS-VEN-2017-008

Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 3 of 17



4.3

4.4

4.5

mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrelia policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000.00) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior {o beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consuitant by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 4 of 17



4.6

Section 5.

endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency: for all work performed
by Consultant, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant’s Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsibie for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a.manner that ensures
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDENNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmiess clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultants' Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 5 of 17



6.2

6.3

contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contrlbutlons and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group heaithcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that

Muiti-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 6 of 17



6.4

Section 7.

any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant’s
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligationé arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 [mmediately terminate the Agreement;

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between A AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 7 of 17



Section 9.

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain different Consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agree to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultants shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consuitant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 8 of 17



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, Consultant’s contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant o the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017

Page 9 of 17



Section 10.

Receiving Party’s employees, agents, Consultant’s contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. [n the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. [f a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 ef seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Monty
Hanks, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency'’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP .

Rev'd 3/16/2017 -

Page 10 of 17



10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Russ Hissom

Partner

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
10 Terrace Court

Madison, WI 53718

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree fo resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 11 of 17



10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant’s Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant’s Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

Mulii-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 12 of 17



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Managei‘ [INAME, TITLE]
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008

Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP

Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 13 of 17



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP (referred to as “Consultant” or “Auditor”) shall provide annual
audit of the financial statements, including associated reporting for the Agency, for fiscal years
ended June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019, as set forth below. [n addition, Consultant shall provide
additional services, as requested by the Agency.

Reguired Audit Products
For each fiscal year end, June 30, the Consultant shall provide the Agency with the following

formal documents:

Report on the Combined Financial Statements

Negative assurance for Supplementary Combining Information

Report on internal Control/No Material Weaknesses/Management Letter

Negative assurance for Certain Bond Indenture of Trust Provisions (No Default)

Report on Compliance with the Agency’s Investment Policy

Report and discussion on audit with Finance Committee

Consent to use audited financial statements in bond offerings and on the Agency’s
Website.

Consultant and NCPA will exercise their best efforts to complete the audit by October 10th of
each year.

Each year following completion and delivery of all required reports hereunder, Consultant may
elect to resign by providing written notice prior to January 31.

Audit Role of Agency

NCPA recognizes that assistance from its Treasurer-Controller staff during an audit conducted by
an external auditor will reduce the cost of an audit. Agency staff will provide the normal Prepared
by Client work papers in the same format provided to the current auditor in past years. NCPA
Treasurer-Controller staff members write both the Management Discussion and Analysis (MID&A)
and footnotes to the financial statements.

Prior Year Audit Working Papers
Moss Adams, LLP is the auditor for the Agency for FY 2016. Consultant will be responsible for
arranging any review of the prior year’'s work papers, which the Agency will approve in advance.

Bond Indenture Requirements

The Agency’s Indentures of Trust require an independent annual audit and no default letter to be
filed with the Trustee within 120 days after the close of the fiscal year. To meet this schedule and
the schedule for the production of the Agency’s Annual Report requires that the reports of
independent auditors, which includes the audited combined financial statements, be issued by
October 10" of each year.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 14 of 17



Additional Services

Consulting or Other Work

Consultant will not perform any direct consulting or other work for the Agency unless the Agency
separately requests it. However, Consultant may be retained by the Agency’s underwriters, or
other parties working on behalf of the Agency in regard to verification of bond defeasance escrows
or similar work, which must be pre-approved by the Agency.

Federal Awards

From time to time the Agency receives Federal awards for various reasons. Under current
Federal law, in any fiscal year those awards total $750,000 or more, the Agency is required to
obtain the following or similar reports from its Auditors in conjunction with the annual audit:

e Audit of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards--OMB Circular A-133
¢ Completed U.S. Department of Commerce—Bureau of Census Form SF-GAC

While the Agency does not specifically anticipate Federal Awards of $750,000 or more in any
given year, IF REQUIRED, the additional audit fee for compliance with the aforementioned will be
determined, if and when required, by mutual agreement.

Project Financing Activities

In addition to the auditors’ consent to use audited financial statements for bond offerings, at the
sole option of the Agency, the Agency may need review work in connection with bond offerings
during the term of this Agreement. The cost of issuing a comfort letter in connection with a project
financing may vary depending on the requirements associated with the financing. The cost of an
individual comfort letter, if required, will be separately determined and agreed upon prior to the
commencement of that work. Such comfort letters will be billed separately as part of the
associated cost of financing and not as part of the audit.

Commercial Compliance Audit

It is the policy of NCPA to conduct its business in compliance with laws and regulations that
govern NCPA’s commercial interactions in energy markets, including applicable provisions of the
Federal Power Act, the Commaodity Exchange Act and the antitrust laws. To ensure this result,
NCPA has adopted a compliance program that includes this Commercial Compliance Policy, a
Compliance Officer, a Commercial Compliance Policy Training Manual, compliance training and
certification, a document retention policy, and ongoing monitoring and auditing. On a biennial
basis, the Agency will require a compliance audit to be billed separately and not as part of the
audit.

Other
Consultant shall perform such other services as may be requested by the Agency in writing.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 15 of 17



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount
set forth in Section 2, COMPENSATION, above. The hourly rates and or compensation break
down and an estimated amount of expenses is as follows.

Fixed Price, Not-To-Exceed Amount for Annual Audit Services

Audit services for fiscal years ended June 30 of 2017, 2018, and 2019 will be based on a fixed
not-to-exceed fee for the audit services. As such, any cost overruns incurred by the audit firm
will be its sole responsibility. In addition, at the sole option of the Agency, the Agreement is
subject to two additional three year renewals for which fees are subject to annual escalation
based on the consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, U.S. City Average, with a cap of
5%.

Service 2017 2018 2019
Annual financial audit $68,000 $70,000 $72,100

Agency will not be charged for first year audit start-up hours, which are estimated at 60 hours.
Additionally, Consultant will provide up to 40 hours annually of accounting services to the
Agency for research, business process evaluations and other financial services. Consultant will
also provide eight hours annually of certified professional education at no charge to Agency on
a variety of financial and operational topics.

Hourly Fees for Additional Services
For additional services requested by the Agency, Consultant’s hourly fee schedule is as follows:

Hourly fee schedule Quoted hourly
rates
Partners $250
Managers $180
Senior accountants - $155
Staff accountants $125

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 16 of 17



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between AS-VEN-2017-008
Northern California Power Agency and Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP
Rev'd 3/16/2017 Page 17 of 17



Comm

May 18, 2017

A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTH ERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

ission Staff Report

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  May 25, 2017

SUBJECT:

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and Public

Financial Management, Inc.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

\S

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworthé_)g/Q«METHOD, OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X City of Lodi

Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto
City of Biggs [ City of Redding

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara

1
]
O
|
O
(]

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

O o o o o

SR: 155:17



First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and PFM, Inc.
May 18, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

The Finance Committee recommends adoption of Resolution 17-40 authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement
Between the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and Public Financial Management, Inc.
(PFM) extending the term of services to expire no later than September 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA has determined that it is desirable and necessary to retain the services of a financial
advisor on an on-going basis to assist the NCPA Staff and the Commission with the
management of NCPA's debt portfolio, communication with the investment community and
rating agencies in addition to the evaluation and monitoring of market conditions to reduce
the debt service costs of the projects. PFM has been NCPA'’s Financial Advisor for several
years and the current contract for Financial Advisory Services with PFM will expire on May 31,

2017.

Over the next few months, NCPA will meet with rating agencies to present current member
and Agency financial information to illustrate their individual and collective financial strength
for purposes of obtaining rating upgrades for NCPA projects. The PFM team is very
knowledgeable and familiar with NCPA's financial strength, financing history, and current debt
profile. It is important to retain that knowledge and expertise through the rating process. In
addition, this requested extension will provide staff with sufficient time to issue a new Request
for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Advisory Services, interview short-listed proposing firms,
recommend selection of the most responsive responsible firm, and submit that
recommendation to the Commission for award of RFP and contract.

As such, staff recommends amendment of the current agreement to extend the term for three
months. The compensation rate will remain the same for all work as set forth in Exhibit A of
the current Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Maximum costs under this First Amendment are set at an amount not to exceed $16,750.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 155:17



First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and PFM, Inc.
May 18, 2017
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on May 10, 2017 and was
unanimously recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

gfm/l,f& [

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between NCPA and PFM
Resolution No. 17-40

SR: 155:17



~ RESOLUTION 17-40

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE THREE YEAR SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC.

(reference Staff Report #155:17)

WHEREAS, NCPA retains the services of a financial advisor to provide assistance in the management
of NCPA's $775 million debt.portfolio; and

WHEREAS Publlc F:nanCIaI Management Inc is a well qualified fmanmal advisory ﬂrm and is the
provider of these services; and

WHEREAS NCPA and Publlc Financial Management, Inc. entered into a five year Consulting Services
Agreement, mcludmg two possible one-year extensions effective June 1, 2012; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to extend the Consulting Services Agreement term for a three month period to
expire no later than September 1, 2017; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee has reviewed the proposed Consulting Services Agreement
extension and recommends approval; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment To Consulting Services
Agreement with Public Financial Management, Inc. to extend the service period to expire no later than
September 1, 2017 for a not to exceed price of $16,750.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _____ day of ,2017 by the following vote
on roll call: '

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



v
A PUBLIC AGENCY

AINCPA

NORTHERN CALIFGRNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC.

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Consulting Services Agreement is entered into by and between the
Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC. (“PFM"), a
Corporation with offices located at 50 California Street, Suite 2300, San Francisco, CA 94111 (“Consultant”)
(collectively referred to as “the Parties”) and is effective as of June 1, 2017.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Consulting Services Agreement dated effective June 1, 2012,
(the “Agreement”) for PFM to provide financial advisor consulting services to assist with management of
NCPA's debt portfolio, communication with the investment community and rating agencies, evaluation and
monitoring of market conditions to reduce the debt service costs of the projects, and other services as
necessary; and

WHEREAS, the Agreement provided an initial three year term and included the option for two one-year
extensions. On March 6, 2015, Agency exercised its option to extend the agreement for one-year. On March 11,
2016, Agency exercised its second option to extend the agreement for an additional one-year through June 1, 2017,
and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to extend the term of the Agreement for
an additional three-month period from the original expiration date of June 1, 2017 to a new date of September
1,2017; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.3 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 1.1—Term of Services of the Agreement is amended and restated to read in full as follows:

This term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall expire no later than
September 1, 2017, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or modified, as provided

for herein.

2. Section 2 - Compensation. Agency agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed sixteen
thousand seven hundred fifty dollars ($16,750) for all work set forth in Exhibit A of the Agreement.

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Public Financial Management, Inc. AS-VEN-2012-003

Template 2-17-15
Page 1 of 2



3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically set

! forth herein.
Date: Date:
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, INC.
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager Michael Berwanger, Managing Director

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Public Financial Management, Inc. AS-VEN-2012-003

Template 2-17-15
Page 2 of 2



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 18, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and Public
Financial Management, Inc.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Sondra Ainsworth METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer—ControIler N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members X City of Lodi [ City of Ukiah [
Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [l Plumas-Sierra REC []
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto [ Port of Oakland [J
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1 Truckee Donner PUD [1
City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Other [
City of Healdsburg [  City of Santa Clara [] If other, please specify.

SR: 155:17




First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and PFM, Inc.
May 18, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

The Finance Committee recommends adoption of Resolution 17-40 authorizing the General
Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement
Between the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and Public Financial Management, Inc.
(PFM) extending the term of services to expire no later than September 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA has determined that it is desirable and necessary to retain the services of a financial
advisor on an on-going basis to assist the NCPA Staff and the Commission with the
management of NCPA's debt portfolio, communication with the investment community and
rating agencies in addition to the evaluation and monitoring of market conditions to reduce
the debt service costs of the projects. PFM has been NCPA'’s Financial Advisor for several
years and the current contract for Financial Advisory Services with PFM will expire on May 31,

2017.

Over the next few months, NCPA will meet with rating agencies to present current member
and Agency financial information to illustrate their individual and collective financial strength
for purposes of obtaining rating upgrades for NCPA projects. The PFM team is very
knowledgeable and familiar with NCPA's financial strength, financing history, and current debt
profile. It is important to retain that knowledge and expertise through the rating process. In
addition, this requested extension will provide staff with sufficient time to issue a new Request
for Proposal (RFP) for Financial Advisory Services, interview short-listed proposing firms,
recommend selection of the most responsive responsible firm, and submit that
recommendation to the Commission for award of RFP and contract.

As such, staff recommends amendment of the current agreement to extend the term for three
months. The compensation rate will remain the same for all work as set forth in Exhibit A of

the current Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Maximum costs under this First Amendment are set at an amount not to exceed $16,750.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 155:17



First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement Between NCPA and PFM, Inc.
May 18, 2017
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Finance Committee on May 10, 2017 and was
unanimously recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: First Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement between NCPA and PFM
Resolution No. 17-40

SR: 155:17



A PUBLIC AGENCY

LNORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE: May 15, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017
SUBJECT: Andritz Hydro — Five Year Equipment Supply Agreement for OEM equipment

- and supplies at Collierville Power House; Applicable to the following projects:
NCPA Hydroelectric facilities

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Lo

FROM: Ken Speer {15

Department: Hydroelectric

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O
4
a
4

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

E]

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
bther

If other, please specify.

X

X

o o od

SR: 156:17



Andritz Hydro — 5 Year Equipment and Supply Agreement
May 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 17-41 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
multiple year Amended Terms and Conditions Agreement with Andritz Hydro for
electromechanical parts and equipment for the Collierville powerhouse, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$2,500,000 over five years for use at the hydroelectric facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA.

BACKGROUND:

Andritz Hydro is the original equipment designer, manufacturer, and supplier (OEM) for the
major electromechanical components of the Collierville powerhouse. OEM equipment supply
(spare and replacement parts) and consulting services (design review, root cause investigation,
troubleshooting, upgrade integration) are routinely needed at the hydroelectric facilities in order
to maintain the reliability of the facilities. Terms and Conditions for Limited Scope of Equipment
Supply Rev2012.08.22 supersedes prior terms and conditions agreement Rev2009.07.03
signed May 9, 2012.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,500,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. As Andritz Hydro is the original equipment provider, there
are no other enabling agreements of this exact nature; however, third-party fabrication of
custom parts can be sought from other vendors. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider.
NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the
time the service is required. :

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 156:17



Andritz Hydro — 5 Year Equipment and Supply Agreement
May 15, 2017
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

fren s,

General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multiple year terms and conditions agreement with Andritz Hydro

SR: 156:17



WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) requires periodic equipment supply such as
spare and replacement parts for the hydroelectric generation facilities in order to maintain the reliability of the

facilities; and

WHEREAS, Andritz Hydro is-the original equipment designer, manufacturer, and supplier for many of the

RESOLUTION 17-41

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING AN EQUIPMENT SUPPLY AGREEMENT WITH ANDRITZ HYDRO

(reference Staff Report #156:17)

major electromechanical components of the hydroelectric facilities; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a five year terms and conditions enabling agreement with Andritz

Hydro, in an amount not to exceed $2,500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, NCPA will use purchase orders associated with this Services Agreement and utilize

approved Generation Services budgets and procurement procedures; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California

Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Terms and Conditions Agreement with Andritz
Hydro with any non-substantial changes approved by NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed

$2,500,000 over five years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

on roll call:

Vote
Alameda .

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

ATTEST:

, 2017 by the following vote

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Amendment to
Terms and Conditions for Limited Scope of Equipment Supply Rev 20120822

Between Andritz Hydro and Northern California Power Agency

This Amendment is entered into by and between Andritz Hydro ("Andritz") and Northern
California Power Agency ("NCPA" or "Client"), as of , 2017, to amend Andritz
Hydro Terms and Conditions for Limited Scope of Equipment Supply Rev 20120822 ("Base
Contract"), to which the Amendment is attached. Andritz and NCPA agree as follows:

1. Duration of Agreement.

The Base Contract and this Amendment (collectively, "the Amended Contract") shall begin on
the Effective Date and shall end five (5) years from the date indicated in the paragraph above,
unless the term of the Amended Contract is otherwise terminated or modified in writing, as
provided for herein. If the providing the Equipment (as defined in the Base Contractjunder a
specific Purchase Order extends beyond the five (5) year term of the Amended Contract, then
the term of the Amended Contract shall be extended solely for and until provision of the
Equipment under that Purchase Order.

2. Applicability.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Base Contract, in the case of any conflict or

inconsistency between this Amendment, the Base Contract, the Quote from Andritz and the
Purchase Order issued by NCPA, then the following Order of Precedence shall control (number
“1” being the highest hierarchy of the documents): (1) the terms and conditions of this
Amendment; (2) the terms and conditions of the Base Contract; (3) NCPA’s Purchase Order.;
and (4) Andritz Quote to supply;

3. Compensation. Agency hereby agrees to pay Andritz for the Scope of Services under
the Amended Contract, whether by fixed price, hourly rates subject to a fixed rate schedule
with a not to exceed amount, or other basis as may be described in the applicable Base
Contract. Total compensation for Services provided, including equipment and supplies, costs
and any other expenses under this Amended Contract, NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION FIVE
HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,500,000). The compensation amount set forth is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay the full amount to Andritz but, instead, a limitation of the total
expenditures authorized by this Amended Contract.

4, Risk of Loss.

A. All risk of loss or damage to the Equipment will pass from Andritz to Client upon delivery
of the Equipment DDP to Client's site, located at 477 Bret Harte Dr., Murphys, CA, regardless of
whether title has passed to the Client, transportation is arranged or supervised by Andritz, or
erection or start-up is carried out under Andritz' supervision or direction.



B. If Equipment delivery is delayed due to any of the reasons described in Article 3 of the
Base Contract, the risk of loss shall not pass to Client until actual delivery is made DDP and
Client shall have no responsibility or liability for the Equipment, whether as to storing, insuring
or any related costs, until actual delivery DDP.

5. Instruments of Service.

Any reports, drawings, specifications, filed date and other documents, including those in
electronic form prepared and/or submitted by Andritz to Client ("Instruments of Service") on
which Andritz wishes to maintain confidentiality or otherwise restrict Client's ability to copy,
reproduce or disclose to third parties shall be marked as Confidential by Andritz prior to Andritz
providing such Instruments of Service to Client. Client shall endeavor to maintain the
confidentiality of such duly marked Instruments of Service consistent with applicable law.

6. Dispute Resolution, Mediation, Governing Law, Jurisdiction, Venue, Limitations
Period.

In the event of any Dispute, the Parties shall attempt in the first instance to resolve such
Dispute through good faith negotiations between the Parties. If such consultations do not
result in a resolution of the Dispute within thirty (30) days after written notice of a Dispute is
delivered by either Party, then the parties agree that all claims properly raised be submitted to
Mediation. The parties will select an impartial Mediator together who is a licensed attorney.
This Mediation is to be held at a neutral site and the costs of the Mediator and Mediation
shared equally by the parties. The Mediation shall be conducted within 45 days after written
demand by one of the parties. Only after an impasse is reached at mediation is either party
entitled to initiate an action to enforce this Amended Contract as provided below. The Parties
agree to attempt to resolve all Disputes arising hereunder promptly, equitably and in a good
faith manner. The Base Contract and this Amendment shall be governed by the laws,
substantive and procedural, of the State of California. Exclusive jurisdiction and venue for any
mediation, litigation or other disputes shall lie in Placer County Superior Court and/or in the
United States District Court, Eastern District of California or such state and federal court in
which Client's facility is located. Any causes of action between the Parties will have accrued
and the applicable statute of limitations will commence to run not later than the earlier of (1)
the Delivery Date as extended under Article 3 of the Base Contract; (2) the date on which the
Equipment is delivered to the Client DDP; (3) the date on which the Base Contract and/or this
Amendment is breached; or (4) the date on which the Amended Contract is terminated.

7. Indemnification.

A. Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Andritz from any and all claims, damages,
fosses and expenses (including attorneys' and consultants' fees) to the extent caused by Client's
negligence and arising out of or related to the Equipment, including but not limited to any
claims for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injuries or claims related to the
removal, handling or use of any hazardous materials, except to the extent that such claims,
damages, losses or expenses are caused by Andritz' sole or gross negligence.




B. Andritz shall indemnify and hold harmiess Client from any and all claims, damages,
losses and expenses (including attorneys' and consultants' fees) to the extent caused by
Andritz' negligence and arising out of or related to the Equipment, including but not limited to
any claims for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injuries or claims related to the
removal, handling or use of any hazardous materials, except to the extent that such claims,
damages, losses or expenses are caused by Client's sole or gross negligence.

8. Insurance.
Andritz shall maintain commercial general liability insurance for the term of the Base Contract

and Amendment, including products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action for bodily injury, death, personal injury and property damage which may
arise out of the performance of the underlying Purchase Order. The policy shall provide a
minimum limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate.

The Parties have executed this Amendment as of the date indicated on the 1* page of this
Amendment.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY ANDRITZ HYDRO CORP.

Jﬂ:@ /_Zs/“/’

Date:
Randy S. Howard, General Manager CAR\EOSA'@RRES, Co—P)esident
Attest:

Assistant Secretary to the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel



‘Hydro

ANDRITZ HYDRO TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR LIMITED SCOPE OF EQUIPMENT SUPPLY

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT

1.1 Definition. The Contract consists of the following documents: (1) these
Terms and Conditions; (2) the terms and conditions specified in Andritz’ Offer;
(3) the plans, specifications, or other documents, if any, incorporated by
reference in Andritz’ Offer; and (4) additional terms, if any, that Andritz approves
in writing.

1.2 Varying Terms. Andritz hereby gives notice of its objection to and rejection
of any terms that are different from or in addition to those described in
Paragraph 1.1.

ARTICLE 2 EQUIPMENT AND PRICE

2.1 Equipment. The “Equipment” consists of the products, goods, materials,
and equipment specified in Andritz’ Offer.

2.2 Price. The “Price" is specified in Andritz’ Offer and is the compensation that
the Client must pay to Andritz in exchange for the Equipment. Unless stated
otherwise in Andritz’ Offer, the monetary units of the Contract are U.S. Dollars
and exclusive of all State or Local taxes which must be collected from Client.

ARTICLE 3 DELIVERY DATE

3.1 Definition. The date(s) for delivery of the Equipment (‘Delivery Date")
specified in Andritz' Offer is approximate and will be extended on account of
delays arising from: (1) the Client's failure to timely provide information required
by Andritz to perform the Contract; (2) hindrances beyond Andritz’ control such
as those occurring in the works of Andritz’ suppliers or third parties, epidemics,
acts of civil or military authority, mobilization of armed services, war, riots,
strikes, boycotts, picketing, lock-outs or other disturbances, breakdowns,
accidents, labor conflicts, delayed or deficient delivery of necessary raw
materials or semi-manufactured and manufactured products, scraping of
components due to defective casting, official or other measures of whatever
kind, transport difficulties, natural catastrophes, and acts of God; (3) the Client's
failure to timely fulfill any of its obligations under the Contract; or (4) as agreed
by Andritz and the Client.

ARTICLE 4 TERMINATION

4.1 Client’s Right to Terminate. The Client may terminate the Contract in
whole or in part, for any or no reason, by giving written notice of the termination
to Andritz. Within three business days after receipt of the Client’s notice, Andritz
must stop performance of the Contact except as otherwise directed by Client.

4.2 Andritz’ Right to Terminate. Andritz may terminate the Contract upon
three-days’ notice to the Client if: (1) the Client fails to timely perform any
obligation under the Contract; or (2) any proceeding is brought against the
Client, voluntarily or involuntarily, under applicable bankruptcy or any insoivency
laws. Andritz' rights under this Article § are in addition to it rights at law or in
equity.

4.3 Termination Payment. If the Contract is terminated, the Client must pay to
Andritz immediately upon the presentation of an invoice: (1) the agreed unit
prices for Equipment (or components or units of components) delivered and
work completed prior to the date of termination; (2) 15% Overbead + 168% Profit
of the difference between the Price and the sum of payments (if any) made prior
to the date of termination pius the amount specified in item (1); and (3) the other
costs and expenses, including cancellation charges under subcontracts, that
Andritz incurs on account of the termination.

ARTICLE 5 RISK OF LOSS

5.1 General Provision. All risk of loss of or damage to the Equipment will pass
from Andritz to the Client upon delivery of the Equipment at the FOB point
specified in Andritz' Offer, regardless of whether (1) title has passed to the
Client, (2) transportation is arranged or supervised by Andritz, or (3) erection or

ANDRITZ HYDRO Corp

10735 David Taylor Drive, Suite 500

Charlotte, NC 28262 USA
Phone: (704) 943-4343
Fax: (704) 943-0200
www.andritz-hydro.com

Rev Aug 22, 2012
Page 1 of 2

start-up is carried out under Andritz’ direction or supervision.

5.2 Delayed Deliveries. If Equipment delivery is delayed due to any of the
reasons described in Article 3, the risk of loss will pass to the Client as of the
original Delivery Date. From the original Delivery Date forward, the Client is
solely responsible for storing and insuring the Equipment and paying all related
costs.

ARTICLE 6 WARRANTY

6.1 Limited Warranty. Andritz warrants that for a period of one year (“Warranty
Period”), the Equipment will be the kind and quality described in the Contract
and will be free of defects in workmanship or material that are not inherent in the
quality of workmanship or material required or permitted under the Contract.
The one-year period will begin not later than the earlier of (1) the Delivery Date
as extended under Article 3; (2) the date on which to the Equipment is delivered
at the FOB point specified in Andritz' Offer, (3) the Contract is breached, or (4)
the Contract is terminated. THIS WARRANTY IS EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU
OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND
MERCHANTABILITY.

6.2 Warranty Obligation. |f any failure to conform to the Warranty appears
during the Warranty Period, the Client must give prompt written notice of the
nonconformity to Andritz.  After receiving the written notice, Andritz will, in its
sole discretion, either repaif or replace the Equipmient. Andritz has no
responsibility for the disassembly, removal, or reinstallation of the Equipment or
any other equipment components, or for damage to or destruction of adjacent
equipment or premises. The Client must provide free access to the Equipment.
The original Warranty Period will be extended to 18 months for any Equipment
repaired or replaced under the Warranty.

6.3 Termination of the Warranty. The Warranty will terminate immediately if
(1) the Client fails to properly store, install, maintain, or use the Equipment; (2)
the Client or any third party undertakes any inappropriate or improper
modification or repairs of the Equipment; or (3) the Client, in case of a defect,
does not immediately take all appropriate steps to mitigate damages and
promptly notify Andritz as required under Paragraph 6.2.

ARTICLE 7 INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

7.1 Definition, Al reports, drawings, specifications, field data, and other
documents, including those in electronic form, that Andritz prepares are
Instruments of Service for use solely with respect to the Contract. Andritz is the
author and owner of the Instruments of Service and retains all common law,
statutory, and other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or
distribution of Instruments of Service to perform the Contract or to meet official
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Contract
is not to be construed as publication in derogation of Andritz' reserved rights. All
information in the Instruments of Service is approximate only.

7.2 Use Limitation and Confidentiality. The Client must not copy, otherwise
reproduce, or disclose the Instruments of Service to any third party without first
obtaining Andritz' written consent.

7.3 Return of instruments of Service. Immediately upon termination of the
Contract as provided under Article 4, the Client must deliver to Andritz all
Instruments of Service and copies and reproductions of them that are under the
Client's control.

ARTICLE 8 PATENTS

8.1 Patent Warranty. Andritz warrants that the Equipment in the particular form
sold by Andritz, is free of any rightful claim of any third party for infringement of
any United States patent. If notified promptly in writing and given appropriate
authority, information, and assistance, Andritz will defend or may settle, at its
expense, any suit or proceeding against the Client that is based on a claimed
patent infringement in breach of this warranty. The foregoing sentence states

Headquarters:
ANDRITZ HYDRO GmbH
Penzingerstrasse 76,
1141 Vienna, Austria




Andritz’ entire liability for patent infringement.

8.2 Limitation of Patent Warranty. Paragraph 8.1 does not apply to any
Equipment or component part manufactured to the Client’s design, or to the use
of any Equipment in conjunction with any other product in a combination not
furnished by Andritz. As to any such Equipment, component part, or use in such
combination, Andritz has no liability whatsoever for patent infringement, and the
Client must indemnify and defend Andritz from and against any such
infringement claims.

ARTICLE 9 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

9.1 General. The Contract incorporates by reference applicable provisions and
requirements of Executive Order 11246 and the Federal Acquisition Regulations
including FAR § 52.222-26 (covering race, color, religion, sex and national
origin); the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 and
FAR § 52.222-35 (covering special disabled and Vietnam era veterans) and; the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and FAR § 52.222-36 (covering handicapped
individuals). The Client certifies that it does not and will not maintain any
facilittes in a segregated manner, or permit its employees to perform their
services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are
maintained. The Client further certifies that appropriate physical facilities are
maintained for both sexes. The Client must obtain a similar certificate prior to
award of any nonexempt lower-tier subcontracts.

ARTICLE 10 GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1 Andritz. The term “Andritz" includes Andritz Hydro Corp. and its
consultants (regardless of tier), agents, officers, employees, successors,
assigns, and designated representatives. Only corporate officers of Andritz
Hydro Corp. are authorized to bind Andritz.

10.2 Client. The Client is the entity designated as such in the Contract. The
term “Client” includes the Client and the Client's agents, officers, employees,
successors, assigns, and designated representatives; and, regardless of tier,
the Client's consultants, contractors, subcontractors, and suppliers; but does not
include Andritz.

10.3 Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue; Mediation; Joinder; Limitations
Period. The Contract is governed by the substantive laws of the state of North
Carolina, USA, without reference to choice-of-law rules. All litigation arising out
of or relating to the Contract must be brought and held only in the United States
District Court for the Western District of North Carolina, Charlotte Division, or the
Superior Court of the 26™ Judicial District of North Carolina; and Andritz and the
Client consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of and venue in those courts.
However, prior to the initiation of any legal proceeding by either party, Andritz, in
its sole discretion, may elect that any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of
or relating to this Agreement, or the interpretation, performance or breach
thereof, shall be first submitted to mediation after written notice of the dispute by
the disputing party. If Andritz elects in its sole discretion, to submit the matter to
mediation then both parties agree to select a neutral mediator who is a licensed
attorney and conduct said mediation promptly. The costs of the mediation,
including the compensation of the mediator and all other fees and expenses,
shall be borne equally by the parties. The mediation shall be conducted in
Charlotte, NC or any other mutually agreed upon venue. Any dispute,
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the
interpretation, performance or breach thereof not resolved through mediation
OR any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement,
or the interpretation, performance or breach thereof that Andriiz elected not to
submit to mediation shall be settled through Litigation per this paragraph.
Except with Andritz’ prior written consent, no litigation arising out of or relating to
the Contract will include, by consolidation or joinder or in any other manner, any
entities other than the Client and Andritz. Causes of action between the Parties
will have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations wifi commence to run
not later than the earlier of (1) the Delivery Date as extended under Article 3;
(2) the date on which to the Equipment is delivered at the FOB point specified in
Andritz’ Offer, (3) the date on which the Contract is breached, or (4) the date on
which the Contract is terminated.

10.4 Waiver of Subrogation. To the extent damages are covered by property
insurance, the Client and Andritz waive all rights against each other for
damages, except such right as they may have to the proceeds of such
insurance.

10.5 Extent of Contract. Andritz is an independent contractor of the Client and
nothing contained in the Contract shall be construed as creating any other
relationship between Andritz and the Client. Nothing contained in the Contract
creates a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of any third
party against either the Client or Andritz.

10.6 Survivability. The terms and conditions of the Contract will survive the
delivery of the Equipment and the payment of the Price.

10.7 Modification. This Agreement may not be modified, discharged, or

vdro

Rev Aug 22, 2012
Page 2 of 2

changed in any respect whatsoever, except by further agreement in writing
between the Parties; provided, however, that any consent, waiver, approval, or
authorization will be effective if signed by the Parly granting or making such
consent, waiver, approval, or authorization.

10.8 Waiver. The failure of either Party to insist in any one or more instances
upon the strict performance of any one or more of the provisions of the Contract
or to exercise any right herein contained or provided by law is not to be
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of such provision or right or of the right
to subsequently demand such strict performance or exercise such right, and the
rights will continue unchanged and remain in full force and effect.

10.9 Captions. The captions of the Contract are for convenience and reference
only and in no way define, describe, extend, or limit the scope, meaning, or
intent of the Contract.

10.10 Severability. The invalidity of any provision of the Contract will not affect
the other provisions, and the Contract will be construed in all respects as if any
invalid provision were omitted.

10.11 Successors and Assigns. Each Party, respectively, binds itself, its
partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other Party, and
to the partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives of the other
Party with respect to all covenants of the Contract. Neither Parly may assign or
transfer any interest in the Contract without the written consent of the other.
Any assignment or transfer made without the required written consent is void.

10.12 Integration. The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties and there exist no other agreements, oral or written, between them
relating to any matters covered by the Contract, whether or not within the
knowledge or contemplation of either of them at the time of execution of the
Contract.

10.13 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of the Contract.

10.14 Indemnification. To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Client
must indemnify and hold harmless Andritz from and against all claims,
damages, losses, and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys and
consultant fees, arising out of or related to the Equipment, including, but not
limited to, any claims for bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injuries
or claims related to the removal, handling, or use of any hazardous materials;
except to the extent that such claims, damages, losses, and expenses are the
result of Andritz’ sole negligence.

10.15 Delay Damages. Damages for delayed delivery will not exceed the
greater of (1) one-half of one percent of the Price of that portion of the
Equipment that was delivered late for every full week of late delivery or (2) an
aggregate of five percent of the Price of that portion of the Equipment that was
delivered late. Andritz will not be liable for any delay damages on account of the
first two full weeks of late delivery.

10.16 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Andritz will not be liable, whether in
contract or in tort, or under any other legal theory, for loss of use,
revenue, or profit, or for cost of capital or of substitute use or performance
or for any other incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages, or
for any other loss or cost of similar type, or for claims by Client for
damages to Client's customers. To the maximum extent permitted by law,
the aggregate liability of Andritz to the Client for any and all damages
arising or allegedly arising out of or relating to the negligence of Andritz
or a breach of the Contract is limited to the amount of the compensation
paid by the Client to Andritz on account of the supply of the portion of the
Equipment upon which such liability is based.



.. 23

A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

/ff(JRTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Comm

May 15, 2017

ission Staff Report

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017

SUBJECT:

Knights’ Electric, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for
General Services: Applicable to the following projects: All NCPA Generation
Services Plant Locations, Members, SCPPA, and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Ken Speer {5 METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

Generation Services

Geothermal

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Ukiah

X

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC

City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland

City of Biggs

Other

City of Gridley

O
[
[
City of Redding [J Truckee Donner PUD
City of Roseville [] |
[

o o o o o

City of Santa Clara If other, please specify.

o o o o o

SR: 157:17



Knights’ Electric, Inc. — Five Year MTGSA
May 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-42 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Knights’ Electric, Inc. with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall
not exceed $750,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) facilities require general electrical maintenance
services, which include but are not limited to miscellaneous termination/demolition of existing
equipment, lighting in power plants, steam field and facility buildings, troubleshooting electrical
equipment and circuits, and emergency services. Knights’ Electric, Inc. is a provider of these
services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $750,000 over five years to be used out of NCPA
approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and
conditions of the agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies and
procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other enabling agreements
with Coastal Mountain, Contra Costa Electric, and Hart High-Voltage for similar services and
seeks bids from as many qualified providers as possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost
provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and
was recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 157:17



Knights’ Electric, Inc. — Five Year MTGSA
May 15, 2017
Page 3

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on May 8, 2017 and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

AR =
RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):

e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Knights’ Electric, Inc.

SR: 157:17



RESOLUTION 17-42

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIVE-YEAR MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
KNIGHTS’ ELECTRIC, INC.

(reference Staff Report #157:17)

WHEREAS, general maintenance services which include but are not limited to providing labor and
material to perform miscellaneous electrical maintenances services, miscellaneous termination/demolition of
existing equipment, lighting in power plants, steam field and facility buildings, troubleshooting electrical
equipment and circuits, and emergency services periodically required for plant operations at the facilities owned
and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its Members, the Southern California Public
Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Knights’ Electric, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2017, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the agreement with
Knights’ Electric, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $750,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Knights’ Electric, Inc. with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by
NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (*SCPPA”), or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



i
y
NC
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
KNIGHTS’ ELECTRIC, INC.

This agreement for general services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern California
Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA
95678-6420 (*Agency”) and Knights' Electric, Inc., a Corporation with its office located at 11410 Old
Redwood Hwy., Windsor, CA (“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of
, 2017 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods described in the Scope of
Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing the Work. Contractor
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Work set forth
herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Contractor shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may include Work
directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority (*SCPPA’) or
SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to have
Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order.
The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be performed ("Requested Work"),
may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary cap on Requested Work and all related
expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the
Requested Work shall be completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the
date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to perform

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1



the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does not respond within
the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have agreed to perform the Requested
Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO
EXCEED SEVEN HUNDRED AND FIFTY THOUSAND dollars ($750,000) for the Work, which shall include
all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay
that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

2.1 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

» The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Work performed;

»  The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

» At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and
each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to Agency’s
reasonable satisfaction;

» At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent fo:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. Agency
shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the
requirements above to pay Contractor.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 :
2650956.1 _ Page 2 of 22



2.4  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform any Work or
incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of a Purchase
Order from the Contract Administrator.

2.5  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the Requested Work. In
the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the
ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have waived its right to collect its final
payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Work.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this Agreement,
Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. |f Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor with limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as 1ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 3 of 22



4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally Omitted.

4.4 Pollution Insurance. Intentionally Omitted.

4.5 All Policies Requirements.

4,51 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2 and in
Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the Agency as an additional insured and
declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed pursuant to this
Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4,53 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Contractor.

4,54 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs Work for
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to this Agreement,
Agency shall the right to require Contractor to provide the certificates of insurance
and/or policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be
performed.

46  Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss. Contractor
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

4.7 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are and remain covered by

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16

2650956.1 Page 4 of 22



Section 5.

the policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure
that all workers involved in the provision of Work are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Contractor
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of
or in connection with any acts or omissions by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active
negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Intentionally Omitted.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only insofar as the results of
Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency
shall not have the right to control the means by which Contractor accomplishes Work
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal
policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 5 of 22



6.2

6.3

6.4

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Contractor or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Contractor and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Contractor under this Agreement is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing
the Work, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Contractor’s failure to secure workers'
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor shall have no
authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as an
agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement
to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Contractor. Contractor may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall be responsible for all work
performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Contractor from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to
ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 6 of 22



6.5

6.6

Section 7.
7.1
7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous Materials
Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it
executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or more
Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types of construction,
repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall execute Exhibit E and/or similar
documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that Contractor
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by
the Department of Industrial Relations.

Reqistr“ation with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants that it is
registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform Work
consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1771, not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a similar character in the
locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less than the general prevailing rate
of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work as provided in the California Labor Code
must be paid to all workers engaged in performing the Work. In accordance with California
Labor Code Section 1770 and following, the Director of [ndustrial Relations has
determined the general prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is
to be performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages
and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which the Work is to be
performed for each craft, classification or type of worker needed to perform the project;
and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the Agency and will be
made available on request. Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must
comply with all applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance
of the Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the State of

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.

California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any worker or any
other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group 3, Article
2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding Bodies, copies of the
applicable determination of the Director can be found on the web at:
http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period, copies of
Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of Industrial
Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774 and
1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Agency
$50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations for such work or craft
in which such worker is employed for any Work done under the Agreement by Contractor
or by any subcontractor under Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code
and in particular, Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and
pursuant to Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the
amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker
was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 8 of 22



Section 9.

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement,

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by Contractor;
and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work that is

unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Contractor agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or expenditures and disbursements
charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the Contractor under this
Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.41 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights’ Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 9 of 22



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential Information to the
other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confidence; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or other
representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in connection
with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 10 of 22



Section 10.

copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant areas, all
buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed, including any access
roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner as to cause a minimum of
interference with the operations of the Agency; if applicable, the entity for which Contractor
is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project
site and to protect all persons and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon
completion of the Work at a Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and
free of all tools, equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of any equipment,
tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work, whether owned, leased or
rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the
Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be responsible for any such equipment, supplies or
materials which may be lost, stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for
such. Equipment, tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or
without permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to have been
abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by Agency or, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be
solely as an accommodation and neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which
Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability
therefor. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-
owned and hired automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any
equipment, tools, supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on
the Project site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new
and in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely responsible for
its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency and, if applicable, the
entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, for the
performance of Work.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 11 0of 22



Section 11. WARRANTY.

11.1  Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law or public
policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in design and
workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations including engineering, construction and
other codes and standards and prudent electrical utility standards, and in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

11.2  Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency may
have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be obligated at its own
expense to perform, all further Work which may be required to correct any deficiencies
which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any Work in accordance with the
standards required by this Agreement. If during the term of this Agreement or the one (1)
year period following completion of the Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials
or Work used or provided by Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in
material and/or workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon
any reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

11.3  Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance, provided
by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material used in the Work.

Section 12. HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain, and
enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program intended to ensure
safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall include all requisite components of
such a program under Federal, State and local regulations and shall comply with all site programs
established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4. -

12.1  Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to safely
perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

12.2  Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training and
personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may be
encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified training
records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for proper maintenance
and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and material handling equipment.

12.3  Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware of and
will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Mutti-Task General Services Agreement between ’ GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 12 of 22



12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance of the
Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall be required to
comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the Agreement. Non-
compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result in cessation of work
activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is also expressly acknowledged,
understood and agreed that no payment shall be due from Agency to Contractor under this
Agreement at any time when, or for any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full
compliance with this Section 12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety representative.
Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the Agency site safety
representative copies of all written accident reports, and coordinate with Agency if further
investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of its
employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall conduct
occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of exposure of its
employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental conditions. Copies of any
sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous wastes, if
any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be subject to
actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the Agency a
Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for spill containment and
clean-up, emergency contact information including regulatory agencies and spill sampling
and analysis procedures. Hazardous Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks
owned or leased by the Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA member
(collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to Section 1.4
hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency under Sections 12.1,
12.2,12.4,12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

13.1

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 13 of 22



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's representative. All
correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Knights' Electric, Inc.
11410 Old Redwood Hwy.
Windsor, CA 95492

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 14 of 22



Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager _
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9  Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Contractor and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Contractor agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith

: negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between ‘ GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 15 of 22



1312

13.13

13.14

13.15

commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to
either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time
periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 500
et seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal (if any), the
Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and a
Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits shall control. [n the case of any
conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order and the Contractor's Proposal, the
Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. However, should
Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member (collectively
for the purpose of this section only “Member”) pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties
recognize that such Member may be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase
Order and Requested Work relating to such Member.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

Page 16 of 22



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

- General Counsel

KNIGHTS' ELECTRIC, INC.

Date

BARBARA RAGSDALE, President

Multi-Task General Services Agfeement between

Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1

GS-VEN-2017-039

Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

Knights' Electric, Inc. (“Contractor”) shall provide labor and material to perform miscellaneous electrical
maintenances services as requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities
owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or
SCPPA Members.

Maintenance Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Miscellaneous termination/demolition of existing equipment
Lighting in power plants, steamfield and facility buildings
Troubleshooting to electrical equipment and circuits
Emergency services

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-038
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 18 of 22



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in

Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of
expenses is as follows:

LEADERS IN ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS

Tin S35

hfarck 14, 2017

Prevailing Wage Rates:

Srrzizht-Tinwe Owearidma Double-Time
Joumerran Electrician 3 14500 S 185.00 % 230.00
& pprentice Electrician B 100,00 5 130,00 BTS00

Draiiy Truck Charze 120,00
hfzterizle are charzed at Trade plus 20%.

Thess rates apply to axy work performed withous a prior zpprowvad bid. These rates zre walid throwgh June 30,
=023

139712 Cid Redvovod Hey, < Windsse, SA 7 S5460 7 T0T-435-5551 niene s FOT-431-0342 fax
R ENIGETSEL ECTRIC CORE

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the time
services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)

for contract work at

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc. :

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 20 of 22



EXHIBIT D - Not Applicable
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans in
conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background investigations in
conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ' , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA
ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 : Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E) because it
has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the Agreement), or to authorize another
party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further consideration of the
promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a copy of which was received and is
hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be bound by the terms and condition of the
Agreement, together with any and all amendments and supplements now existing or which are
later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally establishes trust agreements designated
in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the parties to such local
trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to administer the trust funds, and
hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as if made by the undersigned.

4) It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete compliance with
the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this documents, from any
Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign, award, or subcontract Covered
Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered Work, or to perform
Covered Work.

DATED: Name of Employer

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2017-039
Northern California Power Agency and Knights' Electric, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650956.1 Page 22 of 22



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

RTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

/
o

Commission Staff Report

Date: May 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: Sage Engineers, Inc. — First Amendment to the Five Year Multi-Task

Professional Services Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the

following projects: All NCPA Facility Locations, Members, SCPPA and SCPPA

Members

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

13

FROM: Ken Speer {5

Department: Hydroelectric

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

Alameda Municivpal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

o o o o o o

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

o o o o o

SR: 158:17



Sage Engineers, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year MTPSA
May 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 17-43 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
First Amendment to the Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Sage Engineers, Inc.
for engineering consulting services related to project support and plant operations, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel. First
amendment seeks to increase the contract value from $225,000 to a not-to-exceed amount of
$1,000,000 over five years for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its
Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority (*SCPPA”"), or by SCPPA
Members.

BACKGROUND:

On September 9, 2016 NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for engineering services with Sage Engineers, Inc. Sage Engineers, Inc.
subsequently absorbed California Electrical Services, Inc., another engineering firm with which
NCPA had a five year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for not to exceed $750,000.
California Electrical Services has requested that we access their services through Sage
Engineers, Inc. As a result, the NCPA Generation Services facilities (Hydro, Geothermal, and
Combustion Turbines) have a need of significantly more of Sage’s engineering services than
originally anticipated by the original contract of $225,000 over five years. It has been
determined that additional funds will be required in order for all facilities to utilize the contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years to
be used out of NCPA approved budgets as services are rendered. Purchase orders referencing
the terms and conditions of the Agreement will be issued following NCPA procurement policies
and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA currently has in place other agreements with
GHD, Inc., Andritz Hydro, Kestrel Power Engineering, Inc., and Baskin Engineering, Inc., for
similar services and seeks bids from multiple qualified providers per NCPA’s procurement
procedure. Bids are awarded to the best value provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders
based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 158:17



Sage Engineers, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year MTPSA
May 15, 2017
Page 3

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on May 8, 2017 and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

o & 1

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
o First Amendment to Sage Engineers, Inc. MTPSA
e Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement with Sage Engineers, Inc.

SR: 158:17



RESOLUTION 17-43

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH SAGE ENGINEERS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #158:17)

WHEREAS, professional and engineering services related to project support and plant operations are
periodically required at the facilities owned and/or operated by Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), its
Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, on September 9, 2016, NCPA entered into a five year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for engineering services with Sage Engineers, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2017, the LEC Project Participant Committee approved the first amendment to
the agreement with Sage Engineers, Inc., increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over
five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task
Professional Services Agreement with Sage Engineers, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall increase the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 over
five years for engineering consulting services related to project support and plant operations for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, its Members, by the Southern California Public Power Authority
(*SCPPA"), or by SCPPA Members. :

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ____ day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
COMMISSION CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



/'é;IORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND SAGE ENGINEERS, INC.

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Multi-task Professional Services Agreement is entered into by and
between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Sage Engineers, Inc. (“Consultant”)
(collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of , 201_.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi-task Professional Services Agreement dated effective
September 9, 2016, (the “Agreement”) for Sage Engineers, Inc. to provide dam safety engineering and other
engineering consulting services for the Agency, Agency Members, the Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total compensation
authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED" amount of $225,000 to a ‘NOT TO EXCEED amount
of $1,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2—Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO EXCEED one million dollars
($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables,
as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This
dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically set
forth herein.

First Amendment to Multi-task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc. GS-VEN-2016-063
Template 2-17-15 Page 1 of4



Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY SAGE ENGINEERS, INC.
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager STEVE H. SANDERS, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Assistant General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi-task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc. GS-VEN-2016-063
Template 2-17-15 Page 2 of 4



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed $1,000,000 subject to
Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount of

expenses is as follows:

ENGINEERS

EARTH « WATER » ENERGY

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

NCPA
16-103.00 — 2017 NCPA FERC Part 12D Safety Reports
June 24, 2016

The Schedule of Charges applies to all services provided by and/or through SAGE Engineers, Inc. (SAGE).
Charges for our services are divided into three categories: Personnel, Travel/Reimbursables and Outside
Services.

PERSONNEL
Personnel charges are for technical work, including technical typing, editing, graphics and support services

involved in the preparation of reports and correspondence, and for the time associated with production of
such documents. Personnel category per-hour charge rates are as follows:

Personnel Category Hourly Rate
Senior Principal Engineer/Geologist $ 275.00
Principal Electrical Engineer 265.00
Principal Engineer/Geologist 265.00
Senior Associate Engineer/Geologist 220.00
Senior Consultant 210.00
Associate Engineer/Geologist 200.00
Senior Electrical Engineer 200.00
Senior Engineer/Geologist 185.00
Senior Project Engineer/Geologist 165.00
Project Engineer/Geologist 150.00
Senior Staff Engineer/Geologist 135.00
Staff Engineer/Geologist 125.00
Senior CADD/GIS Technician 145.00
CADD/GIS Technician 105.00
Contract Administration/Support Services - 105.00

The charge for expert witness services, depositions (4-hour minimum) and court (8-hour minimum) is $375
per hour.

TRAVEL / REIMBURSABLES
Time spent in travel in the interest of the Client will be charged at the above hourly rates plus mileage at
the current IRS rate, except that no more than eight (8) hours of travel time will be charged in any day. When

First Amendment to Multi-task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc. GS-VEN-2016-063
Template 2-17-15 Page 3 of 4



it is necessary for an employee to be away from the office overnight, all actual costs including out- of-pocket
expenses will be charged. Meals will be charged on a per diem basis at $61.00. Reimbursable items (e.g.,
airfare, hotel, automobile/equipment rental, supplies etc.) will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%).
Specialty design software will be charged at an hourly rate on a per use basis, as follows: |- Site ($40/hr); Arc
GIS, GeoStudios (SEEP/W, SLOPE/W, SIGMA/W), RISA-3D, and SAFE ($35/hr), SAP 2000 and RockWorks
($25/hr); Dips, Swedge, RocPlane, and RocFall ($15/hr). Specialty field equipment will be charged at a daily
rate on a per use basis: Trimble GPS Unit+Antenna ($130/day); Rope Access ($200/day).

OUTSIDE SERVICES

Outside services will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Common outside items to which this
1.15 multiplier applies include, but are not limited to drilling services, laboratory testing, printing and
photographic work, special insurance and outside consultants.

2251 Douglas Blvd,, Ste. 200, Roseville, CA 95661, (916) 677-4800
1999 Harrison St,, Ste. 1800, Oakland, CA 94612, (510) 701-2266
SAGEengineers.com

The rates set forth above are valid from June 24, 2016 and may be subject to an annual escalation of up to 5%
per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice to NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in excess
of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

First Amendment to Multi-task Professional Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc. (GS-VEN-2016-063
Template 2-17-15 Page 4 of 4



NORTHERN CALIFDRNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
SAGE ENGINEERS, INC.

This agreement for professional services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (*Agency”) and SAGE Engineers, Inc., a corporation, with its office located at
2251 Do%giglas Blvd., Roseville, CA 95661 (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”)
as of 14 , 2016 (“Effective Date") in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant
shall provide fo Agency the services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein ("Services"), at the ime and place and in the manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five (5) years from the
date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth
herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, reassign such
personnel.

14 Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may include
Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and consistent with the
terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern California Public Power Authority
(“SCPPA") or SCPPA members.

15 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's Services
under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall
identify the specific services to be performed (“Requested Services"), may include a not-to-
exceed monetary cap on Requested Services and expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and a time by which the Requested Services shall be completed.
Consultant shall have seven calendar days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the
Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the
Requested Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services or does not respond within the seven (7) day period

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and SAGE Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 1 of 17

2585442.1



Section 2.

specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested Services on the
terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO

2.1

2.2

2.3

EXCEED two hundred twenty-five thousand dollars ($225,000) for the Services, which
shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant's
fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is
not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit
of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Services performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under the
Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of
Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency's option, when the Consultant's Scope of Work identifies tasks, for each
work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries showing the name of
the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of
the work, and each reimbursable expense, with supporting documentation, to
Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent fo;

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Page 2 of 17



2.4  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of
written authorization from the Contract Administrator,

25  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant fails to submit
an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is
deemed to have waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

41  Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4,22 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability insurance
form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement covering any loss or
liability, including the cost of defense of any action, arising from the operation,
maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1), whether or not owned by the
Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no
more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all
motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded
from general liability insurance.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Revd 1/8/16 _ Page 3 of 17

2535442.1



4.2.3 General Liability/lUmbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in

combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

43  Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional liability
insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in connection with this
Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and two million
dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the Consultant's errors and omissions. Any
deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars
($250,000) per claim. Such insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the
following conditions: (1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective
Date of this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage shall be
provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion of the Services,
coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy
form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of
the Services and, if requested by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

4.4 All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant-shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.4,3 Higher Limits. f Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by
the Consultant.

444 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides services to
Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members, Agency shall have the right
to require the Consultant to provide certificates of insurance and/or policy
endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific Agency
member, SCPPPA or Agency member for which the Services are to be performed.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 . Page 4 of 17

2505442.1



i

4.5

4.6

Section 5.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees fo waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees agents
and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element
of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Agency and its officials,
commissioners, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers from and against any and all
losses, liability, and damages arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life,
or damage to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or
ordinance, to the extent caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of
Consultant or its employees, subcontractors, or agents, and for acts for which they are
liable.

The foregoing obligations of Consultant shall not apply when (1) the injury, loss of life,
damage to property, or violation of law arises from the negligence or wiliful misconduct of
the Agency or its officers, employees, or agents, and (2) the actions of Consultant or its
employees, subcontractors, or agents have contributed in no part to the injury, loss of life,
damage to property, or violation of law.

[t is understood that the duty to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend
as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance by Agency of
Insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve
Consultant from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees tfo the provisions of
this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. Notwithstanding the

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063

Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Pagé 50f 17



foregoing, in the event Consultant defends the Agency and it is ultimately determined or
agreed to that the Consultant was either not negligent or was only partially negligent with
respect to the loss, liability, claim, suit, action or damages, the Agency agrees that it shall
promptly reimburse Consultant for such proportion of the Consultant’s costs incurred in
defending the Agency that is not attributable to the negligence of the Consultant.

Consultant’s liability shall be limited to the policy limit amounts detailed in Section 4
above, as well as any coverage positions or determinations made or taken by
Consultant’s insurance carriers, as it relates to specific ciaims by the Agency, as long as
Consultant maintains in effect and applicability the insurance, including but not limited to
the amounts, deductibles, and scope, referenced herein.

As to any professional services subject to Civil Code section 2782.8, Consultant’s liability
shall be further limited as set forth in Section 2782.8 of the California Civil Code.

Section .  STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1 Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entittement fo any contribution fo be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant's estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsui,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063

Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 6 of 17

25954421



6.2

6.3

6.4

Section 7.

claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant's failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant.

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the Agency,
Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. .

741
7.2

7.3

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any,
shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder,

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Revd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Page 7 of 17



Section 8.

approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9,

9.1

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any fime and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may
condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering fo Agency any or all
records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the
Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not fimited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency's
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following;

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant fo this Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete‘the Services not finished by Consultant;
and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the Services that
is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would have paid
Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant delivers or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between : GS-VEN-2016-083
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16

2595442,

Page 8 of 17



deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

9.2  Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement.

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information”, as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or frade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
fo the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential Information,

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between : . (GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 9 of 17

2595442.1



Section 10.

9.4.4

prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
[nformation (including all copies thereof), if requested by Disclosing Party in
writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may retain copies of
such Confidential Information, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement: {a) for archival purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal
department files; and (c) in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such
copies are necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party's Information to any person other than those of the Receiving
Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and subcontractors who have
a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for

declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys'’ fees in addition fo any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action orin a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. [n the event that either party brings any action against the other under this

-Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the

state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
2595442.1

Page 10 of 17



10.3  Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

10.4  No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

10.6  Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq.

10.7 Confract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer, Assistant
General Manager, Generation Services , or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency's representative. All correspondence shall be directed fo or through the
representative.

10.8  Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Steven H. Sanders
President
SAGE Engineers, Inc.
2251 Douglas Blvd., Suite 200
Roseville, CA 95661
Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard
General Manager
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678
Mulfi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063

Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25954421

Page 11 of 17



With a copy to:

Michael F. Dean

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
Meyers Nave

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 1200
Sacramento, CA 95814

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of
a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for
the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto,
represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree fo resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifleen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063

Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 12 of 17

25954421



10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative prior to either
Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution process is
not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time periods for filing
a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Consultant's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Consuitant's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties. The Parties have
executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY SAGE ENGINEERS, INC.

Date 4\"1”[(( ' Date ?/‘7//5/, A

s b M

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager STEVE H. SANDERS, President

Attest:

Chuehacatc

Assistant Schetary of the-Commission

Approved as to Form:

Ssistant General Counsel

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement befween GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16
25954421

Page 13 of 17



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

As requested by NCPA, Sage Engineers, Inc., (“Consultant’) shall provide consulting services to the
Northern California Power Agency ("Agency”), Agency Members, the Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), or SCPPA members, including, without limitation:

Dam Safety Engineering in accordance with 18CFR12D;

Civil, environmental, geotechnical and structural engineering;
Consulting related to geology, hydrology or hydraulics;
Mapping/surveying/GIS; -

Protection relay upgrades and electrical engineering support;
Engineering inspection and construction observation and testing; and
Other miscellaneous engineering tasks.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 14 of 17

25854421



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed $225,000 subject to
Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated amount

of expenses is as follows:

ENGINEERS

EARTH e WATER « ENERSY

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

NCPA
16-103.00 — 2017 NCPA FERC Part 12D Safety Reports
June 24, 2016

The Schedule of Charges applies to all services provided by and/or through SAGE Engineers, Inc.
(SAGE). Charges for our services are divided into three categories: Personnel, Travel/Reimbursables and
Outside Services.

PERSONNEL .
Personnel charges are for technical work, including technical typing, editing, graphics and support
services involved in the preparation of reports and correspondence, and for the time associated with
production of such documents. Personnel category per-hour charge rates are as follows:

Personnel Category Hourly Rate
Senior Principal Engineer/Geologist $ 275.00
Principal Electrical Engineer 265.00
Principal Engineer/Geclogist 265.00
Senior Associate Engineer/Geologist 220.00
Senior Consultant 210.00
Associate Engineer/Geologist 200.00
Senjor Electrical Engineer 200.00
Senior Engineer/Geologist 185.00
Senior Project Engineer/Geologist 165.00
Project Engineer/Geologist 150.00
Senior Staff Engineer/Geologist 135.00
Staff Engineer/Geologist 125.00
Senior CADD/GIS Technician 145.00
CADD/GIS Technician 105.00
Contract Administration/Support Services 105.00

The charge for expert witness services, depositions (4-hour minimum) and court (8-hour minimum) is
$375 per hour.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 15 of 17

25954421



TRAVEL / REIMBURSABLES

Time spent in travel in the interest of the Client will be charged at the above hourly rates plus mileage
at the current IRS rate, except that no more than eight (8) hours of travel time will be charged in any
day. When it is necessary for an employee to be away from the office overnight, all actual costs
including out- of-pocket expenses will be charged. Meals will be charged on a per diem basis at
$61.00. Reimbursable items (e.g., airfare, hotel, automobile/equipment rental, supplies etc) will be
charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Specialty design software will be charged at an hourly rate
on a per use basis, as follows: I- Site ($40/hr); Arc GIS, GeoStudios (SEEP/W, SLOPE/W, SIGMA/W), RISA-
3D, and SAFE ($35/hr), SAP 2000 and -RockWorks -($25/hr); Dips, Swedge, RocPlane, and RocFall
($15/hr). Specialty field equipment will be charged at a daily rate on a per use basis: Trimble GPS
Unit+Antenna ($130/day); Rope Access ($200/day).

OUTSIDE SERVICES

Outside services will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Common outside items to which
this 1.15 multiplier applies include, but are not limited to drilling services, laboratory testing,
printing and photographic work, special insurance and outside consultants.

2251 Douglas Blvd,, Ste. 200, Roseville, CA 95661, (916) 677-4800
1999 Harrison St, Ste. 1800, Oakland, CA 94612, (510) 701-2266
SAGEengineers.com

The rates set forth above are valid from June 24, 2016 and may be subject to an annual escalation of up to
5% per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice fo NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related costs in
excess of those permitted by the Infemal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-083
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.
Rev'd 1/8/16 Page 16 of 17

25854421



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

' SW Sandeds

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity

and employment history of all employees of N .
SAGE B lners , D C
. J [

(Company name)
for contract work at

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(PrOJect name an?catlon

have been conducted as required by tf) Callfornla Ener, 73|on Decision for the
above-named project. ) d ii% EZ ; g
<

(Slgnature of officer or agent)

Dated this 7%\ day of Sé;p*%;;éev 20/8

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY PLAN AND
SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY THE CALIFORNIA

ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.
26995273

Multi-Task Professional Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-063
Northern California Power Agency and Sage Engineers, Inc.

Rev'd 1/8/16 ' Page 17 of 17
2585442 1



/,

A PUBLIC AGENCY

/ INNCPA

//NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

DATE:  May 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: 2017 Geothermal Facility Operating Protocol — Steam Field Operations Forecast
Report April 2017; Applicable to the following projects: Geothermal

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Ken Speer ﬁS .

Department. Geothermal

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bé’y Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

X

X 0O 0O X

X

City of Ukiah -

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

If other, please specify.

X

X

o o o

SR: 160:17



Steam Field Operations Forecast Report — April 2017

May 15, 2017

Page 2

RECONMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 17-45 approving the 2017 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report dated

April 2017 as the Geothermal Operating Protocol effective July 1, 2017. This Operating
Protocol is to remain in effect until replaced by the: Commission.

BACKGROUND:

The Steam Field Operations Forecast Report is an in-depth study of the Geysers reservoir
relative to the operation of NCPA's Geothermal facility and provides a generation forecast of the
facility. This report will act as the Operating Protocol with the goal of maximizing the generation
output.

The Operating Protocol currently uses a two-zone strategy with wells on the west side of the
NCPA lease producing to both Plant #1, Units #1 and #2. Wells on the east side of the NCPA
lease produce to Plant #2, Unit #4. This Protocol will maximize generation while allowing for

scheduling flexibility and reduction of load under the proper economic conditions. The Protocol
establishes a 2017 annual generation target of 99.3 gross MW.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The 2017-18 approved Geothermal budget covers the proposed action.

SELECTION PROCESS:

Not Applicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

SR: 160:17



>

Steam Field Operations Forecast Report — April 2017
May 15, 2017
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (2)

* Resolution
o Steam Field Operations Forecast Report — April 2017

SR: 160:17



RESOLUTION 17-45

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE 2017 STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS FORECAST REPORT
AS THE 2017 GEOTHERMAL OPERATING PROTOCOL

(Reference Staff Report #160:17)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the
project owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants with containment
areas, and 80 steam production and injection wells connected by roads; and

WHEREAS, the 2017 Steam Field Operations Forecast Report is an in-depth study of the Geysers
reservoir relative to the operation of NCPA’s Geothermal facility and provides a generation forecast of the facility.
This report will act as the Operating Protocol with the goal of maximizing the generation output. The Operating
Protocol currently uses a two-zone strategy with wells on the west side of the NCPA lease producing to Plant 1,
Units #1 and #2. Wells on the east side of the NCPA lease produce to Plant #2, Unit #4. This Protocol will
maximize generation while allowing for scheduling flexibility and reduction of load under the proper economic
conditions. The Protocol establishes a 2017 annual generation target of 9.3 MW gross; and

WHEREAS, 2017-18 approved budget covers the proposed action; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts the Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report dated April 2017 as the Geothermal Operating
Protocol effective July 1, 2017, to remain in effect until replaced by the Commission.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Steam Field Operations
Forecast Report — April 2017

ol i)
-

“ﬁf")




NCPA
Generation Services — Geothermal Facilities

Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

April 2017
Table of Contents
INTRODUCTION 1
I._STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS 2
A. Overview Of 2016 Production and Injectlon 2
B. Geothermal Operating Plan 3
C. Water Injection Program 4
D. Geothermal Facility Projects 7
11, 2016 RESERVOIR PERFORMANCE & 2017 GENERATION FORECAST 9
A. Reservoir Préssure Distribution 9
B. Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline 9
C. 2016 Generation Review 10
D. 2017 Generation Forecast 10
SUMMARY 11
List of Figures & Tables
Figures 1-15 . 12-26
Table 1 - Annual Report of NCPA Injection at The Geysers 2016 27
Table 2 - Geothermal Facilities Summary 28
Table 3 — Reservoir Pressure 29
Table 4 - NCG Concentration _ 30
Table 5 - 2017 Generation Forecast — 25 Years 31
Table SA - 2017 Average Generation Level — 25 Years _32
Table 5B - 2017 Scheduled Qutages — 25 Years 33
Table 6 — 2017 Generation Forecast — 5 Years 34
Table 6A — 2017 Average Generation Leve] - 5 Years 35
Table 7 — 2017 Forecast of Geothermal Production and Injection 36




NCPA
Generation Services Business Unit

Steam Field Operations and Forecast Report

April 2017

Introduction

This report provides an update on the status of the NCPA Geothermal Project. There are
three main sections:

I. A review of steam field operations including annual production and injection
volumes, the Geothermal Operating Plan, water injection program, and projects.

II. A review of 2016 reservoir performance and generation.
II. A 2017 generation forecast.

Analysis of geothermal reservoir during 2016 indicates a continued 1.9% harmonic decline
consistent with prior projections. The average generating capacity for 2016 was 101 MW
gross or 93.3 MW net. Gross generation for the year was 887.3 GWhrs with net generation
of 820.1 GWhrs.

Water injection continues to be a major contributor to maintaining reservoir pressure and
mitigating steam production decline rates. The Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline project
brings an average of 5,600 gpm of wastewater to The Geysers. NCPA and a nearby power
producer share the water, but in late 2015, the Valiey Fire damaged several of their power
plants and their injection capability. As a result, NCPA received a larger share of the
wastewater and water injection rates for the 2016 were up 42% from the previous year
averaging 4,836 gpm.

The 2017 generation forecast projects the average generating levels to be 99.3 MW gross or
91.7 MW net for the year. NCPA geothermal facilities are expected to generate 862.2
GWhrs gross or 796.5 GWhrs net in 2017. The 25 year projected gross reserves are
estimated to be 18,085 GWhrs or 16,163 GWhrs net.

In terms of the fiscal year, the gross generation is estimated to be 873.2 GWhrs with net
generation of 810.9 GWhrs in FY 2017. The respective gross and net generation projected
for FY 2018 is 867.8 GWhrs and 800.9 GWhrs.

-




. STEAM FIELD OPERATIONS
In This Section

P> Overview of Annual Production and Injection
P Geothermal Operating Plan

P Water Injection Program

P Steam field Projects

A. Overview of 2016 Production and Injection

NCPA continued to operate the Geothermal Project as a base load facility in 2016, Steam
production for the year was 15.1 Glbs with water injection of 21,2 Glbs for an annual
mass replacement ratio of 140%. Water injection on the NCPA lease is a combination of
steam condensate recovered from the cooling towers and wastewater from the Southeast
Geysers Effiuent Pipeline (SEGEP). The water from the SEGEP pipeline is shared
between NCPA and a nearby power producer. In late 2015, the Valley Fire damaged
several of the nearby producer’s power plants resulting in NCPA receiving a larger than
normal share of the SEGEP wastewater. As a result, the average injection rate for NCPA
increased 42% from the previous year to 4,836 gpm.

The cumulative mass replacement ratio from plant startup in 1983 through 2016 was
65.2% (Figure 1). The net mass withdrawal of steam from the reservoir (Mass Produced
less Mass Injected) through 2016 is 223.2 billion Ibs.

The average annual generation for 2016 was 101.3 MW gross or 93.5 MW net, The
average generation is down from 2015 because of continued steam field decline and plant
outages. In 2017, generation levels are projected to be 99.3 MW gross or'91.7 MW net.

Production Highlights during 2016 Include:

P Annual average gross generation in 2016 was 101 MW or 93.3 MW net.

» Average annual mass replacement (i.e., the percentage of steam production replaéed by
water injection) was 140% in 2016 compared to 96.1% for 2015, The 2016 average
injection rate was 4,836 gpm and was a 42% increase over the previous year, The
increase was due to receiving higher than normal amounts of SEGEP wastewater,

P In 2017, the average generation i‘s projected to be 99.3 MW gross or 91.7 MW net.

N




Historical NCPA Production and Injection Levels
Figure 2
25

20

15 5

Steam or Water Mass, Billion Ibs

Nl B B B B 5 B B E N ,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

@ Steam Produced @ Water injactad

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

B. Geothermal Operating Plan

The Geothermal Project Operating Agreement requires the NCPA Commission to
establish an Operating Plan and an annual operating level for the Geothermal Units. The
purpose of the plan is to maximize the efficient use of the geothermal resource, protect the
power plants and equipment, and meet all regulatory and permitting requirements.

A Geothermal Operating Plan, effective July 1, 2016, was approved and recommended
by the Coordinated Operating Group (COG), the Generation Services Business Unit, and
the NCPA Commission during the May 26, 2016 meeting. The Plan establishes an
Operating Protocol that maintains a Two Zone operation within the NCPA lease. The
Two Zone Operation was implemented to improve operational response time during a
unit trip at Plant #1 and maximize generation on the NCPA lease while minimizing
reservoir commuunication with nearby competitor operations.

Under the current Protocol, steam production from the west side of the lease, Zone 1, is
directed to Units #1 and #2 at Plant #1. Steam production from the east side of the lease,
Zone 2, is directed to Plant #2, Unit #4 (Figure 5). Combining zones is periodically
tested to determine if the overall generation from both plants can be increased, but has
generally resulted in a net loss of generation, The current Protocol effectively utilizes
steam production, improves performance at the plants, and complies with existing
permits and regulations.

w




While the Protocol maximizes generation, it does allow for scheduling flexibility and
reduction of load under the proper economic conditions. Sustained curtailments of Plants
#1 and #2 are possible, but not recommended because recovery of the curtailed
generation would take an extended number of years.

C. Water Injection Program

NCPA continues to operate the steam field in the manner intended to maximize the
recovery of injected water. In order to maximize recovery, it is important to have
sufficient water and distribute it over the widest possible area of the field. It is also
necessary to inject water at the lowest possible rate to maximize the heat transfer between
the reservoir rock and water, Other factors that weigh into water injection strategy are
targeting hotter zones of the field and higher gas concentrations within the reservoir. The
water injection program discusses NCPA’s supplemental water source, the Southeast
Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP), current injection operations, micro-earthquake
activity and non-condensible gas trends as a result of the injection. :

1. Southeast Gezs}ers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP)

The Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline (SEGEP) project is a pipeline bringing water to
The Geysers for the purpose of supplementing water injection in the field, During
normal years, NCPA receives an average 2,700 gpm out of 5,600 gpm water that is
delivered. Injection of this water into The Geysers reservoir helps mitigate reservoir
pressure declines and increases steam reserves, Figure 6 shows the historical SEGEP
deliveries for NCPA and the total for the project.

SEGEP deliveries were at normal levels until the Valley Fire occurred in September 2015.
The fire damaged several geothermal power plants that are operated by a nearby
independent power producer and they were not able to take their allotted share of
wastewater for several months. NCPA had a 30% higher than normal water injection
from the SEGEP pipeline as a result. NCPA average flow rate from SEGEP was 3,709 gpm
in 2016 versus 2,859 gpm in 2015. v

2. Injection Operations

There were 11 different wells used for injection in 2016, The injection strategy continues
to be an effort to spread water over large geographic area and limit injection rates down
individual wells as much as possible,

Figure 7 shows the relative location of the 11 injection wells on the NCPA lease. Six of
these wells, B-6, E-8, H-4, Q-1, Q-4, and Q-10 were only connected to the SEGEP
pipeline and therefore received only effluent or wastewater. One well, J-6, is a dedicated
condensate injection well receiving water from Plant #2. The remaining four wells
received a combination of condensate and wastewater. Figure 8 and Table 1 show the
relative amounts and type of water each well received in 2016,

4




3. Micro-earthquake Activity

Studies by the United States Geological Survey (USGS) and others have demonstrated
that the steam production and water injection at The Geysers can cause frequent micro
seismic events to occur. As a result, NCPA and the other operators are required to
continuously monitor and report on the earthquakes that occur within The Geysers
geothermal field. Figure 9 is a map showing the locations of the 804 seismic events of
magnitude 1.5 and larger that occurred within The Geysers field during 2016. Fourteen
of these events had an earthquake magnitude of 3.0 or greater. The largest seismic
event was a magnitude 5.01 on a competitor lease.

On the NCPA lease, there were 64 events of M=1.5 or greater. The largest event was a
magnitude of 3.37 and occurred near NCPA’s southern [ease line, The figure below
shows the historical seismic activity for the NCPA lease from 2000 through 2016. The
seismic activity for 2016 was higher than the activity in 2015.

Historical Seismic Activity on NCPA Lease
Magnitude 1.5 or greater

-
(]

81

o

(—1
~R
(-

73

~X

(—]
N
==

64 ' y 65 64

Number of Earthquakes > 1.5
W £ 73 e
=) = = &

] 1 )

[ 4
(—]
I

10 1§ -

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

)]




4. Non-condensible Gas (NCG) Trends

Non-Condensible Gas (NCG) is a natural product of the teservoir and may be present in
varying concentrations within the steam that is produced at The Geysers. NCG
production reduces plant efficiency and increases chemical treatment costs. The values
vary significantly based on operating guidelines for the field, plant outages, or injection
strategy. Water injection in areas of high gas concentration generally reduces NCG
production and improves plant efficiency.

Table 4 shows an annual sampling of all the producing wells in the field and the analysis
for NCG’s. These values can vary somewhat based on daily operational changes and the
adjustment of injection strategies within the field, but are considered to be typical
concentrations of NCG’s for these wells. In spite of increased injection for the year,
NCG concentrations were slightly up from the previous year. Figure 10 shows a
comparison of the relative changes throughout the field.

Historical Non-Condensible Gas (NCG)
Concentrations on NCPA Lease

4000

3500 ' -3876—

3600 -
2612 2590

2500 -

NCG Concentration, ppmw
2 B
[~ (=]

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201X 2012 2013 2014 201 2016
Year

»




D. Geothermal Facility Projects

Major projects completed in 2016 were:

Sedimentation Basin Repair — The concrete on the Sedimentation Basin needed to
be repaired and re-coated to prevent possible structural damage. The project was
completed on July 25, 2016 at a cost of $160,122.

Knockout Pot Repair — Heat loss in the steam production pipelines causes some
steam condensate or water to form in the lines. The water is collected by knockout
pots for reinjection back into the reservoir. A significant number of knockout pots
were not functioning due to debris and needed to be repaired. Repairs or
modifications were made to 33 knockout pots. The project was completed on April
29, 2016 and cost $132,252.

In 2017, major projects that have been completed or will be initiated are:

Plant #1 Yard Repair — A large 40 ft x 100 ft concrete pad was constructed in the Plant
#1 yard to prevent asphalt damage from continued storage of phase separators and
sulfur bins. In addition, a gas cylinder storage shed was constructed and repairs to
existing asphalt in the plant yard were done. The project was completed on March
10, 2017 at a cost of $206,865.

Unit #4 Main Steam Pipeline — A new Unit #4 main steam pipeline was constructed
for the purposes of reducing pressure losses and improving in generation. The
pipeline was put into service on March 30, 2017 and the unit saw the expected 1 MW
gain in generation. The project cost was the budgeted amount of $950,000. With
this project ¢ost and generation benefit, the economics show a three-year payback
on investment with an IRR of 38.5% achieved over a fifteen year life.

Plant #2 Fire Line Replacement — The Plant #2 fire line has been contracted out with
an expected project cost of $571,000. Replacement of the Plant #2 fire line should
start in May 2017,

-




II, 2016 RESERVOIR PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In This Section
» Reservoir Pressure Distribution
P Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline
» 2016 Generation Review
P 2017 Generation Forecast

Reservoir performance can be affected by a number of factors such as changes in the location
or amount of water injected, the operating pressure of the field, gain or loss of production
wells, or changes in the operation of nearby competitor leases. The effects of these changes
on the reservoir are normally monitored by conducting pressure build-up tests on production
wells, tracer tests on injection wells, and a continuous review of pressute, temperature, and
flowrrate data from the field. This section will discuss recent changes in reservoir pressure
distribution, reservoir pressure decline, and steam field flowrate decline.

A. Reservoir Pressure Distribution

One of the most important parameters in predicting and explaining reservoir performance is
static reservoir pressure. Figure 11 shows areal pressure distributions of static reservoir
pressures for April 2016 and April 2017, In general, wells on the west side of the field have
the lowest reservoir pressures (< 80 psig) and the east side of the field continues to be the
higher pressure area, o

B. Reservoir Pressure and Flowrate Decline

Changes in reservoir pressute over time are a function of the mass-replacement ratio. By
injecting steam condensate and supplementing it with run-off fresh water and secondary
treated wastewater from the Southeast Geysers Project, the decline in reservoir pressures has
moderated or slowed with time,

In 2016, 52 wells were shut-in at various times to conduct pressure build-up tests. The tests
revealed that the average wellhead shut-in pressure was 72 psig or an average decrease in
wellhead pressure of 12.3 psig. This may be attributed to increased injection from 2015. The
average well on the NCPA lease flows 27,000 Ib/hr at 39.5 psig.

The projected flowrate decline is shown in Figure 13, In 2016, the overall steam field flow
rate averaged 1,773 klbs/hr, This flow rate is projected to be 1,741 klbs/hr in 2017, The
projected overall steam field decline is a harmonic 1.9%. Continued and strategic injection
of water over a wide area of the reservoir is expected to enhance recovery and provide better
reservoir pressure support in future years,

<0




C. 2016 Generation Review

I

Gross generation for the NCPA Geo Facilities in 2016 was 887.3 GWhr with net generation
of 820.1 GWhr. For FY 2017, gross generation is estimated to be 873.2 GWhrs with net
generation of 810.9 GWhrs. The 2016 gross generation capacity was an average of 101 MW
while net generation capacity averaged 93.3 MW,

2017 Generation Forecast

The updated forecast of future reservoir performance, and the resulting energy generation
forecast for the NCPA geothermal plants, was developed using decline curve analysis in
conjunction with a review of the 2015 computerized reservoir model projection. Included in
the forecast are:

1. Operation of the steam field in a two-zone operation.
2. Installation of new turbines in Units #1 and #2 in the spring and fall of 2013.

3. The continued benefits being derived from the Southeast Geysers Effluent Pipeline
Project.

The most recently developed forecast of steam field operations is iilustrated in Figure 12. This
graph shows NCPA’s 34 year historical data for both steam production and water injection,
and forecasts of production and injection out to year 2041, With the startup of the Effluent
Pipeline in September 1997, and with its continuous operation projected thereafter, the
average annual mass replacement is close to 100%. Water injection should continually exceed
production in the future and a gradual decline in the level of steam production will approach a
near-sustainable level of 80% of the mass of water injected.

The total amount of steam capable of being produced by NCPA through year 2041 is
currently estimated at 305.9 billion pounds. Remaining gross generation reserves are
estimated to be 18,085 GWhr with net reserves of 16,163 GWhr. Figures 14 and 15
respectively show the projected net generation capacity and total net generation amount for
2017 through 2041. Table 4 details the annual gross and net generation. A more detailed
monthly five year forecast can be found in Zable 5.

In 2017, it is estimated that the Geo Facilities will generate 862.2 GWhrs gross or 796.5
GWhrs net. Respective gross and net generation capacity levels for the year are projected to
be 99.3 MW gross and 91.7 MW net. For, FY 2017, the respective gross and net generation
amounts are projected to be 873.2 GWhrs and 810.9 GWhs,

©




SUMMARY

Steam Field Ogemtt'ons

>

>

>

The NCPA lease produced 15.1 Glbs steam while lnjectmg 21.2 Glbs of watel resulting in an
average mass replacement of 140% for the yeat.

The average gross generation capacity for 2016 was 101 MW gross while the net generation
capacity was 93.3 MW net,

The average water injection increased from 3,398 in 2015 to 4,836 gpm in 2016. The Valley
Fire in late 2015 damaged several power plants of a nearby power producer and as a result,
NCPA recelved a larger share of the available wastewater.

Water recovery as Injection-Detived-Steam needs to be maintained to continue to benefit
from the SEGEP Pipeline. The injection strategy gomg forward is to inject available water
supplies over a greater area with the intent of maxxrmzmg its recovery over a shorter time
period.

2016 Reseryoir Performance Review

>

>

There was a decrease in reservoir pressures mainly at the Q-site well pad due to increased
injection. Injection in this area has been reduced to allow the wells to theimally recover.

Average shut-in wellhead pressure for the NCPA lease was 72.1 psig. The avelage well
produces 27 kph at 39.5 psig,

The steam field deliverability was 1,773 klbs/ln in 2016 The projected 2017 deliverability is
1,741 klbs/hr, The projected harmonic dechne 1ate going forwarcl is 1.9%.

2016 Generation Review and 2017 G’eneration Forecast

>

>

Gross generation for 2016 was 887.3 GWhs with net generation of 820.1 GWhlS For FY
2017, gross generation is estimated to be 873.2 GWhis with net generation of 810.9
GWhrs,

The generation forecast covers the period from 20172041, Recoverable steam reserves are
estimated at 305.9 billion pounds with the total amount of remaining gross gene1atlon
estimated at 18,085 GWhr or net generation of 16,163 GWhr,

The gross generation capaclty for 2017 is projected to be 99.3 MW or 91,7 MW net. Gross
generation for the year is projected to be 862.2 GWhrs or 796.5 GWhr net. For FY 2017,
the respective gross and net generation amounts are projected to be 873.2 GWhs and 810.9
GWhs.




SX'LL-L)-g 'saunbiq uonos(u] g uonoNpoid [eoLoISIH zZL

'NOILOArNI

SANNOd NOITIg L'gLy
NOLLOICNI V0L [N

NOLLONAO™d

%2°59 = INFWIOV1d3d
SANNOd NOITTId Z°g2e

TMVAQHLIM SSYIN L3N SANNOd NOITIE
6'Lv9
NOILONAO¥ TV.LOL




SIX"L1-/}-€ "SeInbl4 uogosfuj 3 UORONPOI [EDLOISIH el

poRiul ol PAINPOId We)S

9T0C ST0Z VI0Z £TOZ ZTOZ TTOZ OTOZ 600Z 800Z LOOZ 900Z SO0Z $00Z £00Z TOOZ TOOZ 000Z

...‘,m.ﬁ

TLT T

R,

00¢ 00z ™
TIZ TIC

]

Z 24n3814
SjoAa7 uoI3d3[u] pue uc1NPOoId YdIN |e21403SIH

=
v

uy
[ |
Sq| UOH]|1g ‘sselA 191BAN JO Wed)s

T4




siX'LL-L1-€ ‘fojsIH uogelsuss) Jemod ¢-bid 14

SINEYIDA0 PUB S35eIN0 JUN 10§ SWIUMOP SPN[OUL S|IA] UCHIEIBUID,,

314 2

sonljivey 099 VAdON
S|9A3T] UOHRIDUDEL) JOMO |ESLIO)SIH "¢ a4nbi

09}

{SAAIN SS04D) [aAe™] UolRISUSD abelaAy fenuuy



WSIXLT-£T-€ ‘UOHINPO.] '3 UOHEIBUBE EILIOISIH ST

Li-uer

9T-AON

Ayjoej 09n—e— zi jue)d
9T-das 9T-inr

T# 1ue|d

oT-Aep

1

oT-teN

91-uer

- 00°ST

- 00797

- -00°LT

0031

00°6T

v 24n8i4

UOReZI|IIN Wed)S SSOID) 9T0Z

00702

SMIN/Uds] ‘uoirez)jiin weals




9l

SINVHYIAO0 INVId OGNV ¥OLOVd ALMIGYUVAY ‘QTIINVILS ‘LNVId NI SIONVHO: AG L3S 3ONVY L30yVL TIVNNNY (2)
SOHO WOY¥4 SAMIVA * JONVHD SNOILIONOD (7314 "SY. SAYYA NOILVYINIO Ava (L)

X113 0oL GOt Iviol
A'o'd
AO>>§ w.vV ) Ly 114 14 r'3‘g (4 II
N3JO Jam STam 1V
NSSIYd HOIH . N'H
(¥ LINN) VIV € LNVd g6 ¥S LS saoy| °®! I
A11S-r
211S-3 ADYINI | dvD 8340 | dvD ¥3dO TIam
Y NIW XYW
\\m[pzﬁm WONNY ATIVT KIva
r————-—-"=-=-"—==7"=7=77 -0
311S-9
.n!
NV (OMN. £8)
N340 3gm ST1am:-TIv
PINSSFdd 7
JALVIQINHTLNI-MOT

(271 SLINN) V3NV L LNV

111S-0 g

r
3L1S-d _
_
|
I
|

NOANYD dv3d 9t LINN €L LINA . 81 LINM

L10T NV'1d TVNOLLVHAdO TVINITAHLOED S 3In31g




xspeAsonyaq ,m_w.mm [edHOISIH ~ 9 24n314 - S T

ApAegvdoNE  Asaaleg d393s [€I0L B
910¢ mSN PYI0Z €102 ZT0¢ TT0Z 010C mooN 800C £00Z 900Z S00Z #00Z €00Z Z00Z T00Z 0002 666T 266T

8€5's LbS's

veo'g Y209 £809

AsonPP dID3S JO %S9 JO4 SIUN0JIR Jo1eMYSaLd

(INdD a8eaaAy |enuuy)
<n_uz pue |e1oj saldAlRg d3D3S Jo A10ISIH "9 2unSi4

000

000°C

000°€

000y

wds ‘@1e4mo|4

000°S -

000°L




| {Ag) anpA wooig [X

-1

1334 NI 3WIS VA

(AD) @apA tonuoD B/

wayshs suadiy juanyy3 ssesken IS
waskg supdig ajPSUIPUO)
wayshy auledig/uond|0) JPIoM woYy

oM uonoalul jusnyl E

wom vonoofur | T

swasAg auadig/uonoaliod

AN3931

{ v i
ooz

™

w.m_,_q

G

r'd

SIIA $ NI AS

SL1 AYMHOIH

ONWOISHILNI -
‘GuvMISY3
SINNILNOD
3IND3dtd
1N3N143

3HL

()
5
3

@

uauf 0z

[
O

000t

HLNON

’ <
7 & | LNV1d
Ruz, 301340\
QINVILS e ndf
NISVE
~ NOLLVLNZWIGSS \¢
H \e LN
S\
01-0 =X
a0 - &P
I-O \i2
Q

0S6—-V Pud Gr6-v) $95097T WI§

X

audipy oL

i

2oy

R4

uouy T

In-o

L

o

suidip) o} .,

NOLLOACNI 0 NV'1d QATIIAOIN L TANOIA




| olzONmNG | M __// 7
SYALVM TLLDALNI 0 NOLLAITILSIA AALLV THA
T WVALS VION

8 HANO1A




0L’zcl

VIRIV
AQNLS OINSIES
SUIASATO

1SVa HLNOS

GL°ccl - 08'¢clL

6 2Inbi4

GL°8%

W

Aiopunog piai4
a1pwxoaddy

g8'¢cl

Jajealb @ o'g apnyubepyy @
6'C 0} G'L epnuubep -

(Bojeren Asxtag 'O N woy)
SOSN IHL A9 A3 1LNOdTH
SININT OINSITS

9L0Z dVIA

06ccl

]

+ JusWINIISU|

uonoy buong

sbuudg uosiepuy wouy
aJe saoue)sIp [elpey

SIMN

2z i 0
SuUOoeo0T JUB|d JOMOd
BugeladO-UoN ©
Bunelado @

dVIN 1314 SYTIASAZD

] 08'8¢
SSIIN-O1L




FIGURE 10 |
NONCONDENSABLE GAS CONCENTRATIONS

IN NCPA STEAM (ppm)
\:‘ CALPINE
\‘ &

CALPINE
‘ &Q _
N ) ) . /o
\\% ‘e: ) @"’. : QO\!/ /:‘3’
Q# o f . / 6
\: g \
[ ]
November 2015

) ey

/
7/
CALPINE
\\|
AN
< L &
‘\%
QPI‘. ’
™~
(]
| . ) k
October 2016 NN ¢ e
%’o N IS *~ //
RONAN
EANEEN /
I
LEGEND
STEAM CONCENTRATION
INJECTIONWELL MELL | LEVEL

f/ ' ® 2,000 ppm or less

® 2,001 to 4,000 ppm

| © 4,001 ppm or more

21




| FIGURE 11 )
NCPA STEAM FIELD RESERVOIR PRESSURE

\‘ CALPINE : . CALPINE

April 2016

\l CALPINE |

APRIL 2017 |

\

LEGEND
STEAM WELL RESERVOIR PRESSURE
ISOBARIC CONTOUR AREA LOCATION (PSIG)
LOW <80
1
% MEDIUMLOW e 80 - 100
20 MEDIUM HIGH ® 101 - 120
HIGH e > 120

22




SpX'L}-21-€ ‘sanbiy uogoaiu)  UOKONPOIJ [EOLO)SIH

€e

WONS[UY IJEM ~F~  UORINPOLJ WHED)S memm

I8
0€02 0107 0002 - 0661 0861
2 1 ] ] c
sq[ woIIyg 7°99¢€ Sq[ uotiid L°8T¥
uondfuy aanyng 9107 - €861
wondafay ‘
01
ST
07
. 1574
Sq uolytd 6°S0€ Sq wolryg 6°1¥9
uononpo.ag aanynyg 910C - €861
10 STAYASHA uononpoid 05

1 2ang1 |
uonddluy I9jepN 2 UONINPOLJ WEI)S ISEIII0] puk [BoLI0)STH

(uf 10 voyonpoIg

Sq[ Jo SuOlIg “Uondd




1<4

oo SE0¢

1

?jeimol pojafoid—-  3LIMO|4 TelDnY |BILIOISIH ~o~

0€0¢ §¢0c 020¢ ST10¢C 010¢

S00¢ 000¢

66T

00s

000t

%6°T = 91ey aulpaqg diuow.ey

005t

000°C

359 Y THL’T = mo|4 weds “3AY LT0T JA

005C

ydy £££°T = mo|4 wed)s “SAY 9T0C JA

€T 2un3d1y
CH '3 TH# Wue|d VdON

pauIqu0) SP1BIMO[4 Wed)ls paldafoid pue [edli0lsiH

000°€

ydy ‘ajeimols weals




14

uonEISUSD ‘SAY vuﬁ&o& [10Z—  UOREISUSD “SAY [ELI0ISTH—o—

0v0¢ SE0C 0eoc G20e 020¢ | m.now 0t1oc S00¢

00o¢<

1174

SIMD £9T9T - SOAIDSOY 19N THOT - LT0Z
JYMD T°0Z8 - UOREIBUDD 13N IT0T

g

Q
-

o
0

]
Q
L |

MIN £°T6 - UONEIBUSD) 13N “SAY LT0T
MIN £°€6 - Uohiesausn “3ny 19N 9T0T

1 a3y
~ C#® T# siueld VdON paulquio) ‘
[9A97 UoiIeIDUDD 19N d5eIany paldafoid pue [esriolsiH

MIN ¢ uog;e.‘:éuag 19N ‘Shy




9

uonesauan 19N pajafoid L10¢— UOIBIBUIL) 13N [EIL0ISIH—=

ovoc SE0C 0€0¢ S20¢ 020¢ S10¢ 0T0¢ S00¢

t 1 i 1 i [} 1 1

000¢
0

00¢

Vukﬂuﬁ

(11) 7

009

008

JYMD 67008 - uonesdudn 19N 810¢ Ad
JYMD 6°0T8 - uonjesduayn 19N LT0Z Ad

000t

JYMD €91°9T - SOAIDSIY 19N THOZ- LTOT JA
UMD §°96L ~ Uolesduan 19N LTOC A

JYMS T°0Z8 - uoiIeIBUIH 19N [BNPY 910¢ JA
JYMD 2°208 - uolielaudn 19N paripald 910C 1A

- 00Z°T

00v‘T

ST 24n314

C# '3 T# siueld YdON pauiquio)
uoIleIaUIL) 19N pairafoid pue |edU0ISIH

SIYMD ‘UojieIaUSD 19N




2UIOUOS 1] BJB SIIC 0, ot ‘(LOIBOY AGHEA [BRIDD) ALUNOD O;

“{uoay 5800 WioN) 2] Ui PIIED0] 0J8 S3967] Ul SOWE [[oM BIOE 6 94 2l ]
“IGIENDISEM DoY) SIE) MNBHERID PUE NSOV T LPA JOUFt0} OHE ) JEOE) Ualj JOTeM aIE SOWNIOA (SUESIA) oA, "L | SoioN
. 1 - 1} 1 i ‘ﬂ “
i IR TR S
%S SO0 JBI[Q) UI0) 1A JSJBA USDI) SBM 16N, Jo1eM il 3anys JO % 94 LUt 43es bULNg
886YS ¢ '920'556'% | €96 €65 | 19L'¥Ee 9912 [ YES'EEC | 661107 | 26685k | €6 LLZ | BSE8eC | BB OLC | 260 88L | 28685 | BESVLL | 206°OVT SE0L] |
190L] (chuonipa| (LSRsUopUoD
- - - - - - - - - - - - wongsl Al
729618 0892 | ve8'2C | JOI'IE | ci6'hz | 8690 | vBSZz | S9VZ%  ivehGl | GIS6F . | 8890 | 9882 | vhOVE WenlE
£8518 0 - = - - - - - - - < - = SESUSPUOD;  0ED
- - - - = ~ = - - - - = wongal b
. LIS'EIT LIS'ELe || ¥E6'ZL 16402 25’8t 0sy'sl - | lot'v) SeZ'le 281’61 6’81 zie'al [51Y 998'S ] S9t'51 wen| D
- - = - - = - - < = = - WoNlE| &0
698 2L T esgell 00091 |©8g8l | 0e5Z) | VIZZL | 9ecer  |6ecol | ivZer | 8009L | S509F | eERRL VL 6T Wenyal -0
- - - - - - - - - - - - wongR|  6d
- < - - - - - - - Wonya! i
112688 IY@'EE | cBYOE | 9erge | cot ot | ZvEOT | 68v'62 | Z060C | €9CE2 | 660G | ¥9S 88 | Shrve | So1ge Vioria,
219’205 106'¢t} il G86'LL 628'¢} 165'9 ove'y 866'0} 29 ¥8L'E SE2 18v'%) 086°L [N jesuapuod &N
- < B - - - - - - - - Wargs :
- - - - - - - - - - aesuopiod| N
GYEF j =1 9 - 6L = 156 - - 61 = 6F - ) oBSUOPUDg| 9T
ZEC SVE CECTVE 28982 |Se00t | pOB6e 1 9OV0C | SvES¢ | DIECE | 0Bc0e | LeBva | 16067 |90V | 05582 | S6SIE W] i
Y8l V8Tl - - = - - 1566 | S0LvE | Gvege | B6G9F | 68ct = Wonga| T -
Gi618 12282099y | Gec8 | €00LL | SZ66 €96 | 6888 §IS. | cvedOL | Ss8e | 8et8 | £eeL WA
S8ZT'LiE 01£682 182'28 $59'0€ 28’52 OLt'v2 60802 SPE'S yi2'S) z8¥'se 625’6} sri'ee a'Le y8P'SE -SlesuapUod 4
- = = - B - - N = - Wenigy
- - - - - - - - - - - - - e [ ]
6LLLLE SLLLT l2S'VZ | S8LIZ | SObve | SOZSE | 1910Z | VeLLZ | vvoez | 86871 | zi86lL 165862 | c0bZL | 06062 wemg| o3
= < = - < - - = = FEE]
- - - - - - - - - - - - - {_owsuspiod| 119
- - - - - - - - - - = - = e )
8L [ 8l - = - - - - = B B < wongs| g
o'y v85'L dzie 2169 j0%6¢ - 960c {695 L sviv 629 IE52 [ Des9 |6z fIE]
29 ' 10b'06L 1 918've S19'02 S16'6L 0L9C - 2286 8LL'E} L19'S) 85E'Ch 82 9.L'el 2e8'0e qasuoplioy bV
j i - oM
™oL v | 3 |1 9198q | 91-AON | 9100 | 91-00S | 94BNy | Ol-r | OL-unf | SL-ACW | O1-a0V | Spam | 9404 | SL-uer |
1o/ X
_ [SUOIIED 000} UL} SL0Z I3, 40) :
a731d WVILS SHISATD FHI LV NOILOIMNI YdON JO LUOJE TYNNNV 'L 9IqEL :
! I 1 | 1 | I H 1 1 i ¥

uonRsafu) 910¢




8¢

SHILMOVA TVIRIZHLO3D "2 ATavl

: _BE&M
Ue'e o1 690°'E FZA L80'S 066'7. S|l _S68'Z 8077 8y'e UOHeHUSIUOY DN
JUIA] epnyabeny ]
8¢ 66'C gEY oL'E 162 £ 662 (X4 162 162 wnuixely ApAnoy ]
WSIOS-0ININ YAIN
9 0s 85 89 18 €L i) 514 09 9L S =<l AHARDY
JMUSIAS-OINMN VADN [
Ly gl 4} [ [T Sl 13 3 8 L
Tondslu) 10 Pasy SiepA
%2 59 %'€9 %9'29 %z 29 %609 %865 %9'88 %e LS %298 %2'SS (%) sAgenwng
%9°0bL %9'S6 %S 2L %4901 %L 26 %8°26 %6'€0L %468 %EC6 %06L L (%) 1enuuy
JURUAIL|UOY SSEN
2291 0selL oy GLEL gLLL 28l €12l 28'6 £2°01 Rl (Sq7 uoNiig) JushYa
6y 0Z¥ 8y YA 00'g 6L 96y 182 18T [YAC) (sq7] uoljpgy) syesuapuod
YA 98l 68l 96°L1 Zc9l 99'9) [ vivL 00°9L ¥6°0C (sq7 uonjig) 1|10
uon?3lu)
Q0°€0) 0L YOl z8 501 901 £9 801 101 901 (M) mo Alyauoly
8/°60L oLl oL 601, OLl 601 60L Ll ¥4} ozl WAB#JE Angguo
SS0J HIQIX9]-] peo-
80'S1 ya'Gl 0091 £8'9L 09°9L vo'LL X Z'L GyL'LL 6521 {5q71 voygy)
pasaalloq wes)g
Q0°LL Qg 4L (XA 66'8L rANA 6e'gL £€'81 £GLL £8'0L 9991 {my 1 s97)
UOISIIAUOCY) WIEA)S
201 L0} 201 _ 80} 201 80l 801 el 9l zh (nai)
[090)04d
£'€6 966 §96 FAT) £'66 086 ¥'98 2e0) €10l ZLLL
6¥L'618 6/8°LE8 Zv8'298 ¥¢8" zzr'els Iv/'858 Z9'rhe 666'008 £61.'2v6 [8E'V16
0’104 L'€0L ¥'G0L L'L0L 90! JR: 1 o'voL 0CLL 09LL 502l
662488 662'€06 $66'226 ¥00'0g8 8'066 89926 LEV'O18 001'186 $08'810°1 £18'660°}
SSOd IIEETSY
910¢ S0¢ v102 €102 Z1L0Z 1114 0102 6002 2002 2007
a1qe) Arewnung




Table 3

29

RESERVOIR PRESSURE
BY WELL 2017
WELL | PRESS WELL | PRESS 'WELL [ PRESS WELL | PRESS
A-3 69.3 D-1 569 ‘ Pl |
A4 69.3 D-2 76.5 H-1 63.8 P-2 119,0
A-5 67.9 D-6 72.2 H-2 78.7 P-4 152.7
A-6 66.4 - D7 64.6 H-3 63.7 P-5
A-SITE | 682 . D-8 H-4 _ P-6
D-SITE| 67.5 H-5 58.9 p-7 91.1
B-2 79.9 B H-SITE | 663 P-8 152.9
B3 78.6 E-l 74.5 : \ P-9
B-4 75.5 E-2 77.8 12 79.7 P-SITE | 128.9
B-5 72.8 E3 | 884 )3 93.5 B ,
B-6 B-4 | 745 14 102.3 Q-1 ‘
B-SITE | 76.7 E-5 717 J-5 133.6 Q3 422
E-6 J-SITE | 1023 Q-4
C-1 56.3 | B8 ' Q-5
c-2 53.5 E-SITE| 78.6 ‘ Q-6
Cc4 57.4 N-1 58.7 Q7 | 443
c-5 53.0 F-1 55.6 N2 | Q-8
C-6 53.4 F-2 61.8 'N-3 64.0 Q-9 |
C-7 51,3 F-3 68.0  N-4 56.8 Q-SITE | 43.2
C-8 56.2 F-4 1 N-5 “
c-9 55.7 F-5 684 N-6 Y-1 | 648"
C-10 | 406 F-6 655 | | N-SITE | 59.8 Y-2 615
C-SITE | 53.0 " F-7 63.3 Y-3 65.1
F-SITE | 63.8 Y4 |
Y-5 o
~-SITE 63.8
VALUES ARE FROM PRESSURE BUILD-UP TESTS
SHADED NUMBERS ARE FOR DATA OBTAINED FROM OTHER STATIC
PRESSURE OBSERVATIONS
' 52 WELLS TESTED =~ AVE. WELL PRESS EQUALS 72.1 psig
AVE SITE PRESS EQUALS 72.7 psig
AVE, FLOWRATE = 27 kphat 39.5 psig




TABLE 4 NCG CONCENTRATIONS (PPMW) 2016
BY WELL, AND SITE AND PROJECT

WELL NCG | WELL NCG | WELL NCG WELL  NCG
A3 9843 D-1 3030 H-1 1599 P-1
A4 2301 D2 2706 H2 1487 P-2 2720
A-S 1085 D-6 3043 H3 4248 P-4 1486
A6 3593 D-7 2679 H-4 P-5 1202
ASITE 4206 D-§ 972 H-5 3077 P-6 2285
D-SITE 1805 | H-SITE 2603 P-7 3174
B-2 2768 P-3 3005
B3 4441 E-1 10164 12 3443 P-9
B-4 2971 E-2 3586 13 1042 P-SITE 2327
B-5 2273 E-3 3329. 34 2610
B-6 E-4 4745 15 930 Q-1
B-SITE 3113 E-5 5503 | J-SITE 2006 Q-3 5323
E-6 3117 Q-4
C-1 2948 | E-SITE 5074 N-1 ~ 2139 Q-5 2571
c2 3844 N2 1490 Q-6 2374
C-4 3814 F-1 1054 N-3 773 Q-7 0559
C-5 12325 F2 [ 4306 N-4 843 Q-8 3102
c-6 5771 F-3 2084 N-5 3935 Q9 2398
C7 3393 F-4 N-6 3977 QA |
C8 6036 F-5 415 N-SITE 2193 Q-SITE - 4236
(oX 7098 F-6 654 ‘
C-A 2306 F-7 1999 Y-1 2237 |
CSITE 5282 | F-SITE 1752 : Y-2 3827
Y-3 3328
Y-4 4394
Y-5 4433
Y-SITE 3447

VALUES ARE FROM NCPA CHEM LAB ANALYSIS

Number of wells samples wells sampled= 63
AVG, WELL NCG = 3376
AVG, SITENCG = 3170
NCG Flow Weighted Avg = 3091

30




2017 Generation - 25 Year Forecast

Table 5
Total Geo Facllities Plant #1 Plant #2
Gross Net = Gross Net Gross Net

~ Generation Generation Generatlon Generation Generation Generation
Year GWHr  GWHr  GWHr  GWHr GWHr GWHr

2017 862.2 796.5 492 4 448.5 369.8 348.1
2018 859.7 792.8 487.9 443.4 371.8 3494
2019 852.4 739.8 489.3 399.1 363.0 340.6
2020 827.8 757.1 480.0 431.3 347.8 325.8
2021 818.9 748.0 472.2 423.7 13467 324.3
2022 7646 - 6953 466.0 417.4 208.6 277.9
2023 - 7955 720.7 463.8 411.3 331.8 309.4
2024 784.7 709.7 459.0 406.5 326.7 303.2
2025 759.2 654.3 448.1 365.2 311.0 289.1
2026 754.1 683.1 4425 393.9 311.7 289.3
2027 742.4 671.4 4369  388.3 305.5 283.1
2028 700.9 627.9 436.3 384.0 264.6 243.9
2028 723.6 649.1 429.8 377.6 203.8 271.4
2030 703.0 632.5 421.0 3724 2820 260.1
2031 699.0 . 596.4 416.0 335.8 283.0 260.8
2032 6909 619.7 412.1 363.4 278.7 256.2
2033 682.6 608.2 400.6 357.6 273.0 250.6
2034 641.1 568.5 404.8 352.9 236.3 215.6
2035 662.7 591.5 396.8 348.2 265.9 243.3
2038 663.3 582.1 383.3 3446 260.0 237.5

2037 642.8 542.6 387.8 310.0 255.0 2326

2038 637.5 563.3 386.7 334.9 250.8 . 2284
2039 629.2 558.0 382.4 330.6 246.8. 2244
2040 585.2 516.7 375.0 326.4 210.2 190.3
- 2044 611.8 540.6 371.9 323.2 2398 - 2173

Notes:

—

. Assumes 3 unit operation.

2. Steam Reserves: 305.9 Billion Ib.
3. Gross Reserves: 18,085 GWhr
4, Net Reserves: 16,163 GWhr

5. Plant #1 Auxiliary Load [s fixed at 5.68 MW.
Plant #2 Auxiliary Load is fixed at 2.58 MW.

- 6. Plant availaibility is 99.5% or a forced outage rate of 43.8 hrs per year,

7. See Table 5B for scheduled outages.

31




2017 Generation Level - 25 Year Forecast

Table 5A
Plant #1 Plant #2 Total
Avg. Gross Avg.Net Avg, Gross Avg.Net Avg. Gross Avg. Net
Gen, Gen. Gen. Gen, Gen, - Gen.
Year MW MW MW MW Mw MW
2017 56.9 51.8 42.4 39.9 29.3 91.7
2018 56.9 51.3 43.0 40.4 99.9 81.7
2018 56.1 48.3 42.0 394 98.1 85.7
2020 554 48.8 41.0 38.4 96.4 88.2
2021 54.6 49.0 40.1 375 04.7 86.5
2022 53.9 48.3 34.3 31.9 88.2 80.2
2023 53.2 47.6 384 358 916 834
2024 52.5 46.9 37.6 35.0 20.1 81.9
2025 51.8 42.4 36.8 34.2 88.6 76.6
2026 51.2 45.6 36.1 33.5 87.2 79.0
2027 50.5 44.9 35.3 32.8 869 - 777
2028 49.9 44.3 30.3 27.9 80.2 72.2
2029 . 49.3 43,7 34.0 31.4 83.3 75.1
2030 48.7 43.1 334 30.8 82.1 73.9
2031 48.1 38.9 32.7 30.2 80.9 69.1
2032 47.5 41.9 1 32.2 29.6 79.7 71.5
2033 47.0 41.4 31.6 29.0 78.6 70.4
2034 46.4 40.8 27.1 24.8 73.6 65.6
2035 45.9 40.3 30.5 27.9 76.4 68.2
2036 454 39.8 30.0 27.4 75.4 67.2
2037 44.9 36.0 29.5 26.9 74.4 62.9
2038 44 .4 387 29.0 26.4 73.4 85.2
2039 43.9 38.2 28.6 26.0 724 64.2
2040 43.4 37.8 24.6 22.2 68.0 60.0
2041 42.9 37.3 27.7 25.1 70.6 62.4

* Average generation levels plants including down time for outages and overhauls.

32




2017 Scheduled Outages - 25 Year Forecast
Table 5B

v Plant #1 Plant #2
Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 4
Scheduied Scheduled |Scheduled
Outages Outages | Outages

Year hrs hrs hrs
2017 72 - 72 300
2018 72 72 72
2019 672 672 72
2020 72 72 72
2021 72 72 72
2022 72 72 1008
2023 72 72 72
2024 72 72 72
2025 672 672 72
2026 72 72 72
2027 72 72 72
2028 72 72 1008
2029 72 72 72
2030 72 72 72
2031 672 672 72
2032 72 72 72
2033 72 72 72
2034 72 72 1008
2035 72 Y 72
2036 72 72 72
2037 672 672 72
2038 72 72 72
2039 72 72 72
2040 72 72 1008

2041 72 72 72

33




2017 Generation - 5 Year Forecast

Tahle 6
Total Geo Facilities Plant #1 Plant §2
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation Generation
Date GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr GWHr

Jan-17. ~75.2 70.6 423 396 328 31.0
Feb-17 64.4 60.5 35.4 329 293 277
Mar-17 50.8 56.2 40.8 383 19.0 17.9
Apr-17 69.0 63.6 37.3 337 317 299
May-17 755 69.5 4238 386 32.7 308
Jun-17 73.0 67.4 414 37.3 316 29.8
Jul-17 75.3 69.2 427 385 32,6 30.7
Aug-17 75.2 89.1 427 38.5 325 306
Sep-17 726 66.8 412 372 31.4 29.6
Oct-17 749 68.9 28 38.4 324 305
Nov-17 724 6.5 4114 37.1 313 29.4
Dac-17 747 68.6 425 383 323 30.3
Jan-18 746 68.5 424 382 322 30.3
Feb-18 67.3 61.8 383 345 20.0 27.3
Mar-18 713 65.4 423 38.4 29.0 27.2
Apr-18 63.7 62.3 327 332 31.0 29.1
May-18 74.1 68.1 422 38.1 319 30.0
Jun-i8 718 65.8 40.8 36.8 30.8 290
Juk-18 73.9 67.8 424 38.0 31.8 29.9
Aug-18 73.8 877 42.1 37.9 317 29.8
Sep-18 713 65.4 40.7 366 30,7 288
Oct-18 736 67.5 42.0 37.8 31.6 29.7
Nov-18 714 65.2 406 365 30.5 287
Dec-18 734 67.3 41.9 37.7 31.5 296
Jan-19 73.2 67.2 41.8 377 314 205
Feb-19 -  66.1 60.6 37.7 340 28.3 26.6
Mar-18 70.0 265 4.7 0.0 28.3 26.5
Apr-19 708 81.1 40.3 327 302 284
May-19 72.8 66.8 416 375 312 293
Jun-18 704 64.5 402 362 30.1 283
Jul-19 726 86.5 415 37.4 31.1 29.1
Aug-19 72.5 664 41.5 373 31.0 20.1
Sep-19 70.0 64.2 40.1 36.1 299 28.1
Oct-19 72.3 86.2 414 37.2 30.9 200
Nov-19 89.8 84.0 40.0 36.0 29.8 280
Dec-19 72.4 66.0 413 37.4 30.8 28.8
Jan-20 719 65.9 412 37.1 30.7 26.8
Fab-20 67.2 61.5 385 347 28.7 269
Mar-20 71.7 65.7 41.2 37.0 306 28.7
Apr-20 54.5 497 35.8 322 187 175
May-20 71.5 654 411 369 305 285
Jun-20 69.1 63.2 397 357 29.4 27.8
Jul-20 713 65.2 41.0 36.8 303 284
Aug-20 71.2 65.1 40.9 36.8 303 28.4
Sep-20 66.8 62.9 39.6 355 29.3 27.4
Oct-20 71.0 64.9 40.8 387 302 283
Nov-20 68.6 62.7 39.5 354 29.1 273
Dec-20 70.8 64.7 407 36,6 30.1 28.1
Jan-21 70.7 64.6 40.7 36.5 30.0 28.1
Feb-21 63.8 58.3 36.7 330 27.0 253
Mar-21 678 61.7 406 36.4 27.0 263
Apr-21 64.2 58.7 353 317 28.9 27.0
May-21 70.3 64.2 405 36.4 29.8 279
Jun-21 67.9 62.0 38.2 36.1 28.8 269
Jul21 70.4 84.0 404 36.3 297 277
Aug-21 70.0 63.9 40.4 362 29.6 27.7
Sep-21 67.6 81.7 39,0 35.0 286 26.7
Oct-21 60.8 63.7 403 36.1 295 276
Nov-21 67.4 616 38,9 34.9 285 268

34




2017 Generation Level - 5 Year Forecast*®

48.7

* Average generation levels plants are capable of achieving.

35

Table 6A
Plant#1 Plant#2 Total
Avg,Gross Avg.Net Avg Gross Avg.Net Avg Gross Avg. Net
Gen, Gen Gen, Gens Gen, ' Gen.
Year MW MW MW MW MW, MW
Jan-17 §6.9 63.2 443 41.7 1011 - 048
Feb-17 62.2 48,9 43.7 41.2 95.9 80.1
Mar-17 54.8 614 256 240 804 765
Ape1?7 57.9 52.3 44.3 417 1022 94,0
May-17 57.8 52.2 . 442 418 102,0 93.8
Jun-17 §7.8 §2.1 44.1 41.8 101.9 93.7
Jul-17 57.7 52.1 44.0 414 101.7 03.5
Aug-i7 67.6 62.0 43.9 41.3 1016 3.3
Sep-17 57.5 51.9 43.8 413 1014 93.2
Oct-17 57.5 61.9 43.8 41.2 101.2 93.0
Nov-17 574 51.8 43.7 41.1 1011 92.9
Dec-17 §7.3 §1.7 4386 410 100.9 92.7
Jan-18 §7.3 8§17 43.8 40.9 100.8 926
Feb-18 §7.2 61.6 434 40.8 100.8 82.4
Mar-18 57.2 51.6 433 40.7 100.5 923
Apr-18 §7.1 51.6 . 432 40.6 1003 82.1
May-18 57.0 514 43.14 406 100.2 92.0
Jun-18 §7.0 . 513 431 40.5 100.0 91.8
Jul-18 56.9 513 43.0 40.4 99.9 91.6
Aug-18 56.8 51.2 429 40.3 99.7 91.5
Sep-18 66.8 611 42,8 40.2 89,5 91.3
- Oct-18 56.7 511 427 40.1 994 91.2
Nov-18 66.6 §1.0 426 40.0 99.2 91.0
Dec-18 56.6 50.9 425 40.0 99,1 90.9
Jan+19 56.5 50.9 425 39.9 98.9 90.7
Feb-19 56.4 50.8 424 39.8 96.8 90.6
Mar-19 58.4 0.0 42.3 39.7 98.7 39.7
Apr-19 56,3 §0.7 42,2 39.6 98.5 90.3
May-19 §6.2 50.6 421 396 98.4 80.1
Jun-19 §6.2 60.5 42,0 385 98.2 80.0
Jul-19 £6.1 50.5 42,0 394 98.1 89.9
Aug-18 56.0 50.4 419 303 97.9 89.7
Sep-18 56.0 50.4 41.8 39.2 97.8 89.6
Oct-18 55.9 §50.3 41.7 39.1 97.6 89.4
Nov-19 55.8 50.2 418 300 97.5 89.3
Dec-1¢ 66.8 50.2 416 30.0 97.3 89.1
Jan-20 §56.7 §0.1 41.6 38.9 97.2 -89.0
Feb-20 55.7 50.0 41.4 38.8 87.0 88.8
Mar-20 8§5.6 §0.0 413 38.7 96.8 88.7
Apr-20 55.5 49.9 41.2 386 98.8 88.6
May-20 555 49,8 41.2 386 96.6 88.4
Jun-20 65.4 498 41.1 38.5 96.5 88.3
Jul-20 55.3 49,7 41.0 384 96.3 88.1
Aug-20 553 497 409 383 962 88.0
Sep-20 552 49.6 40.8 38.2 96.1 87.8
Qct-20 §5.2 495 -40.8 38.2 95.9 87.7
Nov-20 55.1 495 40.7 38.1 95.8 87.6
Dec-20 65.0 494 40.6 38.0 95.6 87.4
Jan-21 56.0 49.3 40.5 379 95.5 87.3
Feb-21 54,9 49.3 404 37.9 96.4 87.1
Mar-21 54,9 49.2 404 37.8 96.2 87.0
Apr-21 54,8 49.2 40.3 377 951 86.9
May-21 547 49,1 40.2 376 95.0 86.7
Jun-24 54.7 43.0 401 376 94.8 . 86.6
Jul-21 54.6 49.0 40.1 375 947 88.5
Aug-21 54.5 489 40.0 374 . 94,5 86.3
Sep-21 54.5 48.9 "39.9 37.3 944 86.2
QOct-21 54.4 48.8 39.8 373 94.3 86.1
Nov-21 544 48,7 30.8 37.2 94.1 85.9
Deec-21 54.3 30.7 - 374 94,0 -85.8




TABLE 7
2017 FORECAST OF GEOTHERMAL PRODUCTION AND

INJECTION
STEAM COND | WATER
TIME PROD. INJ INJ
STEP|DATE| BLBS BLBS BLBS
1 | 2017 14.6 4.7 15.1
2 | 2018 i4.4 4.6 15.0
3 | 2019 14.1 4.5 15.0
4 | 2020 13.9 4.4 14.9
5 | 2021 13.7 4.4 14.8
6 | 2022 13.5 4.3 14.7
7 | 2023 13.2 4.2 14.7
8 | 2024 13.0 4.2 14.6
9 | 2025 12.8 4.1 14.6
10 | 2026 12.6 4.0 14.5
11 | 2027 12.5 4.0 14.4
12 | 2028 12.3 3.9 14.4
13 | 2029 121 3.9 14.3
14 | 2030 11.9 3.8 14.3
15 | 2031 11.8 3.8 14.2
16 | 2032 11.6 3.7 14,2
17 | 2033 11.4 3.7 14.1
18 | 2034 11.3 3.6 14.1
19 | 2035 11.1 3.6 14.0.
20 | 2036 11.0 3.5 14.0
21 | 2037 10.9 3.5 13.9
22 | 2038 10.7 34 13.9
23 | 2039 10.6 3.4 - 43.9
24 | 2040 10.5 3.3 13.8
25 | 2041 10.3 3.3 10.5
NOTES :

1. CUM. PRODUCTION AND INJECTION 1983-2016

641.9 Bitlion Lbs Steam
418.7 Billion Lbs Water

2. TOTAL WATER IS CONDENSATE +EFFLUENT + LAKE + POND

3. FUTURE STEAM PRODUCTION 2017-2041 =

4, FUTURE WATER INJECTION 2017-2041 =

36

305.9 Billion Lbs

3559 Billion Lbs




'




Y A PUBLIC AGENCY

g

NC

# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

PA

Commission Staff Report

May 11, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017

SUBJECT:

Management and Operations Agreement Schedule 1.00

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Approval of Updated Lodi Energy Center (LEC) Exhibit 8 to the Project

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Robert Caracristi e

Manager, Information
Services and Power N/A
Settlements

Administrative Services

Power Settlements

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi

O - O

City of Lompoc

X

City of Palo Alto

X

City of Biggs City of Redding

X

City of Gridley City of Roseville

X

City of Santa Clara

O
(|
O

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

City of Azusa, CDWR,
Modesto Irrigation
District, PWRPA

X

O 0o X

X

SR: 163:17




Approval of Updated LEC Exhibit 8 to the Project Management and Operations Agreement Schedule 1.00
May 11, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt resolution approving the changes to
Exhibit 8 of PMOA Schedule 1.00, and authorizes NCPA staff under the direction of the NCPA
General Manager to implement the provision thereto.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA and the LEC Project Participants executed the Lodi Energy Center Project Management
and Operations Agreement (PMOA), which became effective on August 1, 2010. The PMOA
contains multiple Schedules, which provide procedures and protocols, and guidelines regarding
Project operations. Pursuant to the PMOA, Schedules can be revised, deleted or added from
time to time based on then existing operating or market conditions, and subject to the approval
of the Project Participant Committee (PPC), and with regard to certain Schedules, approval
additionally by the NCPA Commission when such Schedules “could be reasonably viewed as
having an impact on other NCPA projects.” (PMOA, Article 10).

Staff is recommending changes to Exhibit 8 of PMOA Agreement Schedule 1.00, which
identifies CAISO settlement charge codes that are applicable to the LEC Project and their
respective allocation basis to Project Participants. A completed “marked” version of the
proposed Exhibit 8 is attached to this staff report reflecting two specific recommended changes
described herein.

The CAISO recently implemented a redesigned resource adequacy mechanism, RAAIM, to
better account for and measure the resource availability performance of system/local capacity
and flexible capacity associated with resource adequacy obligations. Similar to the CAISO’s
previous resource adequacy mechanism, RAAIM includes provisions for a monthly non-
availability charge and availability incentive payment for RA resources that perform below or
above a defined threshold standard, respectively.

Consistent with the CAISO’s accounting and settlement treatment for RAAIM, NCPA proposes
to apply an ‘overlap determination’ rule that assesses each megawatt one time during each RA
obligation hour to avoid double counting a participant’s RA capacity. Accordingly, each LEC
Participant’s Resource Adequacy (RA) megawatts claimed for both flexible and system/local
requirements are assessed under the flexible RA obligation, while all megawatts counted only
toward the system/local requirements are assessed under the system/local RA obligation.
Further, since participants may choose to claim a combination of generic capacity, flexible
capacity or both of these products in differing quantities up to their respective generation
entitlement share of the LEC Project, NCPA proposes to account for and allocate RAAIM
charges and payments separately by generic and flexible capacity product type. This will ensure
that participants are allocated amounts in proportion to the RA capacity product that they
claimed on the resource.

FISCAL IMPACT:
No significant costs will be incurred to implement the changes identified in Exhibit 8 to the

PMOA Schedule 1.00 and funds are available in the NCPA budget to support the work
associated with this CAISO settlement configuration update.

SR: 163:17



Approval of Updated LEC Exhibit 8 to the Project Management and Operations Agreement Schedule 1.00
May 11, 2017

Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the LEC PPC on May 8, 2017 and was approved by all
project participants in attendance.

Respectfully submitted,

S I

General Manager

Attachments:
-~ Resolution 16-76
— Redline copy of Exhibit 8 of PMOA Agreement Schedule 1.00

SR: 163:17



RESOLUTION 17-47

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING REVISED EXHIBIT 8 TO THE PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND
OPERATIONS AGREEMENT SCHEDULE 1.00 FOR THE LODI ENERGY CENTER

(reference Staff Report #163:17)

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2010 the Northern California Power Agency Commission adopted
Resolution 10-20 authorizing the NCPA General Manager to execute the Lodi Energy Center (LEC)
Project Management and Operations Agreement (PMOA); and

WHEREAS, PMOA Atrticle 10 provides, in part, that Schedules to the PMOA may be revised from
time to by the Project Participant Committee (PPC), and with respect to certain Schedules, revisions or
changes must additionally be approved by the NCPA Commission; and

WHEREAS, Exhibit 8 to PMOA Agreement Schedule 1.00 is directly related to California
Independent System Operator (CAISO) market settlements and are subject to change from time to time;

and

WHEREAS, Exhibit 8 to the PMOA Agreement Schedule 1.00 has been updated to refine the
accounting and allocation of CAISO payments and charges associated with the CAISO’s recent
implementation of its Resource Adequacy Availability Incentive Mechanism (RAAIM); and

WHEREAS, on May 8, 2017, the PPC approved revised Exhibit 8 to PMOA Agreement Schedule
1.00; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in
the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency hereby approves revised Exhibit 8 to PMOA Agreement Schedule 1.00 and authorizes NCPA
staff under the direction of the NCPA General Manager to implement the provision thereto.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

following vote on roll call:

Vote
Alameda

, 2017 by the

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resoiution 17-47

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



EXHIBIT 8

Settlement of CAISO Charge Codes and
Allocations to Participants

The Project will utilize NCPA’s current CAISO SCID. The CAISO Settlement Charges shall be
determined by the CAISO Tariff and is typically available on the CAISO’s website as “ISO
Market Charge Codes Matrix™ that the CAISO updates periodically. Below is a subset of
CAISO Market Charge Codes that apply to the Project.

Charge Charge Code Short Description Allocation Basis
Code Name
4512 GMC Inter- Accounts for Inter-SC Trade (IST) Schedules in both Allocated to the Project
Scheduling the Day Ahead and Real Time Markets. Participant/s who initiated
Coordinator Trade the Trade based on
Transaction Fee unique scheduling SC
[ST name
4515 GMC Bid Accounts for the CAISO fee per bid segment for each | Generation Entitlement .
Transaction Fee Resource’s final Clean Bids, Self Schedules, and Self | Share
Provisions.
4560 GMC Market Designed to recover costs the CAISO incurs for Generation Entitlement
Services Charge implementing and running the Markets. Share
4561 GMC System Designed to recover costs the CAISO incurs for Generation Entitlement
Operations running the Grid in Real Time. Share
Charge :
6124 No Pay Spinning Rescinds payments for Day Ahead, HASP, and Real Generation Entitlement
Reserve Time Spinning Reserve Awards in the event the Share
Settlement Resource does not fulfill the requirements associated
with that payment.
6486 Real Time Excess | Allocates the excess cost payments to Scheduling Generation Entitlement
Cost for Instructed | Coordinators. Share
Energy Allocation
6524 No Pay Regulation | Rescinds payments for Day Ahead, HASP, and Real Generation Entitlement
Up Settlement Time Regulation Up Awards in the event the - Share
Resource does not fulfill the requirements associated
with that payment.
6624 No Pay Regulation | Rescinds payments for Day Ahead, HASP, and Real Generation Entitlement

Down Settlement

Time Regulation Down Awards in the event the
Resource does not fulfill the requirements associated
with that payment.

Share

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00

LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016

Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




Charge | Charge Code Short Description Allocation Basis
Code Name

7077 Daily Flexible Allocates Flexible Ramp Up Uncertainty amounts to Generation Entitlement
Ramp Up resources based on the negative sum of the Share
Uncertainty resource’s Uncertainty Movement and Uninstructed
Allocation Imbalance Energy

7078 Daily Flexible Allocates Flexible Ramp Up Uncertainty amounts to Generation Entitlement
Ramp Up resources based on the negative sum of the Share
Uncertainty resource’s Uncertainty Movement and Uninstructed
Allocation Imbalance Energy

7087 Daily Flexible Aliocates Flexible Ramp Down Uncertainty amounts Generation Entitlement
Ramp Down to resources based on the positive sum of the Share
Uncertainty resource’s Uncertainty Movement and Uninstructed
Allocation Imbalance Energy

7088 Monthly Flexible Allocates Flexible Ramp Down Uncertainty amounts Generation Entitlement
Ramp Down to resources based on the positive sum of the Share
Uncertainty resource’s Uncertainty Movement and Uninstructed
Allocation Imbalance Energy

7999 Invoice Deviation Accounts for interest charges to Scheduling ESP Invoice Deviation
Interest Allocation | Coordinators for time value of money between CAISO | Amount deltas

Invoices.

8830 Resource Represents a charge to any RA Resource that failed Pro-rata assessment by_
Adequacy to meet the monthly Availability Standard minus the RA product category to
Availability tolerance band of 2%. LEC Project Participants
Incentive who claim LEC for RA
Mechanism Similar to the CAISO’s ‘overlap determination’ rule, Capacity for the
Allocation applicable month

each LEC Participant's Resource Adequacy (RA)
megawatts claimed for both flexible and system/local
requirements are assessed under the flexible RA
obligation, while all megawatts counted only toward
the system/iocal requirements are assessed under the

system/local RA obligation to prevent double counting.

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00

LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016

Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




LEC ISO Net Energy Sales Charge Codes

Charge | Charge Code Name Short Description Allocation Basis
Code
6011 Day Ahead Energy, Congestion, Settles Day Ahead Schedules by paying Generation
and Losses Settlement for Supply and charging for Demand based | Entitlement Share
upon the LMP at Resource Locations for
each hour.
6100 Day Ahead Spinning Reserve Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation
Capacity Settiement _Spinning Reserve in the Day Ahead Entitiement Share
Market.
6170 Real Time Spinning Reserve Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation
Capacity Settlement Spinning Reserve in the Real Time Market. | Entitlement Share
6301 Day Ahead Inter-SC Trades Accounts for Energy Trades between Allocated to the
Settlement Physical and Scheduling Coordinators in the Day Ahead | Project Participant/s
Converted Physical Trades Market. who initiated the Trade
The “From” SC is charged the product | based on unique
of the valid quantity and the LMP. scheduling SC IST
The “To” SC is paid the product of the valid | "@Me
guantity and the LMP.
This could be a cost or revenue.
6371 FMM Inter-SC Trades Accounts for Energy Trades between Allocated to the
Settlements Scheduling Coordinators during the Fifteen | Project Participant/s
Minute Market (FMM). who initiated the Trade
The “From” SC is charged the product | based on unique
of the valid quantity and the LMP. scheduling SC IST
The “To” SC is paid the product of the valid | "@Me
quantity and the LMP.
This could be a cost or revenue.
6460 FMM IIE FMM Instructed Imbalance Energy is the Generation
incremental or decremental energy to the Entitlement Share
Day Ahead Schedule.
This could be a cost or revenue.
6470 RTD IIE Based upon the calculated energy Generation
expected to be produced or consumed as Entitlement Share
a result of responding to Real Time
Dispatch Instructions.
This could be a cost or revenue.
3

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00
LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016
Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




Charge | Charge Code Name Short Description Allocation Basis

Code

6475 Real Time Uninstructed Accounts for deviations from a Resource’s | Generation

Imbalance Energy Instructed Imbalance Energy and Day Entitlement Share
Ahead Schedule.
This could be a cost or revenue.
6488 Exceptional Dispatch Uplift Accounts for the Excess Cost Payment Generation
Settlement (Uplift) above the RT LMP to a Resource’s | Entitlement Share
Bid Price for exceptional dispatches that
are used to mitigate or resolve congestion
as a result of transmission-related
modeling limitations in the Full Network
Model.
6500 Day Ahead Regulation Up Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation
Capacity Settlement Regulation Up in the Day Ahead Market. Entitlement Share
6570 Real Time Regulation Up Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation
Capacity Settlement Regulation Up in the Real Time Market. Entitlement Share
6600 Day Ahead Regulation Down Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation
Capacity Settlement Regulation Down in the Day Ahead Entitlement Share
Market.
6620 Real Time Bid Cost Recovery Pays Scheduling Coordinators an uplift to Generation
Settlement ensure start up costs, bid costs, and Entitlement Share
minimum load costs are able {o be
recovered related to Real Time Market.

6630 Day Ahead Bid Cost Recovery Pays Scheduling Coordinators an uplift to Generation
ensure start up costs, bid costs, and Entitlement Share
minimum load costs are able to be
recovered related to Day Ahead Market.

6670 Real Time Regulation Down Pays Scheduling Coordinators for awarded | Generation

Capacity Settlement Regulation Down in the Real Time Market. | Entitlement Share

7070 Flexible Ramp Forecasted Pays or charges Scheduling Coordinators | Generation

Movement for the flexible ramp forecasted movement | Entitlement Share
assessment inclusive of rescission
This could be a cost or revenue.
7071 Flexible Ramp Up Uncertainty Pays Scheduling Coordinators for Flexible | Generation

Settlement

Ramp Up Uncertainty capability to resolve
the Uncertainty Requirement

Entitlement Share

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00

LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016
Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




Charge
Code

Charge Code Name

Short Description

Allocation Basis

7081

Flexible Ramp Down Uncertainty
Settlement

Pays Scheduling Coordinators for Flexible
Ramp Down Uncertainty capability to
resolve the Uncertainty Requirement

Generation
Entitlement Share

7251

Regulation Up Mileage
Settlement

Settles the quantity of frequency
Regulation Up service provided by a
Resource when accurately following a
control signal from the CAISO.

Generation
Entitlement Share

7261

Regulation Down Mileage
Settlement

Settles the quantity of frequency
Regulation Down service provided by a
Resource when accurately following a
control signal from the CAISO.

Generation
Entitlement Share

7989

Invoice Deviation Interest
Settlement

Accounts for interest payments to
Scheduling Coordinators.

ESP Invoice Deviation
Amount

85626

Generator Interconnection
Process (GIP) Forfeited Deposit
Allocation

This charge code is associated with the
forfeited deposit amounts collected by the
CAISO thoughout the various stages of the
GIP, which are then allocated to
Scheduling Coordinators in proportion to
their respective share of assessed Grid
Management Charges (GMC) during the
defined calendar year, consistent with
CAISO Tariff section 37.9.4.

For the applicable
defined calendar year,
an LEC Participant’s
allocated CC 8526
amount is its ratio of
assessed GMC
amounts attributable
to the Project and the
total GMC amounts
assessed to NCPA.

8831

Resource Adequacy Availability
Incentive Mechanism Settlement

Represents a payment to any RA
Resource that exceeds the monthly
Availability Standard plus the tolerance
band of 2.0%

Similar to the CAISO’s ‘overlap
determination’ rule, each LEC Participant's

Resource Adequacy (RA) megawatts
claimed for both flexible and system/local
requirements are assessed under the
flexible RA obligation, while all megawatts
counted only toward the system/local
requirements are assessed under the

system/local RA obligation to prevent
double counting.

Pro-rata assessment
by RA product
category to LEC
Project Participants
who claim LEC for RA
Capacity for the
applicable month.

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00
LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016
Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




Retired CAISO Charge Codes

Effective
Charge | Charge Code Short Description Allocation Basis | Retirement
Code Name
Date
7050 Flexible Ramp Up | Provides a payment to Resources that resolve Generation 10/31/2016
Capacity Payment | the flexible ramping constraint and have been Entitlement
awarded Flexible Ramping Capacity. Share
7057 Monthly Fiex Sums the daily Flexible Ramp Supply Costs in Generation
Ramp Up Supply | charge code 7056 to a monthly total and Entitlement 10/31/2016
Cost Allocation reverses them. They are then reallocated in Share
Reversal charge code 7058.
7056 Daily Flexible Accounts for the costs associated with the Generation 10/31/2016
Ramp Cost payments to Resources that resolve the flexible | Entitlement
Allocation ramping constraint. Share
7058 Monthly Flexible Reallocates the monthly total flexible ramp Generation
Ramp Cost supply costs reversed in charge code 7057 to Entitlement 10/31/2016
Allocation suppliers based upon monthly gross negative Share
supply deviations.
8820 Monthly Resource | Accounts for the CAISO’s distribution of Pro-rata
Adequacy availability incentive payment for qualifying assessment to
Standard Capacity | resources. LEC Pafncnpants 10/31/2016
Product who claim LEC
Availability for RA Capacity
[ncentive Payment for applicable
month
8824 Monthly Resource | Accounts for the CAISO’s non availability Pro-rata
Adequacy charges to any Resource Adequacy Resource assessment to
Standard Capacity | which fails to meet the CAISO-defined LEC Participants 10/31/2016
Product Non- Availability Standard. who claim LEC
Availability Charge for RA Capacity
for applicable
month
6

Exhibit 8 to Agreement Schedule 1.00

LEC Project Management and Operations Agreement
Approved by PPC 10-10-2016

Approved Commission and Effective 10-27-2016




PUBLIL AGENDY

PA

# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  May 25, 2017

2\

SUBJECT: Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised

Version 21 of Appendix B

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

MC/

FROM: Robert Caracristi . METHOD OF SELECTION:
Manager, Information
Services and Power N/A
Settlements
Division: Administrative Services
Department. Power Settlements
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members [J City of Lodi City of Ukiah
Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs | City of Redding [0 Truckee Donner PUD []
City of Gridley City of Roseville X Other O
City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara If other, please specify.

SR: 164:17




Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 21 of Appendix B
May 17, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 17-48 implementing a revised Version 21 of
Appendix B to the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA), which details the
allocation of California Independent System Operator (CAISO) charges and payments to NCPA

Members.

BACKGROUND:

A revised Version 21 of Appendix B to the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement
(SCPA) was developed to incorporate post-implementation changes to settlements charge
codes. These charge codes are related to the CAISO’s recent implementation of its Flexible
Ramping Product (FRP), Resource Adequacy Availability Incentive Mechanism (RAAIM) and
Capacity Procurement Mechanism (CPM) market products. In addition, Version 21 of Appendix
B includes minor documentation edits to several existing settlement charge codes for improved

clarity.

The Power Management and Administrative Services Agreement (PMASA) dated October 1,
2014, sets forth the terms and conditions under which NCPA provides contracted services to
participants. The PMASA includes the Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA),
which defines the guidelines through which NCPA provides scheduling coordination services to
members who are signatories to the PMASA. Included within the SCPA are several appendices
that detail the multiple protocols and procedures associated with NCPA’s participation in the
CAISO markets with respect to, among other things, the scheduling, dispatch and financial
settlements of members’ loads and supply resources. Pursuant to the SCPA, these appendices
may be modified, subject to Commission approval, to conform to changes in scheduling
protocols and CAISO market settlement rules.

The proposed updates to Appendix B are technical in nature as summarized in the table below.
A clean and redline version of both Appendix B are each available for review on the NCPA
website (www.ncpa.com)’.

Appendix B to the SCPA Change Summary Table

Charge Code 7070 for Updated the description for The Flexible Ramp Forecasted
FRP Flexible Ramp settlement allocation to remove | Movement product is settled by the
Forecasted Movement. | incorrect reference to CAISO real time dispatch system

Uninstructed Imbalance through capacity awards for Flex
Page 76 of redlined Energy. Ramp Movement. Appendix B has
version of Appendix B been updated accordingly.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7077 Modified Appendix B sectionto | Allocates amounts for the NCPA
for daily and Charge clarify allocation basis as: Metered SubSystem Aggregation
Code 7078 for monthly based on MSSA net negative

ITo access on the NCPA public website, select “Meetings” section on the menu bar, and then select “Facilities
Committee” meeting located within the ‘Committees’ tab. Refer to Item 8 of the May 3, 2017 Facilities Committee
meeting packet.

SR: 164:17



Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 21 of Appendix B
May 17, 2017
Page 3

Appendix B Se
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Up Uncertainty
Award Allocation for
Metered SubSystem
Aggregation (MSSA)
resources
e Page 81 for daily

Settlement in
Charge Code 7077
s Page 84 for monthly
settlement in
Charge Code 7078

e Action
e Location for Charge Code

7077, and '
e Control Area for Charge
Code 7078

While the CAISO charge code
design reflects settlement at an
aggregated control area level,
NCPA parses more granular
settlement detail from the
CAISO configuration files at the
resource level for charge code
7077 to achieve accurate
settlement verification and
allocation. CAISO design for
Charge Code 7078, however,
does not accommodate
allocation at a more granular
level.

scripti
-uninstructed 5-minute interval load
and generation deviations and: =«
negative intertie operational
adjustments plus any actual negative
Uncertainty Movement quantity for
each applicable Operating Entity and
Pool Member’s portfolio for each daily
and monthly allocation settled in
Charge Code 7077 and Charge Code
7078, respectively.

The term ‘Resource’ refers to each
applicable generator, intertie or load
resource scheduled into the CAISO
markets. In contrast, ‘Control Area’ is
an aggregate settlement without any
locational attribute.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7077
for Daily and Charge
Code 7078 for monthly
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Up Uncertainty
Award Allocation to
resources operating
under a Participating
Generator Agreement
(PGA) with the CAISO
e Page 82 for daily
Settlement in
Charge Code 7077
e Page 85 for monthly
settlement in
Charge Code 7078

Modified Appendix B section to

clarify allocation basis as:

o Location for charge code
7077, and

e Control Area for charge
code 7078

While the CAISO charge code
design reflects settlement at an
aggregated control area level,
NCPA parses more granular
settlement detail from the
CAISO configuration files at the
resource level for charge code
7077 to achieve increased
accuracy level for both
settlement verification and
allocation. CAISO design for
Charge Code 7078, however,
does not accommodate
allocation at a more granular
level.

Allocates amounts for the NCPA PGA
resources based on each resource’s
negative deviations (measured on a 5-
minute interval basis) and negative
actual Uncertainty Movement quantity
for each ESP (Energy Service
Provider) and Pool Member based on
applicable project entitlement share.
Settlement applies to daily and
monthly allocation in Charge Code
7077 and Charge Code 7078,
respectively.

The term ‘Resource’ refers to each
applicable generator, intertie or load
resource. In contrast, ‘Control Area’ is
an aggregate settlement without any
locational attribute.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7077 for
Daily and Charge Code
7078 for monthly
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Up Uncertainty

Modified Appendix B section to
clarify allocation basis as
‘Control Area’ for both Charge
Code 7077 and Charge Code
7078 related to EIM Area.

Allocates EIM neutrality amounts
based on each member’s proportionate
share of gross city metered demand.

SR: 164:17




Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 21 of Appendix B
May 17, 2017
Page 4

“Award Allocation for

Market) Area.
e Page 83 for 7077
e Page 87 for 7078

EIM (Energy Imbalance|:

This charge codé”applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.::. .«

Charge Code 7087 for
Daily and Charge Code
7088 for monthly
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Down
Uncertainty Award
Allocation for Metered
SubSystem
Aggregation (MSSA)
resources
o Page 88 for daily
Settlement in
Charge Code 7087
o Page 91 for monthly
settlement in
Charge Code 7088

Modified Appendix B section to

clarify allocation basis as:

¢ Location for charge code
7087, and

s Control Area for charge
code 7088

While the CAISO charge code
design reflects settlement at an
aggregated control area level,
NCPA parses more granular
settlement detail from the
CAISO configuration files at the
resource level for charge code
7087 to achieve accurate
settlement verification and
allocation. CAISO design for
Charge Code 7088, however,
does not accommodate
allocation at a more granular
level.

Allocates amounts for the NCPA
Metered SubSystem Aggregation
based on MSSA net positive
uninstructed 5-minute interval load
and generation deviations and positive
intertie operational adjustments plus
any actual positive Uncertainty
Movement quantity for each applicable
Operating Entity and Pool Member’s
portfolio for each daily and monthly
allocation settied in Charge Code
7087 and Charge Code 7088,
respectively.

The term ‘Resource’ refers to each
applicable generator, intertie or load
resource. In contrast, ‘Control Area’ is
an aggregate settlement without any
locational attribute.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7087
for Daily and Charge
Code 7088 for monthly
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Down
Uncertainty Award
Allocation to resources
operating under a
Participating Generator
Agreement (PGA) with
the CAISO
o Page 89 for daily
Settlement in
Charge Code 7087
s Page 93 for monthly
settlement in
Charge Code 7088

Modified Appendix B section to

clarify allocation basis as:

¢ Location for charge code
7087, and

e Control Area for charge
code 7088

While the CAISO charge code
design reflects settlement at an
aggregated control area level,
NCPA parses more granular
settlement detail from the
CAISO configuration files at the
resource level for charge code
7087 to achieve increased
accuracy level for both
settlement verification and
allocation. CAISO design for
Charge Code 7088, however,

Allocates amounts for the NCPA PGA
resources based on each resource’s
positive deviations (measured on a 5-
minute interval basis) and positive
actual Uncertainty Movement quantity
for each ESP (Energy Service
Provider) and Pool Member based on
applicable project entitlement share.
Settlement applies to daily and
monthly allocation in Charge Code
7087 and Charge Code 7088,
respectively.

The term ‘Resource’ refers to each
applicable generator, intertie or load
resource. In contrast, ‘Control Area’ is
an aggregate settlement without any
locational attribute.

SR: 164:17



Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approval of Revised Version 21 of Appendix B
May 17, 2017
Page 5

does
' | -allocation at a more granular

level.

escriptio
This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016. - -

Charge Code 7087 for
Daily and Charge Code
7088 for monthly
settlement of Flexible
Ramp Down
Uncertainty Award
Allocation for EIM
(Energy Imbalance
Market) Area.

e Page 91 for 7087
o Page 95 for 7088

Added two (2) new settlement
charge codes to Appendix B
related to EIM Neutrality
settlement for daily and monthly
Flexible Ramp Down
settlements.

Allocates EIM neutrality amounts
based on each member’s proportionate
share of gross metered demand. These
new charge codes apply retroactively
to operating month November 2016 as
well as prospectively.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7891 for
monthly Capacity
Procurement
Mechanism (CPM)
Settlement Payment.

Page 202 of Appendix
B redline version.

Added new charge code 7891
for payment to designated
generated resources awarded
for CPM backstop capacity.

CPM capacity award amounts are
allocated at the resource level to
applicable ESP (Energy Service
Provider) and pool members based on
generation entitlement share.

This charge code applies retroactively
to operating month November 2016.

Charge Code 7896 for
monthly Capacity
Procurement
Mechanism (CPM)
Settlement Allocation.

Page 203 of Appendix
B redline version.

Added new charge code 7896
related to monthly allocation of
costs associated with capacity
awards to designated CPM
resources.

CPM costs are allocated to each
member’s gross city metered demand
less any demand served by
transmission ownership rights (i.e. the
Plumas Marble tie).

This charge code applies retroactively

Charge Code 7989 for
Invoice Deviation
Interest Distribution.

Page 126 of Appendix
B redline version.

Modified charge code 7989 to
clarify and distinguish the
interest calculation between the
initial and subsequent
recalculated settlement
statements.

Charge Code 7999 for
Invoice Deviation
Interest Allocation

Page 128 of Appendix
B redline version.

Modified charge code 7999 to
clarify and distinguish the
interest calculation between the
initial and subsequent
recalculated settlement
statements.

to operating month November 2016.

The initial invoice interest amounts
allocated through Charge Codes 7989
and 7999 are calculated based on the
applicable number of days between the
initial and recalculated invoice dates.
Subsequent invoice amounts are
calculated monthly with the interest
calculated back to the initial invoice
statement due date.

Documentation change only.

SR: 164:17




Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B — Approvai of Revised Version 21 of Appendix B
May 17, 2017
Page 6

i
harge Code 8830 for
Resource Adequacy
Availability Incentive
Mechanism (RAAIM)
Non-Availability Charge

Page 193 on Appendix
B redline version

‘Modified hafge code 8830 to

incorporate CAISO ‘overlap
determination’ rule to each
applicable project participant’s
RAAIM obligation quantities.
The overlap adjustment
prevents double counting RA
guantities when both generic
and flexible capacity are
claimed for a resource.

While most of NCPA’s resources are
exempt from RAAIM, RA capacity sold
to a non-MSSA entity located within the
CAISO BAA may be subject to RAAIM
obligation, which would require the
resource to be available in the CAISO
markets during defined days and hours
based on RA product type (i.e. generic
or flexible capacity).

Effective operating month April 2017.

Charge Code 8831 for
Resource Adequacy
Availability Incentive
Mechanism (RAAIM)
Incentive Payment.

Page 195 on Appendix
B redline version.

Modified charge code 8831 to
incorporate CAISO ‘overlap
determination’ rule to each
applicable project participant’s
RAAIM obligation quantities.
The overlap adjustment
prevents double counting RA
guantities when both generic
and flexible capacity are
claimed for a resource.

While most of NCPA's resources are
exempt from RAAIM, RA capacity sold
to a non-MSSA entity located within the
CAISO BAA may be subject to RAAIM
obligation, which would require the
resource to be available in the CAISO
markets during defined days and hours
based on RA product type (i.e. generic
or flexible capacity).

Effective operating month April 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No significant costs will be incurred to implement the changes to the SCPA Appendices and
funds are available in the NCPA budget to support the work associated with these contract

updates.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Rmat

Attachment: Resolution No. 17-48

SR: 164:17



RESOLUTION 17-48

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
SCHEDULING COORDINATION PROGRAM AGREEMENT ~
VERSION 21 APPENDIX B REVISION

(referénce Staff Report #164:17)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Scheduling Coofdination Program Agreement (“SCPA”)
dated October 1, 2014, sets forth the terms and conditions under which NCPA supplies Scheduling
Coordination Services to members; and

WHEREAS, the SCPA contains multiple appendices that detail the protocols and procedures
through which NCPA participates in the California Independent System Operator (“CAISO”) markets
through the CAISO’s bid-to-bill process cycle that includes, among other things, the submission of
energy and capacity bids into the CAISO, and the resulting scheduling, dispatch and allocation of
financial settlements associated with members’ loads and supply resources; and

WHEREAS, the appendices of the SCPA contain the terms and conditions for allocating the
numerous CAISO charges and credits to the members in an equitable manner, the scheduling details
applicable to the agreement, and various other technical and administrative provisions; and

WHEREAS, as required from time to time the SCPA participants recommend revision and
updates to the administrative and technical provisions contained in Appendix B to the SCPA to
accurately reflect the evolving terms and conditions related to services from the CAISO; and

WHEREAS, to ensure the accuracy of cost allocations it is necessary to make changes and
updates to the estimate and allocation formulas in Appendix B as outlined in the Appendix B Change
Summary Table of the Staff Report; and

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2017 the Facilities Committee reviewed the proposed changes to Version
21 of Appendix B to the SCPA and recommended Commission approval; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change
in the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency acting by and through the Parties to the NCPA Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement
approves revised Version 21 of Appendix B to the SCPA effective retroactive November 1, 2016 for
changes associated with the CAISO Flexible Ramping Product and Capacity Procurement
Mechanism, and effective retroactive April 1, 2017 for changes associated with the CAISO Resource
Adequacy Availability Incentive Mechanism, as described in Staff Report #164:17, and authorizes
NCPA staff under the direction of the NCPA General Manager to implement the provisions thereto.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

following vote on roll call:

Vote
Alameda

, 2017 by the

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-48

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NURTH ERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 18, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017
SUBJECT: Requestto Approve Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 0\/

ek

ol

FROM: David Dockham v METHOD OF SELECTION:

AGM, Power Management N/A
Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members [J City of Lodi City of Ukiah

Alameda Municipal Power City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit [ City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland
City of Biggs X City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD

City of Gridley City of Roseville Other

o o o 0O

City of Healdsburg City of Santa Clara If other, please specify.

X

X

O o X

SR: 165:17



Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051
May 25, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission adopt and approve Letter of Agreement 17-
SNR-02051, and authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute Letter of Agreement
17-SNR-02051, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Letter
of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA members are subject to environmental mandates including California’s “Clean Energy
and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015” that requires the use of Renewable Energy Credits
(“RECs”) to demonstrate compliance with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that not less
than 50% of retail sales be served by renewable energy resources by 2030.

Various NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power
Administration (“WAPA”), and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource that consists
of various products including the electrical output, capacity, and environmental attributes of the
hydroelectric facilities that make up the Central Valley Project (CVP).

LETTER OF AGREEMENT:

Pursuant to Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051, WAPA has established a program to distribute
RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers. Certain NCPA members who
have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have requested NCPA to enter into
Letter Agreement 17-SNR-02051, on their behalf, in order for NCPA to received RECs from

WAPA.

Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 specifies the terms and conditions under which RECs are
transferred from WAPA to preference power customers. Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051
has a term of one (1) year, expiring July 31, 2018; applies to RECs produced by CVP facilities in
2017; and allows either party to terminate the agreement upon a 30-day prior written notice.
RECs received pursuant to Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 are nontransferable, except
NCPA may transfer RECs to members it represents under the agreement. WAPA does not
warrant or represent that the RECs provided from the CVP will satisfy any Federal or State
renewable energy mandates.

Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 is attached to this staff report for your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs associated with entering into Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051 are estimated to be less
than $10,000 for the term of the agreement, and will be allocated according to Base Resource
percentages of the represented members. NCPA’s administrative costs for development and
administration of the agreement will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost
allocation methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

SR: 165:17



Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051
May 25, 2017
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017. No formal
action was taken due to the lack of a quorum, however, the Project participants present at the

meeting voiced their support for the recommendation above and no other meeting attendees
had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

QM& [

RANDY S! HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: 1

SR: 165:17



RESOLUTION 17-49

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF LETTER OF AGREEMENT 17-SNR-02051

(reference Staff Report #165:17)

WHEREAS, the NCPA members are subject to environmental mandates including California’s “Clean
Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015" that requires the use of Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) to
demonstrate compliance with the state’s legislative mandate and goal that not less than 50% of retail sales be
served by renewable energy resources by 2030; and

WHEREAS, various NCPA members are preference power customers of Western Area Power
‘Administration (“WWAPA”) and purchase a percentage share of the Base Resource that consists of various
products, including the electrical output, capacity, and environmental attributes of the hydroelectric facilities that
make up the Central Valley Project (CVP); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051, WAPA has established a program to
distribute RECs produced by CVP facilities to preference power customers; and

WHEREAS, certain NCPA members who have assigned their Base Resource percentage to NCPA have
requested NCPA to enter into Letter Agreement 17-SNR-02051, on their behalf, in order for NCPA to received
RECs from WAPA; and

WHEREAS, WAPA does not warrant or represent that the RECs provided under the program will be
eligible for Federal or State regulatory compliance, and expressly prohibits NCPA from selling or transferring any
RECs received with the sole exception that NCPA is permitted to transfer associated RECs to the members that
it is representing in the program; and

WHEREAS, by executing Letter Agreement 17-SNR-02051, NCPA agrees to pay WAPA for its allocated
share of costs related to WREGIS account registration fees, REC creation and transfer fees, and any other
reimbursable expenses; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental
Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051, and authorizes the General Manager of NCPA to
enter into Letter of Agreement Number 17-SNR-02051, on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive
modifications to Letter of Agreement Number 17-SNR-02051 approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

on roll call:

Alameda

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-49

ATTEST:

, 2017 by the following vote

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Department of Energy
Western Area Power Administration
Sierra Nevada Region
114 Parkshore Drive
Folsom, California 95630-4710

APR - 3 2017

Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

Mr. Randy Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Dear Mr. Howard:

The Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) is a customer of the Western Area
Power Administration’s (WAPA) Sierra Nevada Region (SNR) and has executed Base
Resource Contract 04-SNR-00782 with WAPA. Some of SNR’s customers have
requested that SNR make the renewable energy credits (RECs) that may be associated
with SNR’s hydropower generation available to them to assist in meeting their
renewable requirements. Although SNR is willing to initiate a 2017 REC Program, SNR
does not warrant or represent that the RECs it provides under this program will satisfy
any Federal or State renewable portfolio standards.

This Letter of Agreement (LOA) provides the terms and conditions under which SNR will
apportion RECs to partlmpants in the 2017 REC Program in association with power
generated in 2017.

1. Participation in SNR’s REC Program:

1.1 In order to receive an apportionment of RECs from SNR’s REC Program,
NCPA must be a Western Renewable Energy Generation Information
System (WREGIS) Account Holder. SNR will not apportion or create RECs
for NCPA until its WREGIS Account Holder status has been verified.

1.2 Project use customers may participate in SNR’S REC Program by providing
written notice to WAPA at least 60 days prior to the first day of the first month
that such customer desires to begin participation.

1.3 All RECs provided under this LOA shall be from the vintages January 2017
through December 2017.



Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

1.4 For the purposes of participating in SNR’s REC Program under this LOA,

NCPA shall include the following members and the base resource
percentages they have assigned to NCPA:

1.4.1  Alameda Municipal Power

1.4.2 Biggs, City of

1.4.3 Gridley, City of

1.4.4 Healdsburg, City of

1.4.5 Lodi, City of

1.4.6 Lompoc, City of

1.4.7 Oakland, Port of

1.4.8 Plumas-Sierra Rural Electric Cooperative
1.4.9 Ukiah, City of

Definitions:

2.1

2.2

2.3

“CVP RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from Central Valley Project hydropower
generation. ‘

“Stampede RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with the megawatthours from the Washoe Project hydropower
generation.

“Unclaimed RECs” shall mean the renewable energy credits that may be
associated with SNR’s hydropower generation from Lewiston, Nimbus and
Stampede that are not being claimed by other preference or project use
customers.

Apportionment of RECs:

SNR will apportion the RECs in a three-step process. Calculation of
apportionments will be completed as follows:

3.1

CVP RECs:

3.1.1  SNR will calculate the percentage contribution from each unit/project
registered with WREGIS to the amount of Base Resource generated
each month. '

3.1.2 SNR will then calculate the amount of Base Resource NCPA
received each month based on the sum of power scheduled to NCPA
from its Base Resource percentage and its contribution to or
allocation from the Hourly Exchange Program.



3.2

3.3

34

3.5

Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

3.1.3 Finally, SNR will apply NCPA's actual month’s Base Resource
percentage as determined in Subsection 3.1.2 above to the CVP
RECs associated with that month’s Base Resource from each
unit/project as determined in 3.1.1 to determine NCPA’s
apportionment of CVP RECs for each month in calendar year 2017.

Unclaimed RECs:

3.2.1 SNR will normalize the participating customers’ Base Resource
percentages for calendar year 2016 by dividing each customer’s
Base Resource percentage by the total of all participating customers’
Base Resource percentages.

3.2.2 SNR will then apply NCPA'’s normalized percentage to the total
Unclaimed RECs for each month in 2017 to determine NCPA’s
apportionment of Unclaimed RECs.

3.2.3 NCPA acknowledges that.its normalized percentage, used for the

apportionment of Unclaimed RECs, may change during the term of
this LOA depending on the number of participating customers.

Stampede RECs:

Stampede RECs will be held in WREGIS until SNR can determine the
annual amount of RECs due to the Truckee Donner Public Utility District
(TDPUD) and the City of Fallon (Fallon) before allocating the Stampede
RECs to others. Once SNR has determined the percentage of the
Stampede RECs to be provided to TDPUD and Fallon due to their
contributions to the Washoe Project, the remaining Stampede RECs will be
apportioned to the participants pursuant to the procedures provided in
Subsections 3.1 and 3.2 above.

SNR will transfer NCPA’s CVP and Unclaimed RECs apportionments
through WREGIS after the RECs have been created by WREGIS.

SNR will transfer Stampede RECs apportionments through WREGIS after
the TDPUD and Fallon percentage has been determined and the Stampede
RECs have been created by WREGIS.

Nontransferable:

NCPA hereby acknowledges and agrees that RECs associated with WAPA power
are neither transferable nor available for resale by NCPA; Except That, NCPA may
transfer RECs received through SNR’s REC Program to the members listed in
Subsection 1.4 above.



Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

5. Compensation to WAPA:

5.1 WAPA's costs to administer SNR’s REC Program will be paid by those
participants receiving an apportionment of SNR’s RECs through WREGIS.
Each participant’s costs will be determined based on the participant’s pro
rata share of RECs. WAPA's costs will include, but are not limited to, the
following:

5.1.1 WAPA’s costs to join WREGIS as an account holder;
5.1.2 WAPA's costs for WREGIS to create RECs;:

5.1.3 WAPA's costs for transferring RECs from its WREGIS account to
participant’'s WREGIS account;

5.1.4 Any other costs WAPA may incur for its participation in WREGIS to
operate this program; and

5.1.5 Any other costs WAPA may incur from a third-party due to providing
services hereunder.

5.2 These costs will be provided as a line item on NCPA’s monthly electric
service bill from WAPA. -

6. General Power Contract Provisions:

The General Power Contract Provisions dated September 1, 2007, are attached
hereto and are hereby made a part of this LOA the same as if they had been
expressly set forth herein. '

7. Term:

7.1 This LOA must be signed by NCPA on or before June 1, 2017 in order for
NCPA to participate in SNR’s 2017 REC Program.

7.2 This LOA shall become effective on June 1, 2017, and shall terminate
July 31, 2018; Provided, That either NCPA or SNR may terminate this LOA
upon 30 days advance written notice. All obligations created under this LOA
while in effect shall remain until satisfied.

If you are in agreement with the terms and conditions written above, please indicate
your approval by signing and dating both originals of this LOA and return one to



Letter of Agreement 17-SNR-02051

Ms. Ruth Nye (N6205) at this office. If you have any questions, please contact
Sandee Peebles at (916) 353-4454,

Sincerely,

Song Q&ﬂ%

Sonja A. Angerson
Vice President of Power Marketing
for Sierra Nevada Region

In Duplicate

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

By:
Title:
Address:

Date:




A PUBLIG AGEYGY

OHTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 17, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

a5

SUBJECT: Approval of the Professional Services Agreement between NCPA and the BAMx

Participants, and Approval of the Consulting Services Agreement between NCPA and Flynn

Resource Consultants Inc.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

0/

SRy
A\ DY)

FROM: David Dockham 2

AGM, Power Management

Division: Power Management

Department: Industry Restructuring

METHOD OF SELECTION:

If other, please describe:

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power
Bay Area Rapid Transit
City of Biggs

City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

O
O
O
[l
(|

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

0
O
O
(|
0
O

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

O O O O 0O

SR: 167:17



Approval of BAMx Agreements
May 25, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:
NCPA staff recommends that the NCPA Commission:

1. Authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Professional Services
Agreement between Northern California Power Agency and the cities of Palo Alto and
Santa Clara, including any non-substantive modifications to the Professional Services
Agreement approved by NCPA’s General Counsel; and

2. Upon return of the fully executed Professional Services Agreement by each BAMx
Member, authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Consulting Services
Agreement between Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resource Consultants
Inc., including any non-substantive modifications to the Consulting Services Agreement
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

The cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara have joined together to form a working group known as
the Bay Area Municipal Transmission group (“BAMx” or “BAMx Members”). Under this
arrangement the BAMx Members work together to improve the reliability and cost-effectiveness
of transmission service they receive through the CAISO. The BAMx Members have requested
Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”) to enter into a consulting services arrangement
with Flynn Resource Consultants Inc. (“Flynn RCI”), under which Flynn RCl is to act as project
manager and shall coordinate the efforts of BAMx. In response to this request, NCPA has
worked with the BAMx Members to develop a professional services agreement and consulting
services agreement under which the services requested may be provided.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT:

The Professional Services Agreement between Northern California Power Agency and the
Cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara (the “Professional Services Agreement”) describes NCPA’s
obligation to act as the billing agent on behalf of the BAMx Members with respect to the services
provided under the Consulting Services Agreement between the Northern California Power
Agency and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc. (the “Consulting Services Agreement”). Charges
incurred under the Consulting Services Agreement will be allocated and billed to the BAMx
Members in accordance with the Professional Services Agreement.

The Professional Services Agreement is attached to this staff report for your reference.
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT:

Pursuant to the Professional Services Agreement, NCPA will enter into the Consulting Services
Agreement on behalf of the BAMx Members. Under the Consulting Services Agreement Flynn
RCI will provide various services to the BAMx Members, including monitoring, meeting
participation, coordinating with affected or other participating parties, and as necessary,
preparing and submitting formal position submittals for the following subject matters: grid
planning activities, CPUC and CEC transmission matters, and California market design
activities.

SR: 167:17



Approval of BAMx Agreements
May 25, 2017
Page 3

The Consulting Services Agreement between NCPA and Fiynn RCl is attached to this staff
report for your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total expenditures authorized under the Consulting Services Agreement shall not exceed
$1,950,000 during the term of the agreement, or $650,000 during each annual period of the
term of the agreement. In addition to costs incurred under the Consulting Services Agreement,
NCPA will invoice the BAMx Members $625 each month for related billing services under the
Professional Services Agreement. Payments for services provided under the Consulting
Services Agreement and Professional Services Agreement are accounted for in the current
fiscal year budget, and all costs incurred for the services shall be allocated to the BAMx

Members.
SELECTION PROCESS:

This vendor was selected as a result of bidding done in accordance with NCPA’s procurement
policies and procedures.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was
recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

T 5 147

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: 3

SR: 167:17



RESOLUTION 17-51

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVAL OF THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN NCPA
AND THE BAMx PARTICIPANTS AND THE CONSUTLING SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN NCPA AND FLYNN RESOURCE CONSULTANTS INC.

(reference Staff Report #167:17)

WHEREAS, the cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara have joined together to form a working group
known as the Bay Area Municipal Transmission group (“‘BAMx” or “BAMx Members”); and

WHEREAS, under this arrangement the BAMx Members work together to improve the reliability
and cost-effectiveness of transmission service they receive through the CAISO; and

WHEREAS, the BAMx Members have requested Northern California Power Agency (“NCPA”)
to enter into a consulting services arrangement with Flynn Resource Consuitants Inc. (“Flynn RCI"),
under which Flynn RCl is to act as project manager and shall coordinate the efforts of BAMx; and

WHEREAS, in response to this request, NCPA has worked with the BAMx Members to develop
a professional services agreement and consulting services agreement under which the services
requested may be provided; and

WHEREAS, the Professional Services Agreement between Northern California Power Agency
and the Cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara (the “Professional Services Agreement”) describes NCPA'’s
obligation to act as the billing agent on behalf of the BAMx Members with respect to the services
provided under the Consulting Services Agreement between the Northern California Power Agency
and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc. (the “Consulting Services Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, charges incurred under the Consulting Services Agreement will be allocated and
billed to the BAMx Members in accordance with the Professional Services Agreement; and

WHEREAS, under the Consulting Services Agreement Flynn RCI will provide various services
to the BAMx Members, including monitoring, meeting participation, coordinating with affected or other
participating parties, and as necessary, preparing and submitting formal position submittals for the
following subject matters: grid planning activities, CPUC and CEC transmission matters, and California
market design activities; and

WHEREAS, total expenditures authorized under the Consulting Services Agreement shall not
exceed $1,950,000 during the term of the agreement, or $650,000 during each annual period of the
term of the agreement, and in addition to costs incurred under the Consulting Services Agreement,
NCPA will invoice the BAMx Members $625 each month for related billing services provided under the
Professional Services Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in
the physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power
Agency:

1. Authorizes the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Professional Services Agreement
between Northern California Power Agency and the cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara,
including any non-substantive modifications to the Professional Services Agreement

approved by NCPA’s General Counsel; and

2. Upon return of the fully executed Professional Services Agreement by each BAMx Member,
authorizes the General Manager of NCPA to execute the Consulting Services Agreement
between Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc., including
any non-substantive modifications to the Consulting Services Agreement approved by

NCPA’s General Counsel.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 17-51 -2-



HBHTHEAH CALIPORRIA POWEA AGENGY

CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
FLYNN RESOURCE CONSULTANTS INC.

This agreement for consulting services (“Agreement’) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc., a California corporation, with
its office located at 5440 Edgeview Drive, Discovery Bay, CA 94505 (*Consultant”) (together sometimes
referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 20__ (“Effective Date") in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant
shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and
shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than June 30, 2020

whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner and
according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the profession in which
Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing the Services. Consultant
represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to provide the Services set forth

herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform
the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term of
this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such personnel, Consultant shall,
immediately upon receiving written notice from Agency of such request, work with Agency

to address Agency’s concerns.

1.4 BAMx Members. Agency is entering into this Agreement with Consultant at the request of
certain of its members, the cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara (“the BAMx Members"), so
that Agency may provide consulting services to the BAMx Members. Agency's provision of
these services is further addressed in the Professional Services Agreement Between
Northern California Power Agency and the Cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara (the "Bay
Area Municipal Transmission Services Agreement" or "BAMx Agreement") dated as of

, 20__, as such may be amended from time to time.

Section 2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT TO
EXCEED One Million Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($1,950,000.00) during the Term of the
Agreement, or Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($650,000.00) during each annual period of the Term of
the Agreement, for the Services, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as
set forth in Consultant's fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX

NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 1 of 17
2650865.1



amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a fimit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the
term of this Agreement, based on the cost for Services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed; and

= The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services

hereunder.
Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Atin: Accounts Payable

AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received,
for Services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of
the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all federal, state
and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this Agreement.

24  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to perform any
Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until the

Effective Date.

25  Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days after
completion of its Services to submit its final invoice. In the event Consultant fails to submit
an invoice to Agency for any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is
deemed to have waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the Services.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, [nc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 2 of 17
2650865.1



Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance listed below and
shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall maintain
Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for any
and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant with limits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

421 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial general
liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including products liability,
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action, for bodily
injury, death, personal injury and broad form property damage which may arise out
of the operations of Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of
$1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage
shall be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive General
Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. No
endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. If Consultant owns any automobiles, Consultant shall
maintain automobile liability insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term
of this Agreement covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any
action, arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The policy shall provide a
minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with a self-insured retention or
deductible of no more than $100,000. This insurance shall provide contractual
liability covering all motor vehicles and mobile equipment to the extent coverage
may be excluded from general liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth above
may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies as long as in
combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

4.4 All Policies Requirements.

4.4.1 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of Insurance that
demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance provisions contained herein
and (2) policy endorsements to the policies referenced in Section 4.2, adding the

Consulting Services Agreement between KX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 3 of 17
2650865.1



Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in regard to
work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

44.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consuitant shall provide
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any reduction in scope or
amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to Agency of the policies referenced
in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums specified
herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by

the Consultant.

45  Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of
Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the payment of any loss. Consultant
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of
subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its employees, agents
and subcontractors.

4.6 Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring that all
equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Services are operated,
provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues they are and remain covered by the
policies referenced in Section 4 during this Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that
all workers involved in the provision of Services are properly classified as employees,
agents or independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1 Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and endorsements
required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from liability under this
indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause
shall apply to any damages or claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies
shall have been determined to apply. By execution of this Agreement, Consultant
acknowledges and agrees to the provisions of this Section and that it is a material element

of consideration.

5.2 Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, demands,
suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs (including without limitation
costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of action of every nature arising out of

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.
Revd 5/4/16 Page 4 of 17

2650865.1



Section 6.

or in connection with any acts or omissions by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and
employees, except as caused by the sole or gross negligence of Agency.

Notwithstanding, should this Agreement be construed as a construction agreement under
Civil Code section 2783, then the exception referenced above shall also be for the active

negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an employee
of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of
Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 1; otherwise,
Agency shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state,
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of
its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Agency for employer
contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of any
employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and
interest on such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of Agency.
Consultant and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to
Consultant under this Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing
the Services, including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages, expense and
liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such
claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to Consultant's failure to secure workers’
compensation insurance for its employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare benefits to its
fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable Care Act. To the extent
permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Agency from any
penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable Care Act resulting from the performance of
the Services by any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 5 of 17



6.2

6.3

Section 7.

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant shall have
no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any capacity whatsoever as
an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal performance
by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant's unique professional
competence, experience, and specialized professional knowledge. A substantial
inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation
and competence of Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest
therein without the prior written approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract
any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the Agency. Where
written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall supervise all work
subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and shall be responsible for all
work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant itself had performed such work. The
subcontracting of any work to subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated
to ensure that any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in
all respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and agents, if any,

shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant

and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will maintain at their sole
expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses, permits, qualifications, and
approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to practice their respective
professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon ten
(10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for Services
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however, may

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 6 of 17



8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant delivering to Agency any or all
records or documents, as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof.

Amendments.
8.2.1 The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms
of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section 4, Agency’s
remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; and

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by Consultant.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

9.1

9.2

9.3

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data, maps,
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications,
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters
covered hereunder shall be the property of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to
deliver those documents to the Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and
Consultant agree that, unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release
to any non-parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all records or other
documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or expenditures and
disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3)
years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to the
Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this Agreement
requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 7 of 17



copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the
Agency. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the
request of Agency or as part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after
final payment under the Agreement.

94 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used herein,
shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information,
whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise, where the Confidential
Information is made available in a tangible medium of expression and marked in a
prominent location as confidential, proprietary and/or trade secret information.
Confidential Information shall not include information that: (a) was already known
to the Receiving Party or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was
disclosed to Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without reverse
engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was not marked as
confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this Agreement,
either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential Information to the
other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving Party: (a) shall hold the
Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in confident; and (b) shall take all
reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer
or disclosure of such Confidential [nformation.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following disclosures of
Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall endeavor to provide
prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any permitted disclosure made pursuant
to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3. Disclosing Party may seek a protective order,
including without limitation, a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest
such permitted disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek
such remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for such
permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors
or other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know in
connection with this Agreement.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 8 of 17

2650865.1



Section 10.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the California
Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination of the
Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or destroy Confidential
Information (including all copies thereof) upon termination of this Agreement, if
requested by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information, subject to the
confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival purposes in its
computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c) in files of Receiving
Party's representatives where such copies are necessary to comply with
applicable law. Party shall not disclose the Disclosing Party’s Information to any
person other than those of the Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants,
contractors and subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a
separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the
state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in whole or in part of any
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term
of this Agreement.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 9 of 17



10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of

and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within
the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of location, would place
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act,

codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant to this
Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial interest in this
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by David Dockham,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency's
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the representative.

Notices.

Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Doug Boccignone

Flynn Resource Consultants Inc.
5440 Edgeview Drive

Discovery Bay, CA 94505

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Consulting Services Agreement between
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX

Page 10 of 17



10.9  Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the first page of

a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for

the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the Exhibits attached hereto,

represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and Consultant and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All
Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be

settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and Consultant agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1

10.11.2

10.11.3

10.11.4

10.11.5

10.11.6

Each party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute.

The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to
resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement by
negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails, the Parties
shall resolve any remaining disputes through mediation to expedite the
resolution of the dispute.

The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen (15)
days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as mediator, shall be
commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be concluded within fifteen
(15) days from the commencement of the mediation.

The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition to this
Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative remedy prior to
either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute resolution
process is not intended to nor shall be construed to change the time
periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code §§ 900
et seq.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 11 of 17



10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and the Exhibits hereto, and Consultant's Proposal (if any), the Agreement shall control. In
the case of any conflict between the Exhibits hereto and the Consultant's Proposal, the
Exhibits shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to
participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore,
the usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consuitants, Inc.
Rev'd 5/4/16

2650865.1

Page 12 of 17



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FLYNN RESOURCE CONSULTANTS, INC.

Date: Date:

Randy S. Howard, General Manager Douglas A. Boccignone, Chief Financial
Officer

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX

NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1

Page 13 of 17



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Agency is entering into this Agreement with Consultant at the request of the BAMx Members, so that
Agency may assist the BAMx Members in securing access fo consulting services related to electric
transmission, power generation, regulatory and electric market design issues affecting the BAMx Members.
Agency's primary role as to the Services provided under this Agreement is to act as contract administrator
and billing agent on behalf of the BAMx Members, as further described in the BAMx Agreement.

For the purpose of administering this Agreement, each BAMx Member shall be represented by a
designated representative (‘Representative”). During the term of this Agreement, the BAMx Member
Representatives are responsible for coordinating all requests for Services made to Consultant, and shall
manage all related activities as further described herein.

The BAMx Member Representatives are listed below:

o Kathleen Hughes, City of Santa Clara
e Debbie Lloyd, City of Palo Alto

At any time a BAMx Member may designate a new or alternative Representative by providing written notice
of such designation to Agency.

The BAMx Members and Consultant intend to pursue the activities listed below during the term of this
Agreement. Such activities will include monitoring, meeting participation, coordinating with affected or
other participating parties, and, as necessary, preparing and submitting formal position submittals. The
Scope of Work provided in accordance with this Agreement are described below:

1. Grid Planning Activities:
a. CAISO Regionalization Process, Transmission Access Charge, Governance and Resource
Adequacy;
i. Coordination with the California Municipal Utilities Association and Northern
California Power Agency on these activities
CAISO/PG&E annual transmission expansion planning process;
Support or oppose specific transmission additions;
Greater Bay Area long term studies;
CAISO local capacity technical study process;
Other regional and sub-regional transmission planning activities;
CAISO Tariff and BPM Change Management Process;
Generator Interconnection Procedure;
i.  Transmission cost minimization;
j.  Impacts due to potential generation retirements;

Qo a0

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultanis, Inc.
Revd 5/4/16 Page 14 of 17

2650865.1



k. Transmission for renewables deliverability issues;

. CTPG planning process; and
m. Tracy to Bay development activities.

2. CPUC and CEC transmission matters:

Integrated Energy Policy Report;

Resource adequacy issues;

Renewable Portfolio Standard issues;

Long Term Procurement issues;

Approval of CPCNs and PTCs for new transmission lines; and
Renewable Energy Transmission Initiative (RETI 2.0).

"o a0 T

3. CAISO Market Issues:
a. CAISO markets proceedings and implementation matters;
b. Resource Adequacy / Local Capacity/ Flexible Capacity/ Deliverability;
c. LMP congestion and losses incidence and impacts; and
d. Regionalization and New Participating Transmission Owner Issues.

4, Communicate Regularly with BAMx Members:
a. Client meetings, telephone conferences and written summaries of activities on key issues.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX

NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 15 of 17
2650865.1



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including hourly fees and expenses,

shall not exceed the amount specified in Section 2 of this Agreement. The compensation schedule and
hourly fees for Services are as follows:

Labor Category Hourly Rate (Effective Date — June 30, 2018)
Principal $310.00 per hour

Managing Consultant $290.00 per hour

Senior Consultant — Power Engineer $280.00 per hour

Senior Consultant $250.00 per hour

Consultant $215.00 per hour

Associate Consultant $195.00 per hour

Analyst $140.00 per hour

Support Services $65.00 per hour

Each year, effective on July 1, the applicable hourly rates for each labor category shall increase by three
percent (3.0%), rounded to the nearest five dollars ($5.00).

For any month during which Consultant's provision of Services causes Consultant to use specialized
modeling software and/or tools, the following charges shall apply:

Category Cost per Month
Power Flow Modeling $280.00 per month
Short Circuit Modeling $825.00 per month
OASIS DATA $1,235.00 per month
Market Modeling $4,085.00 per month

Each year, effective July 1, the applicable monthly cost for use of specialized modeling software and/or
tools shall increase by three percent (3.0%), rounded to the nearest five dollars ($5.00).

Specialized software costs that exceed the above amounts may be billed with the prior approval of the
BAMx Member Representatives.

Travel (at coach rates), food, and miscellaneous expenses, except automobile mileage, associated with the
provision of Services hereunder shall be billed at cost. Automobile mileage shall be billed at the current
rate as approved by the Internal Revenue Service.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.

Rev'd 5/4/16 Page 16 of 17
2650865.1



NOTE: Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a public agency, Agency shall not reimburse Consultant for travel,
food and related costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Consulting Services Agreement between XX-VEN-20XX-XXXX
NCPA and Flynn Resource Consultants, Inc.
Page 17 of 17

Rev'd 5/4/16
2650865.1



BOATHERN CALIEGRNIA POWER AGEHLY

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND THE CITIES OF PALO ALTO AND SANTA CLARA
(THE "BAY AREA MUNICIPAL TRANSMISSION SERVICES AGREEMENT" OR "BAMXx
AGREEMENT")

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency (“NCPA"), a joint powers agency, and the Cities of Palo Alto and Santa
Clara (each referred to as a "Contracting Member" and jointly referred to as “Contracting Members’
or "BAMXx Participants"). NCPA and the Contracting Members are together sometimes referred to
herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as “the Parties.”

i

This Agreement is made as of , 20__ (the “Effective Date”) in Roseville,
California.

Section1.  RECITALS
This Agreement is entered into based on the following facts, among others:

1.1 NCPA is a public agency created by a joint powers agreement established under
California law for the purpose of assisting its members in the efficient use of their common powers.

1.2 Contracting Members are engaged in, among other things, transmitting and
distributing electric power within their respective corporate limits. Contracting Members are also
each a member of NCPA. Contracting Members jointly desire that NCPA provide Contracting
Members with the Services described in this Agreement.

1.3 Article IlI, section 3 of the “Amended and Restated Northern California Power
Agency Joint Powers Agreement’ (as amended and effective January 1, 2008) (hereinafter “JPA”)
entitled “Powers and Functions” provides that "none of the debts, liabilities or obligations of NCPA
shall be the debts, liabilities or obligations of any of the members of NCPA unless assumed in a
particular case by resolution of the governing body of the member to be charged.” Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Article V, section 1 of the JPA entitled “General Provisions” provides that “[tlhe
governing Commission of NCPA is authorized to procure public liability and other insurance as it
deems advisable to protect NCPA and each of the parties hereto, charging the cost thereof to the
operating costs of NCPA."

1.4 Contracting Members desire to secure NCPA's Services under this Agreementin a
manner that balances their interests and the interests of other NCPA Members with the ongoing
financial viability and professional responsibilities of NCPA. Accordingly, Contracting Members
desire to secure NCPA's Services under this Agreement by accepting a limited insurance based
recourse against NCPA, with the option of procuring additional insurance at Contracting Members'
sole expense. By so doing, the Parties thereby ensure that NCPA will substantially limit its risk for
the provision of such Services and allocates risks back to the Contracting Members in the event
NCPA is not adequately insured.

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



1.5 The Parties have previously entered into a professional services agreement for this
same purpose dated as of July 1, 2016 (“the Prior Agreement’) the term of which ends on June 30,

2017.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth, NCPA
and Contracting Members agree as follows:

Section2.  DEFINITIONS

Whenever used in this Agreement with initial capitalization, these terms shall have the
following meanings as applicable, whether in the singular or plural:

21 “Consultant” shall mean Flynn Resource Consultants Inc.
2.2 “Consulting Services Agreement” shall mean the Consulting Services Agreement

Between the Northern California Power Agency and Flynn Resource Consultants Inc., dated as of
, 20__, as such may be amended from time to time.

2.3 “Good Utility Practice” shall mean any of the practices, methods and acts engaged
in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry during the relevant time period,
or any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of
the facts known at the time the decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the
desired result of the lowest reasonable cost consistent with good business practices, reliability,
safety and expedition and the requirements of the Northern American Electric Reliability
Corporation ("NERC") or Western Electric Coordinating Council ("WECC") Good Utility Practice is
not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all others, but
rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in the region.

24 “NCPA Members” shall mean the signatories to the JPA or those agencies which
have executed an Associate Member Agreement with NCPA.

2.5 “Stranded Costs” shall mean all costs incurred by NCPA in providing Services to
Contracting Members under this Agreement that could not reasonably be avoided by NCPA from
the date it receives a written Notice of Termination. Such costs may include, but not be limited to,
salary and employment costs, rent, utilities, or contracts incurred to provide Services under this
Agreement. In this regard, Contracting Members acknowledge that NCPA will be entering into
professional services agreements with third persons under the terms of this Agreement, and that
sums owing to such third persons may become Stranded Costs upon termination of this
Agreement.

2.6 “Uncontrollable Forces” shall mean any act of God, labor disturbance, act of the
public enemy, war, insurrection, riot, fire, storm, flood, earthquake, explosion, any curtailment,
order, regulation or restriction imposed by governmental, military or lawfully established civilian
authorities or any other cause beyond the reasonable control which could not be avoided through
the exercise of Good Ultility Practice.

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



Section 3.  SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED; AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES; STANDARD
OF PERFORMANCE

3.1 This Agreement is entered into by the Parties in order for NCPA to provide services
to Contracting Members for the services described in Exhibit A hereto (“Services”). The Services
do not include supervision of the performance of any of the third persons with whom contracts are
entered into; such supervision shall be provided by the Contracting Members.

3.2 The following are the authorized representatives of the Parties (*Authorized
Representatives”) for contract administration purposes under this Agreement:

NCPA:

David Dockham, Dave.Dockham@ncpa.com
Assistant General Manager

Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

916-781-4207

Fax 916-781-4255

PALO ALTO:

Debra Lloyd, Debra.LLoyd@cityofpaloalto.org
Utilities Compliance Manager

City of Palo Alto

P.O. Box 10250

Palo Alto, CA 94303

650-329-2369

Fax: 650-326-1507

SANTA CLARA:

Kathleen Hughes, khughes@SantaClaraCA.gov
Acting Division Manager

881 Martin Ave.

Santa Clara, CA 95050

408-615-6632

Fax: 408-261-2717

No Authorized Representative is authorized to amend any provision of this Agreement except
in accordance with Section 12.16.

3.3 Standard of Performance. NCPA will perform the Services using that level of skill
and attention reasonably required to complete the Services in a competent and timely manner.

34 Assignment of Personnel. NCPA shall assign only competent personnel to perform
Services pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that Contracting Members, in their sole
discretion, at any time during the term of this Agreement, jointly desire the reassignment of any

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



such persons, NCPA shall, immediately upon receiving notice from each Contracting Member of
such desire of the Contracting Members, reassign such person or persons.

3.5 Time. NCPA shall devote such time to the performance of Services pursuant to this
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance provided in
Section 3.3, above and to satisfy NCPA's obligations hereunder.

Section4.  TERM AND TERMINATION

41 Authorization to Perform Services. NCPA is not authorized to perform any Services
or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until its receipt of a written
resolution and/or other appropriate/applicable authorization from each Contracting Member's
governing body confirming each Contracting Member's authority to enter into this Agreement and
confirming that each Contracting Member has allocated funds for and approved contract payments
to NCPA under this Agreement.

4.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall end
on June 30, 2020.

4.3 Early Termination and Stranded Costs. This Agreement may be terminated by
either NCPA or by the Contracting Members, upon 30 days written notice to all other Parties
(“Notice of Termination”). Provided, however, that a Notice of Termination on behalf of the
Contracting Members shall be executed by each Contracting Member to be effective.

In the event of an early termination, Contracting Members shall pay NCPA for all fees and
costs required under this Agreement through the effective date of their Notice of Termination plus
- all Stranded Costs. Upon payment of the above amounts, no Parties shall have any further
obligations under this Agreement except as otherwise set forth in Section 5.7 regarding the survival
of defense and indemnity obligations.

Section 5. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

5.1 Limitation of NCPA's Liability.

5.1.1 Except as provided in this section 5.1, NCPA shall not at any time be liable for
any injury or damage occurring to Contracting Members or any other person or property from any
cause whatsoever arising out of this Agreement.

51.2 The provisions of section 5.1.1 shall not apply where the injury or damage
occurring to Contracting Members is caused by the negligence of NCPA or of any employee, agent
or contractor of NCPA; provided that any liability under this subsection is limited to the extent of the
actual coverage and coverage limits of the NCPA insurance policies described in this Section 5.

51.3 Notwithstanding Section 5.1.2 above, the Contracting Members agree to

reimburse NCPA, in a timely manner, for all deductibles and/or self-insured retentions payable for
any claim, liability or damage arising out of this Agreement.

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



5.2 Indemnification of NCPA. Except as specified in Section 5.1.2 above, Contracting
Members shall, at their sole cost and expense, indemnify and hold harmless NCPA and all
associated, affiliated, allied, member and subsidiary entities of NCPA, now existing or hereinafter
created, and their respective officers, boards, commissions, employees, agents, attorneys, and
contractors (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitees”), from and against any and all liability,
obligation, damages, penalties, claims, liens, costs, charges, losses and expenses (including,
without limitation, reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys, expert withesses and consultants),
which may be imposed upon, incurred by or be asserted against the Indemnitees arising out of this

Agreement.

5.3 Defense of Indemnitees. In the event any action or proceeding shall be brought
against the Indemnitees by reason of any matter for which the Indemnitees are indemnified
hereunder, Contracting Members shall, upon reasonable prior written notice from any of the
Indemnitees, at Contracting Members' sole cost and expense, resist and defend the same with
legal counsel mutually selected by indemnitee and the Contracting Members, unless mutual
selection of counsel is expressly prohibited by an applicable insurance policy; provided however,
that neither Indemnitee nor Contracting Members shall admit liability in any such matter or on
behalf of the other without express written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld or delayed, nor enter into any compromise or settlement of any claim for which
Indemnitees are indemnified hereunder without prior express written consent. The Contracting
Members' duty to defend shall begin upon receipt of a written notice identifying with specificity the
allegations that give rise to this duty to defend.

54 Notice. The Parties shall give each other prompt notice of the making of any claim
or the commencement of any action, suit or other proceeding covered by the provisions of this
Section 5.

5.5 Insurance. During the term of the Agreement and prior to beginning any work
under this Agreement, NCPA shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, in full force and effect, and
at its sole cost and expense, the types and limits of insurance as are annually approved by the
governing Commission of NCPA. NCPA warrants and represents that the types of insurance and
coverage limits that are approved by the governing Commission of NCPA are in full force and
effect and shall remain so during the term of this Agreement unless NCPA gives prior written
notification (of not less than 15 days) of modification, cancellation or rescission of such coverage.

5.6 Contracting Members' Acknowledgment of Option to Secure Additional [nsurance.
The Contracting Members acknowledge that there are limitations on NCPA's liability to the
Contracting Members under this Section 5 and that the Contracting Members may need to
purchase additional insurance of their own to cover the additional risks and the potential additional
liabilities they are assuming under this Agreement. Contracting Members agree that they will, with
respect to any additional insurance they obtain or which is otherwise available to Contracting
Members, cause their insurers to issue an endorsement providing a waiver of subrogation rights as
to Indemnitees.

5.7 Survival of Obligations. The defense and indemnity obligations of Section 5 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement. :

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



Section6. COMPENSATION

6.1 Charges for Services. Charges for the Services shall be billed separately to each
Contracting Member in accordance with Exhibit B of this Agreement.

6.2 Security Deposit. Contracting Members shall each maintain on deposit in its
General Operating Reserve Account held at NCPA the sum of Zero Dollars ($0) as security to
NCPA for liabilites NCPA could incur under this Agreement. Contracting Members hereby
authorize NCPA to reserve and commit this sum in its General Operating Reserve Account for the
payment of the aforementioned liabilities should same become necessary. Interest on monies held
by NCPA pursuant to this section shall be credited in accordance with the then standard practices
of NCPA relating to the General Operating Reserve Account.

Section7.  BILLING AND PAYMENT

71 Invoices. NCPA shall submit invoices to Contracting Members, not more often than
once a month during the term of this Agreement, for Services performed and reimbursable costs
incurred prior to the invoice date.

7.2 Monthly Payment. Contracting Members shall make monthly payments, based on
invoices received, for Services performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred.
Contracting Members shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all
of the requirements above to pay NCPA. Any amount due on a day other than a business day, i.e.,
any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal Reserve Bank holiday, may be paid on the

following business day.

If all or any-portion of a bill is disputed by Contracting Members, the entire amount of the bill
shall be paid when due, and NCPA's Authorized Representative shall be concurrently provided
written notice of the disputed amount and the basis for the dispute. NCPA shall reimburse any
amount determined to have been incorrectly billed, within ten (10) days after such determination.

Amounts which are not paid when due shall bear interest computed on a daily basis until paid
at the lesser of (i) the per annum prime rate (or reference rate) of the Bank of America NT & SA, or
its successor, then in effect, plus two per cent (2%) or (i) the maximum rate permitted by law. The
provisions of this Section 7 shall survive expiration of this Agreement until satisfied.

7.3 Contracting Members shall pay for the Services pursuant to this Agreement.
Contracting Members shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever
incurred by NCPA in rendering Services pursuant to this Agreement. Contracting Members shall
make no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement.

In no event shall NCPA submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum amount
of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, unless the
Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly executed change
order or amendment in accordance with this Agreement.

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



74 Hourly Fees. Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not
exceed the amounts shown on the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B.

7.5 Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses are specified in Exhibit B.
Expenses not listed in Exhibit B are not chargeable to Contracting Members. Reimbursable
expenses are included in the total amount of compensation provided under this Agreement that

shall not be exceeded.

7.6 Payment of Taxes. NCPA is solely responsible for the payment of employment
taxes incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes.

7.7 Payment upon Termination. In the event that Contracting Members or NCPA
terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 4, Contracting Members shall compensate the
NCPA for all outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily
completed as of the date of written Notice of Termination. NCPA shall maintain adequate logs and
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date.

7.8 Authorization to Perform Services. NCPA is not authorized to perform any Services
or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of authorization from
each of the Contracting Members' Authorized Representative following receipt of the required
approvals under the terms of this Agreement.

7.9 The addresses of Contracting Members to which invoices shall be sent is:

Debra Lloyd

Utilities Compliance Manager
City of Palo Alto

P.O. Box 10250

Palo Alto, CA 94303
650-329-2369

Fax: 650-326-1507

Bob Kazlauskas

City of Santa Clara

Attn: Electric Department
1500 Warburton Ave

Santa Clara, CA 95050
Bkazlauskas@svpower.com
408-615-6688

Fax: 408-261-2717

Section 8.  STATUS OF NCPA; FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

8.1 Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, NCPA shall
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of Contracting Members. Contracting
Members shall have the right to control NCPA only insofar as the results of NCPA's Services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Section 3.4;

7
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



however, otherwise Contracting Members shall not have the right to control the means by which
NCPA accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other
agency, state, local or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, NCPA and
any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing Services under this Agreement shall
not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Contracting Members, including but not
limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Contracting Member and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Contracting
Members for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

8.2 Facilities and Equipment. The facilities and equipment that may be necessary to
perform the Services required by this Agreement shall be provided as follows: None.

Section9. UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES

9.1 Obligations of the Parties, other than those to pay money when due, shall be
excused for so long as and to the extent that failure to perform such obligations is due to an
Uncontrollable Force; provided, however, that if either Party is unable to perform due to an
Uncontrollable Force, such Party shall exercise due diligence to remove such inability with
reasonable dispatch. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring a Party
to settle any strike, lockout, or labor dispute in which it may be involved, or to accept any permit,
certificate, contract, or any other service agreement or authorization necessary for the performance
of this Agreement which contains terms and conditions which a Party determines in its good faith

judgment are unduly burdensome or otherwise unacceptable.

9.2 Each Party shall notify the other promptly, by telephone to the other Party's
operating personnel and Authorized Representative identified in Section 3.2, upon becoming aware
of any Uncontrollable Force which may adversely affect the performance under this Agreement. A
Party shall additionally provide written notice in accordance with Section 12.8 to the other Party
within 24 hours after providing. Each Party shall notify the other promptly, when an Uncontrollable
Force has been remedied or no longer exists.

Section 10. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

10.1 Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement,
without regard for the choice of law doctrine.

10.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. NCPA and any subcontractors shall comply with
all laws applicable to the performance of the Services hereunder.

10.3 Other Governmental Regulations. To the extent that this Agreement may be
funded by fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, NCPA and any subcontractors shall
comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which Contracting Member is bound by the
terms of such fiscal assistance program.

104 Licenses and Permits. NCPA represents and warrants to Contracting Member that

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



NCPA and its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications,
and approvals of whatsoever nature that is legally required to practice their respective professions.
NCPA represents and warrants to Contracting Member that NCPA and its employees, agents, any
subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are legally required to practice their
respective professions.

10.5 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. NCPA shall not discriminate, on the
basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any employee,
applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant in, recipient of, or
applicant for any services or programs provided by NCPA under this Agreement. NCPA shall
comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, policies, rules, and requirements related to
equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment, contracting, and the provision of any
services that are the subject of this Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any
positive obligations required of NCPA thereby.

Section 11. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

111 Records Created as Part of NCPA's Performance. All reports, data, maps, models,
charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, records, files, or
any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that NCPA prepares or obtains
pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Contracting Members. NCPA hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the Contracting
Members upon termination of the Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the documents and
other materials, including but not limited to those described above, prepared pursuant to this
Agreement are prepared specifically for the Contracting Members and are not necessarily suitable
for any future or other use. Contracting Members and NCPA agree that, until final approval by
Contracting Members, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are confidential
and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both Parties, except as may
otherwise be required by applicable law.

11.2 NCPA'’s Books and Records. NCPA shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or
relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged to the Contracting
Members under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required
by law, from the date of final payment to the NCPA to this Agreement.

11.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 11.2 of
this Agreement requires NCPA to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or
copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of the Contracting
Member. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of any
Contracting Member or as part of any audit of any of the Contracting Members, for a period of
three (3) years after final payment under the Agreement.

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



114 Confidential Information and Disclosure. During the term of this Agreement, any
Party (“Disclosing Party”) may disclose confidential, proprietary or trade secret information (the
“Information”), to another Party (‘Receiving Party”). All such Information made available in a
tangible medium of expression (such as, without limitation, on paper or by means of magnetic
tapes, magnetic disks or other computer media) shall be marked in a prominent location to indicate
that it is the confidential, proprietary and trade secret information of Disclosing Party at the time of
disclosure to Receiving Party. Receiving Party shall hold Disclosing Party’s Information in
confidence and shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any unauthorized possession, use,
copying, transfer or disclosure of such Information. Receiving Party shall not attempt to reverse
engineer or in any manner create any product or information which is similar in appearance to or
based on the Information provided by Disclosing Party. Receiving Party shall not disclose
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than Receiving Party's employees, agents,
contractors and subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

Receiving Party's confidentiality obligations hereunder shall not apply to any portion
of Disclosing Party’s Information which:

(a) Has become a matter of public knowledge other than through an act or omission of
Receiving Party;

(b) Has been made known to Receiving Party by a third party in accordance with such
third party's legal rights without any restriction on disclosure;

(c) Was in the possession of Receiving Party prior to the disclosure of such
Information by Disclosing Party and was not acquired directly or indirectly from the
other Party or any person or entity in a relationship of trust and confidence with the
other Party with respect to such Information;

(d) Receiving Party is required by law to disclose; or

(€) Has been independently developed by Receiving Party from information not
defined as "Information" in this Agreement, as evidenced by Receiving Party's
written records.

Receiving Party shall return or destroy Disclosing Party's Information (including all copies
thereof) to Disclosing Party promptly upon the earliest of any termination of this Agreement or the
Disclosing Party's written request. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Receiving Party may retain one
copy of such Information solely for archival purposes, subject to the confidentiality provisions of this
Agreement. The parties understand that each Party is a public entity and is subject to the laws that
may compel either to disclose information about the other's business.

Section 12.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

12.1 Attorneys’ Fees. If a Party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action
for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party
shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which that Party may
be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that
purpose.

12.2 Venue. In the event that either Party brings any action against the other under this
Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts

10
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



of California in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
California.

12.3 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is
rendered invalid or unenforceable by federal or state statute or regulation, but the remaining
portions of the Agreement can be enforced without failure of material consideration to any Party,
then the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect. To that end, this Agreement is
declared to be severable. Provided, however, that in the event any provision is declared to be
invalid, void or unenforceable, any Party may terminate this Agreement upon 10 days written notice
given within five (5) days of receipt of notice of final entry of judgment.

124 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of
this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term of

this Agreement.

12.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

12.6 Use of Recycled Products. NCPA shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports,
written studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at equal or
less cost than virgin paper.

12.7 Conflict of Interest. NCPA shall not employ any Contracting Members' official or
employee in the work performed pursuant to this Agreement. No officer or employee of
Contracting Member shall have any financial interest in this Agreement that would violate California

Government Code Sections 1090 ef seq. -

12.8 Notices. Unless this Agreement requires otherwise, any notice, demand or request
provided for in this Agreement, or served, given or made shall become effective when delivered in
person, or sent by registered or certified first class mail, to the persons specified below:

NCPA:

David Dockham

Assistant General Manager — Power Management
Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane Luckhardt — General Counsel
Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive,

Roseville, CA 95678

PALO ALTO:
Ed Shikada

11
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



Assistant City Manager & Interim Utilities Director
City of Palo Alto

P.0. Box 10250

Palo Alto, CA 94303

With a copy to:

Amy Bartell, Senior Deputy City Attorney
City of Palo Alto

c/o City Attorney’s office

P.O. Box 10250

Palo Alto, CA 94303

SANTA CLARA:

Kathleen Hughes, Acting Division Manager
City of Santa Clara

1500 Warburton Ave

Santa Clara, CA 95050

With a copy to:

Richard Nosky, City Attorney
City of Santa Clara

1500 Warburton Ave

Santa Clara, CA 95050

Whenever it is required, permitted, or desired in this Agreement that written notice or demand
be given by any Party to any other Party, such notice or demand may be either personally served
or sent by United States Mail, or facsimile. Notice shall be deemed to have been given when
personally served, when deposited in the United States Mail, certified or registered with postage
prepaid and properly addressed, or when transmitted by facsimile provided however, notices
delivered by facsimile shall only be effective if delivered during regular business hours on a day
that is considered a regular business day for NCPA by the involved Parties.

12.9 Integration;_Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the Exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Contracting Members and NCPA
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All Exhibits attached hereto are incorporated

by reference herein.

1210  Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be
settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Contracting Members and NCPA agree to resolve
the dispute in accordance with the following:

12.10.1 Each Party shall designate a senior management or executive level
representative to negotiate any dispute;

12.10.2  The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to resolve the
dispute by any means within their authority.

12
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



12.10.3  If the issue remains unresolved after sixty (60) days of good faith negotiations,
despite having used their best efforts to do so, either Party may pursue whatever other remedies
may be available to it.

12.10.4 This informal resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by Government Code § 900, ef seq.

1211 Other Agreements. This Agreement is not intended to modify or change any other
agreement between any of the Parties, individually or collectively. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, this Agreement does not amend or extend the Prior Agreement.

12.12  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.

12.13  Obligations of Contracting Members Joint and Several; No Joint Venture. The
duties, obligations and liabilities of the Contracting Members, including the obligations to make
payments to NCPA, are intended to be joint and several. Provided that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed to create an association, trust, partnership or joint venture or to
impose a trust or partnership duty, obligation or liability on or with regard to the Contracting
Members.

12.14  Effect of Section Headings. Section headings and subheadings appearing in this
Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be construed as interpretation of text.

12.15  Authority of Signatories. The signatories hereby represent that they have been
appropriately authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom they sign.

1216 Amendments. Unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement, the Parties may
amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the Parties following each Party’s receipt of
written resolution/authorization from their governing bodies, which resolutions/authorizations shall
be condition precedents to any amendments of this Agreement and shall be attached as exhibits to
this Agreement.

13
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

CONTRACTING MEMBERS:
CITY OF PALO ALTO Approved as to Form:
By: By:
City Attorney
Its:
CITY OF SANTA CLARA Approved as to Form
By: By:
City Attorney
Its:
14

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT A
SERVICES

NCPA will enter into the Consulting Services Agreement on behalf of the Contracting
Members, so that NCPA may assist the Contracting Members in securing access to consulting
services related to electric transmission, power generation, regulatory and electric market design
issues affecting the Contracting Members. NCPA'’s primary role as to the Services provided under
this Agreement is to act as contract administrator and billing agent on behalf of the Contracting
Members, as further described herein.

For the purpose of administering Services provided under this Agreement, each Contracting
Member shall be represented by its Authorized Representative. During the term of this Agreement,
the Authorized Representative for each Contracting Member is responsible for coordinating all
requests for Services made to Consultant, and shall manage all related activities as further
described herein.

A Contracting Member may designate a new or alternative Authorized Representative by
providing written notice of such designation to NCPA; such action shall not be treated as an
amendment to this Agreement.

The Contracting Members and Consultant intend to pursue the activities listed below during the
term of this Agreement, pursuant to the Consulting Services Agreement. Such activities will
include monitoring, meeting participation, coordinating with affected or other participating parties,
and, as necessary, preparing and submitting formal position submittals. The Services provided in
accordance with this Agreement and the Consulting Services Agreement are described below:

1. Grid Planning Activities:
a. CAISO Regionalization Process, Transmission Access Charge, Governance and
Resource Adequacy;
i. Coordination with the California Municipal Utilities Association and
Northern California Power Agency on these activities
CAISO/PG&E annual transmission expansion planning process;
Support or oppose specific transmission additions;
Greater Bay Area long term studies;
CAISO local capacity technical study process;
Other regional and sub-regional transmission planning activities;
CAISO Tariff and BPM Change Management Process;
Generator Interconnection Procedure;
Transmission cost minimization;
Impacts due to potential generation retirements;
Transmission for renewables deliverability issues;
CTPG planning process; and
Tracy to Bay development activities.

TAT T TQ@ 0 o0 T

3

2. CPUC and CEC transmission matters:
a. Integrated Energy Policy Report;

15
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



Resource adequacy issues;

Renewable Portfolio Standard issues;

Long Term Procurement issues;

Approval of CPCNs and PTCs for new transmission lines; and
Renewable Energy Transmission Initiative (RETI 2.0).

I

3. CAISO Market Issues:
a. CAISO markets proceedings and implementation matters;
b. Resource Adequacy / Local Capacity/ Flexible Capacity/ Deliverability;
c. LMP congestion and losses incidence and impacts; and
d. Regionalization and New Participating Transmission Owner Issues.

4, Communicate Regularly with Contracting Members:
a. Client meetings, telephone conferences and written summaries of activities on key

issues.

NCPA will accept invoices from Consultant and transmit them to each Contracting Members'
Authorized Representative, or their designee, for their review, and if acceptable, the Contracting
Members' Authorized Representative will direct payment by NCPA. Such payment direction shall
be provided by each Contracting Members’ Authorized Representative, in writing, utilizing
appropriate approval forms as shall be developed and/or revised by NCPA from time to time. An
example of such form is included in Exhibit C of this Agreement. NCPA will prepare invoices
indicating the share of Consultant's costs to be paid by each Contracting Member along with the
appropriate charges by NCPA for its services; however, as provided in the Agreement, each
Contracting Member is jointly and severally liable for the entirety of any amounts billed under this
Agreement. NCPA will then pay Consultant utilizing Contracting Members' funds.

Contracting Members will be solely responsible for payment of the Consultant's invoices, as
well as determining whether or not the Services have been satisfactorily performed. The Services
under this Agreement by NCPA to Contracting Members are limited to contract administration and
billing/payment functions.

16
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including hourly fees

and expenses, shall not exceed One Million Nine Hundred Seventy Two Thousand Five Hundred
Dollars ($1,972,500.00) during the Term of the Agreement, or Six Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand
Five Hundred Dollars ($657,500.00) during each annual period of the Term of the Agreement. The
compensation schedule and hourly fees for Services are as follows:

1.

Monthly charges for Services provided by NCPA for billing and contract preparation under
this Agreement shall be Six Hundred Twenty Five Dollars ($625.00) per month. Such
charges will be allocated to the Contracting Members in accordance with the allocation
percentages listed in Table 1 of this Exhibit B.

Compensation paid to Consultant for all Services, including hourly fees and expenses,
shall not exceed the amounts set forth in Section 2 of the Consulting Services Agreement.
The compensation schedule and hourly fees for Services rendered by Consultant to
Contracting Members are set forth in Exhibit B of the Consulting Services Agreement.
Monthly Charges invoiced by Consultant to NCPA for Services provided to the Contracting
Members, pursuant to the Consulting Services Agreement, shall be allocated to the
Contracting Members in accordance with the allocation percentages listed in Table 1 of
this Exhibit B.

TABLE 1
ALLOCATION PERCENTAGES

Contracting Allocation
Member Percentage

City of Palo Alto 25.0%
City of Santa Clara 75.0%
Total 100.0%

17

BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT C

Bay Area Municipal Transmission Services Agreement (BAMX)
Contracting Member Transmittal
Payment Voucher
For the Period:

To: Northern California Power Agency VIA PDF EMAIL

651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attention: Accounts Payable (*AcctsPayable@ncpa.com)

From:  Contracting Members — The Cities of Palo Alto and Santa Clara(each referred to as a
"Contracting Member" and jointly referred to as “Contracting Members” or "BAMx Participants”)

| the undersigned hereby certify that | am authorized to approve payment of the ATTACHED billing
statement and or invoice(s) and do hereby approve payment thereof by the Billing Agent (Northern
California Power Agency) as indicated below:

For City of Palo Alto:
Name Date

D No exceptions.
D With the deduction of the following exceptions:

For City of Santa Clara:
(Silicon Valley Power)  Name Date

D No exceptions:

D With the deduction of the following exceptions:

18
BAMx PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 18, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: Annual Budget Working Capital Deposit Adjustments for FY2018

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

Y

FROM:  Sondra Ainsworth L)(;HA METHOD OF SELECTION:
Treasurer-Controller N/A
Division: Administrative Services
Department: Accounting & Finance
IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Ukiah [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ Plumas-Sierra REC []
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto [ Port of Oakland [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [] Truckee Donner PUD [
City of Gridley [] City of Roseville [ Other [J
City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [ If other, please specify.

SR: 153:17



Working Capital Adjustment FY18
May 18, 2017 :
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Commission adopt resolution approving the Annual Budget Working
Capital Deposit Adjustment for FY 2018

BACKGROUND:

The Agency provides Working Capital for its Participants and Programs through a combination
of (1) Month Ahead Advance Billing; (2) Project Financed Deposits; and (3) Working Capital
Participant Deposits of 15 to 30 days’ equivalencies — see attached Analysis of Working Capital
Requirements.

In connection with the preparation of the Annual Budget, the Working Capital Participant
Deposits are adjusted each year to reflect any changes in the Annual Budget. The proportional
allocation of these deposits are based on the participants’ participation percentage in each
Project or Program. Any additional deposit required is billed via the monthly All Resource Bill
(ARB) and any Refund credit is deposited to the participant’s individual account in the NCPA
General Operating Reserve (GOR). The updated Working Capital Deposit and FY 2018
Funding Requirement schedules now include the City of Shasta Lake.

Please note that calculations for the Lodi Energy Center have not been includéd based on the
60 day Operating Reserve requirement in the Power Sale Agreement (PSA) for that Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total calculated FY 2018 Working Capital Requirements for the Annual Budget has
decreased by $638,770 or 6.28%. The decrease is primarily due to budgeted decreases in
Market Power Purchases.

The attached Working Capital Deposit and FY 2018 Funding Requirement schedule shows
each participant’s Additional Requirement Charge or (Refund). The Additional Requirement
Charge will be billed on the next ARB following Commission approval, and Refunds of credit
amounts will likewise be deposited into the applicable participant’s individual NCPA G.O.R.
account at that time.

ENVIRQNMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW: This recommendation was reviewed by the Utility Directors on
May 11, 2017 and was recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

oty & 1

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: Resolution 17-52
Analysis of Working Capital Requirements
Working Capital by Participant

SR: 153:17



RESOLUTION 17-52

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET WORKING CAPITAL DEPOSIT ADJUSTMENTS
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 ANNUAL BUDGET : ,

(reference Staff Report #153:17)

WHEREAS, the Amended and Restated Rules of Procedure for the Commission of the
Northern California Power Agency (the NCPA Bylaws) provide in section 11 that,

"11. Budgets. _

(a) NCPA Budget. The General Manager shall, not later than at the regular
Commission meeting in May of each year, present a proposed budget for
the ensuing fiscal year to the Commission, together with a statement of the
payments to be required from the Members by such budget. Such budget
shall include the various NCPA Project budgets. The Commission shall
adopt such budget by resolution, with any changes ordered by it, not later
than the regular meeting in June”; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the NCPA Bylaws, the General Manager of NCPA has
presented a proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2018:; and

WHEREAS, the Agency provides Working Capital for its Projects and Programs
through a combination of month ahead advanced billing, project financed deposits; and
working capital participant deposits of 15 to 30 days’ equivalencies; and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2018 Funding Requirement schedule shows each
participant’s Additional Requirement Charge or (Refund) which includes the new member
City of Shasta Lake; and

WHEREAS, the Additional Requirement Charge will be billed on the next ARB
following Commission approval, and Refunds of credit amounts will be deposited into the
applicable participant’s individual NCPA G.O.R. account; and

WHEREAS, this Commission finds that the adoption of this resolution is exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act. It is not an action which will cause either a direct physical
change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the
environment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern
California Power Agency adopt the resolution authorizing related participant billings or
transfers from the analysis of the Working Capital Deposit Requirement worksheet for Fiscal
Year 2018.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this
by the following vote on roli call:

Vote
Alameda

day of

Abstained

, 2017

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

Resolution 17-52

ATTEST:

CARY PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



‘Aiessadau pasopisucd [e)ideo Buiyiom ON *S2ouBMO|e OHO 18N JaA0D SjuBwIWWod YOO ())
-Aiessadeu pasepisuod [eudes Buyiom oN “OSt YBnouy) sales ABlaus Aq jasyo ate 0S|V - siso) uonebalbby peo (H)
‘0°G 9NPaYds YOI 0sle 883 "sjuawalinbal [ejides Buiyiom jeAod 0} anlasay WO aleledas e suleuew joaford ayt (9)
*Klessaoau palepisuod [eyndes Buyiom [euonippe oN ‘sansst weiboid Bujjood pue AojeinBay ‘aAleisiBan yum pajeisosse s)soo [ebal Aluewud aie sjsod uonoy [erpnp (4)
*Alessaoau palapisuod [ejdes Bupiom [euonippe o ‘sysodap juedioiued palinbal yuswaalby weibold S Aq painoas ale s)soo QS| (3)
‘sejewnsa aseyoind Jebpng Juaund uo paseq [eydes Bupyiom shep gi Alejewixoldde sjuasaldal pasodoid anoge ay] “pus yuow Joye
sAep 0¢ 0) G| paiinbal Allesaush juswAed yim siseq pajewi}ss ue uo pajjiq ale sjuswaiinbal aseysind semod 19xiely (Q)
*Aiessaoau pasapisuod [ejides Buiyiom oN
‘pus yuow Joye sAep og 01 gL paxnbal Ajlelouab juswAed yim siseq pajeiuisa Ue Uo pajjiq sie sjuswalnbal pund uolieiolsay pue N0 ‘Ableus wisisapy (D)
‘Klessooau palopisuod (endes Bujiom oN "YdON Ubnoiy) pajiiq eaueape 1o syuediofted o) Ajoalip pa|liq Jayjie sjunowe 101U Jyoads suasaidsy (g)
‘wesboid yoea Joj paulejutew st {eydes Buiyiom
sAep Og JO WNWIUIW & Jey} 21nsua 0} auop sem sy 1e6png gLA- 8u} Jo G9g/0¢ Juesaldas sjunowe pasodold (v)

*Aed 0} sAep Qg Uum yuow snolaald syy Jog Bu

Yjuow 8y} 0 Yigl B SJeA0d pue quiny} jo ajnu piepuels Ajin e s| (Jeak e jo g/|) uswalinbal

Aep g v "0OSI ay) Buipnjoxa “}abpnq pasodoud ayy jo Juawaunbai Aep og e Ajgjewixoidde syuasaidal zoz'8zs'6$ Jo [endes Buniom gL A4 ayl

Lel'olz'el ¢ (0LL'8€9) $ z/6'99l'0l $ 1/6'990'6 $ 000'00L°T § 202'825'6 $ 6¥9'059'619 $
yr've 202'952'L z02'95¢'L - 929'062°L ZLy'rLE'9L
- - - - 106'525'} s}s00 ybnoiy | ssed juedioied
S.2'6¢ 099 £25's2 fordegera £81'92 295'81e yoddng swaishg pajesbaul
1.t'se (9912) €18'0L el18'oL 199'e9 LIE'YLL RUETENEN
005's2 (81v) gL'l 8iv'LL 000'LL 9€8'902 awabeue ¥siy ABraul
(Lge'e8L) - - - - (L1y'8L8'L) wbld 0} 103 10811Q JusWabeueyy Jomod
Sp0'9l 88l 605'0L 60501 169'0L iri'oel weiboid eseyoind Joxen
G98'0} - oct yLL'L pLLL L LeL'e weibold aseyoind seo
8812 (g) z9¥'L 9Pl 65l ovL'LL 109014 Jomod uaaI9)
900'2yL 852’} eli'es €iv'e6 1L9'v6 828'15L't UolEASIUIWPY JoBJU0D
662'25 928 8€0've 8€0've $98'v¢e YLLV'YeY siieyy 62y @ Buunoniisey (euisnpu
pe'9ze 196'L 966'602 966'602 €96'212 SL0'LY9'e Buiinpayasaid g Buysessiod
GL0'eeL 2e6'6L 110'29% 110'29¥ 01028t Lsv'veg's Uojedsiq peoT pue [01ju0) WelsAg
- - - - 000'529 (2) uonay [eiopnr
£9/'€S 81€ 626'se 626'6E Zr8'se 810'9eY S9IAIBG Jaquioy
¥82'201 $90°} 9zL'19 9z1'L9 681'89 9£9'628 uolejussalday Wajsapm
L12'€0L 09s'e 182'69 182'59 1¥8'89 6£9'2€8 uonejussalday Alojenbay
L19'eve 6059 206'S51 206'G51 ziv'zol 800'9.6'L uonejussaidey anye|sibe
SIOIAYIS INIWIOVNYIA
£69'c 960112 960'L.2 - 67.'v12 96v',92'901
22L'v26'201 (3) osl
62¢'s 1202 9zs'l 9zs'L £56'e 8zz'ey Z "ON Jueld {ewisyjoas)
108'g z8v') €50'e €50'e ¥€5'y 191's§ 1 "ON Jueld [euuayjoad
266'66€ 24" 115'992 115'992 199'992 BLE'YPT'E 2U1031801pAH
NOISSINSNVYL
(L¥8'0.9) €.9'6£9'8 £19'6€5'L 000'00}'} 128'296'L L11'800'L6¥
9/6'%S - - L18'ShY (1) suonebyaQ OH9 18N
v62'2z8'eee (H) 0SIVD - s1s00 uoyebaibby peoy
(Lo6's8%) (680's52) 6L0'100'} GL0'100'L 926's¥Z ¢ gzo'sie'sl (@) saseyoind 1omod 131
- - 088'6L10€ (D) eoinosey wisisapn
N - 9G1'L6h'e (g) ses - soinosay Jequiep
- - $£0'68¢'eS (g) ABJsu3 - soinosey Jequisiy
- - 181'295'29 (9) Jayua) Abisuz 1po
990'€90'L [%:x4 008'S0L (002'v62) 000'000'} L12'80L 9v9'229'8 (S1LS) Z "ON @ulcn | UoNsSNGUIoD
898'€2¢ (652°1) 119412 119102 z16's1e 2€6'929'2 L "ON auigIng uosnquio)
0/8'L¥6'e (622'28) £69'61L'2 £69'6LL'2 £16'1€9'2 119'120'ce [ewayl0s9
9ps'opz'e ¢ 0891 $ vev'see's ¢ vev'ses’e ¢ 000°001 $ poe'09l'y  $ G9L'L19'0G oU1o8[80IPAH
$354N0STY NOILYHINTD
leyden Bupiops (juwbay ssaoxzy) 1eyo _\ suonelado spuog wou- (V) pesodoid 1s09) 18bpng
skeq sy juwbyy 3PPy aoueleg /102 JA jenuuy
Ao jeyde) bupilopm sheg og
wnpuelowsy

jebpng 810z Ad

spuawalinbay [eyides Bupiiopp so siskjeuy

Aouaby oMo elulojije) uidsyUoN




(022'8£9) ¢ 202'825'6 ¢ 2/6'99L°0L

(¥10'v2) 690'7L¢ £80'8¢¢ yenin
(890'9) 82¢'6.LL 96¢'G81 aiL
(¥61) 160°'¢L L6Z'clL lsuuoQ @axoni|
6¥L'vl 67L'vl 0 ayeT ejseys
290'9¢ v19'v12'¢ zL9'sye'e dAS
861'G2 -/£0'980°L 6£8°090'L 9[|INn8s0Y
(L9%) 0L0'vE LIY'VE Buippey
(£59'8¢) 088'SY £€5'¥8 puepeQ jo uod
(91€'29) 8ve Lyl ¥99'861 elISIg sewnid
(£96'15¢) Gov'LLT'L 89¢'995°L 0}y ojed
(1z6'L8) 9/8'00¢ 161'28¢ oodwoT]
(cLL'661) 1G6'21T'L ¥90'LLY'L 1pOT
(00¢'22) 1£6°2Le 1£8'vET BingsplesH
(285'01) vrl'ce Leg'ey Asjpusn
(P2£') 688'¥C S TAS sbbig
002'LLL ove'Tie orL'LL 14vd
(60¥'72) ¢ 898'z8l'L $ 112'1SZ') epawe|y
(punjoy) abaeyn jusawalinbay pueHy uQ juedionled

juswalinbay Buipung ysodaq
leuonippy yobpng 810z Ad lejol

juswalinbay Buipung gL0Z A4 pue usoda( jeyiden Bupopn

Aouaby 1omod eluiojije uidyloN




&

A PUBLIC AGENCY

‘NCP

"NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: May 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: Delegate to the General Manager authority to enter into one or more
agreements, with a total not-to-exceed for all agreements of $1,000,000 for
repair, restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek
Reservoir and related facilities at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: Ken Speer %i% METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant General Manager ~ N/A |

Division: Generation Services

Department: Hydroelectric

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

Bay Area Rapid Transit

O
O
City of Biggs [J
City of Gridley O

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara

0

City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD
Other

If other, please specify.

X

X

o o 0O

SR: 159:17




Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities
May 15, 2017
Page 2

RECONMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to enter into one or more agreements, with a total not-to-exceed
for all agreements of $1,000,000 for repair, restoration and/or replacement of portions of the
Beaver Creek Reservoir and related facilities at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.

BACKGROUND:

Beaver Creek Diversion Dam is part of the North Fork Stanislaus River Hydroelectric Project,
FERC Project No. 2409, which consists of a system of four reservoirs, two hydroelectric power
plants, two diversion tunnels, and one power tunnel. The purpose of Beaver Creek Diversion
Dam (“Dam”) is to provide for the diversion of water to McKays Point Reservoir and the
Collierville powerhouse via a forebay for the Beaver Creek Diversion Tunnel and Penstock. The
Beaver Creek Reservoir (“Reservoir”) itself serves to provide reliable regulation of penstock
flows and minimum fish flow releases, as required by one or more regulatory agencies, as well
as serving as a sediment trap to protect the fish screen from frequent plugging. The Dam also
provides water for power generation and water consumption purposes.

The January and February 2017 unusually heavy storms and related flooding nearly completely
filled the Reservoir (20 - 30% reservoir capacity remain) and plugged the diversion fish screen
and the Dam’s low-level outlet preventing water diversion into McKays. The level of reservoir
sedimentation and debris left by the 2017 storms is approximately 11,400 cubic yards as
determined by a reservoir survey conducted on May 1. Annual average hydroelectric income
attributable to the Dam and related facilities is approximately $1,700,000. Immediate clearing of
the fish screen, the low-level outlet, and a portion of the Reservoir basin is required to restore
the functionality of the Dam and to re-establish the ability to reliably generate hydropower with
available water supplies.

Normally, this type of work would be competitively bid as one or more public works construction
projects. However, as described below, there are unique circumstances as to timing and the
scope of work. California law allows a public entity not to engage in standard competitive
bidding processes when the competitive process would not be advantageous to the public and
advertising for competitive bids would therefore be undesirable, impractical, or impossible. (See
Graydon v. Pasadena Redevelopment Agency (1980) 104 Cal.App.3d 631, 635-636.)

The anticipated agreements for the Reservoir and related facilities will consist of repairs,
restoration and/or replacement of facilities (“the Project”), including an initial effort with a suction
dredge and dive team to clear the low-level outlet and fish screen facility to regain reservoir
control, thereby allowing the reservoir to be dewatered and to allow for the necessary remaining
work to be performed essentially “in-the-dry” to maintain adequate water quality. This “in-the-
dry” effort may utilize a combination of a 100-ton crane and a long-reach excavator to remove
sediments from the Reservoir. All dredged material will be removed from the site to either
temporary stockpiles or a final sediment disposal site, or utilized for beneficial use by the
surrounding land owners (U.S. Forest Service and Sierra Pacific Industries) for meadow
restoration projects or road repairs. Staff is aggressively pursuing the beneficial use of a portion
of the sediments as much as possible to reduce trucking and the corresponding overall disposal
costs. Because of this uncertainty as to the exact scope, it would be impractical and/or
impossible to prepare the technical specifications necessary for a standard public works bid
package.

SR: 159:17



Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities
May 15, 2017
Page 3

NCPA received, on May 4™ an emergency RPG-8 permit from the U.S. Army Corps (ACOE).
The ACOE notified and provided consultative support to various other regulatory agencies. The
permit was received two weeks ahead of ACOE projections. This permit stipulated that the
Project must start within seven days of permit approval to maintain coverage under the permit.
Without RPG-8 permit coverage, normal non-emergency ACOE dredging permit timelines take
one to two years. This short notice also makes the use of standard competitive bid procedures
impractical and/or impossible.

The primary access road to the Beaver Creek Dam and Reservoir, owned by the USFS, was
severely damaged in two locations during the 2017 storms and was impassable until late April
after NCPA in partnership with SPI constructed two, USFS approved, temporary bypasses. The
road remains closed to the public. The bypasses were completed May 15" and certified by the
USFS to carry the large equipment NCPA intends to use to accomplish the Project. Again, the
previously uncertain, and quickly changing access conditions affected when NCPA can bring in
one or more contractors to begin the Project, also making the use of competitive bid
procedures difficult.

NCPA intends to conduct a value-based competitive bid process with invited and reliable local
contractors who already have existing General Services Agreements with NCPA. ltis
anticipated that the invitation list will be limited to those contractors which were recently pre-
qualified for the Adit 4 Spoils Facility Repair Public Works Contract and which were, as well, the
three lowest received bids. A relatively small portion of the work is anticipated to be conducted
by a specialized suction dredging contractor which will either be retained as a subcontractor to
the selected general contractor or contract directly with NCPA. All contracts will be structured
such as to maintain control over the ultimate amount of material to be removed as the work
progresses. Staff will utilize the detailed breakdown of the 2006/2008 dredging costs as a
comparative baseline in the bid review process. Furthermore, NCPA staff will require each of
the three companies to provide competitive proposals, although not in the method used as part
of the standard public works bid process. Furthermore, the contracts with these firms will
include appropriate protections for NCPA and the public which are part of a standard public
works contract. Therefore, the public interest will be served by using firms which have
previously participated in a standard competitive bid process, will be part of a competitive
process for this Project, and will be subject to appropriate standard public works contract
provisions. Furthermore, the scope of work is not presently known due to a currently
submerged work area, unspecified disposal sites, and unknown permit conditions, making it
impossible to prepare defined project specifications and to fairly administer a public works
bidding process. Therefore, engaging in a standard public works bid process is impractical, if
not impossible; public interest, including environmental protections, will be best served by
engaging in this alternative competitive process.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

CEQA Guidelines section 15269 states that a project is exempt from CEQA review when the
project is to “repair, restore, ... or replace property or facilities damaged or destroyed as a result
of a disaster in a disaster stricken area in which a state of emergency has been proclaimed by
the Governor....” Also exempt are: “specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an
emergency.”

SR: 159:17



Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities
May 15, 2017
Page 4

The Dam was rendered completely inoperable due to the 2017 storms. The Dam and Reservoir
are each located in counties declared to be disaster-stricken by both the Governor and the
federal government. Without the Project, NCPA may not be able to meet the various regulatory
environmental requirements relating to stream flows and other matters dependent on proper
operation of the Dam and Reservoir. While the emergency classification exempts the Project
from CEQA, all other environmental permit requirements remain in force with agency-specific
emergency provisions with which NCPA must comply.

Staff initiated consultation with the below listed agencies with jurisdiction over the proposed
action:

United States Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE)
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW)
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB)
State Water Quality Control Board (SWQCB)
United States Fish and Wildlife (USFWS)

Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
State Office of Historical Preservation (SOHP)
United States Forest Service (USFS)

California Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD)
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
Sierra Pacific Industries (SPI)

At this point, of the above agencies, the USFS, SPI, and FERC have yet to issue permits for the
Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Annual average hydroelectric generation attributable to the Beaver Creek Dam is approximately
$1,700,000.

The Project is currently estimated to be $1,000,000. The detailed scope and corresponding
cost is under development with the remaining uncertainties being:

Sediment volumes and type deposited

Contractor availability and pricing

Final USFS approval of temporary bypass repairs to the Beaver Creek Access Road
Locations of sediment disposal site(s)

Water flow rates passing through the site during the work timeframe

Final agency permit conditions

If the projected Project costs increase as the work proceeds, staff will return to the Commission
for additional authorizations as may be necessary.

In February 2017, the NCPA Commission passed Resolution 17-16 finding and declaring a state
of emergency with respect to the NCPA Calaveras Hydroelectric Generation Project and
authorizing the General Manager to take such steps as necessary to obtain funds to maintain,
repair, restore, or replace the project. Staff has notified the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) and NCPA'’s insurance broker of the 2017 loss. In similar Beaver Creek storm-
related sedimentation historical losses, NCPA received FEMA reimbursements due to the 2006

SR: 159:17



Beaver Creek Reservoir and Related Facilities
May 15, 2017
Page 5

flood incident, but not due to the 1997 incident. FEMA requires that the applicant demonstrates
that it first pursue insurance reimbursement prior to FEMA providing funding. NCPA'’s insurance
broker is currently reviewing the loss to determine if it is covered and to provide an overall
recommendation. If the claim were to be covered, the deductible would be $500,000.

To date, $550,000 has been collected for Beaver Creek Sediment removal as part of ongoing
Hydroelectric Project Capital Development Reserve funding. An additional $125,000 is
proposed for collection as part of the FY18 budget, resulting in a total of $675,000 available
after July 1, 2017. Remaining needed funds are proposed to be drawn from the McKays
Cleanout Capital Development Reserve Account and/or the Hydroelectric Project Maintenance
Reserve Account. Both funds can be refunded by FEMA or insurance reimbursements if they
ultimately materialize.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 3, 2017 and was

recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

v

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)
¢ Resolution

SR: 159:17



RESOLUTION 17-44

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
DELEGATING TO THE GENERAL MANAGER AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO ONE OR
MORE AGREEMENTS NOT-TO-EXCEED $1,000,000 FOR REPAIR, RESTORATION,
AND/OR REPLACEMENT OF PORTIONS OF THE BEAVER CREEK RESERVOIR AND
RELATED FACILITIES AT THE NCPA HYDROELECTRIC PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #159:17)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains the Beaver Creek
Reservoir and related facilities on behalf of the project participants in the North Fork Stanislaus River

Hydroelectric Development Project; and

WHEREAS, the Hydroelectric Facility’'s Beaver Creek Reservoir has received debilitating volumes of
sediments and debris during the January and February 2017 unusually heavy storms; and

WHEREAS, the Beaver Creek Reservoir is currently inoperable, and requires immediate sediment
removal and related work to ensure its safe and environmentally compliant operation, to re-establish the
functionality of the Reservoir and related facilities, and to have the ability to reliably generate hydropower with

available water supplies; and

WHEREAS, water diversion from Beaver Creek Reservoir provides critical and substantial generation
volumes and capacity; and

WHEREAS, the Commission on February 23, 2017, declared an Emergency for all January 2017 storm
related damages; and

WHEREAS, significant work needs to be performed for the repair, restoration and/or replacement of
portions of the Reservoir and related facilities; and

WHEREAS, the exact scope of the work to be performed cannot be determined until initial dredging
and de-watering of the Reservoir is completed; and

WHEREAS, the Army Corps of Engineers has issued an emergency RPG-8 permit for dredging and
related activities and that permit requires work to begin within seven days of the permit’s issuance and, without
that permit, the work could not be performed for another one to two years; and

WHEREAS, NCPA will contract with one or more contractors which successfully completed a pre-
qualification process for other construction work at the Hydro Facility and were the three lowest bidders on the
other construction project; and

WHEREAS, the urgency for the work to be initiated immediately, the unanticipated need for the work,
the unknown precise scope of the work, and the use of prequalified, competitive contractors in a competitive
process support and the other factors set forth in the staff report support NCPA determining that the public
interest is best served by engaging in the alternative competitive process outlined in the staff report; and

WHEREAS, this Project is exempt from CEQA under Regulation 15269 relating to emergencies; and

WHEREAS, the Commission finds that immediate action is required to mitigate the impairment of
essential public services; and



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager to enter into one or more agreements, with a total not-to-exceed for all
agreements of $1,000,000 for repair, restoration and/or replacement of portions of the Beaver Creek Reservoir

and related facilities at the NCPA Hydroelectric Project.
day of _ , 2017 by the following vote on

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this
roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR : ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: May 15, 2017

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

May 25, 2017

SUBJECT: Meyers Nave Three Year Legal Services Contract for Assistant General Counsel
and Special Counsel Services

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

FROM: %Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Department. General Manager

Division: Executive Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power .
Bay Area Rapid Tranéit
City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

O o o o O

City of Lodi City of Ukiah
City of Lompoc Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Palo Alto Port of Oakland

City of Redding Truckee Donner PUD

City of Roseville Other

O o o o o o

City of Santa Clara If other, please specify.

O o o o o

SR: 162:17




Meyers Nave Legal Services Agreement
May 15, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Resolution 17-46 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Legal Services Contract with Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson (Meyers Nave) for legal
services in connection with special counsel and Assistant General Counsel services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shall not exceed $750,000 over three years.

BACKGROUND:

Legal expertise and services are essential to the success of NCPA and will be integrated and
coordinated across the Agency’s various divisions by its in-house General Counsel. NCPA has
historically hired various specialized attorneys on an as-needed basis. NCPA anticipates the
need to supplement the services provided by its General Counsel with specialized external legal
services and will do so in furtherance of the Strategic Plan goals to control costs and minimize
risks while maximizing the value of assets. Meyers Nave has provided legal services to NCPA
for over 12 years.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Services pursuant to this contract are on an hourly basis. Legal services are budgeted and
approved by NCPA as part of each year’s annual budget and charged to the programs or
projects receiving the services. Approximately $450,000 of legal services was approved in the
FY 2017 budget. The current rate charged by Meyers Nave for assistant general counsel
services is $340 which is proposed to increase to $390 as of July 1, 2017. With the addition of
in-house General Counsel, however, it is estimated that a savings in the cost of Assistant
General Counsel and specialized legal services will be realized.

SELECTION PROCESS:

A Request for Qualifications and Proposals was dispatched to potentially qualified firms and
individual attorneys on November 4, 2016, which included specialized areas of law of human
relations, benefits, labor laws, bankruptcy, water rights, real estate law, environmental law, and
other specialties as needed. In addition, the RFQ included requirements for general counsel
services. Meyers Nave submitted a proposal responsive to all areas of law. Meyers Nave was
selected as a result of this formal bidding process which was done in accordance with NCPA’s
procurement policies and procedures. Proposers were evaluated based first on qualifications
and second on the fee proposals submitted.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

SR: 162:17



Meyers Nave Legal Services Agreement
May 15, 2017
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

Qo 3 1

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (2)
¢ Resolution No. 17-46
e Legal Services Contract between Meyers Nave and NCPA

SR: 162:17



RESOLUTION 17-46

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A THREE YEAR LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH
MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON

(reference Staff Report #162:17)

WHEREAS, legal expertise and services are essential to the success of the Northern California Power
Agency (NCPA) and will be integrated and coordinated across the Agency’s various divisions by its in-house
General Counsel; and

WHEREAS, NCPA anticipates the need to supplement the services provided by its General Counsel
with specialized external legal services and will do so in furtherance of the Strategic Plan goals to control costs
and minimize risks while maximizing the value of assets; and

WHEREAS, Meyers Nave provides both specialized legal services and has experience providing
assistant general counsel services, having provided legal services to NCPA for over 12 years; and

WHEREAS, NCPA issued a Request for Qualifications and Proposals on November 4, 2016. After
review by the selection committee, Meyers Nave was chosen to provide assistant general counsel services
and specialized services on an as-needed basis; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Legal Services Contract with Meyers, Nave,
Riback, Silver & Wilson (Meyers Nave) for legal services in connection with special counsel and Assistant
General Counsel services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $750,000 over three years.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2017 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent

Alameda
BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Truckee Donner




Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-46

ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT

2.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY



LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT

1. Scope of Engagement. Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson (hereafter “we” or
“Meyers Nave”) will provide the legal services reasonably required to represent and advise
Northern California Power Agency (hereafter “you” or “NCPA”) in connection with special
counsel services, as requested by you and agreed to by us. Such services may relate to areas of
public law (e.g., Brown Act, conflicts of interest, the California Public Records Act, joint powers
agencies), public contracting and public works issues, labor and employment issues, energy
regulatory issues and other areas as requested.

2. Fees and Personnel. As compensation for our services, our fees will be based on our
current standard billing rate for the personnel performing services under this agreement at the
time such services are rendered. Our billing rates for attorneys and paralegals are attached as
Attachment 1.

Ruthann G. Ziegler will be the Principal in charge of representing your interests; her time will be
billed at $390/hour. Ms. Ziegler shall also serve as Assistant General Counsel to NCPA. Other
attorneys who may be providing services to NCPA include Nick Norvell, Mary McKenzie, Jesse
Lad and Spencer Wilson. If other attorneys and/or paralegals are assigned to work on your
matter, the then current hourly rates of those individuals will be utilized. This agreement retains
the legal services of our law firm and not of a particular attorney. Our hourly rates will increase
as of July 1,2018, and each July 1 annually thereafter by the greater of 3% or the CPI increase
for the San Francisco-Oakland area over the prior 12 month period, rounded to the nearest five
dollar increment.

3. Disbursements and Expenses. In addition to hourly fees, we may incur out-of-pocket
expenses related to your representation. Our Statement of Fee and Billing Information, which
sets forth the details of our disbursement and expense policy, is attached as Attachment 2.

4. Billing and Payment Responsibilities. We will send monthly statements which are due

within 30 days of receipt. If you have any questions about an invoice, please prompitly telephone
or write me so that we may discuss these matters. Our Statement of Fee and Billing Information

sets forth the details of our fee and billing policy.

5. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement is through and including June 30,
2020; the term may be extended by mutual written agreement.

6. Termination of Services. In addition to Section 5 hereof, the parties may terminate this
Agreement as set forth herein.

You may terminate our services at any time by written notice. After receiving such notice, we
will cease providing services. We will cooperate with you in the orderly transfer of all related
files and records to your new counsel.

We may terminate our services at any time with your written consent or for good cause. Good
cause exists if: (a) any statement is not paid within 60 days of its date; (b) you fail to meet any
other obligation under this agreement and continue in that failure for 15 days after we send
written notice to you; (c¢) you have misrepresented or failed to disclose material facts to us,

ES-VEN-2017-005



refused to cooperate with us, refused to follow our advice on a material matter, or otherwise
made our representation unreasonably difficult; or (d) any other circumstance exists in which
ethical rules of the legal profession mandate or permit termination, including situations where a
conflict of interest arises. If we terminate our services, you agree to execute a substitution of
attorneys promptly and otherwise cooperate in effecting that termination.

Termination of our services, whether by you or by us, will not relieve the obligation to pay for
services rendered and costs incurred before our services formally ceased.

7. Insurance. During the term of this engagement, we shall take out and maintain general
liability and property damage insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000; professional errors
and omissions insurance, in amounts not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence; and $4,000,000
aggregate, which insurance may not be canceled or reduced in required limits of liability unless
at least ten days advance written notice be given to you.

8. No Guarantee of Outcome. Any comments made by us about the potential outcome of
this matter are expressions of opinion only and are not guarantees or promises about any
outcome or results.

9. Dispute Resolution. In the event you become dissatisfied with any aspect of our
relationship, we encourage you to bring such concerns to our attention immediately. If we are
unable to resolve any dispute, either arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or
relating to the services performed by our firm or any of its attorneys, to our mutual satisfaction,
our firm will first comply with any mandatory dispute resolution procedures that may apply to
any such dispute.

If we are unable to resolve any dispute, and after mandatory dispute resolution procedures have
been waived or exhausted, the parties shall submit such dispute to final and binding arbitration in
Sacramento County, California before the American Arbitration Association, pursuant to its then
prevailing rules, unless the parties agree in writing to a different arbitration method or forum.

By signing this agreement, you acknowledge and agree that you have read and understand this
arbitration provision. You understand that by agreeing to arbitration we each give up the right to
present our claims or defenses for trial by a judge or jury, and we also give up the right to an
appeal. The initial resort to the courts by either party shall not be considered a waiver of that
party’s right to compel binding arbitration under this provision. This agreement shall be
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard
to principles of conflicts of laws.

10. Document Retention. In the course of the our representation of NCPA, you may
provide us with and we may obtain documents that are relevant to the representation. Some of
those documents may be important to you; to minimize confusion we find that it is useful for us
to communicate our Document Retention Policy. Meyers Nave is committed to using less paper
and eliminating unnecessary copies of documents. This helps us manage information, helps the
environment and helps us control costs. The materials pertaining to this matter belong to you and
you may access them or have duplicates provided to you at any time during your representation
with the exception of certain Meyers Nave firm and accounting information. At the conclusion of

Legal Services Contract between NCPA Page 2
and Meyers Nave



this matter, no further representation will be provided and we recommend that you make
arrangements to retrieve all original documents.

It is the our general policy that we maintain records for a period of ten (10) years after
conclusion of the matter although, due to certain practical considerations, that is not always
possible. Additionally, while we take steps to ensure that all records are held in strict confidence
and maintained in a secure location, we cannot guarantee that something beyond our control will
not occur resulting in damage to client records.

Thus, if in the course of our representation you provide us with original documents that you
consider important or desire to keep, we recommend: first, you inform us in writing that the
documents are important and, second, we ask that you take immediate possession of such
documents upon the conclusion of our representation. If we do not hear from you, we will
generally retain only the documents and materials pertaining to this matter which we designate as
vital for a period of ten years. After that time, such documents will be destroyed unless, before
that time, you notify us in writing that you wish to take possession of them.

11.  Entire Agreement; Full Understanding; Modifications in Writing. This letter
contains our entire agreement about our representation, and replaces in full any prior writings
concerning legal representation. Any modifications or additions to this letter agreement must be
made in writing.

12.  Joint Representation. Our firm maintains of counsel agreements with certain attorneys.
Because these individuals are deemed independent contractors under the applicable provisions of
the tax laws and not employees of the firm, it is necessary that you consent to dual representation
by the firm and the “of counsel” in the event the matter which you have engaged us to handle
requires the use of that attorney. This arrangement has no effect whatsoever on the cost of your
legal services, rather it is an ethical requirement that we disclose this fact and that you consent.
You are consenting by signing this letter.

13.  Conflicts. Our firm represents many public agencies in California, Nevada and Arizona.
Since 1986, we have represented over seven hundred public clients, including numerous cities,
redevelopment agencies, special districts, counties and other public entities, and we are accepting
new engagements all the time. It is virtually inevitable that we will work on projects from other
clients having different governmental or political objectives, beliefs or views from NCPA.

Meyers Nave performs a variety of professional services for its public sector clients and it is
possible that we will represent public agency clients which are adverse to NCPA on other
matters. To avoid potential problems, you agree that you expressly waive any actual or potential
conflicts that might arise from such representation, that you will not attempt to disqualify Meyers
Nave on such matters, and that our firm is free to represent its clients on such matters.

By signing this letter and returning it to us, you acknowledge that we have discussed these
matters and you confirm that NCPA does not object to our representation of clients on matters
where their legal, governmental or political objectives and/or positions may be different from or
adverse to those of NCPA, and that NCPA waives any conflict of interests with respect to our
representation of such clients with differing legal, governmental or political interests. You

Legal Services Contract between NCPA Page 3
and Meyers Nave



further confirm that NCPA will not assert any conflict of interest concerning such representation
or attempt to disqualify this firm from representing such clients notwithstanding such adversity.
While you would certainly be free to terminate our relationship, you agree that this firm
nonetheless would be free to represent such clients even on those matters which you consider
adverse, and that you waive any conflict of interest in connection therewith. This conflict waiver
does not allow and NCPA has not consented to Meyers Nave representing other clients in any
action directly adverse to NCPA, including but not limited to litigation, arbitration, or
administrative proceedings.

These acknowledgments do not permit our firm to represent another client in opposing the
specific project for which you engage us without your specific written consent. You may wish,
and we encourage you, to consult legal counsel regarding the effect of this conflict waiver.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY  MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER
& WILSON

Date Date

Randy S. Howard, General Manager Ruthann G. Ziegler, Principal

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane Luckhardt, General Counsel

c: Billing Department
Conflicts Department

Enclosures: Attachments 1 and 2

Legal Services Contract between NCPA Page 4
and Meyers Nave



ATTACHMENT 1

MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON

RATE SHEET
Billing Personnel Hourly Rate
Principals $325-5440
Of Counsel $290-5400
Associates $210-$315
Paralegals $160-5210
Law Clerks $130-S170

Our rates adjust as of July 1 of each calendar year, by the greater of 3% or the CPI
increase for the San Francisco-Oakland area over the prior 12 month period, rounded
to the nearest five dollar increment.



ATTACHMENT 2

MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER & WILSON
STATEMENT OF FEE AND BILLING INFORMATION

The following is a general description of our fee and billing policies. These general policies
may be modified by the specific engagement letter or agreement to which this summary is
attached.

Professional Fees. Our fees for professional services are based on the fair value of the
services rendered. To help us determine the value of our services, our attorneys and
paralegals maintain time records for each client and matter. Our attorneys and paralegals are
assigned hourly rates which are based on years of experience, specialization, training and
level of professional attainment. We adjust our rates periodically (usually at the beginning of
each year) to take into account inflation and the increased experience of our professional
personnel.

To keep professional fees at a minimum, legal work that does not require more experienced
attorneys will be performed, where feasible, by attorneys with lower billing rates. Of course,
the quality of the work is paramount, and we do not sacrifice quality to economy.

Before undertaking a particular assignment, we will, if requested, provide you with a fee
estimate to the extent possible. Estimates are not possible for some matters, however, and
cannot be relied on in many others because the scope of our work will not be clear at the
outset. When a fee estimate is given, it is only an estimate; it is not a maximum or minimum
fee quotation. The actual fee may be more or less than the quoted estimate.

Billing And Payment Procedures. Unless other arrangements are made at the time of the
engagement, invoices will be sent monthly. Invoices for outside services exceeding $100
may be billed separately. Occasionally, however, we may defer billing for a given month or
months if the accrued fees and costs do not warrant current billing or if other circumstances
would make it appropriate to defer billing.

Our invoices contain a brief narrative description of the work performed, if requested, the
initials of the attorney who performed the work will appear on the statement. The invoice
will include a line item reflecting in-house administrative costs. The firm’s in-house
administrative costs include, but are not limited to, duplicating, facsimile charges, telephone
charges, E-mail, postage, mileage and other administrative expenses.

The firm will be reimbursed for all outside services incurred in the course of providing legal
services to our client(s). Outside services will include, but are not limited to, all third-party
expenses, delivery charges, travel expenses, outside research services, filing fees, expert
witness and expert consultant fees. To defray the firm’s costs for administering these
services, there will be an additional cost advance charge of 2% for all outside services of
$100 or more.



If you have any questions regarding an invoice, the Finance Director or Executive Director is
available to answer your questions. For any unresolved matters, the Bar Association has an
arbitration mechanism that can be used to resolve such matters.

Late Payments. Statements for services are payable upon presentation and, in all events,
within thirty (30) days after receipt. Occasionally a client has difficulty in making timely
payments. To avoid burdening those clients who pay their statements promptly with the
added costs we incur as a result of late payments, a late charge will be assessed on statements
not paid within thirty (30) days. The maximum monthly late payment charge will be 1.5%
per month. In the unlikely event we are required to institute legal proceedings to collect fees
and costs, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs of
collection.



A PUBLIS AGENGY

NCPA

#NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

May 16, 2017
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: May 25, 2017
SUBJECT: Provision of Services to the Sierra Valley.Energy Authority

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

N f‘/
v

97

FROM: David Dockham\B A METHOD OF SELECTION:

AGM, Power Management N/A
Division: Power Management If other, please describe:

Department: Industry Restructuring

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Ukiah

Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ Plumas-Sierra REC
Bay Area Rapid Transit [] City of Palo Alto [ Port of Oakland
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [ Other

City of Healdsburg [J City of Santa Clara [ If other, please specify.

0o o o o o

SR: 166:17



Provision of Services to the Sierra Valley Energy Authority
May 25, 2017
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

NCPA staff recommends that the Commission approve and authorize: (i) NCPA to engage in
negotiations with Sierra Valley Energy Authority to develop a Services Agreement under which
NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to Sierra Valley
Energy Authority, and (ii) delegated authority to the General Manager of NCPA to negotiate the
amount of compensation to be charged to Sierra Valley Energy Authority for NCPA’s provision
of Services within a defined range, as further set forth herein.

BACKGROUND:
The County of Placer, and other signatory participants, have previously formed the Sierra Valley

Energy Authority, a Joint Powers Agency, to perform certain functions, including, but not limited
to, establishing and managing a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) program within the
County of Placer. The Sierra Valley Energy Authority has expressed an interest in taking
certain scheduling and portfolio management services from Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA). ltis forecasted that Sierra Valley Energy Authority may serve a significant portion of
the load located in the County of Placer, excluding load currently served by the City of Roseville.

SERVICES:
In response to Sierra Valley Energy Authority’s request, NCPA staff are seeking Commission

approval and authorization to engage in active negotiations with the Sierra Valley Energy
Authority, to develop a Services Agreement under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling
and portfolio management services to Sierra Valley Energy Authority. NCPA staff have
developed a draft Services Agreement that contains baseline terms and conditions NCPA will
use in negotiations with Sierra Valley Energy Authority. The Services Agreement includes a
defined scope of services; scheduling services, control center services, and portfolio
management and optimization services. NCPA is not seeking Commission approval of the
Services Agreement at this time; rather, NCPA is seeking authorization from the Commission to
engage in active negotiations with Sierra Valley Energy Authority based upon the baseline
terms and conditions contained in the draft Services Agreement. The key terms and conditions
contained in the draft Services Agreement are: an initial term of two (2) years, a defined scope
of services, provisions to limit NCPA'’s liability, compensation, and various credit and
collateralization requirements for Sierra Valley Energy Authority.

A copy of the draft Services Agreement is attached to this staff report for your reference.

FISCAL IMPACT:

To develop a proposed amount of compensation NCPA would receive for its provision of
services to Sierra Valley Energy Authority, NCPA staff have developed an estimated cost of
service using the NCPA Power Management Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model (commonly
known as the “Nexant Model”) as a reference. The estimated cost of service developed using
the Nexant Model is based on a set of modeling assumptions that were presented to and
reviewed by the Facilities Committee, including direction provided by the Facilities Committee to
allocate certain directly assigned costs in proportion to how such costs are allocated in the
model. As part of NCPA’s negotiation with Sierra Valley Energy Authority, NCPA staff
recommends that the Commission delegate authority to the General Manager of NCPA to
negotiate an amount of compensation for services attributed to regular operations within the

following ranges:

e Year One (1) of Term: $412,250 - $557,750
e Year Two (2) of Term: $437,750 - $592,250

SR: 166:17



Provision of Services to the Sierra Valley Energy Authority
May 25, 2017
Page 3

In addition to compensation for services attributed to regular operations, NCPA staff also
recommends that the Commission delegate authority to the General Manager of NCPA to
incorporate an integration charge into NCPA’s offer made to Sierra Valley Energy Authority, that
would be separately stated, and may or may not be included in the regular operations
negotiating range stated above if such is deemed appropriate by the General Manager, based
on estimated costs associated with integrating Sierra Valley Energy Authority into NCPA'’s

business processes.

NCPA’s administrative costs for development of a Services Agreement with Sierra Valley
Energy Authority will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described the NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:
The recommendation was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on May 17, 2017. No formal

action was taken by the Facilities Committee on May 17, 2017, however, the committee
members who were present at the meeting voiced their support for the recommendation stated

herein, and no other meeting attendees had any objections.

Respectfully submitted,

Ao

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Aftachments: 2

SR: 166:17



RESOLUTION 17-50

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
PROVISION OF SERVICES TO THE SIERRA VALLEY ENERGY AUTHORITY

(reference Staff Report #166:17)

WHEREAS, the County of Placer, and other signatory participants, have previously formed the Sierra
Valley Energy Authority, a Joint Powers Agency, to perform certain functions, including, but not limited to,
establishing and managing a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) program within the County of Placer; and

WHEREAS, the Sierra Valley Energy Authority has expressed an interest in taking certain scheduling
and portfolio management services from Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), and it is forecasted that
Sierra Valley Energy Authority may serve a significant portion of the load located in the County of Placer,
excluding load currently served by the City of Roseville; and

WHEREAS, in response to Sierra Valley Energy Authority’s request, NCPA staff are seeking Commission
approval and authorization to engage in active negotiations with the Sierra Valley Energy Authority, to develop
a Services Agreement under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to
Sierra Valley Energy Authority; and

WHEREAS, NCPA staff have developed a draft Services Agreement that contains baseline terms and
conditions NCPA will use for engaging in negotiations with Sierra Valley Energy Authority; and

WHERAS, the key terms and conditions contained in the draft Services Agreement are: an initial term of
two (2) years, a defined scope of services, provisions to limit NCPA’s liability, compensation, and various credit
and collateralization requirements for Sierra Valley Energy Authority; and

WHEREAS, to develop a proposed amount of compensation NCPA would receive for its provision of
services to Sierra Valley Energy Authority, NCPA staff have developed an estimated cost of service using the
NCPA Power Management Cost Allocation Spreadsheet Model (commonly known as the “Nexant Model’) as a
reference; and

WHEREAS, NCPA’s administrative costs for development of a Services Agreement with Sierra Valley
Energy Authority will be allocated to members in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as
described the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves and authorizes: (i) NCPA to engage in negotiations with Sierra Valley Energy Authority to develop a
Services Agreement under which NCPA may supply certain scheduling and portfolio management services to
Sierra Valley Energy Authority, and (ii) delegate authority to the General Manager of NCPA to negotiate the
amount of compensation to be charged to Sierra Valley Energy Authority for NCPA’s provision of Services
within a defined range as further set forth in Staff Report 166:17.



PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of

on roll call:

Alameda

Abstained

Absent

BART

Biggs

Gridley

Healdsburg

Lodi

LLompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

Santa Clara

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra

BOB LINGL
CHAIR

NCPA Resolution 17-50

ATTEST:

, 2017 by the following vote

CARY A. PADGETT
ASSISTANT SECRETARY



DRAFT

SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

AND

SIERRA VALLEY ENERGY AUTHORITY



DRAFT

Table of Contents

Y=Y 1 o) o I A 2 L1 7Y PP 1
SECtion 2. DEFINITIONS ..ooceeiiieire ittt ettt sb st s s n et s s et s e nne e nneeanneneeesanesasees 2
Section 3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT .....ceitiitiiitiiiiieceteette et ereers et s esineeeseeesaseesneesneenseessesenens 5
Section 4. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE .......ccccceovveneercninnnen 5
Section 5. TERM AND TERMINATION .....ceeiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e rieerieseeett st s sae s s eeeeesseeeeeseneneneeessnesaseanne 7
Section 6. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ........ciiiiiiiee ettt et 7
Section 7. COMPENSATION ....ccciiiiiieriii i s s aar e s s e asans e es 9
Section 8. BILLING AND PAYMENT ....ooiiieeiererceeriee s ieeeee e eeersreesmresmee e smeesnessmneesmnesresesnsessnes 9
Section 9. COOPERATION AND FURTHER ASSURANCES .......ooiiiiicrieiirccenreeeeeeeee e srasne 11
Section 10.  DEFAULTS ..ottt it e e s bbb a bbb es e e s e s e s snrarreeeees 11
Section 11. CAISO SECURITY DEPOSIT AND CREDIT REQUIREMENTS .....c.cviviiivineirininieniencnnes 14
Section 12.  SECURITY ACCOUNT ...ocuieiiiereiitence st sice i e s nes e sressnrsssas e e esbns st snns 14
Section 13.  SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES .....ccoiiiiiiiiniciintinicciinrc et s sre e 17
Section 14.  STATUS OF NCPA.... oottt ettt e tea e ste e st saeeste e s s sees e e seneeesaranessmenesnasesnras 17
Section 15.  MISCELLANEOQUS.......oociieiieniteiirce st e et et e sne et sresne s e e e e e enas e e s e seesrassabeses 18
APPENDIX A (SCOPE OF SERVICES) ..cuueiitiinieeieniieniree e srees e see s ee e et sesbe s asssae s ssnsnsessrassanes 1
APPENDIX B (COMPENSATION SCHEDULE) ..cceiiiiiiiieenienttrreeee st eeesee e s ssre s sas e ennssnesenneenns 1
APPENDIX C (SCHEDULING PROCEDURES])............... ...................................................................... 1
APPENDIX D (OPERATING PROCEDURES) ..couerieriieeeriic it nstssie e sressrsssassnsssbsssesneesns 1
APPENDIX E (CUSTOMER RESOURCES) .....ticiiiiirre ittt scenssesencssse e ssas i st sae s saesses e s 1
APPENDIX F (TASK ORDER PROGCESS) ...ccictiriiirierterieeeesteeseeenesseeessreesnesssmemr e sas s ssssesnasssrnssnesssnnssnns 1
i

SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

This SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made by and between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“NCPA”), and Sierra
Valley Energy Authority, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“Customer”). NCPA
and Customer are together sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”.

This Agreement is made as of ,20__ (the “Effective Date”) in Roseville,

California.
Section 1. RECITALS
This Agreement is entered into based on the following facts, among others:

1.1 NCPA has heretofore been duly established as a joint powers agency pursuant to
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the Government Code of the State of California and, among
other things, is authorized to acquire, construct, finance, and operate buildings, works, facilities

and improvements for the generation and transmission of electric capacity and energy for

resale.

1.2 Customer is a joint powers agency pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act
of the Government Code of the State of California and, among other things, is authorized to
acquire, construct, finance, and operate buildings, works, facilities and improvements for the

generation and transmission of electric capacity and energy for resale.
1.3 NCPA is a certified Scheduling Coordinator in accordance with the CAISO Tariff.

1.4 NCPA has established facilities, staff and the capability for the provision of
Services to Customer.

1.5 Customer desires NCPA to provide Services to Customer.

1.6 NCPA is willing to provide Customer with Services pursuant to the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth

herein, NCPA and Customer agree as follows:

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

Section 2. DEFINITIONS

2.1 Definitions. Whenever used in this Agreement (including the Recitals hereto),
the following terms shall have the following respective meanings, provided, capitalized terms
used in this Agreement (including the Recitals hereto) that are not defined in Section 2 of this

Agreement shall have the meaning indicated in Appendix A Master Definition Supplement of

the CAISO Tariff:

2.1.1 “Agreement” means this Services Agreement, including all Appendices,

attached hereto.

2.1.2 “Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal
Reserve Bank holiday. A Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m. local

time.

2.1.3 “Calendar Day” means all days, including Saturdays, Sundays or Federal

Reserve Bank holidays.

2.1.4 “California Independent System Operator Corporation” or “CAISO” means
the non-profit public benefit corporation responsible for the provision of fair and open
transmission access, and maintaining reliable and efficient operation of that portion of the
electric grid contained within its defined balancing authority area, pursuant to the California

Public Utilities Code, or its successor entity.
2.1.5 “CAISO Tariff” means the CAISO FERC Electric Tariff.

2.1.6 “Commission” means the NCPA Commission established by the Joint

Powers Agreement.
2.1.7 “Customer” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.
2.1.8 “Effective Date” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

2.1.9 “Electric System” means all properties and assets, real and personal,
tangible and intangible, of the Customer now or hereafter existing, used or pertaining to the
generation for resale, transmission, transformation, distribution or sale of electric capacity
and energy, or the utilization of such, including all additions, extensions, expansions,

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

improvements and betterments thereto and equipment thereof; provided, however, that to
the extent the Customer is not the sole owner of an asset or property or to the extent that
an asset or property is used in part for generation for resaie, transmission, transformation,
distribution or sale of electric capacity and energy, only the Customer’s ownership interest
in such asset or property or only the part of the asset or property used for electric purposes

shall be considered to be part of its Electric System.
2.1.10 “Event of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1 of this
Agreement.

2.1.11 “FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or its

regulatory successor.
2.1.12 “General Manager” means the General Manager of NCPA.

2.1.13 “Good Utility Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts
engaged in or approved by a significant portion of the electric utility industry within the
United States of America during the relevant time period, which, in the exercise of
reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was made, could
have been expected to accomplish the desired result at the lowest reasonable cost
consistent with NERC or WECC approved business practices, reliability and safety. Good
Utility Practice is not intended to be limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the
exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable practices, methods, or acts generally

accepted in the electric utility industry within the United States of America.

2.1.14 “Joint Powers Agreement” means the Amended and Restated Northern

California Power Agency Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated as of January 31, 2008.
2.1.15 “NCPA” has the meaning set forth in the preamble hereto.

2.1.16 “NERC” means the North American Electric Reliability Corporation, or its

successor.

2.1.17 “Operating Entity” means an entity that determines the use of and

coordinates scheduling of their load, resources, imports and exports, trades, ancillary

3
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

services and/or other CAISO products, in accordance with established scheduling

requirements, including those requirements determined by NCPA.

2.1.18 “Party” or “Parties” has the meaning set forth in the recitals hereto;

provided that “Third Parties” are entities that are not party to this Agreement.

2.1.19 “Reliability Standards” means requirements approved by FERC under
Section 215 of the Federal Power Act to provide for reliable operation of the bulk power

system.

2.1.20 “Scheduling Agent” means an entity authorized to act as agent on behalf
of a Scheduling Coordinator, and shall perform certain Scheduling Coordinator duties and

requirements on behalf of a Scheduling Coordinator.

2.1.21 “Scheduling Coordinator” means an entity certified by the CAISO for the
purposes of undertaking the functions of a Scheduling Coordinator specified in the CAISO

Tariff, including, but not limited to, submitting and settling bids, self-schedules, and trades

in the CAISO markets.

2.1.22 “Security Account” means an account established at NCPA pursuant to
this Agreement. The Security Account is established to: (1) make timely payments to the
CAISO under the CAISO Tariff, and protect NCPA from potential Customer default by
providing funds and time to cure, (2) provide working capital for NCPA’s provision of
Services and to bridge timing differences between the receipt of payments from Customer
and the date payments are due to the CAISO, (3) satisfy CAISO security deposit

requirements, if any, and (4) provide security against Customer default.

2.1.23 “Significant Operational Change” shall have the meaning as set forth in

Section 15.20 of this Agreement.

2.1.24 “Significant Regulatory Change” shall have the meaning as set forth in

Section 15.20 of this Agreement.

2.1.25 “Third Party” means an entity that is not a Party to this Agreement.

4
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

2.1.26 “Uncontrollable Forces” means storm, flood, lightning, earthquake,
tsunami, fire, explosion, failure of facilities not due to lack of proper care or maintenance,
civil disturbance, labor dispute, sabotage, war, national emergency, restraint by court or
public authority, any curtailment, order, regulation or restriction imposed by governmental,
military or lawfully established civilian authorities, or other causes beyond the control of
the affected Party which such Party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid by

exercise of Good Utility Practice, due diligence and foresight.

2.1.27 “WECC” means the Western Electricity Coordinating Council, or its

successor(s).

2.2 Rules of Interpretation. As used in this Agreement (including the Recitals

hereto), unless in any such case the context requires otherwise: The terms “herein,” “hereto,”
“herewith” and “hereof” are references to this Agreement taken as a whole and not to any

particular provision; the term “include,” “includes” or “including” shall mean “including, for

” i n o

example and without limitation;” and references to a “Section,” “subsection,” “clause,”
“Appendix”, “Schedule”, or “Exhibit” shall mean a Section, subsection, clause, Appendix,
Schedule or Exhibit of this Agreement, as the case may be. All references to a given agreement,
instrument, tariff or other document, or law, regulation or ordinance shall be a reference to
that agreement, instrument, tariff or other document, or law, regulation or ordinance as such
now exists and as may be amended from time to time, or its successor. Areference toa
“person” includes any individual, partnership, firm, company, corporation, joint venture, trust,
association, organization or other entity, in each case whether or not having a separate legal
personality and includes its successors and permitted assigns. A reference to a “day” shall

mean a Calendar Day unless otherwise specified. The singular shall include the plural and the

masculine shall include the feminine, and vice versa.
Section 3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which

NCPA will supply Customer with Services.

Section 4. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE

5
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

4.1 NCPA Duties. The duties of NCPA under this Agreement are to provide services

to Customer as fully described in Appendix A hereto (“Services”).

4.2 Customer Duties. The duties of the Customer under this Agreement are to:

4.2.1 Act as its own Scheduling Coordinator, and to assign certain scheduling
and settlement duties and responsibilities to NCPA, acting as Customer’s Scheduling Agent,

as fully described in Appendix A hereto.

4.2.2 Timely provide certain information to NCPA that is required for NCPA to

perform Services, as fully described in Appendix A hereto.

4.2.3 Make timely payments to NCPA for all CAISO charges and credits for

services invoiced by NCPA to Customer in accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.

4.2.4 Provide staff and other assistance as may be required from time to time
to the extent necessary for NCPA to fulfill its duties as described in Section 4.1 of this
Agreement.

4.2.5 Comply with all requirements of the CAISO Tariff, as applicable, in respect
to the operation and maintenance of its Electric System and other facilities covered under
this Agreement.

4.2.6 Provide security or other deposits required by the CAISO, if any, to NCPA
in accordance with Section 11 of this Agreement.

4.2.7 Initially fund and maintain sufficient deposits in its Security Account in
accordance with Section 12 of this Agreement.

4.2.8 Make timely payment of all costs associated with NCPA's provision of
Services, as set forth in this Agreement.

4.2.9 Except as provided in Section 6 of this Agreement, defend and indemnify

NCPA in regard to Services provided to Customer by NCPA.

6
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

4.3 Standard of Performance. NCPA will perform Services using the level of skill and

attention reasonably required to complete the services in a competent and timely manner, in

. accordance with Good Utility Practices.

4.4 Assignment of Personnel. NCPA shall assign only competent personnel to

perform Services pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5 Time. NCPA shall devote such time to the performance of Services pursuant to
this Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance provided

in Section 4.3, and to satisfy NCPA’s obligations hereunder.

Section 5. TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and

shall continue uninterrupted through , 20__ (the “Initial Term”). At the end of

the initial term of this Agreement, or any subsequent term of this Agreement, the term of this
Agreement shall automatically extent for an additional two (2) year period unless a Party
provides written Notice of Termination pursuant to Section 5.2, of its election not to

automatically extend the term of the agreement.

5.2 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either Party at the end of
the Initial Term, or at the end of any subsequent two (2) year extension, by providing written
notice to the other Party at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the current term of the

Agreement (“Notice of Termination”).

5.3 No Effect on Prior Liabilities. Termination of this Agreement will not terminate

any Customer ongoing or un-discharged liabilities, credits or obligations of Customer, including
any contingent liabilities, credits or obligations, resulting from this Agreement until they are
satisfied in full, or for which Customer has provided a mechanism acceptable to NCPA, for the

satisfaction in full thereof.
Section 6. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

6.1 Limitation of Liability.

7
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

6.1.1 Except as provided in Section 6.1, neither NCPA nor Customer (the
“Responsible Party”) shall at any time be liable for any injury or damage occurring to the
other (the “Harmed Party”) or any third person or property from any cause whatsoever

arising out of this Agreement.

6.1.2 The provisions of this Section 6.1.1 shall not apply where the injury or
damage occurring to a Harmed Party is caused by the negligence of the Responsible Party or
any of the Responsible Party’s employee’s, agents or contractors, and provided that any
liability under this subsection is Iimite'd to the extent of the actual coverage and coverage
limits of the insurance policies described in Section 6.3, which are maintained by the
Responsible Party.

6.2  Notice. The Parties shall give each other prompt notice of the making of any
claim or the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding covered by the provisions of this
Section 6.

6.3 Insurance. During the term of this Agreement, both Parties agree to maintain, or

cause to be maintained, in full force and effect, and at their respective sole cost and expense,

the following types and limits of liability insurance (“Insurance”):

6.3.1 One-million dollars per occurrence for Workers” Compensation and
Employer’s Liability;
6.3.2 One-million dollars in limits per occurrence in Automobile Liability;

and

6.3.3 Twenty-million in single combined limits for Commercial General

Liability Insurance.

Evidence of each Party’s Insurance shall be maintained, and provided to the other Party
upon request. All insurance policies, with the exception of Workers” Compensation, shall name
the other Party as additionally insured. Each Party agrees to waive the right of subrogation

where it is legal to do so.

8
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

Each Party shall designate the required insurance liability limits for any subcontractors
performing work in connection with, or in performance of any aspect of this Agreement, and in

accordance to their risk management requirements.

Section 7. COMPENSATION

7.1 Compensation for Services. Customer shall pay NCPA the amounts set forth in

Appendix B for NCPA’s provisions of Services to Customer in accordance with the terms and

conditions of this Agreement. Such amount shall be billed to Customer in accordance with

Section 8 of this Agreement.

7.2 CAISQ Charges and Credits. All charges and credits invoiced by the CAISO to

NCPA associated with services provided under this Agreement will be charged or credited to
Customer, and shall be paid to NCPA by Customer in addition to the compensation stated in
Section 7.1. Such CAISO charges and credits shall be billed to Customer in accordance with

Section 8 of this Agreement.
Section 8. BILLING AND PAYMENT

8.1 Invoices. NCPA will issue a monthly invoice to Customer for estimated and
actual CAISO charges and credits, costs associated with NCPA’s provision of Services, and all
other costs for services provided in accordance with this Agreement. Such invoices will be
made pursuant to the requirements and procedures provided for in this Agreement. At NCPA's

discretion, invoices may be issued to Customer using electronic media or physical distribution.

8.2 Payment of Invoices. All non-emergency invoices delivered by NCPA to

Customer are due and payable thirty (30) Calendar Days after the date thereof; provided,
however, that any amount due on a day other than a Business Day may be paid on the next
following Business Day. NCPA may apply Customer’s Security Account to the payment of all or
any portion of an invoice to Customer, provided that application of such funds from the
Security Account shall not relieve Customer from any late payment charges pursuant to Section
8.3. To the extent that NCPA applies funds from the Security Account to pay an amount due
under an invoice, following receipt of payment of such invoice by Customer, NCPA shall deposit

the relevant portion of the payment into the Security Account and credit such deposit to

9
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

Customer. Emergency invoices delivered by NCPA shall be due and payable on the date

indicated on such invoice, or as indicated in Section 12.5.

8.3 Late Payments. Any amount due and not paid by Customer in accordance with

Sections 8.2, Section 11 and Section 12 shall be considered late and bear interest computed on
a daily basis until paid at the lesser of (i) the per annum prime rate (or reference rate) of the
Bank of America NT&SA then in effect, plus two percent (2%) or (ii) the maximum rate

permitted by law.

8.4 Billing Disputes. Customer may dispute the accuracy of any invoice issued by

NCPA under this Agreement by submitting a written dispute to NCPA, within thirty (30)
Calendar Days of the date of such invoice; nonetheless Customer shall pay the full amount
billed when due. If Customer does not timely question or dispute the accuracy of any invoice in
writing the invoice shall be deemed to be correct. Upon review of a submitted dispute, if an
invoice is determined by NCPA to be incorrect, NCPA shall issue a corrected invoice and refund
any amounts that may be due to Customer. If NCPA and Customer fail to agree on the accuracy
of an invoice within thirty (30) Calendar Days after Customer has disputed it, the General
Manager shall promptly submit the dispute to the Commission for resolution. If the
Commission and Customer fail to agree on the accuracy of a disputed invoice within sixty (60)
Calendar Days of its submission to the Commission, the dispute may then be resolved under the
dispute resolution procedures set forth in Section 13 of this Agreement. Provided, however,
that prior to resorting to alternative dispute resolution procedures, the full amount of the

disputed invoice must have been paid.

8.5 Billing/Settlement Data. NCPA shall make billing and settlement data available

to Customer as part of the invoice delivered by NCPA, or upon request. NCPA may also, at its
sole discretion, make billing and settlement support information available to Customer using
electronic media (e.g. electronic data portal). Procedures and formats for the provision of such
electronic data submission may be as established by the NCPA Commission from time to time.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, NCPA may, in its reasonable discretion, require
Customer to execute a non-disclosure agreement prior to providing access to the NCPA

electronic data portal.

10
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

8.6 Examination of Books and Records. Customer shall have the right to examine

the books and records created and maintained by NCPA pursuant to this Agreement at any

reasonable, mutually agreed upon time.

All reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda,
plans, studies, specifications, records, files or other documents or material, in electronic or any
other form, that NCPA prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the
Services provided hereunder, shall be stored and maintained by NCPA in accordance with

NCPA’s records retention policies and procedures, as such may be modified from time to time.
Section 9. COOPERATION AND FURTHER ASSURANCES

Each of the Parties agree to provide such information, execute and deliver any
instruments and documents and to take such other actions as may be necessary or reasonably
requested by the other Party which are consistent with the provisions of this Agreement and
which do not involve the assumption of obligations other than those provided for in this
Agreement, in order to give full effect to this Agreement and to carry out the intent of this
Agreement. The Parties agree to cooperate and act in good faith in connection with obtaining

any credit support required in order to satisfy the requirements of this Agreement.

Section 10.  DEFAULTS

10.1 Events of Default. An Event of Default under this Agreement shall exist upon the

occurrence of any one or more of the following by a Party (the “Defaulting Party”):

(i) the failure of Customer to make any payment (other than an emergency
addition to the Security Account pursuant to Section 12.5) in full to NCPA when due, where
such failure is not cured within thirty (30) Calendar Days following receipt of a notice from

NCPA demanding cure;

(ii) the failure of Customer to make any payment of an emergency addition to

the Security Account when due pursuant to Section 12.5;

(iii) the failure of a Party to perform any covenant or obligation of this

Agreement where such failure is not cured within thirty (30) Calendar Days following receipt of

11
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

a notice from the other Party demanding cure. Provided, that this subsection shall not apply to

any failure to make payments specified by subsection 10.1 (i) or {ii) ); or

(iv) if any representation or warranty of a Party material to the services provided
hereunder shall prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made and the Party
does not cure the facts underlying such incorrect representation or warranty so that the
representation or warranty becomes true and correct within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the

date of receipt of notice from a Party demanding cure.

10.2 Uncontrollable Forces. A Party shall not be considered to be in default in respect

of any obligation hereunder if prevented from fulfilling such obligation by reason of
Uncontrollable Forces. Provided, that in order to be relieved of an Event of Default due to

Uncontrollable Forces, a Party affected by an Uncontrollable Force shall:

(i) first provide oral notice to the General Manager, or in the case of Customer,
to the representative selected by Customer, using telephone communication within two (2)
Business Days of the onset of the Uncontrollable Force, and subsequently provide written
notice to the Party’s representative within ten (10) Business Days of the onset of the
Uncontrollable Force, describing its nature and extent, the obligations.which the Party is unable
to fulfill, the anticipated duration of the Uncontrollable Force, and the actions which the Party

will undertake so as to remove such disability and be able to fulfill its obligations hereunder;
and

(ii) use due diligence to place itself in a position to fulfill its obligations hereunder
and if unable to fulfill any obligation by reason of an Uncontrollable Force such Party shall
exercise due diligence to remove such disability with reasonable dispatch. Provided, that

nothing in this subsection shall require a Party to settle or compromise a labor dispute.

10.3  Cure of an Event of Default. An Event of Default shall be deemed cured only if

such default shall be remedied or cured within the time periods specified in Section 10.1 above,

as may be applicable.

10.4 Remedies in the Event of Uncured Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of

Default which is not cured within the time limits specified in Section 10.1, without limiting other

12
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

rights or remedies available under this Agreement, at law or in equity, and without constituting
or resulting in a waiver, release or estoppel of any right, action or cause of action a non-
defaulting Party may have against the defaulting Party, a non-defaulting Party may take any or
all of the following actions:

(i) NCPA may suspend the provision of services under this Agreement to
Customer;

(ii) NCPA may demand that Customer provide further assurances to guarantee
the correction of the default;

(iii) The non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement as to the defaulting

Party, on ten (10) Calendar Days prior written notice to the Defaulting Party;

(iv) NCPA may utilize the funds available in Customer’s Security Account to cure
and default under Section 10.1(i) and thereafter demand replenishment of the Security

Account.

10.5 Special Covenants Regarding Security Account. In the event that Customer’s

Security Account is insufficient to cover all invoices for costs incurred under this Agreement
delivered to Customer, then, without limiting NCPA's other rights or remedies available under
this Agreement, at law or in equity, Customer shall cooperate in good faith with NCPA and shall
cure the default as rapidly as possible, on an emergency basis, taking all such action as is
necessary to replenish its Security Account as provided herein, drawing on its cash-on-hand and
lines of credit, obtaining further assurances by way of credit support and letters of credit, and

taking all such other action as will cure the default with all due haste.

10.6 Effect of Termination or Suspension.

10.6.1 Generally. The termination or suspension of this Agreement will not
terminate, waive, or otherwise discharge any ongoing or undischarged liabilities, credits or
obligations arising from this Agreement until such liabilities, credits or obligations are

satisfied in full.

13
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

10.6.2 Suspension. If performance of all or any portion of this Agreement is
suspended by NCPA in accordance with Section 10.4 (i), Customer shall pay any and all costs
incurred by NCPA as a result of such suspension including reasonable attorney fees, the fees
and expenses of other experts, including auditors and accountants, or other reasonable and
necessary costs associated with such suspension and any portion of the costs associated

with NCPA’s provision of Services that were not recovered from Customer as a result of

such suspension.

10.6.3 Termination. If this Agreement is terminated by a Party in accordance
with Section 10.4 (iii), the Defaulting Party shall pay any and all costs incurred by the other
Party as a result of such termination, including reasonable attorney fees, the fees and
expenses of other experts, including auditors and accountants, other reasonable and
necessary costs associated with such termination, and as to Customer, any portion of costs
associated with NCPA’s provision of Services that were not, or will not be, recovered from

Customer as a result of such termination.
Section 11. CAISO SECURITY DEPOSIT AND CREDIT REQUIREMENTS

Any credit requirements, including, but not limited to, security, collateral, unsecured
credit, or other deposits required by the CAISO, shall be provided by Customer prior to NCPA
providing Services under this Agreement, and shall be maintained as may be required
thereafter pursuant to the CAISO Tariff. Failure to maintain sufficient credit, security, collateral,
unsecured credit, or other deposits may impact NCPA's ability to perform certain Services
under this agreement. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of Customers credit, security,
collateral, unsecured credit or other deposits. Any changes in credit, security, unsecured credit
or other deposits required by the CAISO Tariff may be provided by NCPA from Customer’s
Security Account, and NCPA shall invoice Customer within two (2) Business Days for such

required amounts, and will use the funds collected from Customer to fund the Security

Account.

Section 12.  SECURITY ACCOUNT

14
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

Any Customer deposits into the Security Account pursuant to this Agreement shall be
separate from and in addition to any security accounts maintained pursuant to any other
agreements between NCPA and the Customer, NCPA and any Third Person, or any other such

security account required of Customer.

12.1  Applicability. The requirement for Customer to initially deposit and maintain a
Security Account pursuant to Section 12.2 and Section 12.3 is only applicable if NCPA, acting on
behalf of Customer, is directly responsible for making payments to the CAISO and processing
charges and credits invoiced by the CAISO to NCPA, associated with Services provided under
this Agreement, including all charges and credits associated with security deposits as may be
required pursuant to the CAISO Tariff. For clarity, Customer shall not be required to initially
deposit and maintain a Security Account pursuant to Section 12.2 and Section 12.3 if Customer
retains the direct responsibility for making payments to the CAISO and processing charges and
credits invoiced by the CAISO to Customer, associated with Services provided under this
Agreement, including all charges and credits associated with security deposits as may be

required pursuant to the CAISO Tariff.

12.2 Initial Amounts. Prior to NCPA providing Services, Customer shall deposit into a

Security Account held by NCPA an amount equal to the highest three (3) months of estimated
CAISO invoices for the succeeding twelve (12) months; provided, however, that such deposit
may be satisfied in whole or in part either in cash or through a clean, irrevocable letter of credit
satisfactory to the General Manager. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of Customer’s

deposit in the Security Account.

12.3 Subseguent Deposits. Periodically, and at least quarterly, NCPA shall review and

revise its estimate of all costs Customer shall be obligated to pay under this Agreement.
Following such review, NCPA shall determine whether Customer has a sufficient balance in the
Security Account. To the extent that Customer’s balance in the Security Account is greater than
one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the amount required by Section 12.2, NCPA shall credit
such amount as soon as practicable to Customer’s next monthly invoice. To the extent that
Customer’s balance in the Security Account is less than ninety percent (90%) of the amount
required by Section 12.2, NCPA shall add such amount as soon as practicable to Customer’s

15
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

next monthly invoice, or as necessary, to a special invoice to Customer. Credits or additions
shall not be made if Customer satisfies these Security Account requirements in whole through
the use of a letter of credit, provided that the amount of the letter of credit shall be adjusted by
Customer as necessary in a like manner to assure an amount equal to the highest three (3)

months of CAISO invoices is available to NCPA.

12.4  Use of Security Account Funds.

12.4.1 NCPA may use any and all funds deposited into the Security Account
(or utilize a letter of credit provided in lieu thereof) to pay any costs it incurs hereunder,
irrespective of whether NCPA has issued an invoice for such costs to Customer or whether
Customer has made timely payments of invoices. Should Customer satisfy its Security
Account requirements in whole or part through a letter of credit, NCPA may draw on such

letter of credit to satisfy obligations hereunder.

12.4.2 If funds deposited into the Security Account, or provided through a
letter of credit, are used by NCPA to pay any costs it incurs hereunder, NCPA, pursuant to

Section 8.5, will maintain a detailed accounting of Customer’s shares of funds withdrawn

from the Security Account or letter of credit.

12.5 Emergency Additions. In the event that the funds are withdrawn pursuant to

Section 12.4 of this Agreement, or if the Security Account is insufficient to allow payment of a
CAISO invoice, NCPA shall notify Customer and then prepare and send a special or emergency
assessment to Customer. Customer shall pay to NCPA such assessment when and if assessed by
NCPA within two (2) Business Days of the invoice date of the assessment or consent to and

direct NCPA to draw on any existing letter of credit Customer has established for such

purposes.

12.6  Accounting and Interest. NCPA shall maintain a detailed accounting of

Customer’s deposits into and withdrawals from the Security Account. Monies on deposit in the
Security Account shall be invested by NCPA along with the other funds of NCPA in accordance
with policies set by the Commission from time to time in its sole discretion. Interest, if any,

earned on.the Security Account shall be credited to Customer’s Security Account. Any losses in

16
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

the Security Account caused by early termination of investments or otherwise shall be charged
to Customer’s Security Account. NCPA makes no representation that the Security Account will
earn any particular amount of interest or any interest, and Customer acknowledges that the
amounts in the Security Account may lose value. NCPA shall not be liable for any investment

losses to Customer’s funds held in the Security Account.

12.7 Return of Funds. On the termination of this Agreement Customer’s Security

Account funds shall be paid to Customer ninety (90) days after the effective date of such
termination. NCPA shall, in its sole discretion, as determined by the General Manager, estimate
the then outstanding liabilities of Customer, including any estimated contingent liabilities, and
shall retain all such funds until all such liabilities have been fully paid or otherwise satisfied in
full. After such determination by the General Manager, the balance of Customer’s Security

Account will be refunded to Customer within sixty (60) days.
Section 13.  SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

13.1 Settlement of Disputes. If any dispute arises between the Parties that cannot be

settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Customer and NCPA agree to resolve the

dispute in accordance with the following:

13.1.1 Each Party shall designate a senior management or executive level

representative to negotiate any dispute.

13.1.2 The representative shall attempt, through good faith negotiations, to

resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.1.3 If the issue remains unresolved after sixty (60) days of good faith
negotiations, despite having used their best efforts to do so, either Party may pursue

whatever other remedies may be available to it.

13.1.4 This informal resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for failing a claim or action specified by Government

Code § 900, et seq.

Section 14.  STATUS OF NCPA

17
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

At all times during the term of this Agreement, NCPA shall be an independent contractor
and shall not be an employee of Customer. Customer shall have the right to control NCPA only
insofar as the results of NCPA's Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement; however,
otherwise Customer shall not have the right to control the means by which NCPA accomplishes
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other agency, state, local
or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, NCPA and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing Services under this Agreement shall not
qualify for or becomeientitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Customer, including but not limited
to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) as an
employee of Customer and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by Customer for

employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits.

Section 15.  MISCELLANEOUS

15.1 Confidentiality. The Parties will keep confidential all confidential or trade secret

information made available to them in connection with this Agreement, to the extent possible,
consistent with applicable laws, including the California Public Records Act. Confidential or

trade secret information shall be marked or expressly identified as such.

If a Party (“Receiving Party”) receives a request from a Third Party for access to, or
inspection, disclosure or copying of, any of the other Party’s (the “Supplying Party”) confidential
data or information (“Disclosure Request”), then the Receiving Party shall provide notice and a
copy of the Disclosure Request to the Supplying Party within three (3) Business Days of receipt
of the Disclosure Request. Within three (3) Business Days of receipt of such notice, the

Supplying Party shall provide notice to the Receiving Party either:

(i) that the Supplying Party believes there are reasonable legal grounds for
denying or objecting to the Disclosure Request, and the Supplying Party requests the Receiving
Party to deny or object to the Disclosure Request with respect to identified confidential
information. In such case, the Receiving Party shall deny the Disclosure Request and the

Supplying Party shall defend the denial of the Disclosure Request at its sole cost, and it shall

18
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

indemnify the Receiving Party for all costs associated with denying or objecting to the
Disclosure Request. Such indemnification by the Supplying Party of the Receiving Party shall
include all of the Receiving Party’s costs reasonably incurred with respect to denial of or
objection to the Disclosure Request, including but not limited to costs, penalties, and the

Receiving Party’s attorney’s fees; or

(ii) the Receiving Party may grant the Disclosure Request without any liability by

the Receiving Party to the Supplying Party.

15.2 Indemnification and Hold Harmless. Subject to the provisions of Sections 6 and

15.4, each Party agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party, including their
respective governing boards, officials, officers, agents, and employees, from and against any
and all claims, suits, losses, costs, damages, expenses and liability of any kind or nature,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and the costs of litigation, including experts, to the extent
caused by any acts, omissions, breach of contract, negligence (active or passive), gross
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of that Party, its governing officials, officers,

employees, subcontractors or agents, to the maximum extent permitted by law.

15.3  Survival of Obligations. The defense and indemnity obligations of Section 15.2

shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

15.4 No Consequential Damages. FOR ANY BREACH OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS

AGREEMENT FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS PROVIDED IN
THIS AGREEMENT, THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFAULTING PARTY SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH
IN SUCH PROVISION, AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES OR REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IF NO
REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGE IS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED, THE LIABILITY OF THE
DEFAULTING PARTY SHALL BE LIMITED TO ACTUAL DAMAGES ONLY AND ALL OTHER DAMAGES
AND REMEDIES ARE HEREBY WAIVED. IN NO EVENT SHALL A PARTY OR THEIR RESPECTIVE
SUCCESSORS, ASSIGNS, REPRESENTATIVES, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, OR EMPLOYEES BE
LIABLE FOR ANY LOST PROFITS, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE OR
INCIDENTAL LOSSES OR DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF GOODWILL, LOST
REVENUES, LOSS OF PROFIT OR LOSS OF CONTRACTS EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED

19
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES SUCH CLAIMS AND
RELEASES EACH OTHER AND EACH OF SUCH PERSONS FROM ANY SUCH LIABILITY.

The Parties acknowledge that California Civil Code section 1542 provides that: “A
general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist
in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, which if known by him or her must have
materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.” The Parties waive the provisions of
section 1542, or other similar provisions of law, and intend that the waiver and release
provided by this Section of this Agreement shall be fully enforceable despite its reference to
future or unknown claims.

15.5 Waiver. No waiver of the performance by a Party of any obligation under this
Agreement with respect to any default or any other matter arising in connection with this
Agreement shall be effective unless given by the other Party. Any such waiver by the other
Party in any particular instance shall not be deemed a waiver with respect to any subsequent
performance, default or matter.

15.6 Amendments. Unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement, this Agreement
may be amended only by written instrument executed by the Parties with the same formality as

this Agreement.

15.6.1 Amendments of Appendices. The Appendices that are attached to

and made part of this Agreement include detailed principles, descriptions and procedures
for NCPA'’s provision of Services to Customer. Upon mutual written consent of the
Designated Representative of each Party, the Appendices of this Agreement may be
amended from time to time, without the requirement of an approval as required pursuant
to Section 15.6; provided, however, Appendix A and Appendix B may be amended only by

written instrument executed by the Parties with the same formality as this Agreement.

15.7 Assignment of Agreement.

15.7.1 Binding Upon Successors. This Agreement, including the Appendices

attached hereto, shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the respective

successors and assignees of the Parties to this Agreement.

20
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

15.7.2 No Assignment. This Agreement, nor any interest herein, shall be

transferred or assigned by a Party hereto except with the consent in writing of the other

Parties hereto, where such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

15.8 Severability. In the event that any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement or the application of any such term, covenant or condition, shall be held invalid as
to any person or circumstance by any court having jurisdiction, all other terms, covenants or
conditions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected thereby, but shall

remain in force and effect unless the court holds that such provisions are not severable from all

other provisions of this Agreement.

15.9 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed by, and

construed under the laws of the State of California.

15.10 Headings. All indices, titles, subject headings, section titles and similar items are
provided for the purpose of convenience and are not intended to be inclusive, definitive, or

affect the meaning of the contents of this Agreement or the scope thereof.

15.11 Notices. Any notice, demand or request provided for in this Agreement, or
served, given or made shall become effective when delivered to the person specified below

(the “Designated Representative”):

NCPA:

David Dockham

Assistant General Manager, Power Management
Northern California Power Agency

651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Customer:

Jenine Windeshausen
Treasurer-Tax Collector
County of Placer

2976 Richardson Dr.
Auburn, CA 95603

All notices shall be deemed delivered when personally delivered, two (2) Business Days
after deposit in the United States mail first class postage prepaid, or on the first Business Day

21
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

following delivery through electronic communication. A Party may change its Designated

Representative by providing notice to the other Party, and such change shall not constitute an

amendment to this Agreement.

15.12 Warranty of Authority. Each Party represents and warrants that it has been duly

authorized by all requisite approval and action to execute and deliver this Agreement and that

this Agreement is a binding, legal, and valid agreement enforceable in accordance with its

terms.

15.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
and each executed counterpart shall have the same force and effect as an original instrument
and as if all the signatories to all of the counterparts had signed the same instrument. Any
signature page of this Agreement may be detached from any counterpart of this Agreement
without impairing the legal effect of any signatures thereon, and may be attached to another

counterpart of this Agreement identical in form hereto but having attached to it one or more

signature pages.

15.14 Venue. In the event that a Party brings any action under this Agreement, the
Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California

in the County of Placer or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of

California.

15.15 Attorneys’ Fees. If a Party to this Agreement brings any action, including an

action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, each

Party shall bear its own fees and costs, including attorneys’ fees, associated with the action.

15.16 Counsel Representation. Pursuant to the provisions of California Civil Code

Section 1717 (a), each of the Parties were represented by counsel in the negotiation and
execution of this Agreement and no one Party is the author of this Agreement or any of its
subparts. Those terms of this Agreement which dictate the responsibility for bearing any
attorney’s fees incurred in arbitration, litigation or settlement in a manner inconsistent with the

provisions of Section 15.2 were intentionally so drafted by the Parties, and any ambiguities in

22
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

this Agreement shall not be interpreted for or against a Party by reason of that Party being the

author of the provision.

15.17 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended

by the Parties, nor shall any provision of this Agreement be deemed or construed by the
Parties, by any third person or any Third Parties, to be for the benefit of any Third Party, nor
shall any Third Party have any right to enforce any provision of this Agreement or be entitled to

damages for any breach by the Parties of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

15.18 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the appendices

attached hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Customer and NCPA
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All appendixes attached hereto are

incorporated by reference herein.

15.19 Reliability Requirements. Unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, the

Parties acknowledge that Customer and NCPA are both individually responsible for compliance
with the WECC and NERC Reliability Standards and criteria applicable to the functions for which
each Party are respectively registered with NERC. The references to WECC and NERC Reliability
Standards, if any, throughout this Agreement do not make any alteration or enlargement of the
requirements or standards applicable to each Party beyond their individual registrations with

NERC.

15.20 Significant Regulatory Change or Operational Change.

15.20.1 A “Significant Regulatory Change” shall be deemed to occur if FERC, the
CPUC, the CAISO or any other court, public authority, governmental, or other lawfully
established civilian authorities having jurisdiction, issues an order or decision or adopts or
modifies a tariff or filed contract, or enacts a law that materially interferes with the ability

of any Party to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement.

15.20.2 A “Significant Operational Change” shall be deemed to occur due to (i)
material amendments and/or revisions to any tariffs, contracts or other applicable

documents referenced in this Agreement that directly affect a Party’s obligations under this

23
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

Agreement, (i) an action taken by the Balancing Authority that may have a material
detrimental impact on the way a Party operates or must operate its Electric System, or that
directly affects a Party’s obligations under this Agreement, or (iii) a significant change in
Customer’s supply and resource portfolio that may result in material increase in the scale
and scope of services contemplated at the Effective Date of this Agreement (e.g.,

Customer’s load increased more than ten (10) percent).

15.20.3 Notification of Significant Regulatory Change or Operational Change. At

any time during the term of this Agreement, if any Party anticipates the occurrence of a
Significant Regulatory Change or Significant Operational Change that may reasonably be
expected to materially interfere with the ability of any Party to perform any of its
obligations under this Agreement, or such Significant Regulatory Change or Significant
Operational Change occurs, such Party shall provide written notice to the other Party as
soon as practicable. The notice shall contain a description of the Significant Regulatory
Change or Significant Operational Change, including expected time schedules, and of the
effect of the significant change to the Parties. If the Party giving notice believes that it will
be necessary to amend this Agreement to address the anticipated change or change when it
has occurred, then the notice to the other Party may include a proposal that the Parties
meet to negotiate an appropriate amendment to this Agreement. The Parties shall
promptly enter into good faith negotiations and attempt to achieve a mutually agreeable
modification to this Agreement to address any such Significant Regulatory Change or

Significant Operational Change.

15.20.4 Amendment of Agreement. If the Parties agree that an amendment to

this Agreement is necessary to address a Significant Regulatory Change or Significant
Operational Change, the Parties will proceed to negotiate such amendment in good faith. If
the Parties have not reached agreement within 120 calendar days of the date of the first
meeting, either Party may terminate this Agreement upon one hundred and eighty (180)

days prior written notice provided to the other Party.

24
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NCPA and Customer have, by the signature of its duly

authorized representative shown below, executed and delivered a counterpart of this

Agreement.

Northern California Power Agency Sierra Valley Energy Authority

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager

Attest: Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form: ' Approved as to Form:

General Counsel

25
SERVICES AGREEMENT



DRAFT

APPENDIX A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

All services provided by NCPA to Customer pursuant to this Agreement are described in

this Appendix A (collectively referred to herein as “Services”).
Section 1. Scheduling Coordination Services

1.1 Description of Service. NCPA shall provide Scheduling Coordination Services to

Customer, acting as Customer’s Scheduling Agent, in accordance with this Agreement, the
CAISO Tariff, and other rules and requirements, as applicable. Scheduling Coordination Services

include the following duties, and are furthermore described in Appendix C of this Agreement:

1.1.1 NCPA, in coordination with Customer, will facilitate Customer’s
Scheduling Coordinator registration with the CAISO. NCPA will assist Customer with
managing the various steps that are required to complete all of the Scheduling Coordinator

certification requirements set forth in the CAISO Tariff and Business Practice Manuals.

1.1.2 NCPA will assist Customer with the process of transferring Customer’s
resources from the Scheduling Coordinator portfolio in which they currently reside, if any,

to Customer’s newly registered and formed Scheduling Coordinator portfolio.

1.1.3 Development and submission of schedules and Bids for Customer’s
loads, resources, trades, ancillary services and/or other CAISO products in the CAISO energy
and ancillary services markets, or other markets, as applicable. All schedules and Bids will
be made and submitted to the CAISO in accordance with Appendix C and the CAISO Tariff,
or other balancing authority areas in accordance with the applicable rules and
requirements. Customer’s owned and operated generation facilities, if any, for which NCPA

supplies Scheduling Coordination Services on behalf of are listed in Appendix E.

1.1.4 NCPA shall perform outage coordination and management for
Customer’s generating resource planned and unplanned outages in accordance with
applicable rules and requirements, including, but not limited to, the CAISO Tariff and

associated operational procedures.

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

1.1.5 Obtain and maintain settlement quality meter data in accordance
with the CAISO Tariff, the MSA CAISO ME or MSA SC, as applicable, to be used for multiple

purposes, including, but not limited to settlement validation.

1.1.6 Submit regulatory data to appropriate Balancing Authorities by

defined deadlines, including Resource Adequacy supply plans and compliance filings.

1.1.7 Develop, submit and management of E-Tags for Customer

interchange transactions.

1.1.8 Review, validate, and reconcile CAISO settlement charges and credits

for services, file timely disputes and pursuant dispute resolution.
Section 2. Control Center Services

2.1 Description of Service. NCPA shall provide control center services (“Control

Center Services”) for Customer’s owned and operated generation facilities for which NCPA
supplies Scheduling Coordination Services. Such duties shall include the following, and are

furthermore described in Appendix D of this Agreement:
2.1.1 Monitoring and dispatching of Customer generation facilities.
2.1.2 Management of unplanned outages and system emergencies.

2.1.3 Purchasing and selling energy and capacity in real time in accordance

with direction provided by Customer.
2.1.4 Monitor real time telemetry, data flow and manage system data.

2.1.5 Call-out field and emergency service personnel in response to certain

operational conditions.

2.1.6 Operational coordination, communication, monitoring and
equipment clearance and switching with Customer’s generation facility personnel and Third

Parties.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

2.1.7 Monitor alarms and operate Customer generation facilities in
accordance with Operating Procedures and applicable requirements, including regulatory

and/or environmental requirements.

2.1.8 Comply with the Customer Emergency Action Plan (“EAP”), and

initiating the EAP as required.

Section 3. Portfolio Management and Optimization Services

3.1 Description of Services. NCPA shall provide portfolio management and

optimization services (“Portfolio Management and Optimization Services”) to Customer

pursuant to this Agreement. Portfolio Management and Optimization Services including the

following duties:

3.1.1 Acting as an Operating Entity on behalf of Customer.

3.1.2 Providing pre-scheduling, real-time scheduling and optimization

(including development of Bidding strategies) services for Customer’s loads and resources.

3.1.3 Performing resource planning and optimization on behalf of

Customer.

3.1.4 Enteringinto balance-of-month transactions and transactions for a
term less than balance-of-month for purchasing and selling energy, capacity, transmission

capacity, and other related services and products on behalf of Customer.

3.1.5 Monitor and analyze contract requirements, and make
recommendations to Customer regarding strategies for maximizing the benefits of such

contracts.

3.1.6 Coordination of daily and intra-daily operational communications

with Customer’s operational counterparts.

3.1.7 Performing transactional and bilateral checkouts and settlements for
physical and financial energy, and energy related product transactions, and initiating and

processing related disputes.

3
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

3.1.8 Perform load forecasting and provide accurate real time, hour ahead,

day ahead, week ahead, and month ahead load forecasts to Customer.

3.1.9 Provide monthly forecast reconciliation report comparing forecast to
actual electric usage, and update forecasting models, as required, to reduce systematic

forecasting errors.

3.1.10 Submit Congestion Revenue Rights nominations and bids, and provide

quarterly effectiveness reports.
Section 4. Information Requirements

4.1 Information Requirements. To enable NCPA to perform the duties associated

with Services provided to Customer in accordance with this Agreement, Customer shall timely

provide the following information, instructions, and communications to NCPA:

4.1.1 Meter Data. Customer shall provide NCPA access to settlement
quality meter data from loads and resources scheduled and Bid by NCPA for Customer
under this Agreement, and to maintain such meters and metering equipment in accordance

with the standards and requirements as set forth in the CAISO Tariff.

4.1.2 Operational Data. Customer shall provide NCPA access to certain

real-time operational systems and information (as mutually determined by NCPA and
Customer) including, but is not limited to: (i) Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
(“SCADA”) systems, (ii) Programmable Logic Controllers (“PLC”), and (iii) Real-time

telemetry and recording devices.

4.1.3 Scheduling and Operating Procedures. Customer shall prepare

written scheduling procedures (“Scheduling Procedures”) and operating procedures
(“Operating Procedures”) related to Customer loads and generation resources that convey
Customer’s guidelines for how NCPA is to perform certain Scheduling Coordination Services
and Control Center Services under this Agreement. Such Scheduling Procedures and
Operating Procedures shall be conveyed to NCPA sufficiently in advance of their application

so as to reasonably enable NCPA to perform such activities.

4
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

Section 5. Supplemental Services in Accordance with Task Order Process

5.1 Description of Service. NCPA may, at its sole discretion, provide certain

technical support services, or other advisory services, to Customer upon mutual written
agreement between the Parties (“Supplemental Services”). All requests for Supplemental
Services shall be submitted by Customer to NCPA in accordance with the task order process

described in Appendix F (“Task Order Process”).

5.2 Compensation for Supplemental Services. Costs for NCPA’s provision of

Supplemental Services shall be charged to Customer on a time and materials basis. Pursuant to
Section 7.1 of this Agreement, in consideration of NCPA’s provision of Supplemental Services,
Customer shall pay NCPA the sum of: (i) an amount equal to the number of hours required to
complete each respective task, multiplied by the applicable hourly rate listed in the
Supplemental Services Wage Schedule contained in Appendix B, and (ii) out of pocket expenses
and the cost of materials. The scope of each Supplemental Service shall be specified in each
respective task order (“Task Order Request”) developed by the Parties pursuant to the Task

Order Process.
Section 6. Service Transition.

The Parties acknowledge that prior to the date on which specific Services shall be
supplied by NCPA for a specific Customer generating resource, the Parties may be required
perform certain work and other activities to establish and enable the systems and processes
that are required to perform Services as of the date on which Services for a specific Customer
generating resource is to commence. Such activities may include establishing common
business practices, developing business requirements, establishing connectivity of systems and
equipment, coordinated training of staff, and other activities that may be required to enable
NCPA to provide, and Customer to receive, Services. During this transition period (the
"Transition Period"), the Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to establish and enable the
systems and processes that are required to perform Services. All activities to be performed by
NCPA during the Transition Period are included as part of the comprehensive Services provided
to Customer, pursuant to this Agreement, even though such work and activities may be

5
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

performed by NCPA prior to the date on which specific Services shall be supplied by NCPA for a

specific Customer generating resource.

6
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX A



DRAFT

APPENDIX B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Section 7.1 of this Agreement, Customer shall pay NCPA the amounts listed in

this Appendix B (the “Compensation Schedule”) in consideration for Services provided under

P

this Agreement.

Section 1. Compensation Schedule
1.1 In consideration for NCPA’s provision of all Services, except Supplemental
Services, Customer shall pay NCPA an amount equal to for

Services rendered during the first one (1) year period in which NCPA is supplying Services to
Customer; more specifically, the first one (1) year period shall begin on the Effective Date, and

shall continue through , 20__. For each subsequent one (1) year period of the

term of this Agreement, Customer shall pay NCPA an amount equal to: (i) the sum of the annual
amount charged to Customer during the prior year escalated at a rate of ___ % per year. Such
annual amount shall be billed to Customer in twelve (12) equal monthly instaliments, in

accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.
Section 2. Supplemental Services

2.1 Pursuant to Section 5 of Appendix A, NCPA may provide Supplemental Services
to Customer. All costs charged to Customer for Supplemental Services are separate from and in
addition to the compensation paid for all other Services, as set forth in Section 1 of this
Appendix B. The following is the hourly rate schedule applicable to Supplemental Services

(“Supplemental Services Wage Schedule”):

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX B



DRAFT

SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES WAGE SCHEDULE

CY 2016

Job Classification Hourly Rate ($/Hr.)
Accountant/Analyst I-11I S 150.00
Administrative Assistant I-lll S 90.00
Assistant General Manager S 300.00
Computer Tech Analyst I-IV S 170.00
Sr. Computer Tech Analyst S 180.00
Risk Manager S 180.00
Compliance Manager S 230.00
Engineer/Energy Resource Analyst I-IV S 180.00
Mgr. Information Svcs. and Power Settlements S 240.00
Power Settlements Analyst S 160.00
Power Settlements Manager S 210.00
Scheduler/Planner S 180.00
Supervisor I-lI S 230.00

This wage schedule may be amended from time to time by NCPA as its costs of labor
increase, and may add, subtract or amend job classification titles (and their respective hourly
rates) as its job classification schedule is amended. NCPA shall provide written notice to

Customer of any such amendment prior to charging any increased rate.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX B



DRAFT

APPENDIX C
SCHEDULING PROCEDURES

The Scheduling Procedures are separately attached to this Agreement as Appendix C.

RESERVED FOR ATTACHMENT OF SCHEDULING PROCEDURES

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX C



DRAFT

APPENDIX D
OPERATING PROCEDURES

The Operating Procedures are separately attached to this Agreement as Appendix D.

RESERVED FOR ATTACHMENT OF SCHEDULING PROCEDURES

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX D



DRAFT

APPENDIX E
CUSTOMER RESOURCES

The following is a list of Customer’s resource for which NCPA provides Services pursuant

to this Agreement.

LIST OF RESOURCES (RESOURCE NAME AND RESOURCE ID)

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX E



DRAFT

APPENDIX F
TASK ORDER PROCESS

Pursuant to Section 5 of Appendix A, NCPA may, at its sole discretion, provide certain
Supplemental Services to Customer. All requests for Supplemental Services shall be submitted

by Customer to NCPA in accordance with the Task Order Process described in this Appendix F.

Section 1. Task Order Process

1.1 Submission of a Task Order. Customer may submit a Task Order Request for

Supplemental Services to NCPA in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
All Supplemental Services requests shall be submitted to NCPA in writing using the task order
request form attached to this Appendix F (“Task Order Request Form”). In the Task Order
Request Form, Customer shall provide a description of the desired Supplemental Services, a
time frame on which Customer is seeking such Supplemental Services to be completed, and all

other relevant details that may assist NCPA’s review and consideration of the Task Order

Request.

1.2 Review of Task Order Request. Once NCPA receives a Task Order Request from

Customer, NCPA will review the Customer’s request to determine if NCPA can perform the
desired work. Once NCPA has completed its review of the Task Order Request, NCPA will
provide a written response to Customer to confirm that NCPA is either: (i) able and willing to
perform the Supplemental Services as requested, or (ii) not able or not willing to perform the
Supplément Services as requested. If NCPA is able and willing to perform the Supplemental
Services as requested, NCPA will provide a written proposal for NCPA’s provision of the
requested Supplemental Services to Customer, including a detailed project scope and estimated

cost for performing the desired work (“Supplemental Services Task Order”).

1.3 Task Order Confirmation. Upon receipt of the Supplemental Services Task Order,

if any, Customer may agree to accept or not accept NCPA’s proposal to supply Supplemental
Services. If Customer agrees to accept NCPA’s proposal to supply Supplemental Services, upon

mutual written consent of the Designated Representatives of each Party, the Parties shall

1
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX F



DRAFT

confirm the terms and conditions of the Supplemental Services by executing the Supplemental
Services Task Order. NCPA shall invoice Customer for the full estimated cost of the
Supplemental Services, as set forth in the Supplemental Services Task Order, prior to NCPA's

provision of the Supplemental Services to Customer. Such amounts shall be billed to Customer

in accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.

1.4 Billing Adjustments. Upon completion of the Supplemental Services, NCPA shall

provide a final written accounting for all actual costs associated with NCPA’s provision of the
Supplemental Services to Customer, and shall either: (i) refund any positive difference between
estimated costs and actual costs, or (ii) invoice Customer for the amount of actual costs that are
greater than the amount of estimated costs collected from Customer (“Adjustment Amount”).

Any Adjustment Amount shall be billed to Customer in accordance with Section 8 of this
Agreement.

1.5 Disputes. Any disputes associated with NCPA’s provision of Supplemental
Services to Customer shall be resolved under the dispute resolution procedures set forth in

Section 13 of this Agreement.

2
SERVICES AGREEMENT
APPENDIX F



DRAFT

Northern California Power Agency
Task Order Request Form

Attention: Contract Administration
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Phone: 916-781-4229

Email: tony.zimmer@ncpa.com

Dated As:
Date of Completion:

Customer Information:

Customer Name:

Designated Representative:

Address:

Phone:

Email:

Task Details

Additional Notes:

[Customer Designated Representative]




	Minutes_Draft_04202017
	Item_5_draft_FAC_Minutes
	Item_10_April_2017_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurers_Report
	Item_12_Sale_Disposal_Surplus_Property
	Item_13_Revsied_Debt_Interest_Rate_Mgmt_Policy
	Item_14_Audit_Svcs_Provider_Award_Contract
	Item_15_First_Amend_Agreement_NCPA_PFM
	Item_16_Andritz_Hydro_Agreement
	Item_17_Knights'_Electric_Agreement
	Item_18_Sage_Engineers_First_Amend_Agreement
	Item_19_2017_Geo_Operating_Protocal_Steam_Field
	Item_20_LEC_Exhibit8_Schedule1
	Item_21_SCPA_AppB_Revised_Version21_AppB
	Item_22_Lettter_Agreement_17-SNR_02051
	Item_23_Agreement_NCPA_BAMx_and_NCPA_FlynnResourcesConsultants
	Item_24_Annual_Budget_Wkng_Capital_Adjust_FY18
	Item_25_Beaver_Creek_Restoration
	Item_26_Meyers_Nave_Agreement_Asst_General_Counsel
	Item_27_Provision_Svcs_Sierra_Valley_Energy_Authority

